
           

THROUGH THESE DOORS WALK ONLY THE FINEST PEOPLE – THE CITIZENS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY. DECISIONS
ARE MADE IN THIS ROOM AFFECTING THE DAILY LIVES OF OUR PEOPLE. DIGNIFIED CONDUCT IS APPRECIATED.   CHAMBER RULES
1. IF YOU WISH TO SPEAK, YOU WILL BE HEARD.
2. YOU MUST SIGN UP TO SPEAK. SIGN-UP SHEETS ARE AVAILABLE AT THE BACK OF THE ROOM.
3. YOU ARE REQUESTED TO KEEP YOUR REMARKS BRIEF AND FACTUAL.
4. BOTH SIDES ON AN ISSUE WILL BE GRANTED UNIFORM/MAXIMUM TIME TO SPEAK.
5. DURING QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS (I.E., REZONINGS), CONDUCT IS VERY FORMAL AND REGULATED BY
SUPREME COURT DECISIONS.

PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL BCC MEETINGS ARE RECORDED AND TELEVISED
 

AGENDA
Board of County Commissioners

Regular Meeting – April 2, 2013 – 5:30 p.m.
Ernie Lee Magaha Government Building – First Floor

             

1. Call to Order. 

Please turn your cell phone to the vibrate, silence, or off setting.

The Board of County Commissioners allows any person to speak regarding an
item on the Agenda. The speaker is limited to three (3) minutes to allow sufficient
time for all speakers. Speakers shall refrain from abusive or profane remarks,
disruptive outbursts, protests, or other conduct which interferes with the orderly
conduct of the meeting. Upon completion of the Public comment period,
discussion is limited to Board members and questions raised by the Board.

 

2. Invocation – Commissioner Robertson.
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

4. Are there any items to be added to the agenda?

Recommendation : That the Board adopt the agenda as prepared (or duly
amended).

 

5. Commissioners’ Forum.
 

6. Presentation by Robin Reshard concerning the Belmont DeVilliers Documentary
Project.

 

  

  



             

7.   Proclamations.

Recommendation:  That the Board take the following action concerning the
adoption/ratification of the following six Proclamations:
 
A. Adopt the Proclamation commending and congratulating Mr. Robert "Kirk"
Kassebaum, Program Manager, Public Works Department, Engineering
Division, on his selection as "Employee of the Month" for April 2013;

B. Adopt the Proclamation extending congratulations to Lakeview Baptist
Church on its 50th Anniversary of ministry to the community;

C. Adopt the Proclamation proclaiming the week of April 8 through April 14,
2013, as “Youth Success Week” in Escambia County, and calling upon all the
citizens of our community to embrace this year’s theme of “Taking
Responsibility – A Roadmap to Success” in celebration of all the successes of
the Juvenile Justice Programs in strengthening families and in turning around
the lives of troubled youth;

D. Adopt the Proclamation proclaiming the week of April 14 through April 20,
2013, as “Public Safety Telecommunicators' Week” in Escambia County, and
encouraging all citizens to honor emergency dispatchers and call-takers,
whose heroic, behind-the-scene efforts are critical to the protection of our
citizens’ lives and preservation of property; 

E. Adopt the Proclamation joining other cities and counties throughout the
State of Florida in proclaiming April 13, 2013, as “Children's Week Health and
Safety Day” in Escambia County, and encouraging the citizens of Escambia
County to become involved with the many events and activities which focus on
improving the health, safety, and well-being of Florida’s children and families;
and
 
F. Ratify the Proclamation dated March 21, 2013, commending and
congratulating Mr. Michael Johansen Johnson, II, on his achieving the rank of
Eagle Scout and wishing him success in his future endeavors.

 

8. Did the Clerk’s Office receive the proofs of publication for the Public Hearing(s)
on the agenda and the Board’s Weekly Meeting Schedule?

Recommendation:  That the Board waive the reading of the legal
advertisement(s) and accept, for filing with the Board’s Minutes, the certified
affidavit(s) establishing proof of publication for the Public Hearing(s) on the
agenda, and the Board of County Commissioners – Escambia County, Florida,
Meeting Schedule.
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9. Reports:
 

 
 

CLERK & COMPTROLLER'S REPORT

Backup Not Included With The Clerk's Report Is Available For Review In
The Office Of The Clerk To The Board

Escambia County Governmental Complex, Suite 130
 

I.  Consent Agenda
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning Acceptance of Reports Prepared by the Clerk
and Comptroller's Finance Department

That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following two
Reports prepared by the Clerk and Comptroller's Finance Department:

A. Payroll Expenditures for Pay Date March 28, 2013, in the amount of
$1,734,602.75; and

B. Disbursement of Funds for March 14, 2013, to March 20, 2013, in the
amount of $3,267,051.08.

 

2.   Recommendation Concerning Acceptance of Documents Provided to the
Clerk to the Board's Office 

That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following
documents provided to the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. The original recorded Escambia County Community Redevelopment
Agency Residential Rehab Grant Program Lien Agreement, in the amount of
$6,000, for property located at 420 South 1st Street, owned by Trevor J. Hall,
as approved by the Board on April 22, 2010, and recorded in Official Records
Book 6991, Pages 1770 and 1771, on March 25, 2013;

B. The March 19, 2013, letter from Sherry Morris, Planning Services
Administrator, City of Pensacola, and a copy of Ordinance No.
05-13, entitled  An Ordinance incorporating a certain area contiguous and
adjacent to the City of Pensacola into the City of Pensacola, and declaring
said area to be a part of the City of Pensacola; repealing clause, and
providing an effective date , relative to the City's annexation of multiple
parcels located partially within the City Limits and partially within
unincorporated Escambia County, Florida, as adopted by the Pensacola City
Council on February 28, 2013, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office
on March 25, 2013; and
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C. The Financial Statement for Pensacola Sports Association, Inc., as of and
for the year ended September 30, 2012, as audited by Carlson & Company,
Chartered, Certified Public Accountants, submitted by Sally Garst, Special
Events, Pensacola Sports Association, and received in the Clerk to the
Board's Office on March 25, 2013. 

 

3.   Recommendation Concerning Minutes and Reports Prepared by the Clerk to
the Board's Office

That the Board take the following action concerning Minutes and Reports
prepared by the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held March 21, 2013;

B. Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Agenda Work
Session held March 21, 2013; and

C. Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Committee of
the Whole Workshop held March 14, 2013.  (BACKUP TO BE
DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER)
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GROWTH MANAGEMENT REPORT
 

I.   Public Hearing
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Rezoning Cases heard by the
Planning Board on March 4, 2013

That the Board take the following action concerning the rezoning cases heard
by the Planning Board on March 4, 2013: 

Review and either adopt, modify, or overturn the Planning Board’s
recommendations for Rezoning Cases Z-2013-01 and Z-2013-03 or
remand the cases back to the Planning Board; and
 

A.

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Orders of the Escambia County
Board of County Commissioners for the rezoning cases that were
reviewed.

B.

1. Case No.: Z-2013-01
 Address: 13502 Perdido Key Drive 
 Property Reference No.: 14-3S-32-1000-003-006 
 Property Size: 0.91(+/-) acres
 From: R-2, Single-Family District (cumulative),

Low-Medium Density (seven du/acre)
 To: C-1, Retail Commercial District (cumulative) (10

du/acre)
 FLU Category: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban
 Commissioner District: 2
 Requested by: Wiley C. Buddy Page, Agent for, Leo Cyr, Owner
 Planning Board

Recommendation: Approval
 Speakers: Buddy Page, Louis White
   
2. Case No.: Z-2013-03
 Address: 590 St Luke Church Road
 Property Reference: 31-6N-30-3401-000-000 
 Property Size: 1.91 (+/-) acres
 From: VAG-2, Villages Agriculture Districts, Gross

Density (one dwelling unit per five acres)
 To: V-2, Villages Single-Family Residential District,

Gross Density (two units per acre)
 FLU Category: RC, Rural Community
 Commissioner District: 5
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 Requested by: Van Hibberts, Owner
 Planning Board

Recommendation: Approval
 Speakers: Van Hibberts, Elbert Dixon

 

2.   5:45 p.m.  A Public Hearing for Consideration for Adopting an Ordinance
Amending the Official Zoning Map

That the Board adopt an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map to
include the rezoning cases heard by the Planning Board on March 4,
2013  and approved during the previous agenda item and to provide for
severability, inclusion in the code, and an effective date.

 

3.   5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an LDC Ordinance
Amending Article 13 "Piers, Basins & Marinas"

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt an
Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) Article 13.12 to provide more
alternatives for the installation of a pier or dock in waters containing an
abundance of sea grass in the standards expressed for the regulation for
piers, basins and marinas on Santa Rosa Island. At the February 4, 2013
Planning Board Meeting, the Board recommended approval.

 

4.   5:47 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an LDC Ordinance
Amending Article 13.01 "Administration"

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt an
Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) Article 13.01.00
"Administration".

The Santa Rosa Island Authority Board has reviewed the Ordinance and has
recommended it to the Board of County Commissioners for review and
adoption. At the February 4, 2013 Planning Board Meeting, the Board
recommended approval.

 

5.   5:48 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the review of a Comprehensive Plan
Map Amendment CPA 2012-04 Map. 

The Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt a
Comprehensive Plan Amendment, amending Part II of the Escambia County
Code of Ordinances (1999), the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, as
amended; amending the future land use map designation.

 

6.   5:49 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the review of a Comprehensive
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6.   5:49 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the review of a Comprehensive
Plan Text Amendment CPA 2012-07.

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt an
Ordinance amending the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 2030
consistent with Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida; removing the requirement
to submit an annual update of the Capital Improvements Element to the State
Planning Agency.

 

II.  Action Item
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning an At-Large Reappointment to the Escambia
County Planning Board

That the Board approve reappointing David Woodward to fill an
at-large position on the Escambia County Planning Board to serve a two-year
term, effective April 5, 2013, through April 4, 2015.

 

III. Consent Agenda
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of Public Hearings

That the Board authorize the scheduling of the following Public Hearings:

Thursday, April 18, 2013

A. 5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing - LDC Article 10 - Flood Plain Ordinance -
Replace Existing Ordinance; and

B. 5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing - Amending Florida Building Code.
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COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
 

I.   Technical/Public Service Consent Agenda
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of a Public Hearing Regarding
the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Federal Transit Administration 5307 Grant
Application by ECAT for Mass Transit Project Funding - Joy D. Blackmon,
P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board authorize the scheduling of a Public Hearing for April 18, 2013,
at 5:31 p.m., for the purpose of receiving public comments concerning the
Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Federal Transit Administration 5307 Grant Application
by Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT) for Mass Transit Project Funding.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) guidelines require that all Applications for
financial assistance from FTA be submitted after a Public Hearing is held for
the purpose of receiving comments from the public concerning the Grant
Program of Projects.  Also, effective January 1, 1998, Grant Applications,
execution, and Grant administration progress reports must be submitted
electronically via the Transportation Electronic Award Management (TEAM)
System.

 

2.   Recommendation Concerning an Appointment to the Workforce Escarosa,
Inc., Board of Directors - Marilyn D. Wesley, Community Affairs Department
Director

That the Board confirm the appointment of Valera Young, Work and Family
Life Supervisor, NAS Pensacola Fleet and Family Support Center, to the
Workforce Escarosa, Inc., Board of Directors, as the CBO (Community Based
Organization) Veterans' representative for a three-year term, effective April
2, 2013, through April 1, 2016.

 

3.   Recommendation Concerning the Water Oaks Drainage Improvement MSBU -
Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board authorize the scheduling of a Public Hearing on April 18, 2013,
at 5:32 p.m., to consider the adoption of an Ordinance creating the Water
Oaks Drainage Improvement Municipal Services Benefit Unit (MSBU).
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II.  Budget/Finance Consent Agenda
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning the Reduction of the Minimum Sales Price of
Real Property Located at 6622 Hampton Road, Due to the Property
Appraiser’s Re-assessed Value - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget
Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the reduction of the
minimum bid required for the sale of real property located at 6622 Hampton
Road, due to the Property Appraiser’s re-assessed value: 

A. Authorize the sale of real property, Account Number 03-1195-512,
Reference Number 26-1S-30-5101-012-001, to the bidder with the highest
offer received at or above the re-assessed minimum bid of $16,255, in
accordance with Section 46.134 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances,
without further action of the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.
 

2.   Recommendation Concerning the Re-Bid of Jaunita Williams Park Parking
Lot & Dock - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department
Director

That the Board award a Contract to J. Miller Construction, Inc., for the Re-Bid
Jaunita Williams Park Parking Lot & Dock, PD 12-13.024, in the amount of
$183,717.50

[Funding:  Fund 151, Community Redevelopment Fund, Cost Center 220516,
Object Code 56301] 

 

3.   Recommendation Concerning the Write-Off of Accounts Receivable Recorded
in the Emergency Medical Service Fund as Uncollectible Bad Debts - Michael
D. Weaver, Public Safety Department Director

That the Board adopt the Resolution authorizing the write-off of $2,142,106.92
in accounts receivable that have been recorded in the Emergency Medical
Service Fund of Escambia County and have been determined to be
uncollectible bad debts.
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4.   Recommendation Concerning Distributions to the Escambia County School
District - George Touart, Interim County Administrator

That the Board authorize the Chairman to send a letter to the Florida
Department of Revenue informing them that the Escambia County Board of
County Commissioners is aware that proceeds available to Counties, pursuant
to Section 212.20(6)(d)6a, Florida Statutes, are being directed to the
Escambia County School District. 

 

5.   Recommendation Concerning the Escambia/Pensacola 2014-2016 State
Housing Initiatives Partnership Local Housing Assistance Plan - Keith Wilkins,
Community & Environment Department Director

That the Board take the following action regarding the Escambia/Pensacola
2014-2016 State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Local Housing
Assistance Plan:

A. Adopt the Resolution approving the Escambia/Pensacola 2014-2016 SHIP
Local Housing Assistance Plan, including SHIP financed affordable housing
strategies, specified eligibility and beneficiary definitions, average and
maximum SHIP award limitations, fiscal and administrative provisions,
description of affordable housing incentives, annual program service delivery
goals, and required SHIP certifications.  Projected SHIP funding (estimated
program income only) for each year of the three-year Plan period is: 2014
$100,000; 2015 $100,000; and 2016 $100,000;  

B. Approve the SHIP Program Escambia/Pensacola Interlocal Agreement with
the City of Pensacola providing for joint implementation and administration of
the Escambia/Pensacola SHIP Program and the Escambia/Pensacola Local
Housing Assistance Plan;  

C. Authorize staff to revise the SHIP budgetary allocations within the approved
Plan or between the approved strategies to accurately reflect actual funding
distributions provided by Florida Housing Finance Corporation (FHFC); and 

D. Authorize the Chairman and/or the Interim County Administrator, as
appropriate, to execute all documents required to submit, receive, and
implement the SHIP Plan and all related activities.

[Funding:  Fund 120, SHIP.  Funds will be budgeted in Fiscal Year 2014]
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6.   Recommendation Concerning the Acceptance of a Public Right-of-Way
Easement on Ashland Avenue - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works
Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning acceptance of a
20-foot-wide Public Right-of-Way Easement on Ashland Avenue from
SHEMORTAL, LLC, for the Ashland Avenue Bridge Replacement project:

A. Accept the donation of a 20-foot-wide Public Right-of-Way Easement on
Ashland Avenue from SHEMORTAL, LLC, for the Ashland Avenue Bridge
Replacement Project; 

B. Authorize the payment of documentary stamps as the drainage easement
is being donated for governmental use, which is for stormwater drainage and
infrastructure as the County benefits from the acceptance of this Public
Right-of-Way Easement, which enhances the safety and well-being of the
citizens of Escambia County;

C. Authorize the payment of incidental expenditures associated with the
recording of documents; and

D. Authorize staff to prepare, and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to accept
the Public Right-of-Way Easement as of the day of delivery of the Public
Right-of-Way Easement to the Chairman or Vice Chairman, and authorize the
Chairman or Vice Chairman to acknowledge the Board's acceptance at that
time.

[Funding: Funds for incidental expenses associated with recording of
documents are available in an Engineering Escrow Account accessed by the
Escambia County Clerk's Office]

The County has a project in design to make road, bridge, and drainage
improvements in the Ashland Avenue/Detroit Boulevard area.  Due to limited
right-of-way within this area, it was determined that additional property would
be required to facilitate the project.  SHEMORTAL, LLC, owner of the property
located on Ashland Avenue, at the Southwest corner of the Ashland Avenue
and Detroit Boulevard intersection, has agreed to donate property for a Public
Right-of-Way Easement (20 feet x 625 feet = 12,500 square feet, or
approximately 0.29 acres) to facilitate the road, bridge, and drainage
improvements Project.  Board approval is required for the Board's acceptance
of the donated property.
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7.   Recommendation Concerning the Establishment of One Full-Time Senior
Office Support Assistant-Biller Position for the Emergency Medical Services
Billing Office – Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety Department Director

That the Board approve the establishment of one, full-time, Senior Office
Support Assistant-Biller position for the Emergency Medical Services Billing
Office, with no negative impact to the Emergency Medical Service Fund (408)
for the Fiscal Year 2013 Personnel Services Budget.

[Funding Source: Fund 408, Emergency Medical Service Fund]
 

III. For Discussion
 

1.   Discussion Concerning the Board of County Commissioners' Search for a
Permanent County Administrator - Thomas G. "Tom" Turner, Human
Resources Department Director

 

  

  AGENDA 
APRIL 2, 2013

 
Page 12



             

COUNTY ATTORNEY'S REPORT
 

I.   For Action
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning an Interlocal Agreement Between Escambia
County and the City of Pensacola for Distribution of the Additional Four-Cent
Local Option Fuel Tax (LOFT) - Alison Rogers, County Attorney

That the Board approve an Interlocal Agreement for distribution of the
additional four-cent (4¢) local option fuel proceeds.  Escambia County
imposed an additional four-cent Local Option Fuel Tax (LOFT) on every gallon
of motor fuel, excluding diesel fuel, sold in the County for transportation
purposes and initiatives by enactment of Ordinance 2012-14.  The Interlocal
Agreement establishes that Escambia County will receive one hundred
percent (100%) of the proceeds collected pursuant to imposition of the
additional four-cent Local Option Fuel Tax (LOFT).  The tax is imposed
effective January1, 2014.

 

II.  For Discussion
 

1.   Recommendation Concerning Discussion of the Proposed Interlocal
Agreement Between Escambia County and the City of Pensacola Relating to
the West Florida Public Library System

That the Board discuss the proposed Interlocal Agreement between Escambia
County and the City of Pensacola relating to the West Florida Public Library
System.
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10. Items added to the agenda.
 

11. Announcements.
 

12. Adjournment.
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AI-4062     Proclamations      7.             
BCC Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Adoption/Ratification of Proclamations
From: George Touart, Interim County Administrator
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Proclamations.

Recommendation:  That the Board take the following action concerning the adoption/ratification
of the following six Proclamations:
 
A. Adopt the Proclamation commending and congratulating Mr. Robert "Kirk" Kassebaum,
Program Manager, Public Works Department, Engineering Division, on his selection as
"Employee of the Month" for April 2013;

B. Adopt the Proclamation extending congratulations to Lakeview Baptist Church on its 50th
Anniversary of ministry to the community;

C. Adopt the Proclamation proclaiming the week of April 8 through April 14, 2013, as “Youth
Success Week” in Escambia County, and calling upon all the citizens of our community to
embrace this year’s theme of “Taking Responsibility – A Roadmap to Success” in celebration of
all the successes of the Juvenile Justice Programs in strengthening families and in turning
around the lives of troubled youth;

D. Adopt the Proclamation proclaiming the week of April 14 through April 20, 2013, as “Public
Safety Telecommunicators' Week” in Escambia County, and encouraging all citizens to honor
emergency dispatchers and call-takers, whose heroic, behind-the-scene efforts are critical to the
protection of our citizens’ lives and preservation of property; 

E. Adopt the Proclamation joining other cities and counties throughout the State of Florida in
proclaiming April 13, 2013, as “Children's Week Health and Safety Day” in Escambia County,
and encouraging the citizens of Escambia County to become involved with the many events and
activities which focus on improving the health, safety, and well-being of Florida’s children and
families; and
 
F. Ratify the Proclamation dated March 21, 2013, commending and congratulating Mr. Michael
Johansen Johnson, II, on his achieving the rank of Eagle Scout and wishing him success in his
future endeavors.

BACKGROUND:



BACKGROUND:
On March 21, 2013, the Board approved the "Employee of the Month and Employee of the Year
Awards Program."  Each Department will submit one employee to be nominated as the
"Employee of the Month."  The County Administrator will then select one Employee from the
nominations.  The Employee who is selected will receive a check in the amount of $250, a
Proclamation, and a plaque that will hang in the lobby of the Ernie Lee Magaha Government
Building for that month.

Various departments, outside agencies, special interest groups, civic and religious organizations
in recognition of specific events, occasions, people, etc., request Proclamations.

Information provided on the Proclamation is furnished by the requesting party and placed in the
proper acceptable format for BCC approval by the County Administration staff.  Board approval
is required by Board Policy Section I, A (6).

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The Employee of the Month Award Program will cost $250 per month; the Employee of the Year
Award Program will cost $500 per year.  Funding is available through Fund 001, General
Fund, Cost Center 150101, Object code 55201.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This Recommendation is consistent with the Board's Goals and Objectives by the recognition
and appreciation of the County's most valuable resource - its employees.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Human Resources Department and the County Administrator's Office will work together to
coordinator this program.

Attachments
Proclamations













   

AI-4051     Clerk & Comptroller's Report      9. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Acceptance of Reports
From: Doris Harris, Deputy Clerk to the Board
Organization: Clerk & Comptroller's Office

Recommendation:
Recommendation Concerning Acceptance of Reports Prepared by the Clerk and Comptroller's
Finance Department

That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following two Reports prepared by
the Clerk and Comptroller's Finance Department:

A. Payroll Expenditures for Pay Date March 28, 2013, in the amount of $1,734,602.75; and

B. Disbursement of Funds for March 14, 2013, to March 20, 2013, in the amount of
$3,267,051.08.

Attachments
Payroll Expenditures March 28, 2013
Disbursements March 14-20, 2013







   

AI-4095     Clerk & Comptroller's Report      9. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Acceptance of Documents
From: Doris Harris, Deputy Clerk to the Board
Organization: Clerk & Comptroller's Office

Recommendation:
Recommendation Concerning Acceptance of Documents Provided to the Clerk to the Board's
Office 

That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following documents provided to
the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. The original recorded Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency Residential
Rehab Grant Program Lien Agreement, in the amount of $6,000, for property located at 420
South 1st Street, owned by Trevor J. Hall, as approved by the Board on April 22, 2010, and
recorded in Official Records Book 6991, Pages 1770 and 1771, on March 25, 2013;

B. The March 19, 2013, letter from Sherry Morris, Planning Services Administrator, City of
Pensacola, and a copy of Ordinance No. 05-13, entitled  An Ordinance incorporating a certain
area contiguous and adjacent to the City of Pensacola into the City of Pensacola, and declaring
said area to be a part of the City of Pensacola; repealing clause, and providing an effective
date , relative to the City's annexation of multiple parcels located partially within the City Limits
and partially within unincorporated Escambia County, Florida, as adopted by the Pensacola City
Council on February 28, 2013, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on March 25,
2013; and

C. The Financial Statement for Pensacola Sports Association, Inc., as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2012, as audited by Carlson & Company, Chartered, Certified Public
Accountants, submitted by Sally Garst, Special Events, Pensacola Sports Association, and
received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on March 25, 2013. 

Attachments
Lien Agreement 420 South 1st Street
City Ordinance 05-13
2012 PSA Financial Statement
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AI-4052     Clerk & Comptroller's Report      9. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Minutes and Reports
From: Doris Harris, Deputy Clerk to the Board
Organization: Clerk & Comptroller's Office

Recommendation:
Recommendation Concerning Minutes and Reports Prepared by the Clerk to the Board's Office

That the Board take the following action concerning Minutes and Reports prepared by the Clerk
to the Board's Office:

A. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held March 21, 2013;

B. Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Agenda Work Session held
March 21, 2013; and

C. Accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Committee of the Whole
Workshop held March 14, 2013.   (BACKUP TO BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE
COVER)

Attachments
March 21, 2013, Agenda Work Session Report
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA WORK SESSION 
HELD MARCH 21, 2013 

BOARD CHAMBERS, FIRST FLOOR, ERNIE LEE MAGAHA GOVERNMENT BUILDING 
221 PALAFOX PLACE, PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 

(9:07 a.m. – 11:28 a.m.) 
 

 
Present: Commissioner Gene M. Valentino, Chairman, District 2 
   Commissioner Lumon J. May, Vice Chairman, District 3 
   Commissioner Steven L. Barry, District 5 
   Commissioner Wilson B. Robertson, District 1 
   Commissioner Grover C. Robinson IV, District 4 
   Honorable Pam Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller 
   George Touart, Interim County Administrator (10:25 a.m.-11:28 a.m.) 
   Larry M. Newsom, Assistant County Administrator (9:00 a.m.-10:25 a.m.) 
   Alison Rogers, County Attorney 
   Susan Woolf, General Counsel to the Clerk 
   Doris Harris, Deputy Clerk to the Board 
 Judy H. Witterstaeter, Program Coordinator, County Administrator's Office 
 
 
 1. FOR INFORMATION:  The agenda package for the 5:30 p.m., March 21, 2013, Regular 

Board Meeting, was reviewed as follows: 
 
  A. Larry M. Newsom, Assistant County Administrator, County Attorney Rogers, Judy H. 

Witterstaeter, Program Coordinator, County Administrator's Office, Joy D. Blackmon, 
Director, Public Works Department, Charles V. Peppler, Deputy County Attorney, 
T. Lloyd Kerr, Director, Development Services Department, reviewed the agenda 
cover sheet, and, concerning the 5:31 p.m. Public Hearing for consideration of the 
Petition to Vacate a portion of Sinton Drive, County Attorney Rogers disclosed that, 
pursuant to the County's Code of Ethics, Section C(3)(a) of the County's Code of 
Ethics, her parents own a townhouse in the neighborhood potentially affected by the 
requested vacation, in close proximity to the applicant's property and the portion of 
the road requested for vacation; therefore, she will not provide legal advice to the 
Board regarding this matter; 

 
  B. The Honorable Pam Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller, reviewed 

the Clerk’s Report; 
 
  C. T. Lloyd Kerr, Director, Development Services Department, and County Attorney 

Rogers reviewed the Growth Management Report; 
 

(Continued on Page 2) 
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REPORT OF THE AGENDA WORK SESSION – Continued 
 
 1. Continued… 
 
  D. Judy H. Witterstaeter, Program Coordinator, County Administrator's Office, Larry M. 

Newsom, Assistant County Administrator, County Attorney Rogers, Joy D. 
Blackmon, Director, Public Works Department, Amy Lovoy, Director, Management 
and Budget Services Department, and David Wheeler, Director, Facilities 
Management Branch, Public Works Department, reviewed the County 
Administrator's Report; 

 
  E. County Attorney Rogers reviewed the County Attorney’s Report; and 
 
  F. Commissioner Robertson and Commissioner Robinson each reviewed his add-on 

item, and the Honorable Pam Childers, Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller, 
commented concerning Commissioner Robinson's add-on item. 









   

AI-4002     Growth Management Report      9. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Review of Rezoning Cases heard by the Planning Board on March 4, 2013
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Department Director
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Rezoning Cases heard by the Planning Board
on March 4, 2013

That the Board take the following action concerning the rezoning cases heard by the Planning
Board on March 4, 2013: 

Review and either adopt, modify, or overturn the Planning Board’s recommendations for
Rezoning Cases Z-2013-01 and Z-2013-03 or remand the cases back to the Planning
Board; and
 

A.

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Orders of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners for the rezoning cases that were reviewed.

B.

1. Case No.: Z-2013-01
  Address: 13502 Perdido Key Drive 
  Property Reference No.: 14-3S-32-1000-003-006 
  Property Size: 0.91(+/-) acres
  From: R-2, Single-Family District (cumulative), Low-Medium Density

(seven du/acre)
  To: C-1, Retail Commercial District (cumulative) (10 du/acre)
  FLU Category: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban
  Commissioner District: 2
  Requested by: Wiley C. Buddy Page, Agent for, Leo Cyr, Owner
  Planning Board
Recommendation: Approval

  Speakers: Buddy Page, Louis White
     
2. Case No.: Z-2013-03
  Address: 590 St Luke Church Road
  Property Reference: 31-6N-30-3401-000-000 
  Property Size: 1.91 (+/-) acres



  From: VAG-2, Villages Agriculture Districts, Gross Density (one
dwelling unit per five acres)

  To: V-2, Villages Single-Family Residential District, Gross Density
(two units per acre)

  FLU Category: RC, Rural Community
  Commissioner District: 5
  Requested by: Van Hibberts, Owner
  Planning Board
Recommendation: Approval

  Speakers: Van Hibberts, Elbert Dixon

BACKGROUND:
The above cases were owner initiated and heard at the March 4, 2013 Planning Board meeting.
Under the Land Development Code (LDC) 2.08.00.E.1., “the Board of County Commissioners
shall review the record and the recommendation of the Planning Board and either adopt the
recommended order, modify the recommended order as set forth therein, reject the
recommended order, or remand the matter back to the Planning Board for additional facts or
clarification. Findings of fact or findings regarding legitimate public purpose may not be rejected
or modified unless they are clearly erroneous or unsupported by the record. When rejecting or
modifying conclusions of law, the Board of County Commissioners must state with particularity
its reasons for rejecting or modifying the recommended conclusion of law and must make a
finding that its substituted conclusion of law is as or more reasonable than the conclusion that
was rejected or modified. However, the Board of County Commissioners may not modify the
recommendation to a more intensive use than recommended by the Planning Board; rather the
matter shall be remanded with instructions. The review shall be limited to the record below. Only
a party of record to the proceedings before the Planning Board or representative shall be
afforded the right to address the Board of County Commissioners and only as to the correctness
of the findings of fact or conclusions of law as based on the record. The Board of County
Commissioners shall not hear testimony."
 
 
To further the County’s policy of “decreasing response time from notification of citizen needs to
ultimate resolution,” the Board is acting on both the approval of the Planning Board
recommended order and the LDC Map Amendment for this month’s rezoning cases. This report
item addresses only the review and upholding of the Planning Board’s recommendation. The
next report item will address the Public Hearing for the LDC Zoning Map Amendment.
 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This action may increase the ad valorem tax base for Escambia County.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The recommended order is the result of deliberations by the Planning Board based on staff
analysis, public testimony, and knowledge of the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development
Code as well as case law and Florida Statutes. 
 

PERSONNEL:
N/A 



N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Chairman will need to sign the Orders of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners either denying or approving the rezoning requests.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION: 
The cases under review are presented to the Planning Board for collection of evidence. The
Planning Board conducts a quasi-judicial public hearing and issues a recommended order to the
Board.

Attachments
Z-2013-01
Z-2013-03



 

 

 

 

 

Z-2013-01 
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Then we will hear from the staff and any 1

witnesses that they may wish to call.  2

Finally, we will hear from members of the 3

public who have filled out a speaker request 4

form that are located at the back of the 5

chambers.  6

At this time I would like the court 7

reporter to please swear in the staff members 8

that will testifying today, please.  9

(County Staff sworn.) 10

MR. BRISKE:  The Board has previously 11

qualified these staff members to offer expert 12

testimony in the area of land use and 13

planning.  Do any of the Board members have 14

questions regarding his or her qualifications 15

and ability to offer expert testimony?  16

Hearing none, they will be accepted into 17

the record as experts in the area of land use 18

and planning.  19

The rezoning hearing package for 20

March 4th, with the staff's Findings-of-Facts 21

has previously been provided to the Board 22

members.  The Chair will entertain a motion to 23

accept that rezoning hearing package with the 24

staff's findings and the legal advertisement 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

10

into evidence. 1

MR. TATE:  So moved.  2

MR. GOODLOE:  Second. 3

MR. BRISKE:  A motion and a second.  All 4

those in favor, say aye.5

(Board members vote.) 6

MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?7

(None.) 8

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries 9

unanimously.  10

(The motion passed unanimously.)  11

MR. BRISKE:  The rezoning hearing package 12

with the staff's Findings-of-Facts and the 13

legal advertisement will be marked and 14

included in the record as Composite Exhibit A 15

for all of today's cases. 16

(Composite Exhibit A, Rezoning Hearing 17

Package and Legal Advertisement, was 18

identified and admitted.) 19

(The transcript continues on Page 11.)20

*         *        *21

22

23

24

25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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     *        *        *1

CASE NO:         Z-2013-012
Location:        13502 Perdido Key Drive
Parcel:          14-3S-32-1000-003-006 3
From:            R-2, Single-Family District      
                 (cumulative), Low-Medium Density, and 4
                 C-1, Retail Commercial District  
                 (cumulative)      5
To:              
FLU Category:    MU- S, Mixed-Use Suburban    6
BCC District:    2    
Requested by:    Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Leo 7
                 J. Cyr, Owner.

8
MR. BRISKE:  We do have three cases to be 9

presented today.  The first rezoning 10
application is to consider Case Z-2013-01 and 11
is requested by applicant Buddy Page, who is 12
the agent for Leo Cyr, 13502 Perdido Key 13
Drive, requesting from R-2, Single-Family 14
District, cumulative, to C-1, Retail 15
Commercial District.  16

MR. TATE:  Mr. Chairman?  17
MR. BRISKE:  Yes, sir. 18
MR. TATE:  If it's okay with both the 19

staff and the agent, seeing as both parties 20
are in agreement, can we move to the public 21
comment on this and see if we can move this 22
one through quickly?  23

MR. BRISKE:  Yes, sir.  The Board can 24
certainly do that.  Let me take care of one 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

12

more housekeeping item and we'll move into 1

that.  2

Members of the Board, I will ask each of 3

you if there's been any ex parte communication 4

between you, the applicant, the applicant's 5

agent, attorneys, witnesses or with fellow 6

Planning Board members or anyone from the 7

general public prior to this hearing.  I will 8

also ask if you have visited the subject 9

property and also please disclose if you are a 10

relative or business associate of the 11

applicant or applicant's agent.  We'll start 12

down with Stephanie. 13

MS. ORAM:  Negative to all.  14

MS. HIGHTOWER:  No to all the above.  15

MR. GOODLOE:  No ex parte, but I have 16

visited the site.  17

MR. WOODWARD:  No to all.  I think I know 18

where it is, though. 19

MR. BRISKE:  The Chairman.  No to all.  20

MR. TATE:  No to all.  21

MS. DAVIS:  No to all of the above.  22

MR. WINGATE:  I have visited the site and 23

am familiar with the site.  24

MS. SINDEL:  No ex parte.  I have visited 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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the site.  1

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Board members. 2

Staff, was the notice of the hearing sent 3

to all interested parties?  4

MS. MEADOR:  Yes, sir. 5

MR. BRISKE:  Was that notice of the 6

hearing also posted on the subject property?  7

MS. MEADOR:  Yes, sir.  8

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  9

Mr. Page, do you have any objections to 10

the maps and photography being presented so we 11

can get them on the record?  12

MR. PAGE:  No.  13

MR. BRISKE:  Staff, if you would, please.14

(Presentation of Maps and Photographs.)15

MR. LEMOS:  Once again, Juan Lemos, 16

Escambia County planner.  This is the 17

locational and wetlands map for the property 18

in question.  This is our 500-foot zoning map, 19

which shows a split zoned parcel, R-2/C-1, and 20

the surrounding, all the different ones right 21

across from there.  This is our Future Land 22

Use Map, Mixed Use Suburban.  This is our 23

existing land use map for the parcel.  This is 24

an aerial photograph, which shows the actual 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

14

parcel on the south side of Canal Drive.  This 1

is our public notice sign placed on the site.  2

This is a photograph looking southwest 3

onto the site from Canal Road.  This is from 4

the site looking northwest.  This is looking 5

towards the northeast from the parcel.  6

Looking to the southwest from the parcel.  7

This is looking towards the southeast.  8

Looking northeast on Canal Drive.  This is our 9

500-foot radius map and the mailings that we 10

sent out to the adjacent property owners.  11

This is the list of those property owners. 12

MR. BRISKE:  Any questions about the map 13

or photography?  Hearing none, Mr. Page, 14

please come forward.15

Will you please swear Mr. Page in.  16

(Buddy Page sworn.) 17

MR. BRISKE:  Good morning, Mr. Page.  18

Please state your name and address for the 19

record, please.  20

MR. PAGE:  Mr. Chairman, Buddy Page, 5337 21

Hamilton Lane, Pace, Florida 32571, with 22

Professional Growth Management Services, LLC. 23

     MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  Have you 24

received a copy of the rezoning hearing 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

15

package with the staff's findings? 1

MR. PAGE:  Yes, sir, I have.  2

MR. BRISKE:  Do you understand that you 3

have the burden of providing substantial 4

competent evidence that the proposed rezoning 5

is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, 6

furthers the goals, objectives and policies of 7

that plan and is not in conflict with any 8

portion of the Land Development Code? 9

MR. PAGE:  Yes, I do. 10

MR. BRISKE:  As Mr. Tate indicated, in 11

cases where sometimes the applicant and the 12

staff are in agreement on their findings, we 13

allow the applicant to have the opportunity to 14

accept those findings, obviously reserving 15

time to speak, if necessary.  16

Do you wish to do that at this time and 17

let us move forward or would you like to start 18

with a presentation?  19

MR. PAGE:  I would like to accept the 20

staff's findings.  21

MR. BRISKE:  All right.  So at this time, 22

Mr. Page, if you will have a seat, we'll go 23

ahead.  We do have a couple -- one individual 24

who wishes to speak on this matter.  For those 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

16

members of the public who wish to speak on 1

this matter, please note that the Planning 2

Board bases its decision on the criteria and 3

exceptions described in Section 2.08.02.D of 4

the Escambia County Land Development Code.  5

During our deliberations the Planning Board 6

will not consider general statements of 7

support or opposition.  Accordingly, we ask 8

that you limit your testimony to the criteria 9

and exceptions described in that Section 10

2.08.02.D.  Please also note that only 11

individuals who are present and give testimony 12

on the record at this hearing before the 13

Planning Board will be allowed to speak at the 14

subsequent hearing before the Board of County 15

Commissioners.  16

Mr. Lewis White, please come forward.  17

Good morning, sir.  We will have the court 18

reporter swear you in. 19

(Lewis White sworn.)  20

MR. WHITE:  Lewis White, 138266 Canal 21

Drive.  I just wanted to reiterate.  I spoke 22

to Mr. Wingate when there was going to be a 23

condo project on the same site.  We just want 24

to make sure that the drainage is addressed 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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for storm runoff.  I think I represent some 1

neighbors in the neighborhood.  And also 2

traffic flow through the neighborhood.  I live 3

about a half mile from the site west.  And 4

that's basically it.  Outside that I don't 5

have any objections to the change.  I just 6

want to make sure they address the drainage 7

and the traffic flow through the neighborhood.8

Thank you.9

MR. BRISKE:  I'll ask staff to just give a 10

brief overview of how those items are 11

addressed.  And also, please note that only 12

your comments will be considered.  You can't 13

represent the other individuals that aren't 14

here.15

MR. WHITE:  My brother was out of town.  16

He had basically the same issues, so that will 17

be fine.18

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  19

Horace, just a brief overview of what they 20

will go through with the process. 21

MR. JONES:  Yes, Horace Jones, Division 22

Manager.  Yes, when this particular site or 23

this particular project, whatever the project 24

might be, comes in for site plan review, staff 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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and our other departments we look at drainage 1

wholeheartedly, we will look at traffic access 2

management.  Our Engineering Department will 3

look at those things very, very succinctly to 4

make sure that they do comply with the Land 5

Development Code requirements and the 6

Comprehensive Plan and any other technical 7

standards that may be applicable for that 8

site.  Staff will consider all of those things 9

and more. 10

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Mr. Jones.  11

Any other members from the public that 12

wish to speak on this matter?  Okay, hearing 13

none, I will now close the public hearing 14

comment portion of the meeting and leave it to 15

the Board.  Pleasure of the Board.16

(Motion.)17

MR. WOODWARD:  I move that it be accepted 18

and recommended to the Board of County 19

Commissioners. 20

MS. SINDEL:  Second. 21

MR. BRISKE:  We have a motion and a 22

second.  Any further discussion?  All those in 23

favor, say aye.24

(Board members vote.) 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?  1

(None.) 2

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries.3

(The motion passed unanimously.)  4

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Chair, could I recommend 5

a slight agenda change to three before two, if 6

that's acceptable to the applicant.  7

MR. PAGE:  Yes.  8

MR. BRISKE:  Are you okay with that, 9

Mr. Page?  10

MR. PAGE:  Yes, sir. 11

MR. BRISKE:  I think it will expedite some 12

of the folks that are here.13

(Conclusion of Case Z-2013-01.  The 14

transcript continues on Page 20.)15

*    *    *16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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 *        *        *1
CASE NO:         Z-2013-032
Location:        590 St. Luke Church Road

Parcel:          31-6N-30-3401-000-000 3
From:            VAG-2, Village Agriculture District, 

                 (one du/five acres)              4
To:              V-2, Village Single-Family       

                 Residential District, (two du/acre)5
FLU Category:    RC, Rural Community        

BCC District:    5    6
Requested by:    Van G. Hibberts, Owner 

7
MR. BRISKE:  We're going to move to a 8

different agenda item.  The next case will be 9
Case Z-2013-03, which is Van Hibberts, the 10
owner, 59 St. Luke Church Road, from VAG-2, 11
Village Agriculture District, to V-2, Village 12
Single-Family District.  13

Members of the Board, I'll also again ask 14
has there been any ex parte communications 15
between you, the applicant, the applicant's 16
agent, attorneys, witnesses, fellow Planning 17
Board members or anyone from the general 18
public?  I'll also ask if you visited the 19
subject site.  Please also disclose if you are 20
a relative or business associate of the 21
applicant or the agent.  We'll start again 22
with Ms. Oram. 23

MS. ORAM:  No to all.  24
MS. HIGHTOWER:  No to all the above.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. A.           
Meeting Date: 03/04/2013  

CASE : Z-2013-01
APPLICANT: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent for Leo J. Cyr 

ADDRESS: 13502 Perdido Key Drive 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 14-3S-32-1000-003-006

FUTURE LAND USE: 
MU- S, Mixed-Use
Suburban

 

DISTRICT: 2  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 04/02/2013 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: R-2, Single-Family District (cumulative), Low-Medium Density, and
C-1, Retail Commercial District(cumulative).

TO: C-1, Retail Commercial District (cumulative).

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP) Future Land Use Categories (FLU)1.1.1 Development
Consistency. New development and redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County
shall be consistent with the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land
Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.3.1 . The Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) Future Land Use (FLU) category is
intended for a mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill
development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses. Allowed uses include
Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office,Recreational Facilities,and Public
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Residential, Retail and Services, Professional Office,Recreational Facilities,and Public
and Civic. The minimum residential density is two dwelling units per acre and the
maximum residential density is ten dwelling units per acre.

CPP FLU 1.5.3 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas. To promote
the efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, the County
will encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize development
densities and intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-Urban,
Commercial and Industrial Future Land Use districts categories (with the exception of
residential development).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to C-1 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use category MU-S, Mixed Use Suburban as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1; the
densities and allowable uses are compatible to those provided for in the FLU category.
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent of CPP 1.5.3. as it does promote
the efficient use of the existing roads and the established utilities infrastructure.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

6.05.07. R-2 Single-Family District (cumulative), Low-Medium Density.
A. Intent and purpose of district. This district is intended to be a single-family residential
area with large lots and low population density. The maximum density is seven dwelling
units per acre. Refer to article 11 for uses and densities allowed in R-2, single-family
areas located in the Airport/Airfield Environs. Structures within Airport/Airfield Environs,
Zones, and Surfaces remain subject to the height definitions, height restrictions, and
methods of height calculation set forth in Article 11. Refer to the overlay districts within
section 6.07.00 for additional regulations imposed on individual parcels with   R-2
zoning located in the Scenic Highway Overlay District and RA-1(OL) Barrancas
Redevelopment Area Overlay District.

6.05.14. C-1 Retail Commercial District (cumulative). This district is composed of
lands and structures used primarily to provide for the retailing of commodities and the
furnishing of selected services. The district provides for various commercial operations
where all such operations are within the confines of the building and do not produce
undesirable effects on nearby property. New residential uses located in a commercial
FLU category are only permitted as part of a predominantly commercial development in
accordance with Policy FLU 1.3.1 of the Comprehensive Plan.

7.20.03. Exemptions. Exemptions to the roadway requirements may be granted by the
DRC or RHE [Planning Board] if one or more of the following conditions are met:
B. Infill development. In areas where over 50 percent of a block is either zoned or used
for commercial development, new commercial development or zoning may be
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considered without being consistent with the roadway requirements. The intensity of the
proposed development or new zoning district must be of a comparable intensity of the
zoning and development on the surrounding parcels. Typically, a block is defined as the
road frontage on one side of a street between two public rights-of-way. Exceptions will
be considered on a case-by-case basis and must be supported by competent and
substantial evidence that the proposed rezoning will accomplish "infill" development.
The evidence must show that the proposed development or rezoning will promote
compact commercial development and will not promote ribbon commercial development.

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The majority of the parcel is currently zoned Commercial. The Land
Development Code discourages split zoning and for this reason granting of the rezoning
request will eliminate a split zoned parcel, while allowing for the revitalization effort of a
vacant parcel of land. The property has frontage on Perdido Key Drive which is zoned
Commercial from the water front to the Gulf Beach Hwy intersection. If a commercial
development is proposed, it would not negate the existing land use regulations that
govern site development and design that will be applied in order to minimize impacts on
the adjacent properties. The current land use map appears to support the requirements
for infill development, where over fifty percent of a block is either zoned or used for
commercial development. The land use regulations require that the property owner
provide competent and substantial evidence that the request for rezoning will meet the
requirements for infill development. The applicant has provided his analysis for review
and staff concurs with the findings. 

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing
and proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts
R-2, C-1 and REC; ten single family residences, one duplex, eleven commercial
properties, and one State owned parcel. 

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the
amendment or property(s).

FINDINGS
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Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s).
The Board of County Commissioners approved a Plan Unit Development (PUD), named
Martin Condominiums PUD, and issued a Development Order #05012669, on July
7, 2005. An 18 month extension, EX-2006-16, to the original PUD was granted on June
21, 2006 by the Board of Adjustments. This parcel was part of that original PUD
project. Although the project never came to fruition, it’s relevant to determine  that the
densities and intensities allowed as permitted uses under the proposed rezoning would
be of a lesser scale than that of the original approved PUD.  

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant
adverse impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were not
indicated on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan
Review process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse
impact on the natural environment. 

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and
orderly development pattern.

FINDINGS 

The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development
pattern. The proposed rezoning and intended use is consistent with the property uses
surrounding the subject parcel and will result in a logical and orderly development. The
amendment will provide commercial infill in an area that already has existing commercial
uses and will promote compact commercial development.  

Attachments
Z-2013-01
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PUBLIC NOTICE SIGN 
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LOOKING SOUTEAST FROM CANAL RD 
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LOOKING NORTHEAST ON PERDIDO KEY DR 
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for storm runoff.  I think I represent some 1

neighbors in the neighborhood.  And also 2

traffic flow through the neighborhood.  I live 3

about a half mile from the site west.  And 4

that's basically it.  Outside that I don't 5

have any objections to the change.  I just 6

want to make sure they address the drainage 7

and the traffic flow through the neighborhood.8

Thank you.9

MR. BRISKE:  I'll ask staff to just give a 10

brief overview of how those items are 11

addressed.  And also, please note that only 12

your comments will be considered.  You can't 13

represent the other individuals that aren't 14

here.15

MR. WHITE:  My brother was out of town.  16

He had basically the same issues, so that will 17

be fine.18

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  19

Horace, just a brief overview of what they 20

will go through with the process. 21

MR. JONES:  Yes, Horace Jones, Division 22

Manager.  Yes, when this particular site or 23

this particular project, whatever the project 24

might be, comes in for site plan review, staff 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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and our other departments we look at drainage 1

wholeheartedly, we will look at traffic access 2

management.  Our Engineering Department will 3

look at those things very, very succinctly to 4

make sure that they do comply with the Land 5

Development Code requirements and the 6

Comprehensive Plan and any other technical 7

standards that may be applicable for that 8

site.  Staff will consider all of those things 9

and more. 10

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Mr. Jones.  11

Any other members from the public that 12

wish to speak on this matter?  Okay, hearing 13

none, I will now close the public hearing 14

comment portion of the meeting and leave it to 15

the Board.  Pleasure of the Board.16

(Motion.)17

MR. WOODWARD:  I move that it be accepted 18

and recommended to the Board of County 19

Commissioners. 20

MS. SINDEL:  Second. 21

MR. BRISKE:  We have a motion and a 22

second.  Any further discussion?  All those in 23

favor, say aye.24

(Board members vote.) 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MR. BRISKE:  Opposed?  1

(None.) 2

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries.3

(The motion passed unanimously.)  4

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Chair, could I recommend 5

a slight agenda change to three before two, if 6

that's acceptable to the applicant.  7

MR. PAGE:  Yes.  8

MR. BRISKE:  Are you okay with that, 9

Mr. Page?  10

MR. PAGE:  Yes, sir. 11

MR. BRISKE:  I think it will expedite some 12

of the folks that are here.13

(Conclusion of Case Z-2013-01.  The 14

transcript continues on Page 20.)15

*    *    *16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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 *        *        *1
CASE NO:         Z-2013-032
Location:        590 St. Luke Church Road

Parcel:          31-6N-30-3401-000-000 3
From:            VAG-2, Village Agriculture District, 

                 (one du/five acres)              4
To:              V-2, Village Single-Family       

                 Residential District, (two du/acre)5
FLU Category:    RC, Rural Community        

BCC District:    5    6
Requested by:    Van G. Hibberts, Owner 

7
MR. BRISKE:  We're going to move to a 8

different agenda item.  The next case will be 9
Case Z-2013-03, which is Van Hibberts, the 10
owner, 59 St. Luke Church Road, from VAG-2, 11
Village Agriculture District, to V-2, Village 12
Single-Family District.  13

Members of the Board, I'll also again ask 14
has there been any ex parte communications 15
between you, the applicant, the applicant's 16
agent, attorneys, witnesses, fellow Planning 17
Board members or anyone from the general 18
public?  I'll also ask if you visited the 19
subject site.  Please also disclose if you are 20
a relative or business associate of the 21
applicant or the agent.  We'll start again 22
with Ms. Oram. 23

MS. ORAM:  No to all.  24
MS. HIGHTOWER:  No to all the above.  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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MR. GOODLOE:  No to all. 1

MR. WOODWARD:  No.2

MR. BRISKE:  The Chairman.  No to all.  3

MR. TATE:  No to all.  4

MS. DAVIS:  No to all the above.  5

MR. WINGATE:  No to all the above.  I am 6

familiar with the site.  I did not visit.  7

MS. SINDEL:  No to all the above.8

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  9

Staff, was notice of the hearing sent to 10

all interested parties?  11

MS. MEADOR:  Yes, sir. 12

MR. BRISKE:  Was the notice also posted on 13

the subject property?  14

MS. MEADOR:  Yes, sir. 15

MR. BRISKE:  Mr. Hibberts, if there's no 16

objection, we'll ask the staff to present the 17

maps and photographs for the case. 18

(Presentation of Maps and Photographs.)19

MS. CAIN:  Allyson Cain, Urban Planner.  20

This is the locational map.  This is the 21

property showing the wetlands on the parcel.  22

This is the aerial photography.  This is the 23

Future Land Use Map showing that it's a rural 24

community.  This is the existing land use 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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showing the parcel and the parcels surrounding 1

it.  This is the zoning map showing the 2

currently VAG-2 and surrounding zonings of V-2 3

and VR-1.  This is our public notice sign.  4

This is looking southeast from the 5

intersection of Backwoods and St. Luke Church 6

Road.  This is looking east from the same 7

intersection.  This is looking east from the 8

property.  Looking north from the property.  9

Southeast from the property.  This is west of 10

the property.  East from across the road south 11

of the parcel.  12

This is our 500-foot radius map and this 13

is -- the next one would be our 500-foot 14

mailing list that we sent out to all the 15

adjacent property owners.  That concludes the 16

maps. 17

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Allyson.  18

Board members, are there any questions on 19

the maps or photography?  20

MR. WOODWARD:  Where in the County is 21

this?  22

MS. CAIN:  The north end of the county.23

MR. GOODLOE:  The north end of the County 24

up near Century?  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MS. CAIN:  Yes.  1

MR. BRISKE:  Any other questions?  2

MR. TATE:  Mr. Chair, both parties are in 3

agreement it appears.  Can we possibly 4

expedite this?5

MR. BRISKE:  We can.  Mr. Hibberts, if you 6

will please come forward and we'll get you 7

sworn in. 8

(Van G. Hibberts sworn.) 9

MR. BRISKE:  Good morning.  Please state 10

your name and address for the record. 11

MR. HIBBERTS:  My name is Van Hibberts and 12

my present address is 123 Shoreline Drive in 13

Gulf Breeze, Florida 32561.14

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  Did you 15

receive a copy of the rezoning package with 16

the Staff's Findings-of-Facts? 17

MR. HIBBERTS:  I did, yes. 18

MR. BRISKE:  Do you understand that you 19

will have the burden of providing substantial 20

competent evidence that this proposed rezoning 21

is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, 22

furthers the goals, objective and policies of 23

that plan, and is not in conflict with any 24

portion of the County Land Development Code?  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MR. HIBBERTS:  Yes.1

MR. BRISKE:  Obviously, like we said, if 2

we have agreement between the applicant and 3

the staff sometimes we'll allow you to just 4

accept the staff's findings and you don't have 5

to go through a full presentation at that 6

point.  7

We do have a speaker who has signed up 8

from the public, so we'll reserve time for you 9

to speak if you would like to.  It's your 10

choice.  You can go through each of the six 11

criteria, if you would like.  12

MR. HIBBERTS:  I think I'll just wait.  13

Thank you just the same, though. 14

MR. BRISKE:  We'll come back to you, sir.  15

I know a lot of this is redundant, but this is 16

a quasi-judicial hearing and in each case we 17

have to have a verbatim record of it so we go 18

over and over again with the same wording.19

This is for the public comment portion of 20

the meeting.  For those members of the public 21

who wish to speak on this matter, please note 22

that the Planning Board bases its decision on 23

the criteria and exceptions described in 24

Section 2.08.02.D of the Escambia County Land 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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Development Code.  During its deliberations 1

the Planning Board will not consider general 2

statements of support or opposition.  3

Accordingly, please limit your testimony to 4

the criteria and exceptions described in 5

Section 2.08.02.D.  Please also note that only 6

those individuals here before the Planning 7

Board will be allowed to speak at the Board of 8

County Commissioners meeting.  9

Mr. Elbert Dixon, please come forward.  10

Good morning, sir.  We'll have you sworn in.11

(Elbert Dixon sworn.) 12

MR. BRISKE:  Please state your name and 13

address for the record. 14

MR. DIXON:  My name is Elbert L. Dixon, 15

850 Backwoods Road, Century, Florida. 16

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, sir.  You may 17

proceed.  18

MR. DIXON:  I have no issue against the 19

zoning, period, but I am a member of the 20

church that you just showed, St. Luke 21

Missionary Baptist.  Also, we as a community 22

out there we have been down trying to get our 23

area rezoned.  I have a problem with zoning 24

just one particular area, but we as a whole, 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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as a neighborhood out there, we've got members 1

from the church and we've got neighbors that's 2

been there a lifetime and on each side of that 3

road you've got one side -- on the left side 4

you can only put trailers on.  On the right 5

side you can only put houses on.  We have a 6

lot of land out there laying out and we have 7

been trying to get it rezoned and everything.  8

So this is my purpose down here to see what is 9

our next option.  If you can adjoin a fellow 10

that's going to build wherever he wants to 11

build, I figure that we should have the same 12

right.13

MR. BRISKE:  And you have the same 14

opportunity to do this process which we're 15

going through here.  I will ask Horace to give 16

a little bit of background on what the steps 17

are for requesting rezoning.  18

Horace, you didn't hear all of it, but the 19

gentleman and several of the neighbors are in 20

the area, so if you would address that, 21

please.  22

MR. JONES:  Again, Horace Jones.  It would 23

be the same process that you have to go 24

through.  You have to present your case before 25
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this body.  Again, staff will have to do 1

factual findings.  Now, every case has got to 2

stand on its own merits.  Just because if the 3

Planning Board decides to approve this case, 4

it doesn't necessarily mean that your rezoning 5

case will be approved.  Every case has got to 6

stand on its own merit and every case is 7

supposed to meet the Land Development Code 8

requirements and the Comprehensive Plan.  But 9

if you want to do it, we will sit down with 10

whomever and we'll do the initial meeting, the 11

preap, and let you know about the potential 12

hurdles that you have to go through if you 13

decide to proceed with the rezoning.  There is 14

a fee that's involved.  15

So it's the same process, but the facts 16

may be different as to whether they meet the 17

criteria or not, and the Planning Board has 18

the authority to make that decision -- make a 19

recommendation, but the Board of County 20

Commissioners has the ultimate authority.  The 21

Board of County Commissioners, they can 22

overturn the Planning Board's recommendation 23

or they can adhere to it.  But this is the 24

same process, so we'll be glad to walk you 25
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through it and see if you want to try to 1

proceed with rezoning of your property.2

MR. DIXON:  Well, what it is, we have more 3

members that's got the same input that I have.  4

We have a lady back there with six or seven 5

acres right there on the main road and this 6

property that you're talking about is off into 7

a ravine like. 8

MR. JONES:  So what we'll do, if every 9

neighbor has the same concerns about their 10

property, and if they're going to speak on the 11

same issues, I would be glad to meet with you 12

individually or a group to let you know, take 13

a look at all the maps and see all the 14

potential problems that you may have to 15

overcome just like this gentleman went 16

through.  I will be glad to sit down with you 17

myself and go over the process and take a look 18

at all the maps to see if we think that it can 19

be done and get through the process easy.  I 20

would be glad to do it, yes, sir.  21

MS. DAVIS:  Horace, wouldn't they qualify 22

for a discount as a group?  23

MR. JONES:  There's a possibility.  That's 24

always an option, but we would have to look at 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED 
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the facts and take a look at all the parcels 1

before we could say, yes, they can.  But all 2

of the steps -- and we'll take a look at all 3

of the options and the possibilities for those 4

particular properties in question. 5

MR. DIXON:  It's more than just those that 6

you see here.  And we have tried to get in 7

touch with -- we have talked to the County 8

Commissioners and all this here.  She's up 9

there on that end there.  We can't get no 10

communication.  In other words, it's done and 11

it's over with.  That's like when they rezoned 12

the whole area out there.  The only thing we 13

know was whenever it was rezoned. 14

MR. BRISKE:  Well, I've worked with Horace 15

for many years and now you have a contact 16

person and I would recommend that you speak 17

directly with him and his staff and he will 18

help you get through the process, if that's 19

what you wish to do.  I know sometimes it's 20

hard when you call and you just get people on 21

the phone, but now you have a face and a name 22

and I know Horace will follow through, if you 23

want to do that.  24

MR. TATE:  Could I make a recommendation?  25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

30

Several folks have driven down here this 1

morning.  Could someone take a couple of 2

minutes with them when we finish this just to 3

kind of layout, not necessarily get into the 4

details, but the process so everybody is 5

prepared for what they would need and what it 6

would look like when you sit down?  7

MR. BRISKE:  That would be a good idea. 8

MR. JONES:  I would be glad to do it, yes, 9

sir.10

MR. DIXON:  Thank you.  11

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Mr. Hibberts -- 12

I'm sorry, Mr. Dixon.  I got my sheets messed 13

up here.  14

Okay.  Anyone else from the public that 15

wishes to speak on this matter?  Hearing none, 16

I will close the public comment portion of the 17

meeting.  18

Mr. Hibberts, did you have anything else 19

that you wanted to add before the Board takes 20

action?  21

MR. HIBBERTS:  No, sir.  I'm happy to help 22

them with whatever they need to do, though.23

MR. BRISKE:  Very good.  Thank you.  24

Pleasure of the Board. 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MS. DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, I have a motion.  1

MR. WEST:  Second. 2

MS. DAVIS:  I haven't made it yet.3

MR. BRISKE:  Alvin is ready to go.4

(Motion.)5

MS. DAVIS:  I move to recommend approval 6

of the rezoning application Z-2013-03 to the 7

Board of County Commissioners and adopt the 8

Findings-of-Fact presented by the staff.  9

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you.  Now, Alvin. 10

MR. WINGATE:  Second.  11

MR. TATE:  Can I just make a point or ask 12

a question?  Can you bring that map up that 13

was up again?  That one right there, where 14

we're going from VAG to V-2.  And just as a 15

way of explanation, this one is a simple 16

process for us because it's exactly the same 17

as the neighboring parcels, so we're not 18

bringing something new into that neighborhood.  19

MR. JONES:  Absolutely.  20

MR. BRISKE:  Any other discussion or 21

questions before we vote on the motion?  All 22

right.  A motion to accept and a second.  All 23

those in favor, say aye. 24

(Board members vote.) 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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MR. BRISKE:  Opposed? 1

(None.) 2

MR. BRISKE:  The motion carries 3

unanimously.  4

(The motion passed unanimously.) 5

MR. BRISKE:  Thank you, Mr. Hibberts.  6

MR. HIBBERTS:  Thank you very much.  7

MR. BRISKE:  I thank all of you for coming 8

down and I think someone from the staff will 9

be happy to meet with you all and try to work 10

with you.  11

(Conclusion of Z-2013-03; the transcript 12

continues on Page 33.) 13

*         *      *14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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Planning Board-Rezoning   5. C.           
Meeting Date: 03/04/2013  

CASE : Z-2013-03
APPLICANT: Van G. Hibberts, Owner 

ADDRESS: 590 St. Luke Church Rd 

PROPERTY REF. NO.: 31-6N-30-3401-000-000
FUTURE LAND USE: RC, Rural Community  

DISTRICT: 5  

OVERLAY DISTRICT: N/A 

BCC MEETING DATE: 04/02/2013 

SUBMISSION DATA:
REQUESTED REZONING:

FROM: VAG-2,Village Agriculture District, (one du/five acres) 

TO: V-2, Village Single Family Residential District, (two du/acre)

RELEVANT AUTHORITY:

(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 627 So. 2d 469 (Fla.
1993)
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings)
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications)

CRITERION (1)
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Comprehensive Plan (CPP)FLU 1.1.1 Development Consistency. New development
and redevelopment in unincorporated Escambia County shall be consistent with the
Escambia County Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).

CPP FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories. The Recreation (REC) Future Land Use
(FLU) category is intended for Recreational opportunities for the Escambia County
citizens including a system of public and private park facilities. The range of allowable
uses include: Active and passive recreation activities and amenities, park facilities such
as boat launch, basketball courts, tennis courts, baseball and softball fields, meeting
halls and the like. No new residential development is allowed.
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CPP FLU 3.1.4 Rezoning. Escambia County shall protect agriculture and the rural
lifestyle of northern Escambia County by permitting rezonings to districts allowing higher
residential densities in the Rural Community (RC) future land use category

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment to V-2 is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future
Land Use category, Rural Community (RC) as stated in CPP FLU 1.3.1. The FLU allows
for Agriculture, Residential, Recreational, Public and Civic. The Comprehensive Plan
also permits rezoning to districts allowing higher residential densities in the Rural
Community (RC) future land use as stated in FLU 3.1.4.

CRITERION (2)
Consistent with The Land Development Code.
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

LDC 6.05.22. VAG Villages Agriculture Districts
Intent and purpose of VAG-2 district. This district is characterized by the following types
of agricultural lands: 
(a) Small rural land areas of highly productive agricultural soils that may not be
economically viable in a mainstream fanning operation due to their size, and changes
being undertaken in the surrounding area; or
(b) Rural land areas with a mix of small farm operations and a typical rural residential
density of one unit per four acres. The soils of these areas are least valuable for
agricultural production and most suitable for future conversion out of the rural land
market; or
(c) Rural land areas which are not being used to support large farming operations, and
that are characterized by a mix of natural resources and soils typically unsuitable for
urban residential densities or other urban uses unless sewered.

LDC 6.05.24 Villages Single Family Residential District.
Intent and purpose of V-1 through V-3 districts. Single-family detached residential district
characterized by urban land development patterns with residential subdivision densities
varying from one unit per acre to five units per acre. Mobile homes are not allowed. No
minimum lot size is required for new subdivisions, but development must meet overall
maximum density requirements. V-2A may be used in any AIPD overlay area with a
compatible future land use designation. Density will be determined by the accident
potential zone density allowed for their property, not to exceed three d.u./acre. In
AIPD-2, density is limited to three d.u./acre. Refer to article 11 for uses and densities
allowed in V, villages single-family residential areas located in the Airport/Airfield
Environs. Structures within Airport/Airfield Environs, Zones, and Surfaces remain subject
to the height definitions, height restrictions, and methods of height calculation set forth in
article 11.

B. Permitted uses. 
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1. Single-family detached dwellings and their customary accessory structures and uses.
2. The growing of vegetables or other food crops is permitted as long as the primary
propose for such activity is to provide for personal consumption by the residents. The
raising of crops or other plants for commercial purposes is prohibited.
3. Public utility.
4. Marina (private).
5. Residential dock or pier.
6. Family day care homes and family foster homes.
7. Reclamation of borrow pits that existed prior to September 16, 2004 (subject to local
permit and development review requirements per Escambia County Code of
Ordinances, Part I, Chapter 42, article VIII, and performance standards in Part III, the
Land Development Code, article 7).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land
Development Code. The proposed amendment  would allow for more density of two
dwelling units per acre as compared to the current one dwelling unit per five acres.

CRITERION (3)
Compatible with surrounding uses.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with existing
and proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s).

FINDINGS

The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area.
Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed properties with zoning districts
VAG-2, V-2 and VR-1. In the area staff noted one single family home, one mobile home
and a church.

CRITERION (4)
Changed conditions.
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the
amendment or property(s).

FINDINGS

Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s).

CRITERION (5)
Effect on natural environment.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant
adverse impacts on the natural environment.

FINDINGS
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were indicated
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According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were indicated
on the subject property. When applicable, further review during the Site Plan Review
process will be necessary to determine if there would be any significant adverse impact
on the natural environment.

CRITERION (6)

Development patterns.
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical and
orderly development pattern.

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment would result in a logical and orderly development pattern
because the surrounding parcels are zoned residential having residential uses.

Attachments
Z-2013-03
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Looking South East from Intersection
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Looking East from Intersection
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Looking East from Property
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Looking North from Property
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West of Property
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East from across the road, South of Property
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AI-4001     Growth Management Report      9. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Public Hearing             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: 5:45 p.m. - Amendment to the Official Zoning Map
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Department Director
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
5:45 p.m.  A Public Hearing for Consideration for Adopting an Ordinance Amending the Official
Zoning Map

That the Board adopt an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the rezoning
cases heard by the Planning Board on March 4, 2013  and approved during the previous agenda
item and to provide for severability, inclusion in the code, and an effective date.

BACKGROUND:
Rezoning cases Z-2013-01 and Z-2013-03 were heard by the Planning Board on March 4,
2013. Under the Land Development Code (LDC), the Board of County Commissioners reviews
the record and the recommended order of the Planning Board and conducts a Public Hearing for
adoption of the LDC Zoning Map Amendment. 
 
As a means of achieving the Board’s goal of “decreasing response time from notification of
citizen needs to ultimate resolution,” the Board is acting on both the approval of the Planning
Board’s recommendation and the LDC Map Amendment for this month’s rezoning cases.
The previous report item addresses the Board’s determination regarding the Planning Board’s
recommendation. This report item addresses only the Public Hearing and adoption of the
Ordinance amending the LDC Official Zoning Map.
 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impacts are expected as a result of the recommended Board action. 
 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
A copy of the standardized Ordinance has initially been provided to the County Attorney’s office
for review regarding compliance with rezoning requirements in Florida Statutes and the Land
Development Code. 
 

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are anticipated for the implementation of this recommended Board



No additional personnel are anticipated for the implementation of this recommended Board
action. 
 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Board Chairman will need to sign the Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map. 
 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the Land Development Code Official Zoning Map, will be filed with
the Department of State following adoption by the Board.
 
This Ordinance is coordinated with the County Attorney’s Office, the Development
Services Department and interested citizens. The Development Services Department will ensure
proper advertisement. 
 

Attachments
Draft Ordinance
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2013-______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART III OF THE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES (1999), THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 
AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 6, SECTION 6.02.00, THE OFFICIAL 
ZONING MAP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent. 

The Official Zoning Map of Escambia County, Florida, as adopted by reference and 
codified in Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999), the Land 
Development Code of Escambia County, Florida, as amended:  Article 6, Section 
6.02.00, and all notations, references and information shown thereon as it relates to the 
following described real property in Escambia County, Florida, is hereby amended, as 
follows. 

 

Case No.:   Z-2013-01 

Address: 13502 Perdido Key Drive 

Property Reference No.: 14-3S-32-1000-003-006 

Property Size: 0.91 (+/-) acres 

From: R-2, Single-Family District (cumulative), Low-
Medium Density (seven du/acre)  

To:  C-1, Retail Commercial District, (cumulative) 
(10 du/acre) 

FLU Category: MU-S, Mixed-Use Suburban 

 

Case No. Z-2013-03 

Address: 590 St Luke Church Road 

Property Reference No.: 31-6N-30-3401-000-000 

Property Size: 1.91 (+/-) acres 

From: VAG-2, Villages Agriculture Districts, Gross 
Density (one dwelling unit per five acres) 

To:  V-2, Villages Single-Family Residential District, 
Gross Density (two units per acre) 

FLU Category: RC, Rural Community 
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Section 2. Severability. 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 

Section 3. Inclusion in Code. 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2012); and that the sections, 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 
 

 

Section 4. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 

DONE AND ENACTED by the Board of County Commissioners of  

Escambia County Florida, this ________day of __________________, 2013. 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
        ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
____________________________ 

Gene M. Valentino, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS 
       CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
 
                ____________________________ 
                                  Deputy Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ENACTED: 
 
FILED WITH DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE:   



   

AI-3919     Growth Management Report      9. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Public Hearing             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: 5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing - LDC Ordinance - Article 13.12 "Piers, Basins &
Marinas"

From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Department Director
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an LDC Ordinance Amending Article 13
"Piers, Basins & Marinas"

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt an Ordinance to the Land
Development Code (LDC) Article 13.12 to provide more alternatives for the installation of a pier
or dock in waters containing an abundance of sea grass in the standards expressed for the
regulation for piers, basins and marinas on Santa Rosa Island. At the February 4, 2013 Planning
Board Meeting, the Board recommended approval.

BACKGROUND:
The Santa Rosa Island Authority is revising the Land Development code, Article 13 "Piers
Basins and Marinas".  The current center 1/3 has become very restrictive due to the sea grass.
The proposed amendment is for the setback lines to be 10 percent of waterfront at MHWL but
no less than 5’ from littoral lines.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Stephen
West, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen involvement in,
access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and distribution of a



Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and distribution of a
copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by Santa Rosa Island Authority in cooperation with the
Development Services Department, the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Santa Rosa Island Authority will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance
Ordinance Clean Copy



 

BCC: 04-02-13 
Re: SRIA Piers, Basins and Marinas 
Draft 1B Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2013-____ 1 
 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 4 
(1999), THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, 5 
FLORIDA, AS AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 13, SECTION 13.12. 6 
C. l., TO PROVIDE MORE ALTERNATIVES FOR THE  INSTALLATION 7 
OF A PIER OR DOCK IN WATERS CONTAINING AN ABUNDANCE OF 8 
SEA GRASS IN THE STANDARDS EXPRESSED FOR THE 9 
REGULATION FOR PIERS, BASINS AND MARINAS ON SANTA ROSA 10 
ISLAND; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 11 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 12 
DATE. 13 
 14 
WHEREAS, this ordinance is to amend Article 13, Section 13.12.C.l., to provide 15 

more alternatives for the installation of a pier or dock in waters containing an abundance 16 
of sea grass in the standards expressed for the regulation for Piers, Basins and Marinas 17 
on Santa Rosa Island; provide for severability; provide or inclusion in the code and 18 
providing for an effective date. 19 
 20 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 21 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 22 
 23 
Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 24 
Code of Escambia County, Article13, “Piers, Basins and Marinas”, Section 13.12.00 l., 25 
is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are 26 
deletions):   27 
 28 
13.12. C. l.  Requirements for piers to be constructed on Pensacola Beach. 29 

l.   Piers setback lines shall be located within the middle one-third of lot  ten 30 
percent of waterfront at MHWL, but no less than 5’ from riparian littoral lines. 31 
(variances may be granted for large parcels, where the need for same can be 32 
shown). 33 

Section 2. Severability. 34 
 35 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 36 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 37 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
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Section 3. Inclusion in Code. 1 
 2 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 3 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68, and that the sections, 4 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 5 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 6 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 7 
 8 
Section 4.  Effective Date. 9 
 10 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 11 
 12 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2013. 13 
 14 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 15 
 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 16 

  17 
      By: _______________________________ 18 

 19 
               Gene M. Valentino, Chairman 20 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             21 
    Clerk of the Circuit Court 22 

 23 
  By: __________________________    24 
    Deputy Clerk  25 
(SEAL) 26 
 27 
ENACTED: 28 
 29 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    30 
 31 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  32 
 33 
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2013-____ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
(1999), THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, AS AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 13, SECTION 13.12. 
C. l., TO PROVIDE MORE ALTERNATIVES FOR THE  INSTALLATION 
OF A PIER OR DOCK IN WATERS CONTAINING AN ABUNDANCE OF 
SEA GRASS IN THE STANDARDS EXPRESSED FOR THE 
REGULATION FOR PIERS, BASINS AND MARINAS ON SANTA ROSA 
ISLAND; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
 
WHEREAS, this ordinance is to amend Article 13, Section 13.12.C.l., to provide 

more alternatives for the installation of a pier or dock in waters containing an abundance 
of sea grass in the standards expressed for the regulation for Piers, Basins and Marinas 
on Santa Rosa Island; provide for severability; provide or inclusion in the code and 
providing for an effective date. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 
Code of Escambia County, Article13, “Piers, Basins and Marinas”, Section 13.12.00 l., 
is hereby amended as follows (words underlined

 

 are additions and words stricken are 
deletions):   

13.12. C. l.  Requirements for piers to be constructed on Pensacola Beach. 

l.   Piers setback lines shall be located within the middle one-third of lot  ten 
percent of waterfront at MHWL, but no less than 5’ from riparian littoral lines. 
(variances may be granted for large parcels, where the need for same can be 
shown). 

Section 2.
 

 Severability. 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 



 

2 
 

 
Section 3.
 

 Inclusion in Code. 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68, and that the sections, 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 
 
Section 4.
 

  Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 
 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2013. 
 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

  
      By: _______________________________ 

 
               Gene M. Valentino, Chairman 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             
    Clerk of the Circuit Court 

 
  By: __________________________    
    Deputy Clerk  
(SEAL) 
 
ENACTED: 
 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  
 



   

AI-3920     Growth Management Report      9. 4.             
BCC Regular Meeting Public Hearing             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: 5:47 p.m. - A Public Hearing - LDC Ordinance - Article 13.01 "Administration"
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Department Director
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
5:47 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an LDC Ordinance Amending Article
13.01 "Administration"

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt an Ordinance to the Land
Development Code (LDC) Article 13.01.00 "Administration".

The Santa Rosa Island Authority Board has reviewed the Ordinance and has recommended it to
the Board of County Commissioners for review and adoption. At the February 4, 2013 Planning
Board Meeting, the Board recommended approval.

BACKGROUND:
The Santa Rosa Island Authority has drafted an Ordinance that will provide commercial and
residential leaseholders with an accelerated time frame to obtain approval for construction
projects on Santa Rosa Island.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Stephen
West, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen involvement in,
access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and distribution of a



Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and distribution of a
copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Santa Rosa Island Authority in cooperation with
the Development Services Department, the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens.
The Santa Rosa Island Authority will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance with Legal Review
Ordinance Clean Copy
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Allyson Cain

From: Stephen G. West
Sent: Thursday, January 10, 2013 8:59 AM
To: Michael Stebbins
Cc: Allyson Cain; Tara D. Cannon
Subject: FW: PROPOSED ORDINANCE - Section 13 .01.02 administration Revision 12-12-2012.doc
Attachments: Proposed Ordinance - Section 13.01.00 (v2).docx

Mike: 
 
It looks good.  Thanks.  By copy of this email, I am forwarding the ordinance to Allyson Cain so she can place it on the 
next available Planning Board agenda. 
 
Steve 
 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Michael Stebbins [mailto:mjsteb@bellsouth.net] 
Sent: Wednesday, January 09, 2013 12:03 PM 
To: Stephen G. West 
Cc: Tara D. Cannon; 'Paolo Ghio'; Melody Bolster 
Subject: Re: PROPOSED ORDINANCE - Section 13 .01.02 administration Revision 12-12-2012.doc 
 
Dear Steve: 
 
Attached is the ordinance with the revisions you outlined below. 
 
Please double check Section 13.01.02.A - I think I got it right - the number/letter change was significant. 
 
Thanks, Mike 
 
Michael J. Stebbins 
MICHAEL J. STEBBINS, P.L. 
504 N. Baylen Street 
Pensacola, FL 32501 
850-434-9922 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On 1/9/13 9:33 AM, "Stephen G. West" <sgwest@co.escambia.fl.us> wrote: 
 
>Mike: 
> 
>The lettering/numbering at the beginning of the subsections in Section 
>13.01.02 should be revised.  Section 13.01.02.A (page 2, line 13) is  
>followed on line 19 with "a." This should be a "1." to be consistent  
>with the subsection lettering/numbering in the rest of the ordinance. 
>The lettering/numbering in the other subsections should revised accordingly. 
> 
>Also, I noted the following minor typos: 
> 
>Page 1, line 17 - change "providing" to "provide." 
> 
>Page 1, line 23 - insert a space after "Article," move the quotation  
>mark after the comma, and delete the space after "13.01.00." 
> 
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>Page 3, line 1 - delete the period at the beginning of the line. 
> 
>Page 3, line 16 - insert a period at the end of the line. 
> 
>Steve    
> 
>-----Original Message----- 
>From: Michael Stebbins [mailto:mjsteb@bellsouth.net] 
>Sent: Tuesday, January 08, 2013 4:47 PM 
>To: Stephen G. West 
>Cc: 'Paolo Ghio'; Melody Bolster 
>Subject: Re: PROPOSED ORDINANCE - Section 13 .01.02 administration  
>Revision 12-12-2012.doc 
> 
>Steve: 
> 
>Have you had a chance to review this proposed ordinance revision?  
>Allyson was asking Melody about it. 
> 
>Thanks, Mike 
> 
> 
> 
> 
>Michael J. Stebbins 
>MICHAEL J. STEBBINS, P.L. 
>504 N. Baylen Street 
>Pensacola, FL 32501 
>850-434-9922 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
>On 12/16/12 10:19 AM, "Michael Stebbins" <mjsteb@bellsouth.net> wrote: 
> 
>>Dear Steve: 
>> 
>>Attached is an LDC revision that was prepared by the SRIA Staff and  
>>approved by the SRIA Board on Wednesday. 
>> 
>>Unless there are formatting issues, it appears to be in proper form. 
>> 
>>In order for it to go to the Jan. 7, 2013 Planning Board, we need to  
>>get an ad placed by 12/19/12. Therefore, as with the previous  
>>ordinance revision I sent you on Friday, any help you can give us to  
>>expedite your department's approval would be greatly appreciated. 
>> 
>>Thanks. 
>> 
>>Mike 
>> 
>> 
>> 
>> 
>>Michael J. Stebbins 
>>MICHAEL J. STEBBINS, P.L. 
>>504 N. Baylen Street 
>>Pensacola, FL 32501 
>>850-434-9922 
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>> 
>> 
>> 
>> 
>> 
>> 
>>On 12/13/12 11:18 AM, "Melody Bolster" <melody_bolster@sria-fla.com> 
>>wrote: 
>> 
>>> Hello Mike: 
>>> 
>>>Please see attached a copy of the amended Ordinance section 13:01.00  
>>>Administration as approved last night. Please review and make any  
>>>changes that you feel are necessary prior to sending to Mr. West. 
>>>Again, I have changed dates and Clerk of the Court and didn't include  
>>>the footer notes just in case. 
>>> 
>>>Thank you! 
>>> 
>>>Melody 
>>> 
>>>All done:) 
>>>  
>>> 
>>>__________ Information from ESET NOD32 Antivirus, version of virus  
>>>signature database 7796 (20121213) __________ 
>>> 
>>>The message was checked by ESET NOD32 Antivirus. 
>>> 
>>>http://www.eset.com 
>>>  
>>>  
>>> 
>>>__________ Information from ESET NOD32 Antivirus, version of virus  
>>>signature database 7796 (20121213) __________ 
>>> 
>>>The message was checked by ESET NOD32 Antivirus. 
>>> 
>>>http://www.eset.com 
>>>  
> 
> 
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2013-____ 1 
 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 4 
(1999), THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, 5 
FLORIDA, AS AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 13, SECTION 13.01. 6 
00., TO PROVIDE COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL 7 
LEASEHOLDERS WITH AN ACCELERATED TIME FRAME TO OBTAIN 8 
APPROVAL FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS ON SANTA ROSA 9 
ISLAND; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 10 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 11 
DATE. 12 
 13 
WHEREAS, this ordinance is to amend Article 13, Section 13.01.00., to provide 14 

commercial and residential leaseholders with an accelerated time frame to obtain 15 
approval for construction projects on Santa Rosa Island; provide for severability; provide 16 
or inclusion in the code and provide for an effective date. 17 
 18 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 19 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 20 
 21 
Section 1.Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 22 
Code of Escambia County, Article13, “Administration”, Section 13.01.00., is hereby 23 
amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are deletions): 24 
 25 
13.01.00.  Administration. 26 
 27 
Initial development approval authority.  The Santa Rosa Island Authority must approve 28 
all residential and commercial building plans, all plans for construction, alteration, repair, 29 
demolition, fencing, swimming pools, docks, piers, marinas, etc., and all subdivision or 30 
resubdivision of land, acting as the initial development approval authority for all lands 31 
under its jurisdiction. All such building plans will be processed by the SRIA according to 32 
Sections 13.01.02 A &B, C & D and as otherwise required by this Code (LDC).  33 
Following initial approval by the SRIA, final approval for such plans and permits must be 34 
obtained from Escambia County. 35 
 36 
13.01.01. Interpretation and conflict.  Development proposed on Pensacola Beach shall 37 
be subject to all other applicable provisions of this Code as contained in other articles, 38 
except as otherwise noted.  Where any conflict exists between the provisions of this 39 
article and any other code provision, the more restrictive provision shall apply.  As 40 
stated in Article 2, interpretation of this Code is the responsibility of the Escambia 41 
County Planning Board (LPA). 42 
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Re: Article 13 Administration 
Draft 1B Page 2 

 

 1 
13.01.02. SRIA development approval levels.  Because of the leasehold nature of 2 
properties on Pensacola Beach which are under the jurisdiction of the Santa Rosa 3 
Island Authority, all development projects must first be reviewed by the SRIA. This 4 
review process allows for some projects identified in Section 13.01.02 A to be reviewed 5 
and approved by the Developmental Services Department of the SRIA.  Other projects 6 
require review of the Developmental Services Department and review and/or approval 7 
of a subcommittee of the SRIA called the Architectural Environmental Committee.  8 
These development projects are identified in Section 13.01.02 B and 13.01.02 B.  9 
Development projects identified in Section 13.01.02 C require review by the 10 
Developmental Services Department, the Architectural Environmental Committee and 11 
review and/or approval by the Santa Rosa Island Authority Board. 12 
 13 

A. Items that are reviewed and acted upon at SRIA staff level: 14 
 15 

1. Small interior commercial projects. 16 
 17 

2. Residential renovations/additions that are less than 50% improvement. 18 
 19 
1.   Residential: 20 

 21 
a. New construction. 22 

 23 
b. Reconstruction. 24 

 25 
c. Substantial improvement (50 percent or more). 26 

 27 
3.d. Fences. 28 

 29 
4.e. Swimming pools. 30 
 31 
6.f. Signs as specified All signs in section 13.22.00.  32 
 33 

6.g. Erosion control. 34 
 35 

7.h. Satellite dishes. 36 
 37 
i.  Piers 38 

 39 
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2.  Commercial and multi-family residential construction under $25,000. 1 
$1,000,000.00 2 

 3 
3.Signs as specified All signs

B. Architectural environmental committee(AEC). The AEC of the SRIA is 6 
established for the purpose of reviewing all plans and specifications for 7 
construction at Pensacola Beach as listed below.  The committee consists of 8 
three members of the Santa Rosa Island Authority Board.  In addition, advisors to 9 
the committee include, but are not limited to, an architect, an environmental 10 
consultant, and a representative of the Santa Rosa Island Authority’s consulting 11 
engineering firm.   12 

 in section 13.22.00.  4 
 5 

  13 
1.  Items that are reviewed and acted upon at the AEC level: 14 

 15 
a. Residential: 16 

 17 
1. New construction. 18 

 19 
2.  Reconstruction. 20 

 21 
3. Substantial improvement (50 percent or more). 22 

 23 
b. Commercial and multi-family residential construction under $25,000.  24 

 25 
c. Signs as specified in section 13.22.02 26 

 27 
C.  Items that require AEC review and recommendation prior to action by the full 28 
SRIA Board: 29 
 30 

 1. All commercial and multi-family construction over $25,000. 31 
 32 

 2. Projects requiring the SRIA Board to address ecological or environmental 33 
aspects. 34 

 35 
 3. Projects representing a known or potential controversy. 36 

 37 
 4. Preliminary or final plats for the subdivision of land. 38 

 39 
 5. Piers, docks, basins and marinas. 40 

 41 
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 6. Appeals of SRIA determinations. 1 
 2 
 3 

DB.       Items that require action by the full SRIA Board: 4 
 5 

 1. Commercial and multiple dwelling residential projects valued at more than 6 
$25,000 

6. Any project referred to the full board by the AEC 

$1,000,000.00 7 
 8 

2. Projects requiring a variance or representing an obvious or questionable 9 
deviation from established codes or restrictions or policy. 10 

 11 
3. Projects requiring that the SRIA Board address ecological or environmental 12 
aspects. 13 

 14 
 4. Preliminary or final plats for the subdivision of land. 15 

 16 
5. Appeals of SRIA staff and the AEC determinations. 17 

 18 
Basins and Marinas. 19 

 20 
(Ord. No. 97-51, s 2, 10-2-1997; Ord. No. 98-53, s 12-3-1998) 21 
 22 
Section 2. Severability. 23 
 24 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 25 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 26 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 27 
 28 
Section 3. Inclusion in Code. 29 
 30 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 31 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68, and that the sections, 32 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 33 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 34 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 35 
 36 
 37 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 



 

BCC: 04-02-13 
Re: Article 13 Administration 
Draft 1B Page 5 

 

Section 4. Effective Date. 1 
 2 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2013. 7 
 8 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 9 
 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 10 

  11 
 By: _______________________________ 12 

               Gene M. Valentino, Chairman 13 
ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS    14 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court 15 

 16 
  By: __________________________    17 
    Deputy Clerk  18 
(SEAL) 19 
 20 
ENACTED: 21 
 22 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    23 
 24 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  25 
 26 

 27 
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2013-____ 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 
(1999), THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, AS AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 13, SECTION 13.01. 
00., TO PROVIDE COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL 
LEASEHOLDERS WITH AN ACCELERATED TIME FRAME TO OBTAIN 
APPROVAL FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS ON SANTA ROSA 
ISLAND; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
 
WHEREAS, this ordinance is to amend Article 13, Section 13.01.00., to provide 

commercial and residential leaseholders with an accelerated time frame to obtain 
approval for construction projects on Santa Rosa Island; provide for severability; provide 
or inclusion in the code and provide for an effective date. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1.Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 
Code of Escambia County, Article13, “Administration”, Section 13.01.00., is hereby 
amended as follows (words underlined
 

 are additions and words stricken are deletions): 

13.01.00.  Administration. 
 
Initial development approval authority.  The Santa Rosa Island Authority must approve 
all residential and commercial building plans, all plans for construction, alteration, repair, 
demolition, fencing, swimming pools, docks, piers, marinas, etc., and all subdivision or 
resubdivision of land, acting as the initial development approval authority for all lands 
under its jurisdiction. All such building plans will be processed by the SRIA according to 
Sections 13.01.02 A &B, C & D and as otherwise required by this Code (LDC).  
Following initial approval by the SRIA, final approval for such plans and permits must be 
obtained from Escambia County. 
 
13.01.01. Interpretation and conflict.  Development proposed on Pensacola Beach shall 
be subject to all other applicable provisions of this Code as contained in other articles, 
except as otherwise noted.  Where any conflict exists between the provisions of this 
article and any other code provision, the more restrictive provision shall apply.  As 
stated in Article 2, interpretation of this Code is the responsibility of the Escambia 
County Planning Board (LPA). 
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13.01.02. SRIA development approval levels.  Because of the leasehold nature of 
properties on Pensacola Beach which are under the jurisdiction of the Santa Rosa 
Island Authority, all development projects must first be reviewed by the SRIA. This 
review process allows for some projects identified in Section 13.01.02 A to be reviewed 
and approved by the Developmental Services Department of the SRIA.  Other projects 
require review of the Developmental Services Department and review and/or approval 
of a subcommittee of the SRIA called the Architectural Environmental Committee.  
These development projects are identified in Section 13.01.02 B and 13.01.02 B.  
Development projects identified in Section 13.01.02 C require review by the 
Developmental Services Department, the Architectural Environmental Committee and 
review and/or approval by the Santa Rosa Island Authority Board. 
 

A. Items that are reviewed and acted upon at SRIA staff level: 
 

1. Small interior commercial projects. 
 

2. Residential renovations/additions that are less than 50% improvement. 
 

 
1.   Residential: 

 
a. New construction. 

 
b. Reconstruction. 

 
c. Substantial improvement (50 percent or more). 

3.d. Fences. 
 
4.e.
 

 Swimming pools. 

6.f. Signs as specified All signs
 

 in section 13.22.00.  

6.g.
 

 Erosion control. 

7.h.
 

 Satellite dishes. 

 
i.  Piers 
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2.  Commercial and multi-family residential construction under $25,000. 
$1,000,000.00 

3.Signs as specified All signs
 

 in section 13.22.00.  

B. Architectural environmental committee(AEC). The AEC of the SRIA is 
established for the purpose of reviewing all plans and specifications for 
construction at Pensacola Beach as listed below.  The committee consists of 
three members of the Santa Rosa Island Authority Board.  In addition, advisors to 
the committee include, but are not limited to, an architect, an environmental 
consultant, and a representative of the Santa Rosa Island Authority’s consulting 
engineering firm.   

  
1.  Items that are reviewed and acted upon at the AEC level: 

 
a. Residential: 

 
1. New construction. 

 
2.  Reconstruction. 

 
3. Substantial improvement (50 percent or more). 

 
b. Commercial and multi-family residential construction under $25,000.  

 
c. Signs as specified in section 13.22.02 

 
C.  Items that require AEC review and recommendation prior to action by the full 
SRIA Board: 
 

 1. All commercial and multi-family construction over $25,000. 
 

 2. Projects requiring the SRIA Board to address ecological or environmental 
aspects. 

 
 3. Projects representing a known or potential controversy. 

 
 4. Preliminary or final plats for the subdivision of land. 

 
 5. Piers, docks, basins and marinas. 

 
 6. Appeals of SRIA determinations. 
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DB.       Items that require action by the full SRIA Board: 
 

 1. Commercial and multiple dwelling residential projects valued at more than 
$25,000 

 
$1,000,000.00 

2. Projects requiring a variance or representing an obvious or questionable 
deviation from established codes or restrictions or policy. 

 
3. Projects requiring that the SRIA Board address ecological or environmental 
aspects. 

 
 4. Preliminary or final plats for the subdivision of land. 

 
5. Appeals of SRIA staff and the AEC determinations. 

 
6. Any project referred to the full board by the AEC 

 
Basins and Marinas. 

(Ord. No. 97-51, s 2, 10-2-1997; Ord. No. 98-53, s 12-3-1998) 
 
Section 2.
 

 Severability. 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 3.
 

 Inclusion in Code. 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68, and that the sections, 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 
 
 

 
 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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Section 4.
 

 Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 
 
 
 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2013. 
 

 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

  
 By: _______________________________ 

               Gene M. Valentino, Chairman 
ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS    
  Clerk of the Circuit Court 

 
  By: __________________________    
    Deputy Clerk  
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ENACTED: 
 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  
 

 



   

AI-4044     Growth Management Report      9. 5.             
BCC Regular Meeting Public Hearing             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: 5:48 p.m. - A Public Hearing - CPA 2012-04 Large Scale Map Amendment 
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Department Director
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
5:48 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the review of a Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment
CPA 2012-04 Map. 

The Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt a Comprehensive Plan
Amendment, amending Part II of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999), the
Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, as amended; amending the future land use map
designation.

BACKGROUND:
The agent requests a future land use (FLU) map amendment to change the future land use
category of a 240.11 (+/-) acre parcel from Recreation Future Land Use to Mixed-Use Urban
Future Land Use. The zoning designation for the referenced parcel is currently Agriculture;
however, the applicant is also seeking to rezone this property to ID-CP. The proposed FLU
change is to enable the rezoning of the property and eventual expansion of the Navy Federal
Credit Union, Pensacola campus.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Stephen
West, Assistant County Attorney. Comments and recommendations are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen involvement in,
access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and distribution of a



Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and distribution of a
copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared in cooperation with the Development Services
Department, the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The Development
Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Ordinance Draft
Ordinance Clean Copy
Legal Review
Staff Analysis
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ORDINANCE NO. 2013-___ 1 
 2 
 3 
 AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 4 

PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 5 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; 6 
AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” 7 
PROVIDING FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 FUTURE LAND USE 8 
MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORY OF A 9 
PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 1S, RANGE 31W, PARCEL 10 
NUMBER 1101-000-000, TOTALING 241.9 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED AT 11 
4810 WEST NINE MILE ROAD, FROM RECREATION (REC) TO MIXED-12 
USE URBAN (MU-U); PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR 13 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND 14 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  15 

 16 
 17 
      18 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County 19 
adopted its Comprehensive Plan on January 20, 2011; and  20 
 21 
 22 
WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 23 
Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce 24 
comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 25 
 26 
 27 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 28 
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to approve 29 
changes (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 30 
 31 
 32 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 33 
the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  34 
 35 
 36 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 37 
Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 38 

39 
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Section 1. Purpose and Intent 1 
 2 
This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 3 
authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 4 
Florida Statutes. 5 
 6 
 7 
Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 8 
 9 
This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Large Scale Amendment 10 
2012-04 Map."   11 

 12 
 13 
Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 14 
 15 
The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 16 
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 17 
2030, as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all 18 
notations, references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the 19 
following future land use change: 20 
 21 
 Parcel identification number 04-1S-31-1101-000-000, totaling 241.9 (+/-) 22 

acres, as more particularly described by Walter J. Glaze, Pittman, Glaze 23 
and Associates, Inc. in the boundary survey dated July 17, 2012, attached 24 
as Exhibit A, from Recreation (REC) to Mixed Use-Urban (MU-U). 25 

 26 
 27 
Section 4.     Severability 28 
 29 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 30 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 31 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 32 
 33 
 34 
Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 35 
 36 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 37 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that 38 
the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or 39 
re-lettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such 40 
other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 41 
 42 
  43 
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Section 6.  Effective Date  1 
 2 
Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c) 4, Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become 3 
effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies Escambia 4 
County that the plan amendment package is complete.  If timely challenged, this 5 
Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or 6 
the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be in  7 
compliance.     8 
 9 
 10 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2013. 11 
 12 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 13 
      OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 14 

 15 
 16 

      By: _________________________________ 17 
 Gene M. Valentino, Chairman  18 

             19 
ATTEST:  20 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 21 
 22 
 23 
By: ___________________________    24 

          Deputy Clerk  25 
 26 
 27 

(SEAL) 28 
 29 
 30 
ENACTED: 31 
 32 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 33 
 34 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  35 
 36 
 37 
 38 







 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-___ 
 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART II 

OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE ESCAMBIA 
COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; AMENDING 
CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” PROVIDING FOR AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORY OF A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 4, 
TOWNSHIP 1S, RANGE 31W, PARCEL NUMBER 1101-000-000, TOTALING 
241.9 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED AT 4810 WEST NINE MILE ROAD, FROM 
RECREATION (REC) TO MIXED-USE URBAN (MU-U); PROVIDING FOR A 
TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN 
THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
      
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted its 
Comprehensive Plan on January 20, 2011; and  
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County Commissioners of 
Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce comprehensive plans for the 
development of the County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and forwarded a 
recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to approve changes (amendments) to 
the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that the 
adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia 
County, Florida, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent 
 
This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority set 
out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 
This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Large Scale Amendment 2012-04 
Map."   

 
Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 
 
The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030, as 
amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations, 
references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following future 
land use change: 
  



 

 Parcel identification number 04-1S-31-1101-000-000, totaling 241.9 (+/-) acres, 
as more particularly described by Walter J. Glaze, Pittman, Glaze and 
Associates, Inc. in the boundary survey dated July 17, 2012, attached as Exhibit 
A, from Recreation (REC) to Mixed Use-Urban (MU-U). 

 
Section 4.     Severability 
 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 
 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this Ordinance 
shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the sections, 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered and the 
word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other appropriate word or 
phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date  
 
Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c) 4, Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become 
effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies Escambia County 
that the plan amendment package is complete.  If timely challenged, this Ordinance shall not 
become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or the Administration 
Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be in  
compliance.     
 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2013. 
 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
      OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
 

      By: _________________________________ 
 Gene M. Valentino, Chairman  

             
ATTEST:  

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
 
 
By: ___________________________    

          Deputy Clerk  
 
 

(SEAL) 
 
ENACTED: 
 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  
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Comprehensive Plan Amendment  
Staff Analysis  

 
 
 
General Data 
 
Project Name:  CPA 2012-04 
Location:  4810 West Nine Mile Road        
Parcel #s:  04-1S-31-1101-000-000 
Acreage:  240.11 (+/-) acres 
Request:  From Recreation (REC) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U)  
Agent:  Michael Langston, Agent for Deborah H. Calder, Vice President 

NFCU  
 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board December 10, 2012 
   BCC January 3, 2013 
 
 
Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
 
The agent requests a future land use (FLU) map amendment to change the future land 
use category of a 240.11 (+/-) acre parcel from Recreation Future Land Use to Mixed-
Use Urban Future Land Use. The zoning designation for the referenced parcel is 
currently Agricultural; however, the applicant is also seeking to rezone this property to 
ID-CP. 
 
The subject parcel is located north of Nine Mile road, west and within short range of 
Interstate Highway 10; the property is adjacent to existing agricultural and commercial 
parcels.  
  
The applicant has indicated that the intent of the proposed FLU change is to expand the 
use and future phased site improvements in support of the Navy Federal Credit Union, 
Pensacola Campus.  
 
The subject property is located within the AG zoning district. Concurrent with this 
application, the agent is requesting to amend the zoning designation from AG to ID-CP. 
The requested ID-CP zoning designation, if granted, would be consistent with the 
proposed Future Land Use amendment to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).  
 
Land Use Impacts: 
 
Under Comprehensive Plan FLU Policy 1.3.1 the current REC future land use category is 
intended for recreational opportunities for the Escambia County citizens including a system 
of public and private park facilities; it does not have any residential densities allowed and it 
does provide for a Non-Residential maximum intensity: 0.5 Floor Area Ration (FAR)  
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Staff Analysis: 

If the large scale amendment is approved, the maximum densities for any future new 
development on the Mixed-Use Urban parcel is 25 dwelling units per acre and a non-
residential maximum intensity of 2.0 floor area ratio (FAR).  

The allowable uses under proposed the Mixed-Use Urban category are 
intended for an intense mix of residential and non-residential uses while promoting 
compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses 
within the category as a whole.    

 
FLU 4.1.2 Airfield Influence Planning Districts.  
Escambia County shall provide for Airfield Influence Planning Districts (AIPDs) as a 
means of addressing encroachment, creating a buffer to lessen impacts from and to 
property owners, and protecting the health, safety and welfare of citizens living in close 
proximity to military airfields. The overlay districts shall require density and land use 
limitations, avigation easements, building sound attenuation, real estate disclosures, 
and Navy (including other military branches where appropriate) review of proposed 
development based on proximity to Clear Zones, Accident Potential Zones (APZs), 
aircraft noise contours, and other characteristics of the respective airfields. The districts 
and the recommended conditions for each are as follows:  
 
A. Airfield Influence Planning District--1 (AIPD-1): Includes the current Clear Zones, 
Accident Potential Zones and noise contours of 65 Ldn and higher, (where appropriate) 
as well as other areas near and in some cases abutting the airfield.  
1. Density restrictions and land use regulations to maintain compatibility with airfield 
operations; and  
2. Mandatory referral of all development applications to local Navy officials for review 
and comment within ten working days; and  
3. Required dedication of avigation easements to the county for subdivision approval 
and building permit issuance; and  
4. Required sound attenuation of buildings with the level of sound protection based on 
noise exposure; and  
5. Required disclosure for real estate transfers. 
 
 B. Airfield Influence Planning District--2 (AIPD-2): Includes land that is outside of the 
AIPD -1 but close enough to the airfield that it may affect, or be affected by, airfield 
operations. 
1. Mandatory referral of all development applications to local Navy officials for review 
and comment within ten working days; and  
2. Required dedication of avigation easements to the county for subdivision approval 
and building permit issuance; and  
3. Required sound attenuation of buildings with the level of sound protection based on 
noise exposure; and  
4. Required disclosure for real estate transfers; and  
5. No County support of property rezonings that result in increased residential densities 
in excess of JLUS recommendations. The three installations in Escambia County - 
Naval Air Station Pensacola (NASP), Navy Outlying Field (NOLF) Saufley and NOLF 
Site 8, are each utilized differently. Therefore, the size and designations of the AIPD 
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Overlays vary according to the mission of that particular installation. The Escambia 
County Land Development Code details and implements the recommendations.  
 
FLU 4.1.7 Military Representation. Pursuant to Section 163.3175, Florida Statutes, a 
representative of the military installations located within Escambia County shall be 
placed on the Planning Board as an ex officio, nonvoting member. The selection of the 
representative will initially be by a Memorandum of Agreement between the 
Commanding Officers of Naval Air Station Pensacola and Naval Air Station Whiting 
Field. The Interlocal Agreement with the Navy details the procedures and 
responsibilities of both parties. 
 
Staff Analysis: Portions of the parcel are located within the designated Airfield Influence 
Planning Districts (AIPD) 1 and 2 boundaries. Some portions of the parcel are also 
within the Air Installations Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) for the Navy Outlying Field 
(NOLF) 8; however, the proposed improvements could be constructed to minimize the 
impact on the AIPDs and the AICUZ. Further review during the site plan review process 
and in-depth analysis by the United States Navy liaison and county staff, will determine 
the compatibility of such project with the existing local Navy mission. A representative 
from the United States Navy does review and comment on all proposals within the 
noted zones that may impact air operations. 
 
SUMMARY: The impact on nearby residential uses would be minimal as similar 
structures and uses are located adjacent to the proposed site while at the same time 
providing for infill development. A representative from the United States Navy does 
review and comment on all proposals within the Airfield Influence Planning Districts that 
may impact air operations. Any proposed improvements within the parcel will be further 
evaluated during the site plan review process for overall concurrency. 
 
Infrastructure Availability: 
 
FLU 1.5.3 New Development and Redevelopment in Built Areas 
To promote the efficient use of existing public roads, utilities and service infrastructure, 
the County will encourage redevelopment in underutilized properties to maximize 
development densities and intensities located in the Mixed Use-Suburban, Mixed Use-
Urban, Commercial and Industrial Future Land Use districts categories (with the 
exception of residential development).  
 
FLU 2.1.1 Infrastructure Capacities 
Urban uses shall be concentrated in the urbanized areas with the most intense 
development permitted in the Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) areas and areas with sufficient 
central water and sewer system capacity to accommodate higher density development.  
Land use densities may be increased through Comprehensive Plan amendments. This 
policy is intended to direct higher density urban uses to those areas with infrastructure 
capacities sufficient to meet demands and to those areas with capacities in excess of 
current or projected demand. Septic systems remain allowed through Florida Health 
Department permits where central sewer is not available. 



CPA 2012-04 4810 W Nine Mile Road 

Page 4 of 12 

 
 
GOAL CMS 1 Concurrency Management System 
Escambia County shall adopt a Concurrency Management System to ensure that 
facilities and services needed to support development are available concurrent with the 
impacts of such development. 
 
OBJ CMS 1.1 Level of Service Standards 
Ensure that Escambia County’s adopted Level of Service (LOS) standards for 
roadways, mass transit, potable water, wastewater, solid waste, stormwater, public 
schools and recreation will be maintained. 
 
CMS 1.2.1 Concurrency Determination.  
The test for concurrency shall be met and the determination of concurrency shall be 
made prior to the approval of an application for a development order or permit that 
contains a specific plan for development, including the densities and intensities of the 
proposed development. If an applicant fails concurrency, he/she may apply to satisfy 
the requirements of the concurrency management system through the proportionate fair 
share program. For applicants participating in the proportionate fair share program, the 
BCC must approve a proportionate fair share agreement before a certificate of 
concurrency can be issued. A multi-use Development of Regional Impact (DRI) may 
satisfy the transportation concurrency requirements of the concurrency management 
system and of Section 380.06, Florida Statutes, by payment of a proportionate share 
contribution in accordance with the terms of Section 163.3180(12), Florida Statutes. 
 
Potable Water 
 
As indicated by the agent’s analysis the Emerald Coast Utility Authority, potable water 
service exists in the area of the amendment. ECUA currently provides potable water 
service to the adjacent parcel via an 8” PVC water main with connection to a 16” water 
main on Nine Mile Road. The applicant stated in the narrative that current consultation 
with ECUA is in progress, in order to coordinate future site and system improvements 
and potential update requirements.  
 
Staff Analysis: Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA) standard for non-residential 
uses, the LOS requirements shall be based upon an Equivalent Residential Connection 
(ERC) to be calculated by the service provider at the time of application. Unlike 
residential development for which population can be estimated from proposed dwelling 
units (households), non-residential development has no associated population that can 
be used to evaluate the potential impacts on the provider’s adopted per capita LOS. 
Once the project is submitted and in coordination with ECUA, all of the LOS will be 
evaluated during the site plan review process. 
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Sanitary Sewer  
 
The applicant stated in their analysis that ECUA currently provides sanitary sewer 
service to the site. The current system is owned and maintained by ECUA includes an 
8” PVC gravity main, a pump station and a 4” force main. The proposed project will 
connect to the existing system. The agent is currently coordinating with ECUA on 
system requirements and potential upgrades. 
 
Staff Analysis: The adopted level of service standards for sanitary sewer established in 
Comprehensive Plan Policy INF 1.1.9 states that the LOS requirements for non-
residential uses shall be based upon an equivalent residential connection calculated by 
the provider, and on the size of the non-residential water meter. The applicant must 
coordinate with the local provider to ensure capacity is available for the project.   
Once the project is submitted, all of the LOS will have to be achieved and the project 
will be further evaluated during the site plan review process. 
 
Solid Waste Disposal 
 
The agent stated that the proposed project will use dumpsters through the construction 
phase to dispose of waste. The solid waste will be disposed at the Perdido Landfill 
through commercial vendors. NFCU will provide recycle bins for operations after 
construction in an effort to meet LEED requirements and minimize the quantity of solid 
waste generated.  
 
Staff Analysis: As established in Comprehensive Plan policy INF 2.1.4, the adopted 
LOS standard for solid waste disposal in the county is six pounds per capita per day. 
Solid waste from the parcel will be disposed at the Perdido Landfill. The current build-
out of the 424-acre landfill facility is 74 acres. Based on population growth projections 
and estimated annual Class 1 municipal solid waste (MSW) received, the estimated 
remaining life of the landfill is 70 years. Once the project is submitted, all of the LOS will 
be evaluated during the site plan review process. 
 
Stormwater Management 
 
Comprehensive Plan Policy INF 3.1.9 establishes the following minimum level of service 
standards for drainage: 
a. The post development run-off rate shall not exceed the pre-development run-off rate 
for a 25-year storm event, up to and including an event with greatest intensity. 
However, the County Engineer may reduce detention/retention storage requirements 
for developments that provide a direct discharge of treated stormwater to the Gulf of 
Mexico, Escambia Bay, Pensacola Bay, or Perdido Bay. 
b. Compliance with environmental resource permitting and other stormwater design and 
performance standards of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection and 
Northwest Florida Water Management District as prescribed in the Florida 
Administrative Code. 
c. The contribution of the new development to any existing, functioning area-wide 
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drainage system shall not degrade the ability of the area-wide system to adequately 
retain/detain/store and control stormwater run-off. 
d. The design and construction for all major channels of stormwater systems under 
arterial and collector roads shall be predicated upon, and designed to control 
stormwater from, at least a 100-year storm event. 
 
Analysis from the applicant states that stormwater runoff from the site primarily sheet 
flows to lower elevation wetland areas. The developed portions of the site have limited 
storm water conveyance systems with one 24" pipe that discharges the existing 4 H 
Camp Lake. The future site improvements include stormwater collections systems with 
pipes and inlets that discharge to wet detention ponds. The ponds will be designed as 
an amenity to the site with some capacity for irrigation demand. The stormwater 
management systems will be designed to accommodate all storms up to and including 
the 25-year, 24-hour event with post development discharges limited to the pre-
development rates. The project design will be in accordance with the Escambia County 
Land Development Code (LDC) and requirements the State of Florida as specified in 
rule 62-346, F AC. Stormwater management will be permitted through the 
Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) process concurrently with the limited wetland 
impacts. A Conceptual Stormwater Master Plan will be submitted for approval with 
construction plans for the first phase of development. 
 
Staff Analysis: The applicant must ensure that all of the required State and Federal 
agencies are contacted and that the required permits are obtained. The presence of 
sensitive lands on site may require a more in-depth assessment by the agencies 
involved. The County storm water engineer will evaluate the proposed project to ensure 
all of the storm water management standards are met. Once the project is formally 
submitted, all of the LOS will be evaluated during the site plan review process. 
 
Traffic Concurrency  
 
Under Comp Plan CMS 1.1.2 Primary Tasks. The County Administrator, or designee, 
shall be responsible for the five primary tasks described below: 
a. Maintaining an inventory of existing public facilities and capacities or deficiencies; 
b.Determining concurrency of proposed development that does not require BCC 
approval;  
c. Providing advisory concurrency assessments and recommending conditions of 
approval to the BCC for those applications for development orders that require BCC 
approval; 
d. Reporting the status of all public facilities covered under this system to the BCC and 
recommending a schedule of improvements for those public facilities found to have 
existing deficiencies; and 
e. Administering the Proportionate Fair Share Program as outlined in the Land 
Development Code (LDC) and the Escambia County Concurrency Management System 
Procedure Manual, if the County CMS-1 and an applicant choose to utilize this program 
to mitigate transportation impacts on transportation facilities found to have deficient 
capacity during the process of testing for concurrency. 
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Access to the site is currently from Nine Mile Road. The future site improvements will 
impact roadways in the area. Future connections to Nine Mile Road will require 
deceleration and turn lanes in accordance with Florida Department of Transportation 
(FDOT) requirements. Signalization of the primary connection to Nine Mile Road is 
expected when demand warrants the signalization. The applicant understands that 
Escambia County will require improvements to the roadway and further traffic analysis 
will be revisited at that time. Other improvements may be required to improve the 
Level of Service on Nine Mile Road and other roadways that may be impacted by the 
development. All roadway improvements will be permitted through FDOT and Escambia 
County. 
 
Staff Analysis: Traffic Division review of the proposed project states that Future Land 
Use changes do not receive traffic concurrency approval; each site plan or preliminary 
plat submitted within this parcel will be reviewed for traffic concurrency according to the 
Land Development Code, Article 5. A Master Plan with a schedule of improvements and 
any mitigation required should be considered by the applicant. A Traffic Impact Analysis 
Report (TIAR) will need to be conducted to determine if any roadway segments will 
exceed the adopted level of service (LOS) standard. Access management will be 
reviewed by Escambia County and the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) to 
separate conflict points and reduce turning movements as much as possible. The 
development will provide adequate traffic circulation, parking and access management 
measures that are necessary to minimize access to impacted State and County road 
segments. 
 
Mass transit shall be coordinated with Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT) during 
development of the property to reduce vehicle miles traveled thereby reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions and peak hour demand on state and county roadways. 
 
 Future developments will pay all costs and construct all roads within the development 
as well as existing and proposed access roads (internal and external) to Escambia 
County or FDOT standards so that the roads, upon construction, may be accepted into 
county or state road system. Escambia County will consider public-private partnerships 
(P-3s) as a valid mechanism to obtain transportation funding. 
 
 
Recreation and Open Space 
 
Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, Section 3.04, Definitions.  
Open space: Land or portions of land preserved and protected, whether public or 
privately owned and perpetually maintained and retained for active or passive 
recreation, for resource protection, or to meet lot coverage requirements. The term 
includes, but is not limited to, required yards, developed recreation areas and improved 
recreation facilities, natural and landscaped areas, and common areas.  
 
REC1.3.2 Open Space Requirements. Escambia County shall require the provision of 
open space by private development when such development is a planned unit 
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development, a multi-family development, a mixed use commercial area or other similar 
types of development where relatively large land areas are involved. The requirements 
shall be contained within the LDC. All development projects of five acres or more shall 
be required to provide open space within the development or contribute to a fund 
therefore. Nothing in this policy shall be interpreted to eliminate the provision of open 
space for all projects as required by County regulations. 
 
The site is currently used by the 4H camp with agricultural and recreational facilities. 
The future improvements include managed development of upland areas and limited 
impacts to wetlands at roadway crossings. Upland buffers will be provided adjacent to 
wetland areas. The majority of the site will remain undisturbed as open space. These 
open space areas will include recreational amenities such as nature trails and parks.  
 
Staff Analysis: Once the project is submitted, all of the LOS will be evaluated during the 
site plan review process. The proposed future development will have to meet the 
existing adopted open space and recreation requirements of the LDC. 
 
Schools  
 
OBJ PSF 2.1 Level of Service Standards 
The narrative from the applicant states that the requested future land use amendment 
would limit the property to commercial development and prohibit residential growth on 
the site. Therefore, the proposed amendment will not adversely impact school related 
levels of service. 
 
Staff Analysis: It appears that the nature of the proposal would not have an impact on 
the LOS provided by the Escambia County School District, as there will be no 
residential allowances for the site. A representative from the Escambia County School 
District does review and comment on all proposals that could have an impact in the 
projected school capacities and LOS.  
 
SUMMARY: Staff concludes that the proposed development could satisfy all of the 
requirements listed within the infrastructure analysis. 
 
ANALYSIS OF SUITABILITY 
 
Suitability: The degree to which the existing characteristics and limitations of land and 
water are compatible with a proposed use or development. 
 
Impact on Wellheads, Historically Significant Sites and the Natural Environment: 
Wellheads: 
 
CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County shall provide comprehensive 
wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and future public water 
supplies. The provisions shall establish specific wellhead protection areas and address 
incompatible land uses, including prohibited activities and materials, within those areas. 
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The site is approximately 7,500 feet west from the nearest wellhead as illustrated in 
Map Direct provided by Florida Department of Environmental Protection. The wellhead 
is owned by ECU A and is located near the intersection of Nine Mile Road and Gulledge 
Lane. The Source Water Assessment and Protection Program indicate a 1,000 foot 
radius buffer surrounding the well. The site is located beyond the 1000 foot radius and 
the future development poses no impact to the well. A map indicating the location of the 
well with the surrounding buffer is attached with this request. 
 
Staff Analysis: Further evaluation by the Environmental Division will be required to 
ensure standards for wellhead protection areas will be maintained. Once the project is 
submitted, all of the LOS will be evaluated during the site plan review process. 
 
 
Historically Significant Sites 
 
FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance. Escambia County shall utilize all available resources of 
the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in the identification of 
archeological and/or historic sites or structures within the County. The County will utilize 
guidance, direction and technical assistance received from this agency to develop 
provisions and regulations for the preservation and protection of such sites and 
structures. In addition, the County will utilize assistance from this agency together with 
other sources, such as the University of West Florida, in identifying newly discovered 
historic or archaeological resources. The identification will include an analysis to 
determine the significance of the resource. 
 
Staff Analysis: Evaluation submitted by the applicant of the proposed site and produced 
by John C. Phillips, M.A. Archaeologist, Research Associate/Instructor, Archaeology 
Institute, University of West Florida, concluded that there are no recorded 
archaeological sites or historic structures within or adjacent to the parcel. The report 
stated that in 2001, UWF conducted an archaeological survey of an adjacent parcel to 
the south in which extensive logging disturbances had significantly impacted the land 
form. The 2001survey area is environmentally similar to the Navy Federal 4-H Camp 
parcel. The experts concluded that 2001archaeological survey identified no 
archaeological sites.  
 
Wetlands 
 
CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators. Escambia County has adopted and will 
use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils Survey, and the 
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s (FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as 
indicators of the potential presence of wetlands or listed wildlife habitat in the review of 
applications for development approval. The Escambia County Hydric Soils Map is 
attached to this ordinance as Exhibit N. 
 
Wetland areas throughout the property have been located and identified and can be 
found on the Boundary Survey. 
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Staff Analysis: The applicant must ensure that all of the required State and Federal 
agencies are contacted and that the required permits are obtained. The presence of 
sensitive lands on site may require a more in-depth evaluation by the agencies involved. 
The County will evaluate the proposed project to ensure all of the standards for 
wetlands protection indicated in the LDC, are met. Once the project is formally 
submitted, it will be evaluated during the site plan review process 
 
SUMMARY: The proposed project shall avoid any potential impacts to environmentally 
sensitive areas and should preserve the natural function of wetlands and natural 
resources on the subject parcel. Staff concludes that the proposed development could 
satisfy all of the requirements listed within the suitability analysis. 
 
 
Urban Sprawl: 
 
A development pattern characterized by low density, automobile-dependent 
development with either a single use or multiple uses that are not functionally related, 
requiring the extension of public facilities and services in an inefficient manner, and 
failing to provide a clear separation between urban and rural uses. 
 
1. Directs or locates economic growth and associated land development to geographic 
areas of the community in a manner that does not have an adverse impact on and 
protects natural resources and ecosystems. 
 
The proposed amendment is part of a strategy directing this type of intense 
development to the central part of the county, away from sensitive coastal areas to the 
South, and USDA prime soils and farmlands to the North; furthermore the proposed 
amendment would allow for the consolidation of the subject property with the Mixed-
Urban designation of the parcel to the East. The proposed Mixed-Urban expansion will 
direct economic growth and the associated land development to an area that will 
complement the existing corporate headquarter facilities in the vicinity of the property, 
thereby minimizing the adverse impacts to natural resources and the existing 
ecosystems.  
 
2. Promotes the efficient and cost-effective provision or extension of public 
infrastructure and services. 
 
The proposed amendment is in close proximity to the extensive infrastructure that is 
accessed by other similar industrial uses within the area. The expansion of the existing 
development promotes the principle of compact development and is aimed at reducing 
the capital and operating costs of providing public infrastructure and services such as 
roads, utility lines and garbage collection. This co-location also increases the efficiency 
of activities that involve distribution (products delivered to a destination) or interaction 
(people and materials brought together). As a result of the proximity to similar existing 
uses, the proposed amendment would reduce transportation costs, including the per 
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capita costs to consumers to own and operate vehicles, road and parking facility costs, 
traffic accidents and pollution emissions.  
 
3. Promotes conservation of water and energy. 
 
The proposed amendment will ensure that the expansion of existing development is 
conducted in an efficient manner. Specifically, the proximity of the subject property to 
existing development will provide for an efficient integration of infrastructure and 
services that will conserve both water and energy. As stated in the application, the 
proposed amendment will aim at the construction of a LEEDs rated facility, similar to the 
already existing Navy Federal building, while at the same time providing open space 
areas to include recreational amenities such as nature trails and parks.    
 
4. Creates a balance of land uses based upon demands of residential population for the 
nonresidential needs of an area.  
 
In the same manner as the nearby Sector Plan, this amendment would support 
economic development. The expansion will direct economic growth to an area that will 
complement the existing corporate headquarters facilities in the vicinity, thus promoting 
a comprehensive mix of uses that will lead to a symbiotic relationship between the 
existing facilities and future non-residential development. This increase of non-
residential uses will lead to additional job growth in the area, as the existing corporate 
infrastructure is utilized to leverage growth of both new and existing business.   
 
Staff Analysis: It appears that the proposed amendment has met four of the eight 
criteria to discourage the proliferation of urban sprawl. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Consistency and Relevant Policies: 
 
Urban Sprawl: 
A development pattern characterized by low density, automobile-dependent 
development with either a single use or multiple uses that are not functionally related, 
requiring the extension of public facilities and services in an inefficient manner and 
failing to provide a clear separation between urban and rural uses. 
 
FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations: 
“Designate land uses on FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, 
compact development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the 
protection and preservation of rural areas.”  
 

Mixed Use Urban Future Land Use Category: 
FLU 1.3.1 states that the Mixed Use Urban FLU “provides for and allows intensive mix 
of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting compatible infill development and 
the separation of urban and suburban land uses.” 
 
Staff Analysis: As previously elaborated, the site has been evaluated for potable water, 
sanitary sewer, solid waste disposal, stormwater management, and traffic concurrency. 
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The adopted levels of service would appear to be maintained with the proposed 
industrial development of the parcels. New industrial uses in the MU-U category may be 
permitted provided such use conforms to the permitted uses listed in the ID-CP and ID-
1 zoning categories. If the amendment is approved, the parcel must go through the 
quasi-judicial rezoning process. The completed application packet will then be reviewed 
and evaluated for concurrency as part of the site development review process. 



   

AI-4043     Growth Management Report      9. 6.             
BCC Regular Meeting Public Hearing             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: 5:49 p.m. - A Public Hearing - CPA 2012-07 CIE 
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Department Director
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
5:49 p.m. - A Public Hearing Concerning the review of a Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment
CPA 2012-07.

That the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) review and adopt an Ordinance amending the
Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 2030 consistent with Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida;
removing the requirement to submit an annual update of the Capital Improvements Element to
the State Planning Agency.

BACKGROUND:
Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida, which was enacted on June 2, 2011, significantly revised the
laws governing local government comprehensive planning and removed the requirement to
submit a Capital Improvements Element Annual update to the State Land Planning Agency.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Stephen
West, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen involvement in,
access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and distribution of a



Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and distribution of a
copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared in cooperation with the Development Services
Department, the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The Development
Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Ordinance Draft
Ordinance Clean Copy
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2013-____ 1 
  2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 3 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY 4 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2030 CONSISTENT WITH CHAPTER 2011-139, 5 
LAWS OF FLORIDA; REMOVING THE REQUIREMENT TO SUBMIT AN 6 
ANNUAL UPDATE OF THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT TO THE 7 
STATE PLANNING AGENCY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 8 
FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  9 

  10 
 11 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners adopted the Escambia 12 
County Comprehensive Plan: 2030 (Comprehensive Plan) on January 20, 2011; and  13 
  14 
WHEREAS, Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida, which was enacted on June 2, 2011, 15 
significantly revised the laws governing local government comprehensive planning; and  16 
  17 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, finds that it is 18 
appropriate to amend its Comprehensive Plan consistent with Chapter 2011-139, Laws of 19 
Florida;   20 
  21 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 22 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  23 
  24 
Section 1. Purpose.  25 
  26 
 The purpose of this ordinance is to amend the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan:  2030 27 
consistent with Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida, removing requirements for submission of 28 
annual updates of the Capital Improvements Element to the State Land Planning Agency.   29 
  30 
Section 2. Comprehensive Plan Amendment.  31 
  32 
The Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030 is amended as shown in the attached Exhibit 33 
A (additions are underlined and deletions are struck through).  34 
  35 
Section 3. Severability.  36 
  37 
 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 38 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect the 39 
validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  40 
  41 
 Section 4. Inclusion in the code.  42 
  43 
 The Board of County Commissioners intends that the provisions of this ordinance will be 44 
codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the sections of this ordinance 45 
may be renumbered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” 46 
“article,” or such other appropriate word of phrase in order to accomplish its intentions.  47 
  48 
 49 
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Section 5. Effective date.  1 
 2 
 Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c)4, Florida Statutes, this ordinance shall not become 3 
effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies Escambia County 4 
that the plan amendment package is complete.  If timely challenged, this ordinance shall not 5 
become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or the Administration 6 
Commission enters a final order determining the ordinance to be in compliance.  7 
     8 
  9 
   DONE AND ENACTED this ____ day of ________________________, 2013.  10 
  11 
           BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  12 
           ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA  13 
  14 
  15 
 16 
           By:  _________________________________  17 
ATTEST: Pam Childers           Gene M. Valentino, Chairman  18 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court  19 
 20 
  21 
By:  ___________________________ Date Executed:  ________________________  22 
                      Deputy Clerk  23 
 24 
  25 
(SEAL)  26 
  27 
ENACTED:  28 
  29 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:  30 
  31 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  32 
  33 
  34 
 35 
 36 
ATTACHMENTS: Relevant portions of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030  37 
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ORDINANCE NUMBER 2013-____ 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2030 CONSISTENT WITH CHAPTER 2011-139, 
LAWS OF FLORIDA; REMOVING THE REQUIREMENT TO SUBMIT AN 
ANNUAL UPDATE OF THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT TO THE 
STATE PLANNING AGENCY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 
FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

  
 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners adopted the Escambia 
County Comprehensive Plan: 2030 (Comprehensive Plan) on January 20, 2011; and  
  
WHEREAS, Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida, which was enacted on June 2, 2011, 
significantly revised the laws governing local government comprehensive planning; and  
  
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida, finds that it is 
appropriate to amend its Comprehensive Plan consistent with Chapter 2011-139, Laws of 
Florida;   
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  
  
Section 1. Purpose.  
  
 The purpose of this ordinance is to amend the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan:  2030 
consistent with Chapter 2011-139, Laws of Florida, removing requirements for submission of 
annual updates of the Capital Improvements Element to the State Land Planning Agency.   
  
Section 2. Comprehensive Plan Amendment.  
  
The Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030 is amended as shown in the attached Exhibit 
A (additions are underlined and deletions are struck through).  
  
Section 3. Severability.  
  
 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  
  
 Section 4. Inclusion in the code.  
  
 The Board of County Commissioners intends that the provisions of this ordinance will be 
codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the sections of this ordinance 
may be renumbered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” 
“article,” or such other appropriate word of phrase in order to accomplish its intentions.  
  
 
Section 5.

 Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c)4, Florida Statutes, this ordinance shall not become 

 Effective date.  
 



2 
 

effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies Escambia County 
that the plan amendment package is complete.  If timely challenged, this ordinance shall not 
become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or the Administration 
Commission enters a final order determining the ordinance to be in compliance.  
     
  
   DONE AND ENACTED this ____ day of ________________________, 2013.  
  
           BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
           ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA  
  
  
 
           By:  _________________________________  
ATTEST: Pam Childers           Gene M. Valentino, Chairman  
  Clerk of the Circuit Court  
 
  
By:  ___________________________ Date Executed:  ________________________  
                      Deputy Clerk  
 
  
(SEAL)  
  
ENACTED:  
  
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:  
  
EFFECTIVE DATE:  
  
  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Relevant portions of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030  



1 
 

OBJ CIE 1.4 Annual Review 1 
Review the Capital Improvements Element each year, amend as necessary. , and submit to the 2 
state land planning agency for compliance review. 3 

 4 
 CIE 1.4.5 Capital Improvements Adoption. Adoption of the Capital Improvements 5 
Element may occur at a single public hearing.  outside of the two regular Comprehensive Plan 6 
Amendment cycles established by the County. The Capital Improvements Element adoption 7 
ordinance shall be submitted to the state land planning agency no later than December 1 of each 8 
year. 9 
 10 
 11 
CIE 1.4.6 Capital Improvements Amendment. Amendments to the Capital Improvements 12 
Element that support the amendment of another Element shall be submitted to the state land 13 
planning agency during a regular Comprehensive Plan Amendment cycle. If the Escambia 14 
County annual budget is adjusted outside of the regular cycle, the Capital Improvements Element 15 
may be amended and adopted again,. provided that the adoption ordinance is submitted to the 16 
state land planning agency no later than December 1. 17 
 18 
CIE 1.4.7 De minimis Roadway Impact Monitoring. Escambia County shall implement a 19 
methodology to monitor and track approved de minimis impacts on the roadway network within its 20 
jurisdiction. All de minimis impacts (an impact that would not affect more than one percent of the 21 
maximum volume at the adopted LOS of the affected transportation facility) shall be compiled into 22 
an annual report.  and submitted to the state land planning agency with the annual Capital 23 
Improvements Element update. 24 



   

AI-3983     Growth Management Report      9. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Action             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: At-Large Planning Board Member Reappointment
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Department Director
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning an At-Large Reappointment to the Escambia County Planning
Board

That the Board approve reappointing David Woodward to fill an at-large position on the
Escambia County Planning Board to serve a two-year term, effective April 5, 2013, through April
4, 2015.

BACKGROUND:
The Escambia County Land Development Code, Article 2, Section 2.12.02 and 2.12.03, specify
two-year staggered terms of office for at-large members of the Planning Board. Mr. David
Woodward was previously appointed to fill the unexpired term of Mr Steven Barry, who
resigned. Mr. David Woodward has expressed a desire to be appointed to the Planning
Board. His resume is attached for your review.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impacts are expected as a result of the recommended Board action.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
NA

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are anticipated for the implementation of this recommended Board
action.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
In accordance with the LDC Article 2 Section 2.12.02 , the Board of County Commissioners
approval is required for all appointments/reappointments to the Boards and Committees
established by the Board of County Commissioners.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon appointment of the at-large member by the Board, the appointee will serve the required
terms of office and fulfill the duties of their respective board membership.
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The Law Offices ¢ David Luther Woodward, P. A.The Law Offices ¢ David Luther Woodward, P. A.The Law Offices ¢ David Luther Woodward, P. A.The Law Offices ¢ David Luther Woodward, P. A.
International and Domestic Representation      

Transactions ! Litigation ! Appeals !Financial Distress      

DavidDavidDavidDavid    LutherLutherLutherLuther    WoodwArdWoodwArdWoodwArdWoodwArd
B.A., J.D. (Florida State University) ! LL.M. (University of London)
Florida ! Oklahoma ! Texas

1415 Lemhurst Road1415 Lemhurst Road1415 Lemhurst Road1415 Lemhurst Road
Post Office Box 4475Post Office Box 4475Post Office Box 4475Post Office Box 4475

Pensacola • Florida • 32507-0475 • U.S.A.Pensacola • Florida • 32507-0475 • U.S.A.Pensacola • Florida • 32507-0475 • U.S.A.Pensacola • Florida • 32507-0475 • U.S.A.

February 5, 2013 +1 850 456 4010+1 850 456 4010+1 850 456 4010+1 850 456 4010
Facsimile +1 850 456 1955Facsimile +1 850 456 1955Facsimile +1 850 456 1955Facsimile +1 850 456 1955

DLW@WoodLaw.ProDLW@WoodLaw.ProDLW@WoodLaw.ProDLW@WoodLaw.Pro

Kayla Meador

Senior Office Support Assistant

Development Services

RE Planning Board Member at Large

Dear Ms. Meador

This will acknowledge the notification regarding application for reappointment–

which I certainly wish to do.

I was pleased to contribute a procedural improvement to the handling of cases while

on the Board.  This arises from my experience as a trial lawyer.  At my recommendation a

summary procedure for the speedy and efficient handling of non-contentious cases has

seemed to worked well, and seems to have been accepted.  I also think that my 40+ years

experience as a trial lawyer–not only in the courts of general jurisdiction but also in

administrative law–have brought a component to the Board that it did not have.

My tenure, although short, on the Board has been most enlightening, and it has been

a pleasure to serve the people of Escambia County in this position.  I am attaching as an

exhibit my résumé which has not changed in any substantial matter.

Always sincerely

/s/ David L. Woodward

David Luther Woodward



dlw/me



David Luther Woodward
1415 Lemhurst Road

Pensacola, Florida 32507

+1 (850) 456-4010

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

David Luther Woodward  was educated in the public schools of Alabama, Georgia and Florida,
earned his undergraduate and professional law degrees at The Florida State University at
Tallahassee, and did post-professional studies at the London School of Economics.  A lawyer
admitted to practice in Florida, Oklahoma and Texas, he has practiced in each of those states.

A mature practitioner, the biographee, upon his admission to the practice of law, worked for not
only the federal government, but also for the governments of two states, where he served not only
in professional, but also management capacities.  His further experience includes large and small firm
practice, criminal and civil, international and domestic, office and courtroom.

An accomplished journalist, he worked his way through undergraduate school as a writer,
photographer, and editor for the Tallahassee Democrat, and subsequent to earning his bachelor of
arts he worked as an industrial engineer providing data for business decisions for a primary defense
contractor in the airframe industry.

EMPLOYMENT
Sole Practitioner 2002-present

The Law Offices of David Luther Woodward, P. A. Pensacola, Florida

Civil, commercial, business, and real property practice including professional malpractice litigation;
commercial and international representation in transactions and litigation, appeals, bankruptcy
representation and litigation, admiralty and private international law; trained and qualified
mediator/arbiter in civil, commercial, business, real property, personal injury, bankruptcy (debtor and
creditor) and private international law matters

Lawyer/of counsel 1998-2001

Reeves and Davis Pensacola, Florida

Civil, commercial, business, and real property practice including professional malpractice litigation;
commercial and international representation in transactions and litigation, bankruptcy representation
and litigation,  admiralty and private international law; trained and qualified mediator/arbiter in civil,
commercial, business, real property, personal injury, bankruptcy (debtor and creditor) and private

international law matters.

Lawyer/Managing Counsel 1997-1998

Bond & Botes, P. C. Pensacola, Florida

A volume private practice limited to the representation of individual clients in consumer Chapter 7 and
13 bankruptcy proceedings in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of Florida.. 

Responsibilities:  Management of Pensacola office of a multi-state firm with offices in Alabama,
Mississippi and North Carolina the practice of which is limited to the representation of persons in
financial distress and who may be likely candidates for bankruptcy relief.  The Pensacola office
involved the supervision of one other Florida lawyer, an office business manager, two paralegal
technicians and a receptionist/scheduler.  Employee relations, client relations, and the “hands-on”
management of the business and professional work-load and -flow situations constituted the
responsibilities beyond that of practicing law including advising clients of their lawful options and
representing them thereafter in court.  



Lawyer/Of Counsel 1985-1997

The Law Offices of David Luther Woodward Dallas, Texas
Private practice incorporating mediation and arbitration, including Of Counsel affiliations with Bennett
& Kurtzman, 1991-93; Sapp & Madden, Dallas and Austin, 1991; Guest & Associates, 1990-91; Brice
& Barron, 1985-86.

Responsibilities:   Civil, commercial, business, real property and personal injury practice including
professional malpractice litigation; commercial and international representation in transactions and
litigation, bankruptcy representation and litigation (debtor, creditor and trustee representation),
admiralty and private international law; trained and qualified mediator/arbiter in civil, commercial,
business, real property, personal injury, bankruptcy (debtor and creditor) and private international law
matters.

Lawyer 1983-84

Jones, Gungoll, Jackson, Collins & Dodd Enid, Oklahoma

Responsibilities:  Civil, commercial, business, real property and personal injury practice including
professional malpractice litigation; commercial and international representation in transactions and
private international law.

Appellate Public Defender/State of Oklahoma 1980-81

Appellate Public Defendant Project Norman, Oklahoma
University of Oklahoma College of Law
State Appellate Public Defender/Visiting Instructor (joint appointment) 

Responsibilities:  Appellate Public Defender for and Special Counsel to the Appellate Public
Defender Project, Oklahoma Center for Criminal Justice, establishing, managing and directing the
activities of the office of the state appellate public defender with a joint university appointment
teaching courses in advanced appellate advocacy. 

Lawyer/Sole Practice  1974-80

The Law Offices of David Luther Woodward, Chartered  Tampa, Florida
a professional corporation
successor to The Law Offices of Rose & Woodward, Chartered

Responsibilities:  Civil, commercial, business, real property and personal injury practice including
litigation; commercial and international representation in transactions and litigation, bankruptcy
representation and litigation admiralty and private international law.

Lawyer 1973-74

The Law Offices of Rose & Woodward, Chartered Tampa, Florida
a professional corporation 

Responsibilities:  Civil, commercial, business, real property and personal injury practice including
litigation; commercial and international representation in transactions and litigation, bankruptcy
representation and litigation admiralty and private international law.

Assistant Attorney General/State of Florida 1971-73

Office of the Attorney General Tampa, Florida
Department of Legal Affairs
The State of Florida 

Responsibilities:   Representation of The State of Florida in criminal appeals, federal litigation and
prosecutions in administrative proceedings for state regulatory agencies.

Trial Attorney/General 1970

Office of the General Counsel Washington, D.C.
United States Department of Agriculture

Responsibilities:  Trial Attorney General for the Regulatory Division, U. S. Department of Agriculture,
prosecuting law proceedings under the Acts of Congress which are in the charge of the Department.
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Industrial Engineer/Product Labor Analyst 1965-1968

Lockheed-Georgia Company Marietta, Georgia

Responsibilities:  Industrial engineer and product labor analyst involved with costs analyses and
labor/hour projections for airframe projects including the C130, C141, C5 and the military JetStar as
well as their civilian applications, the Lockheed 1011 and civilian JetStar, and the shared cost design
parameters for the Boeing 747.  Specific duties included direct estimation of flight test expenses in
terms of labor/hours and dollars, as well as costs for PARMODS and retro-fits for international military
sales.  Employment included intelligence clearances.

Junior Executive Trainee 1967

Rich’s, Inc.  Atlanta, Georgia

Responsibilities:  Training program for college graduates leading to merchandising position and
personnel and service positions within dominant Southeastern retailer.

Photograph/Writer/Section Editor 1961-65

The Tallahassee Democrat Tallahassee, Florida

Responsibilities:   Part- and full-time employment during undergraduate educational career including
sports, spot news, society  and political coverage for general circulation  daily newspaper serving
Tallahassee and a significant portion of North Florida.  Over the period of time duties changed to
include editing Sunday magazine and writing feature stories.  Received awards for both photographic
and written coverage of breaking events including Hurricane Donna.

EDUCATION
Master of Laws 1982

London School of Economics and Political Science London, England
University of London

Field of Study: International commercial law and comparative constitutional law.

Activities: Involved in organization for foreign students and appeared to discuss comparative law subjects on
the BBC.

Juris Doctor 1967-69

The College of Law Tallahassee, Florida 
The Florida State University

Major: Second and third years of degree program leading to Juris Doctor

Activities: Involved in moot court competition, founding member and clerk of the Terrell Chapter of Phi Alpha
Delta Law Fraternity

The Lamar School of Law 1966-67
Emory University Atlanta, Georgia

Major: Freshman law year.

Bachelor of Arts 1961-65

The College of Arts and Sciences  Tallahassee, Florida
The Florida State University

Double Major: Economics and Music

Double Minor: Business and  Mediæval to 17th Century English literature

Activities: Part- and full-time employment during undergraduate educational career including sports, spot news,
society and political coverage for general circulation daily newspaper serving Tallahassee and a
significant portion of North Florida.  Over the period of time duties changed to include editing Sunday
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magazine and writing feature stories.  Received awards for both photographic and written coverage
of breaking events including Hurricane Donna.

Carey College Hattiesburg, Mississippi
Freshman year (1960-61)

Major: College preparatory school:  Music

Minor: None declared 

PUBLICATIONS

C A day in Crown Court, 47 Fla.B.J. 291 (1973)
C The argument for oral argument, 52 Okla.B.J. 767 (1981)
C Book review:  Eyewitness Testimony, by Loftus, 34 Okla.L.Rev. 205 (1981)
C A day in the Court of Justice of the European Communities, 

54 Okla.B.J.1101 (1983)
C With Butler:  The American contingency fee--fact and fiction, 

80 Law Society's [of England and Wales] Gazette 917 (1983)
C Reciprocal recognition and enforcement of civil judgments in the United States, 

the United Kingdom and the European Economic Community,
8 N.C.J.Int'l L &Com.Reg. 299 (1983)

SKILLS
C Negotiator, arbiter, mediator and litigator
C Skilled technical, legal and journalistic writer and researcher
C Accomplished in computer applications including programming
C Experienced in costs analyses and budgeting
C Office manager

REFERENCES
C Stephen C. Cheeseman, esquire

701 South Howard Avenue,  Suite 202
Tampa, Florida 33606-2473
Telephone +1 (813) 223-4007

C Mr. Frank M. McLaughlin III
The MaxSearch Companies
3525 Turtle Creek Boulevard
Dallas, Texas 75219
Telephone +1 (214) 599-0171

COMMUNITY
• Member, Citizens Advisory Committee to the Florida/Alabama Transportation

Organization, September 2005 through April 2012; Chairman, 2009-2012
• Member, Escambia County Planning Board, 2012-2013
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DAVID LUTHER WOODWARD
BIBLIOGRAPHY OF REPORTED1 APPELLATE CASES

September 12, 2007

1. †L. O. WARD and MYRA WARD, Plaintiffs-Appellants, v. UNITED STATES OF

AMERICA, Defendant-Appellee, Nº 81-1849, UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE

TENTH CIRCUIT, 695 F.2d 1351; 83-1 U.S. Tax Cas. (CCH) P9110; 51 A.F.T.R.2d (P-H) 406; 75 Oil

& Gas Rep. 639, December 20, 1982    

2. †IN RE: CHARRINGTON WORLDWIDE ENTERPRISE, INC., d/b/a KEPPIE TRAVEL

BUREAU, Debtor. AIRLINES REPORTING CORPORATION, Appellant, v. CHARRINGTON

WORLDWIDE ENTERPRISE, INC., d/b/a KEPPIE TRAVEL BUREAU, Appellee, Case Nº 89-603-CIV-

T-17, UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA, TAMPA

DIVISION, 110 Bankr. 973; 1990 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 1372, February 2, 1990

3. †In re: CHARRINGTON WORLDWIDE ENTERPRISES, INC., d/b/a KEPPIE TRAVEL

BUREAU, Debtor, Case Nº 88-7619-8P1, UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT FOR THE

MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA, TAMPA DIVISION, 98 Bankr. 65; 1989 Bankr. LEXIS 449; Bankr.

L. Rep. (CCH) P72,872, March 7, 1989, Decided    

4. Alex BARTON, Petitioner, v. STATE of Florida, Respondent., Nº 43702, Supreme

Court of Florida., 291 So.2d 586, March 13, 1974.    

5. STATE of Florida, Petitioner, v. Cullen DAVIS, Respondent., Nº 43874, Supreme

Court of Florida., 290 So.2d 30, February 13, 1974.    

6. Jimmy Jack HOLMES and William Stafford Allison, Petitioners, v. STATE of Florida,

Respondent., Nº 42069, Supreme Court of Florida., 273 So.2d 753, December 20, 1972.    

7. †LARRY EUGENE MOSER, Appellant, v. LINDA B. DAVIS, Appellee,  Nº  78-378,

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 364 So.2d 521, November 15, 1978  

8. †GENE R. KIRKLAND and GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES INSURANCE COMPANY,

a foreign corporation, Appellants, v. CONNIE GAIL JOHNSON, Appellee. AND WALTER AHEDO

and EMMCO INSURANCE COMPANY, a foreign corporation, Appellants, v. CONNIE GAIL

JOHNSON, Appellee, Nº 76-996 Nº 76-1109, DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA

SECOND DISTRICT, 346 So.2d 132, May 25, 1977; Rehearing Denied June 15, 1977. 

9. †IN RE: The Estate of FLOSSIE L. NUNNELLEY, deceased.  FRANK V. NUNNELLEY,

Appellant, v. FLOYD L. SLOAN, et al., Appellees, Nº 76-1070, Court of Appeal of Florida, Second

District, 343 So.2d 657, March 4, 1977, Rehearing Denied April 4, 1977.

10. Charles Edward HARDER, Appellant, v. Joanne Marie HARDER, Appellee, Nº

74-1041, District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 331 So.2d 341, April 14, 1976



 
11. Eugene HESS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 73-170, Court of Appeal

of Florida, Second District, 309 So.2d 606, March 7, 1975, Rehearing Denied April 7, 1975.

12. †ALLSTATE INSURANCE COMPANY, an Illinois Corporation, for the use and benefit

of Vincent Di Nova and Northgate Chrysler-Plymouth, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, Appellants,

v. Detlof Oliver LOFSTRUM et al., Appellees, Nº 74-730, District Court of Appeal of Florida,

Second District, 307 So.2d 458, February 12, 1975.    

13. †GENERAL FIRE & CASUALTY COMPANY and Aircraft Service International, Inc.,

Appellants, v. FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF TAMPA as Guardian of the property of Mario Stasio

et al., Appellees, Nº 74-271, Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 306 So.2d 193, January

22, 1975    

14. Ray D. SMITH, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-593, Court of Appeal

of Florida, Second District, 305 So.2d 876, November  20, 1974    

15. Danny MORGAN, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee. Charles Daniel

GASKIN, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nos. 73-172 and 73-344, District Court of

Appeal of Florida, Second District, 303 So.2d 393,  November  6, 1974.    

16. Paul O. SHAFFER, Jr., Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 73-86, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 295 So.2d 677, May 22, 1974.    

17. Joseph GOLPHIN, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nos. 73-196, 73-197 and

73-376, District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 293 So.2d 755, April 17, 1974.

18. †The NATIONAL REFERENCE SOCIETY, INC., a corporation, Appellant, v.

FEDERATED CREDIT CORPORATION, a corporation, Appellee, Nº 72-816, District Court of

Appeal of Florida, Second District, 291 So.2d 648,   March 15, 1974.    

19. George H. PLATT, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee. Dennis HUMPHRIES,

Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nos. 72-655, 72-545, District Court of Appeal of Florida,

Second District, 291 So.2d 96, March 6, 1974.    

20. Ira G. DUNCAN, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-489, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 291 So.2d 241, March 1, 1974.    

21. Artie C. HENRY, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 73-265, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 290 So.2d 73, February 20, 1974.    

22. Lonnie B. FACION, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-669, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 290 So.2d 75, February 20, 1974.    

23. STATE of Florida, Appellant, v. Scot H. DOUGLAS, Appellee, Nº 73-356, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 290 So.2d 494, February 20, 1974.    
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24. William George NETTLES, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee. Harold Ward

BURR, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nos. 73-417, 72-511, District Court of Appeal of

Florida, Second District, 293 So.2d 378, February 15, 1974.    

25. Robert W. HENDERSON, Petitioner, v. Louie L. WAINWRIGHT, Director, Division of

Corrections, Respondent., Nº 72-944, District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 300

So.2d 274, February 6, 1974.    

26. Ronald Roger BRUNEAU, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-64, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 289 So.2d 470, January 30, 1974.    

27. Jessie D. BERRY, Jr., Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-274. District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 286 So.2d 581, December 14, 1973.    

28. Charles Arthur GELIS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-565. District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 287 So.2d 368, December 12, 1973.    

29. Terry Lane HARRIS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-684, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 286 So.2d 32, November 14, 1973.    

30. Leonard EDWARDS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 73-178, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 284 So.2d 245, October 26, 1973.    

31. William L. BUTTS, Jr., Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-732, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 286 So.2d 28, October 24, 1973.    

32. Arthur MILLINER, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-129, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 284 So.2d 231, October 24, 1973.    

33. Sidney J. TILLMAN, Jr., Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-437, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 287 So.2d 693, October 3, 1973.    

34. Walter Ladd NAMOSKE, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-696,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 283 So.2d 113, September 28, 1973.    

35. Michael W. DAVIS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 73-61, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 298 So.2d 503, September 26, 1973.    

36. Ronald W. MATLOCK, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-476, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 284 So.2d 489, September 14, 1973.    

37. Gerald Warren WHITED, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-600.

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 283 So.2d 146, September 14, 1973.    

38. Joseph FILER, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-615, District Court of

Appeal of Florida, Second District, 285 So.2d 669, September 12, 1973.    
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39. Constance M. TUCKER, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-386, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 283 So.2d 128, September 12, 1973.    

40. Namon D. PAIGE, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 73-122, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 282 So.2d 192, September 7, 1973.    

41. Kevin D. HAVERTY, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-537, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 282 So.2d 195, September 7, 1973.    

42. Leola CRUM, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-409, District Court of

Appeal of Florida, Second District, 281 So.2d 368, August 15, 1973.    

43. John HARGROVE, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 73-34, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 281 So.2d 390, August 15, 1973.    

44. Clayton MYRICK, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-381, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 281 So.2d 923, August 15, 1973.    

45. Willis Earl YOUNGBLOOD, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-888,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 281 So.2d 230, August 8, 1973.    

46. Ray D. SMITH, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-593, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 282 So.2d 179, August 3, 1973.    

47. Leslie D. HORTON, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 73-269, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 281 So.2d 387, August 1, 1973.    

48. Jessie L. MYLES, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 73-158, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 280 So.2d 516, July 20, 1973.    

49. Willie HARRIS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-995, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 279 So.2d 892, July 11, 1973.    

50. Otis James WRIGHT, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-681, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 279 So.2d 70, June 8, 1973.    

51. STATE of Florida, Appellant, v. Anthony E. GALLO, Appellee. STATE of Florida,

Appellant, v. Richard KRANZ, Appellee, Nos. 72-896, 72-897, District Court of Appeal of Florida,

Second District, 279 So.2d 71, June 8, 1973.    

52. Frank Wilson WHITEHEAD, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-522,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 279 So.2d 99, June 8, 1973.    

53. Raymond W. KARZ, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-707, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 279 So.2d 383, June 8, 1973.    

54. Samuel WILCHER, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-220, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 277 So.2d 562, May 23, 1973.    
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55. Armando HERNANDEZ, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-212, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 278 So.2d 307, May 11, 1973.    

56. Charles E. CARMEN, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-235, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 289 So.2d 51, April 27, 1973.    

57. James H. STEPHENS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-493, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 276 So.2d 55, April 13, 1973.    

58. Robert L. McCAIN, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nos. 71-15, 71-16,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 275 So.2d 596, April 4, 1973.    

59. Ralph HOPKINS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-400, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 275 So.2d 597, April 4, 1973.    

60. James WHITE et al., Appellants, v. The STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-457,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 273 So.2d 782, March 2, 1973.    

61. Charles J. WILLIAMSON, Jr., Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-456,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 273 So.2d 784, March 2, 1973.    

62. Richard (Dick) STONE, as Secretary of State of the State of Florida, Petitioner, v.

Bruce J. FLETCHER, Respondent., Nº R-449, District Court of Appeal of Florida, First District, 276

So.2d 514, February 27, 1973.    

63. John H. WALSINGHAM, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-521, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 272 So.2d 215, January 26, 1973.    

64. Cullen DAVIS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-346, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 276 So.2d 846, January 5, 1973.    

65. John William MARSHALL et al., Appellants, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº

72-291, District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 273 So.2d 412, January 5, 1973.    

66. Donald Lee COOK, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-922, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 271 So.2d 232, January 5, 1973.    

67. James Lewis BURNS, a/k/a James Lewis Burns, Jr., Appellant, v. STATE of Florida,

Appellee, Nº 72-276, District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 272 So.2d 874,

December 22, 1972.    

68. Cleon Donald WALKER, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-657, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 284 So.2d 415, December 20, 1972.    

69. Warren DUNBAR, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-385, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 270 So.2d 45, December 20, 1972.    
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70. June CLAYTON, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-470, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 270 So.2d 46, December 20, 1972.    

71. Farrell D. FUGETT and Suzanne Guthrie, Appellants, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee,

Nos. 72-405, 72-406, District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 271 So.2d 28, December

13, 1972.    
72. Aaron T. THOMAS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-41, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 270 So.2d 43, December 13, 1972.    

73. Charles Arthur GELIS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-753. District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 269 So.2d 418, November 17, 1972.    

74. Eugene JONES, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-842, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 269 So.2d 419, November 15, 1972.    

75. STATE of Florida, Appellant, v. Wayne Royce SUTTON, Appellee, Nº 72-439, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 269 So.2d 712, November 15, 1972.    

76. STATE of Florida, Appellant, v. Wayne Royce SUTTON, Appellee, Nº 72-440, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 269 So.2d 713, November 15, 1972.    

77. Stanley A. HEADRICK, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-322, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 268 So.2d 390, November 10, 1972.    

78. Hosie SANDERS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-792, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 268 So.2d 553, November 10, 1972.    

79. Joseph NUZZO, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nos. 71-906, 71-907,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 269 So.2d 379, November 8, 1972.    

80. Eddie James LASTER, Petitioner, v. The Honorable Gunter STEPHENSON, Acting

as Judge of the Criminal Court of Record, in and for Polk County, Florida, Respondent., Nº

72-688, District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 268 So.2d 387, November 8, 1972.   

81. Allen Stanley JACOBS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-415. District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 268 So.2d 548, November 8, 1972.  

82. Oscar JEFFERSON, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-368, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 268 So.2d 183, November  1, 1972.

83. Horace W. SHREVES, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-292, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 269 So.2d 390, October 25, 1972.    

84. James WHITE, Jr., et al., Appellants, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-457,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 267 So.2d 360, October 13, 1972.
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85. Richard DECKER, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-82, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 267 So.2d 379, October 13, 1972.

86. Gerard Charles REINARD, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-810,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 267 So.2d 88, October 4, 1972.    

87. STATE of Florida, Appellant, v. Betty MILLS, Appellee, Nº 72-131, District Court of

Appeal of Florida, Second District, 267 So.2d 44, September 29, 1972.    

88. Darrell Lynn POPE, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-30, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 268 So.2d 173, September 27, 1972.    

89. Robert William OSBORN, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-919,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 266 So.2d 690, September 27, 1972.    

90. Robert D. HICKMAN, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-185, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 267 So.2d 38, September 15, 1972.    

91. Herbert LEISEDER, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-788, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 265 So.2d 547, August 18, 1972.    

92. Leon GAYLE, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-321, District Court of

Appeal of Florida, Second District, 265 So.2d 389, August 2, 1972.    

93. William GAWRONSKI, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-915, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 265 So.2d 392, August 2, 1972.    

94. Everett Junior COLEGROVE, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-764,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 263 So.2d 835, July 14, 1972.    

95. Ed THOMAS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-895, District Court of

Appeal of Florida, Second District, 264 So.2d 77, July 12, 1972.    

96. Fundador Rodriquez RIVERA, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-727,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 264 So.2d 73, June 16, 1972.    

97. Ronald Cornelius JOHNSON, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-597,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 263 So.2d 295, June 14, 1972.    

98. Johnny C. ROBERTSON, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-278, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 262 So.2d 692, May 26, 1972.    

99. Vernon FLOWERS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-916, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 262 So.2d 475, May 24, 1972.    

100. Frank BROWN, Jr., Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-676, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 262 So.2d 237, May 19, 1972.    
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101. Frederick KNIFFIN, Petitioner, v. Honorable W. Troy HALL, Jr., Circuit Judge for the

Fifth Judicial Circuit, in and for Lake County, Florida, Respondent., Nº 72-267, District Court of

Appeal of Florida, Second District, 262 So.2d 900, May 16, 1972.    

102. Thomas SOLIS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-300, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 262 So.2d 9, May 12, 1972.    

103. Edward DIXON, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-555, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 261 So.2d 205, April 28, 1972.    

104. Charles Michael DUNCAN, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 72-65,

District Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 260 So.2d 548, April 12, 1972.    

105. Stephen J. DARGANS, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-793, District

Court of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 259 So.2d 782, March 29, 1972.    

106. Sandsbury LEE, Appellant, v. STATE of Florida, Appellee, Nº 71-548, District Court

of Appeal of Florida, Second District, 258 So.2d 845, February 16, 1972.    

107. †CITICORP LEASING, INC., Appellant, v. Jean WHITAKER and Joe Tillman,

Individually and d/b/a Tillman and Whitaker Company., and Jos. L. Rozier Machinery Co.,

Appellees, Jean WHITAKER and Joe Tillman, Individually and d/b/a Tillman & Whitaker Company

and Joseph L. Rozier Machinery Company, Cross-Appellants, v. CITICORP LEASING, INC.,

Cross-Appellees, Court of Appeals of Kentucky, 605 S.W.2d 24, March 7, 1980; Discretionary

Review Denied October 7, 1980    

108. †MM RESOURCES, INC., Appellant, v. A. L. HUSTON, Appellee, Nº 61,240,

SUPREME COURT OF OKLAHOMA, 710 P.2d 763, December 10, 1985    

109. SANDRA CLEM, Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, Appellee, Case Nº

M-83-188, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 701 P.2d 770, June 10, 1985; Rehearing Denied

July 3, 1985    

110. JAKE UNDERWOOD, Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, Appellee, Nº

F-80-695, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 659 P.2d 948, February 24, 1983    

111. DAVID CHAMBERS, Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, Appellee, Nº

O-80-811, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 649 P.2d 795, August 10, 1982    

112. ERNEST LEE SMITH Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, Appellee, Nº

F-80-11, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 646 P.2d 1285, June 8, 1982    

113. †JOHN CALVIN TAYLOR, Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, Appellee, Nº

F-80-560, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 645 P.2d 525, May 17, 1982    

114. DON F. FERGUSON, Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, Appellee, Nº

F-80-820, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 645 P.2d 1021, May 11, 1982    

Résumé of David Luther Woodward Page 12 of  13



1. This bibliography represents fewer than ten per cent of all appellate cases in which the biographee

was lead counsel of record.  Not included in this listing are cases which were affirmed per curiam  without

opinion or where the opinion of the court was not published.

115. †JOHN CALVIN TAYLOR, Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, Appellee, Nº

F-80-624, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 645 P.2d 522, May 4, 1982; Rehearing Denied

June 2, 1982.    

116. DON F. FERGUSON Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, Appellee, Nº

F-80-819, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 644 P.2d 121, April 22, 1982    

117. DONALD EUGENE HAWKES, Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, Appellee,

Nº F-80-250, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 644 P.2d 111, April 19, 1982    

118. TERRI LEE STRATTON, A/K/A TERRI LEE WILLIE, A/K/A TERRI LEE BURRAGE,

Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, Appellee, Nº F-80-421, Court of Criminal Appeals of

Oklahoma, 643 P.2d 645, April 8, 1982    

119. ORLANDO DALE STEVENSON, Appellant, v. THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA,

Appellee, Nº F-81-109, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 637 P.2d 878, November 23, 1981 

120. STATE OF OKLAHOMA Appellant, v. CURTIS DALE WOOD and STANLEY DON

WEATHERLY, Appellee., Nºs. O-80-658, O-80-659, Court of Criminal Appeals of Oklahoma, 624

P.2d 555, January 19, 1981; As Corrected January 23, 1981 and March 4, 1981  

121. †DAVID MCKOWAN, M. D., and TIMOTHY G. DAY, M. D., Appellants, v. CHARLES

C. BENTLEY, Appellee., Nº 1971357, Supreme Court of Alabama, 773 So 2d 990, August 27, 1999

122. WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, Appellant, v. DANNY CARL

BRANNON, Appellee, Nº 1D06-5940, District Court of Appeal of Florida, 1st District, 951 So.2d

1013. March 22, 2007

123. John Henry LEE, Jr., #028436, Petitioner-Appellant, v. Louie L. WAINWRIGHT,

Director, Division of Corrections, State of Fla., Respondent-Appellee.  No. 73-2280 Summary

Calendar. 488 F.2d 140, United States Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit. Dec. 6, 1973.

124. Steven D. CAUSEY, #031822, Petitioner-Appellant, v. Louie L. WAINWRIGHT,

Director, Division of Corrections, State of Florida, etc., Respondent-Appellee. No. 73-2038.

Summary Calendar. 486 F.2d 601 (5th Cir. 1973)

† Cases marked with the dagger are deemed by the biographee to be of the greatest

legal significance.
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AI-4019     Growth Management Report      9. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Schedule of Public Hearings
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Department Director
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of Public Hearings

That the Board authorize the scheduling of the following Public Hearings:

Thursday, April 18, 2013

A. 5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing - LDC Article 10 - Flood Plain Ordinance - Replace Existing
Ordinance; and

B. 5:46 p.m. - A Public Hearing - Amending Florida Building Code.



   

AI-4046     County Administrator's Report      9. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Schedule a Public Hearing Regarding Fiscal Year 12/13 Federal Transit
Administration 5307 Grant Application by ECAT for Mass Transit Project
Funding

From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E.
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Scheduling of a Public Hearing Regarding the Fiscal Year
2012/2013 Federal Transit Administration 5307 Grant Application by ECAT for Mass Transit
Project Funding - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board authorize the scheduling of a Public Hearing for April 18, 2013, at 5:31 p.m., for
the purpose of receiving public comments concerning the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Federal
Transit Administration 5307 Grant Application by Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT) for
Mass Transit Project Funding.

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) guidelines require that all Applications for financial
assistance from FTA be submitted after a Public Hearing is held for the purpose of receiving
comments from the public concerning the Grant Program of Projects.  Also, effective January 1,
1998, Grant Applications, execution, and Grant administration progress reports must be
submitted electronically via the Transportation Electronic Award Management (TEAM) System.

BACKGROUND:
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) guidelines require that all applications for financial
assistance from FTA be submitted after a public hearing is held for the purpose of receiving
comments from the public concerning the Grant Program of Projects.  Also, effective January 1,
1998, grant applications, execution, and grant administration progress reports must be
submitted electronically via the Transportation Electronic Award Management (TEAM) System.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The grant application has been included in the approved FY 12/13 ECAT budget.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

 
 



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Transportation & Traffic Operations Division and ECAT staff will coordinate with the FTA on
all necessary activities regarding this grant application and fund processing.  ECAT staff will
electronically file all required documentation.



   

AI-4057     County Administrator's Report      9. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Appointment to the Workforce Escarosa, Inc., Board of Directors
From: Marilyn Wesley, Department Director
Organization: Community Affairs
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning an Appointment to the Workforce Escarosa, Inc., Board of
Directors - Marilyn D. Wesley, Community Affairs Department Director

That the Board confirm the appointment of Valera Young, Work and Family Life Supervisor, NAS
Pensacola Fleet and Family Support Center, to the Workforce Escarosa, Inc., Board of
Directors, as the CBO (Community Based Organization) Veterans' representative for a
three-year term, effective April 2, 2013, through April 1, 2016.

BACKGROUND:
The Board of Directors for Workforce Escarosa, Inc. serves as the local governing board for
workforce development and job training activities as approved by Workforce Florida, Inc. and the
Agency for Workforce Innovation (AWI). Federal and state legislation that govern the board
activities require specific membership from various community sectors where the governing
boards are located. This board serves the demographic area of Region One, comprised of
Escambia and Santa Rosa counties. All appointments must conform to the requirements of the
law, and have final approval from the local governing entity of each county – which, for
Escambia County, is the Board of County Commissioners.

Ms. Young replaces Bill Lawson, who recently resigned from the Workforce Escarosa Board.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Appointments to this Board of Directors are made in accordance with state and federal
legislation.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
All Escambia County appointments to this Board of Directors must have approval from the



All Escambia County appointments to this Board of Directors must have approval from the
Escambia County Board of County Commissioners.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the Board, this appointment shall become effective for the expressed dates. 
The Department of Community Affairs has coordinated with Workforce Escarosa, Inc. on this
appointment.

Attachments
Valera Young Appointment Letter and Resume





























   

AI-4077     County Administrator's Report      9. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Technical/Public Service Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: 5:32 p.m. Public Hearing Request - Water Oaks Drainage Improvement MSBU
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Head
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Water Oaks Drainage Improvement MSBU - Amy Lovoy,
Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board authorize the scheduling of a Public Hearing on April 18, 2013, at 5:32 p.m., to
consider the adoption of an Ordinance creating the Water Oaks Drainage Improvement
Municipal Services Benefit Unit (MSBU).

BACKGROUND:
Petitions for creating a Drainage Improvement MSBU district were circulated in the Water Oaks
Area.  The affected area has 53 properties, and of these 38 property owners (71 percent) signed
the petition in favor of creating the Drainage Improvement MSBU.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Board must approve the scheduling of public hearings.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Each property owner in the affected area will be notified of the date, time and place of the public
hearing by mail and by advertisement in the Pensacola News Journal.



   

AI-4036     County Administrator's Report      9. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Sale of Real Property Located at 6622 Hampton Road
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Head
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Reduction of the Minimum Sales Price of Real Property
Located at 6622 Hampton Road, Due to the Property Appraiser’s Re-assessed Value - Amy
Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the reduction of the minimum bid required
for the sale of real property located at 6622 Hampton Road, due to the Property Appraiser’s
re-assessed value: 

A. Authorize the sale of real property, Account Number 03-1195-512, Reference Number
26-1S-30-5101-012-001, to the bidder with the highest offer received at or above the
re-assessed minimum bid of $16,255, in accordance with Section 46.134 of the Escambia
County Code of Ordinances, without further action of the Board; and

B. Authorize the Chairman to sign all documents related to the sale.

BACKGROUND:
This property escheated to the County on November 6, 2012. The Board declared the property
surplus and authorized its sale November 15, 2012 with a minimum bid of $41,121. In March
2013, the Property Appraiser re-assessed the value to $16,255 because the house requires a
substantial amount of maintenance. The price change will appear on the Property Appraiser’s
website when the 2013-2014 certified roll assessment values emerge later this year. The County
has no need for this property.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Sale of this property will provide revenue for the General Fund.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
All legal documents will be approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the County Attorney’s
Office prior to execution by the Chairman. The purchaser will pay all closing costs.

PERSONNEL:
NA



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Escambia County Ordinance, Section 46.134

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
NA

Attachments
6622 Hampton Rd backup-assessed value













   

AI-3945     County Administrator's Report      9. 2.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Re-Bid Jaunita Williams Park Parking Lot and Dock, PD 12-13.024
From: Amy Lovoy, Department Head
Organization: OMB
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Re-Bid of Jaunita Williams Park Parking Lot & Dock - Amy
Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Department Director

That the Board award a Contract to J. Miller Construction, Inc., for the Re-Bid Jaunita Williams
Park Parking Lot & Dock, PD 12-13.024, in the amount of $183,717.50

[Funding:  Fund 151, Community Redevelopment Fund, Cost Center 220516, Object Code
56301] 

BACKGROUND:
The Invitation to Bid, PD12-13.024, for the Rebid of the Jaunita Williams Park Parking Lot &
Dock was advertised February 25, 2013 and six bids were received on March 12, 2013.   J.
Miller Construction, Inc., is the lowest resposive bidder.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funding:  Fund 151, Community Redevelopment Fund, Cost Center 220516, Object Code 56301

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Attorney's Standard Form of Contract will be used.

PERSONNEL:
NA

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the Escambia County Code of Ordinance Chapter
46, Article II, Purchases and Contracts.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Office of Purchasing will issue the Contract and Purchase Order.

Attachments



Bid Tab





   

AI-4056     County Administrator's Report      9. 3.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Write-Off Accounts Receivable
From: Mike Weaver, Department Director
Organization: Public Safety
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Write-Off of Accounts Receivable Recorded in the Emergency
Medical Service Fund as Uncollectible Bad Debts - Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety
Department Director

That the Board adopt the Resolution authorizing the write-off of $2,142,106.92 in accounts
receivable that have been recorded in the Emergency Medical Service Fund of Escambia
County and have been determined to be uncollectible bad debts.

BACKGROUND:
This Resolution allows an accounting transaction to be recorded and in no way should be
construed to be a forgiveness of the debt.  This Resolution includes write-offs from
EMS Ambulance Billings for the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2012-2013 for 4,435 accounts that
have been through all phases of the billing and collection cycles, to include all primary and
secondary insurance filing, private pay processing, pre-collection letter(s), and/or referral to
the secondary collection agency.  All accounts have been with the secondary collection agency
for at least 120 days.  All avenues for collection have been exhausted and we are confident
these accounts are truly uncollectible, and any further action would be unproductive.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
County Attorney Alison P. Rogers has reviewed and approved the Resolution as to form and
legal sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



N/A

Attachments
Q1 12/13 BDWO Resolution
Att A Resolution Q1 12/13 BDWO



RESOLUTION R2013-

WHEREAS, certain accounts totaling 52,142.106.92 are owed to the Emergency

Medical Service Fund of Escambia County for services furnished as delineated in Attachment

"A" and made part hereof by reference; and

WHEREAS, diligent efforts have been made to collect the amounts as shown on the

attached list.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia

County, Florida, that:

These accounts receivable shall be written off as uncollectible bad debts. The above

designations have been made solely to enable the Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller to

carry out her duties in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Escambia

County does not waive any rights it may have to collect any of the above-referenced accounts

receivable, including but not limited to use of a collection agency under contract to Escambia

County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all past efforts to designate these delinquent

accounts receivable as bad debts are hereby ratified and approved.

Board of County Commissioners

Escambia County, Florida

Gene M. Valentino. Chairman

ATTEST: Pam Childers

Clerk of the Circuit Court

Deputy Clerk

This document approved as to form

and lt^^fj^fe^'

By

Title

Date
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2008-03-20 7833 $78.95
2008-04-14 10161 $62.50
2008-04-14 10178 $64.93
2008-05-24 14187 $68.78
2008-06-07 15347 $78.95
2008-06-23 16848 $78.95
2008-07-19 19222 $81.84
2008-07-20 19285 $79.22
2008-08-20 22018 $80.53
2008-09-07 23740 $81.84
2008-09-08 23812 $80.53
2008-09-13 24248 $72.78
2008-09-20 24955 $81.84
2008-09-27 25571 $79.22
2008-10-07 26438 $76.60
2008-10-09 26671 $68.85
2008-10-13 27059 $80.53
2008-11-08 29147 $61.84
2008-11-12 29680 $40.25
2008-11-12 29692 $75.29
2008-11-17 30105 $77.91
2008-11-19 30268 $71.47
2008-11-20 30358 $64.92
2008-11-20 30343 $67.54
2008-11-22 30587 $83.15
2008-11-25 30863 $80.53
2008-12-01 31387 $64.92
2008-12-06 31821 $79.22
2008-12-08 32033 $75.29
2008-12-16 32691 $66.23
2008-12-20 33091 $81.84
2008-12-22 33260 $68.85
2008-12-23 33331 $84.46
2008-12-30 33972 $64.92
2009-01-02 109 $188.54
2009-01-04 298 $192.66
2009-01-05 394 $83.29
2009-01-05 461 $88.78
2009-01-08 702 $192.66
2009-01-13 1132 $136.97
2009-01-16 1384 $191.29
2009-01-21 1897 $194.03
2009-02-01 2819 $66.88
2009-02-03 2967 $137.53
2009-02-04 3085 $83.29
2009-02-07 3350 $84.66
2009-02-10 3636 $86.03
2009-02-11 3772 $86.03
2009-02-13 3941 $47.00
2009-03-07 6070 $69.63
2009-03-11 6545 $84.66
2009-03-14 6874 $81.91
2009-03-15 6956 $80.54
2009-03-19 7341 $84.66
2009-03-23 7783 $71.01
2009-03-27 8213 $72.38
2009-03-28 8265 $86.03
2009-04-10 9606 $71.01
2009-04-20 10587 $66.88

ATTACHMENT "A"
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2009-04-23 10834 $71.01
2009-04-25 11100 $84.66
2009-05-14 12972 $79.16
2009-05-17 13254 $84.66
2009-05-19 13450 $84.66
2009-05-25 14043 $77.16
2009-06-03 14913 $84.66
2009-06-07 15271 $79.16
2009-06-12 15798 $79.16
2009-06-25 17066 $86.03
2009-06-28 17374 $84.66
2009-06-30 17558 $115.63
2009-07-13 18898 $84.66
2009-07-15 19044 $88.78
2009-07-17 19270 $69.63
2009-07-25 20022 $86.03
2009-07-25 20037 $87.41
2009-07-29 20436 $84.66
2009-08-02 20852 $83.29
2009-08-04 21010 $71.01
2009-08-06 21171 $84.66
2009-08-10 21614 $194.03
2009-08-13 21893 $80.54
2009-08-14 21971 $66.88
2009-08-14 21940 $83.29
2009-08-17 22295 $86.03
2009-08-19 22478 $80.54
2009-08-21 22670 $86.03
2009-08-23 22873 $68.26
2009-08-25 23066 $81.91
2009-08-26 23177 $83.29
2009-09-01 23769 $83.29
2009-09-02 23847 $73.75
2009-09-07 24322 $84.66
2009-09-07 24385 $84.66
2009-09-08 24464 $86.03
2009-09-09 24606 $83.29
2009-09-12 24873 $73.75
2009-09-19 25600 $84.66
2009-09-22 25822 $84.66
2009-09-23 26020 $87.41
2009-09-26 26347 $79.16
2009-09-29 26622 $72.38
2009-10-09 27591 $84.66
2009-10-14 28085 $86.03
2009-10-15 28290 $84.66
2009-10-19 28532 $68.26
2009-10-21 28784 $84.66
2009-10-24 29074 $84.66
2009-10-25 29151 $69.63
2009-10-25 29146 $86.03
2009-10-26 29209 $79.16
2009-10-31 29697 $81.91
2009-11-03 29880 $90.17
2009-11-04 30035 $86.03
2009-11-08 30408 $88.78
2009-11-15 31013 $86.03
2009-11-18 31317 $84.66
2009-11-20 31410 $86.03
2009-11-22 31660 $86.03
2009-11-25 31908 $84.66
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2009-11-29 32232 $72.38
2009-12-01 32430 $81.91
2009-12-02 32574 $71.01
2009-12-11 33376 $84.66
2009-12-16 33793 $83.29
2009-12-19 34075 $79.16
2010-01-04 360 $86.42
2010-01-06 518 $85.05
2010-01-15 1318 $85.05
2010-01-17 1516 $87.79
2010-01-22 1980 $73.86
2010-01-24 2137 $82.30
2010-01-27 2445 $75.23
2010-02-04 3131 $86.42
2010-02-07 3346 $87.79
2010-02-21 4752 $87.79
2010-02-23 4931 $90.54
2010-03-03 5732 $86.42
2010-03-04 5831 $19.71
2010-03-06 5927 $90.54
2010-03-09 6232 $91.92
2010-03-10 6389 $85.05
2010-03-19 7290 $73.86
2010-03-27 8019 $86.42
2010-03-31 8446 $85.05
2010-04-09 9284 $77.98
2010-04-13 9630 $72.63
2010-04-13 9668 $86.62
2010-04-14 9719 $86.42
2010-04-25 10831 $87.79
2010-04-29 11205 $86.42
2010-05-02 11470 $79.36
2010-05-03 11541 $93.29
2010-05-16 12605 $80.92
2010-06-07 15089 $69.61
2010-06-08 15205 $83.01
2010-06-09 15265 $88.40
2010-06-10 15385 $77.70
2010-06-11 15561 $121.00
2010-06-11 15562 $121.00
2010-06-12 15450 $70.96
2010-06-20 17127 $70.96
2010-06-23 16652 $77.98
2010-06-26 16856 $86.42
2010-07-06 17800 $117.89
2010-07-08 18100 $85.05
2010-07-12 18468 $83.67
2010-07-22 19461 $91.92
2010-07-28 20066 $83.67
2010-07-30 20273 $72.49
2010-08-02 20548 $73.86
2010-08-06 20924 $54.36
2010-08-06 20921 $83.67
2010-08-07 21075 $72.49
2010-08-09 21256 $106.06
2010-08-13 21654 $86.42
2010-09-04 23759 $89.17
2010-09-05 23851 $86.42
2010-09-09 24258 $94.66
2010-09-10 24352 $71.11
2010-09-10 24403 $87.79
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2010-09-25 25724 $82.30
2010-09-27 25942 $52.30
2010-10-01 26314 $83.67
2010-10-03 26493 $86.42
2010-10-18 27862 $82.30
2010-11-04 29522 $85.05
2010-11-06 29632 $90.54
2010-11-07 29782 $735.00
2010-11-11 30120 $90.54
2010-11-20 30883 $73.86
2010-11-24 31236 $86.42
2010-11-26 31324 $86.42
2010-12-10 32496 $83.67
2010-12-10 32535 $86.42
2010-12-16 33016 $68.36
2010-12-30 34205 $77.98
2011-01-02 110 $88.46
2011-01-14 1315 $518.20
2011-01-20 1760 $297.32
2011-02-02 3053 $260.66
2011-02-17 4501 $80.51
2011-02-26 5371 $83.11
2011-03-04 6000 $133.00
2011-03-16 7114 $183.40
2011-03-22 7631 $86.82
2011-05-02 11881 $50.00
2011-05-08 12412 $400.28
2011-05-20 13580 $785.00
2011-05-22 13781 $93.68
2011-06-05 15234 $735.00
2011-06-15 16167 $130.00
2011-06-18 16545 $715.00
2011-07-04 18169 $77.08
2011-07-07 18508 $740.00
2011-07-08 18679 $159.00
2011-07-10 18905 $69.13
2011-07-23 20274 $575.00
2011-07-24 20311 $535.00
2011-07-28 20705 $268.30
2011-07-29 20860 $100.00
2011-07-29 20835 $555.00
2011-07-30 20901 $580.00
2011-07-31 21050 $565.00
2011-08-01 21141 $685.00
2011-08-03 21247 $695.00
2011-08-04 21384 $519.09
2011-08-05 21473 $735.00
2011-08-11 22170 $635.00
2011-08-18 22901 $665.00
2011-08-20 23113 $545.00
2011-08-21 23206 $100.00
2011-08-21 23129 $475.00
2011-08-21 23201 $645.00
2011-08-22 23283 $100.00
2011-08-23 23397 $150.00
2011-08-23 23472 $645.00
2011-08-25 23644 $545.00
2011-08-27 23874 $5.49
2011-08-28 23966 $565.00
2011-08-29 24033 $142.75
2011-08-30 24089 $88.46
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2011-08-30 24126 $725.00
2011-09-06 24789 $121.00
2011-09-06 24807 $765.00
2011-09-07 24909 $81.19
2011-09-08 24988 $99.03
2011-09-09 25043 $83.82
2011-09-10 25173 $84.07
2011-09-10 25170 $555.00
2011-09-11 25227 $67.90
2011-09-13 25470 $84.48
2011-09-14 25602 $92.99
2011-09-18 25927 $695.00
2011-09-20 26208 $100.00
2011-09-21 26243 $705.00
2011-09-25 26655 $80.51
2011-09-29 27036 $545.00
2011-10-01 27202 $705.00
2011-10-01 27209 $725.00
2011-10-02 27303 $38.90
2011-10-02 27228 $450.00
2011-10-03 27368 $329.66
2011-10-04 27510 $287.31
2011-10-06 27677 $119.00
2011-10-07 27743 $100.00
2011-10-09 27967 $775.00
2011-10-10 28088 $80.51
2011-10-10 28028 $555.00
2011-10-12 28254 $745.00
2011-10-13 28343 $74.21
2011-10-16 28672 $323.60
2011-10-17 28740 $121.00
2011-10-19 28887 $374.76
2011-10-20 28962 $75.00
2011-10-20 29022 $82.02
2011-10-21 29094 $69.13
2011-10-21 29049 $83.80
2011-10-21 29163 $100.00
2011-10-21 29109 $475.96
2011-10-22 29208 $560.00
2011-10-22 29236 $815.00
2011-10-22 29229 $835.00
2011-10-24 29340 $200.00
2011-10-25 29470 $200.00
2011-10-25 29524 $645.00
2011-10-26 29594 $100.00
2011-10-26 29554 $200.00
2011-10-26 29627 $585.00
2011-10-28 29765 $605.00
2011-11-01 30080 $635.00
2011-11-01 30115 $695.00
2011-11-02 30220 $200.00
2011-11-02 30205 $585.00
2011-11-03 30376 $100.00
2011-11-03 30305 $575.00
2011-11-04 30382 $705.00
2011-11-05 30532 $530.00
2011-11-05 30565 $725.00
2011-11-06 30642 $101.63
2011-11-06 30611 $121.40
2011-11-06 30622 $605.00
2011-11-07 30721 $108.35
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2011-11-07 30699 $193.43
2011-11-07 30752 $221.03
2011-11-07 30768 $535.00
2011-11-08 30864 $555.00
2011-11-08 30856 $630.00
2011-11-08 30679 $645.00
2011-11-08 30793 $665.00
2011-11-08 30840 $715.00
2011-11-09 30888 $715.00
2011-11-10 30948 $50.00
2011-11-10 31013 $535.00
2011-11-10 30984 $595.00
2011-11-10 30949 $645.00
2011-11-11 31071 $151.00
2011-11-12 31159 $375.00
2011-11-12 31149 $545.00
2011-11-12 31156 $755.00
2011-11-13 31284 $135.00
2011-11-14 31350 $535.00
2011-11-15 31498 $395.00
2011-11-17 31623 $545.00
2011-11-17 31675 $595.00
2011-11-18 31720 $39.55
2011-11-18 31793 $100.00
2011-11-18 31716 $625.00
2011-11-18 31696 $805.00
2011-11-18 31714 $805.00
2011-11-18 31742 $845.00
2011-11-19 31806 $85.86
2011-11-20 31892 $100.00
2011-11-20 31917 $725.00
2011-11-20 31901 $805.00
2011-11-21 32071 $221.03
2011-11-21 31978 $306.13
2011-11-21 32005 $545.00
2011-11-21 32015 $555.00
2011-11-21 31997 $575.00
2011-11-21 32049 $605.00
2011-11-21 32044 $745.00
2011-11-21 32014 $815.00
2011-11-22 32115 $555.00
2011-11-22 32108 $795.00
2011-11-23 32183 $181.93
2011-11-23 32180 $555.00
2011-11-24 32280 $116.60
2011-11-25 32379 $121.10
2011-11-26 32477 $100.00
2011-11-26 32536 $535.00
2011-11-27 32563 $81.52
2011-11-27 32591 $845.00
2011-11-28 32615 $180.50
2011-11-29 32788 $765.00
2011-11-29 32792 $805.00
2011-11-29 32757 $835.00
2011-12-01 32953 $540.00
2011-12-01 32859 $545.00
2011-12-01 32973 $615.00
2011-12-01 32940 $675.00
2011-12-02 33031 $68.44
2011-12-02 33001 $515.00
2011-12-02 33049 $595.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2011-12-02 33046 $615.00
2011-12-03 33143 $83.95
2011-12-03 33145 $85.00
2011-12-03 33098 $555.00
2011-12-04 33228 $248.82
2011-12-04 33267 $535.00
2011-12-04 33195 $755.00
2011-12-04 33155 $815.00
2011-12-05 33331 $87.09
2011-12-05 33315 $121.00
2011-12-05 33311 $200.00
2011-12-05 33346 $605.00
2011-12-05 33268 $1,390.00
2011-12-06 33405 $64.27
2011-12-06 33483 $72.70
2011-12-06 33427 $645.00
2011-12-07 33509 $100.00
2011-12-07 33512 $129.00
2011-12-07 33567 $555.00
2011-12-07 33520 $584.53
2011-12-07 33546 $605.00
2011-12-07 33548 $605.00
2011-12-08 33604 $323.15
2011-12-08 33605 $620.00
2011-12-09 33724 $150.00
2011-12-09 33691 $805.00
2011-12-09 33714 $815.00
2011-12-09 33710 $845.00
2011-12-10 33750 $150.00
2011-12-10 33801 $157.00
2011-12-10 33787 $364.18
2011-12-10 33785 $575.00
2011-12-10 33935 $635.00
2011-12-11 33897 $52.33
2011-12-11 33839 $70.23
2011-12-11 33823 $419.06
2011-12-12 33989 $352.36
2011-12-12 33948 $565.00
2011-12-12 33985 $565.00
2011-12-12 34024 $585.00
2011-12-12 33981 $700.00
2011-12-12 33947 $815.00
2011-12-13 34049 $287.00
2011-12-14 34147 $200.33
2011-12-14 34194 $575.00
2011-12-14 34174 $605.00
2011-12-15 35770 $10.40
2011-12-15 34672 $82.29
2011-12-15 34547 $87.64
2011-12-15 34558 $95.87
2011-12-15 34525 $107.40
2011-12-15 35774 $150.00
2011-12-15 34566 $595.00
2011-12-15 34421 $895.00
2011-12-15 34238 $905.00
2011-12-16 34416 $20.00
2011-12-16 34473 $92.44
2011-12-16 34316 $123.00
2011-12-16 34399 $269.69
2011-12-16 34289 $535.00
2011-12-16 34398 $565.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2011-12-16 34394 $835.00
2011-12-17 34365 $60.51
2011-12-17 34242 $68.03
2011-12-17 34361 $82.98
2011-12-17 34284 $83.11
2011-12-17 34379 $267.55
2011-12-17 34314 $419.76
2011-12-17 34376 $575.00
2011-12-17 34279 $665.00
2011-12-17 34378 $835.00
2011-12-18 34445 $87.64
2011-12-18 34339 $163.00
2011-12-18 34462 $765.00
2011-12-18 34509 $855.00
2011-12-18 34490 $875.00
2011-12-19 34628 $70.91
2011-12-19 34576 $100.00
2011-12-19 34626 $150.00
2011-12-19 34497 $555.00
2011-12-19 34513 $745.00
2011-12-19 34491 $805.00
2011-12-20 34769 $72.15
2011-12-20 34664 $78.60
2011-12-20 34741 $82.43
2011-12-20 34729 $99.03
2011-12-20 34680 $107.53
2011-12-20 34687 $115.64
2011-12-20 34749 $545.00
2011-12-20 34716 $575.00
2011-12-20 34762 $605.00
2011-12-20 34688 $825.00
2011-12-21 34789 $86.41
2011-12-21 34781 $88.33
2011-12-21 34826 $91.21
2011-12-21 34827 $150.00
2011-12-21 34842 $545.00
2011-12-21 34859 $555.00
2011-12-22 34886 $68.72
2011-12-22 34954 $69.71
2011-12-22 34946 $81.74
2011-12-22 34934 $85.17
2011-12-22 34900 $86.54
2011-12-22 34889 $100.00
2011-12-22 34870 $123.00
2011-12-22 34865 $150.00
2011-12-22 34921 $255.22
2011-12-22 34866 $545.00
2011-12-22 34941 $545.00
2011-12-22 34871 $555.00
2011-12-23 34973 $60.00
2011-12-23 34931 $97.20
2011-12-23 35018 $595.00
2011-12-23 35028 $845.00
2011-12-24 35040 $47.00
2011-12-24 35038 $150.00
2011-12-24 35131 $150.00
2011-12-24 35069 $575.00
2011-12-24 35050 $695.00
2011-12-25 35194 $50.00
2011-12-25 35202 $90.93
2011-12-25 35138 $150.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2011-12-25 35108 $545.00
2011-12-25 35465 $645.00
2011-12-25 35463 $775.00
2011-12-25 35160 $835.00
2011-12-26 35270 $392.81
2011-12-26 35224 $555.00
2011-12-26 35304 $565.00
2011-12-26 35308 $565.00
2011-12-26 35300 $695.00
2011-12-26 35212 $815.00
2011-12-26 35273 $835.00
2011-12-27 35417 $515.00
2011-12-27 35411 $545.00
2011-12-27 35331 $565.00
2011-12-28 35445 $96.15
2011-12-28 35407 $581.60
2011-12-29 35517 $20.00
2011-12-29 35626 $67.90
2011-12-29 35573 $100.00
2011-12-29 35566 $417.17
2011-12-29 35625 $805.00
2011-12-30 35762 $100.00
2011-12-30 35678 $150.00
2011-12-31 35718 $78.55
2011-12-31 35715 $81.60
2011-12-31 35710 $98.20
2011-12-31 35723 $121.00
2011-12-31 35688 $150.00
2011-12-31 35720 $334.07
2011-12-31 35724 $865.00
2012-01-01 114 $487.00
2012-01-01 33 $775.00
2012-01-01 10 $785.00
2012-01-01 27 $825.00
2012-01-02 159 $94.77
2012-01-02 125 $147.00
2012-01-02 184 $328.76
2012-01-02 108 $525.58
2012-01-02 105 $855.00
2012-01-02 173 $945.00
2012-01-03 261 $14.17
2012-01-03 210 $114.60
2012-01-03 207 $150.00
2012-01-03 252 $150.00
2012-01-03 226 $561.00
2012-01-03 231 $561.00
2012-01-03 244 $745.00
2012-01-04 338 $96.44
2012-01-04 277 $603.00
2012-01-04 334 $609.00
2012-01-04 352 $633.00
2012-01-05 425 $85.77
2012-01-05 459 $88.02
2012-01-05 413 $89.85
2012-01-05 407 $95.00
2012-01-05 442 $101.24
2012-01-05 423 $795.00
2012-01-06 554 $20.00
2012-01-06 530 $88.58
2012-01-06 576 $110.00
2012-01-06 517 $150.00



10 of 73
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2012-01-06 538 $280.00
2012-01-06 494 $545.00
2012-01-06 472 $595.00
2012-01-06 513 $747.00
2012-01-07 598 $70.54
2012-01-07 555 $113.58
2012-01-07 594 $225.00
2012-01-07 639 $657.00
2012-01-07 603 $857.00
2012-01-09 781 $44.63
2012-01-09 785 $100.00
2012-01-09 802 $523.00
2012-01-09 821 $549.00
2012-01-09 837 $757.00
2012-01-09 743 $917.00
2012-01-10 843 $150.00
2012-01-10 896 $469.42
2012-01-10 848 $585.00
2012-01-10 898 $597.00
2012-01-10 873 $603.52
2012-01-10 925 $681.00
2012-01-10 914 $745.00
2012-01-10 905 $805.00
2012-01-10 871 $809.00
2012-01-11 958 $125.86
2012-01-11 980 $150.00
2012-01-11 969 $280.00
2012-01-11 916 $535.00
2012-01-11 1016 $821.00
2012-01-12 1014 $88.44
2012-01-12 1015 $150.00
2012-01-12 1063 $200.00
2012-01-12 1036 $821.00
2012-01-12 1067 $1,021.00
2012-01-13 1145 $585.00
2012-01-13 1172 $585.00
2012-01-14 1259 $52.63
2012-01-14 1291 $88.16
2012-01-14 1166 $173.40
2012-01-14 1193 $521.00
2012-01-14 1164 $587.00
2012-01-14 1212 $603.00
2012-01-14 1218 $893.00
2012-01-14 1253 $1,083.00
2012-01-15 1368 $131.40
2012-01-15 1280 $150.00
2012-01-15 1307 $200.00
2012-01-15 1295 $795.00
2012-01-15 1303 $1,017.00
2012-01-16 1382 $91.82
2012-01-16 1392 $100.00
2012-01-16 1419 $138.60
2012-01-16 1447 $348.60
2012-01-16 1449 $609.00
2012-01-16 1432 $769.00
2012-01-16 1379 $1,025.00
2012-01-17 1530 $87.60
2012-01-17 1553 $100.00
2012-01-17 1550 $150.00
2012-01-17 1540 $162.44
2012-01-17 1509 $213.30
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-01-17 1562 $549.00
2012-01-17 1539 $645.00
2012-01-18 1640 $40.07
2012-01-18 1629 $150.00
2012-01-18 1637 $561.00
2012-01-18 1600 $645.00
2012-01-18 1588 $697.00
2012-01-18 1593 $843.00
2012-01-18 1634 $935.00
2012-01-19 1726 $100.00
2012-01-19 1711 $150.00
2012-01-19 1776 $609.00
2012-01-19 1667 $721.00
2012-01-19 1677 $845.00
2012-01-19 1738 $845.00
2012-01-19 1714 $1,045.00
2012-01-20 1814 $75.00
2012-01-20 1803 $124.20
2012-01-20 1819 $150.00
2012-01-20 1839 $161.40
2012-01-20 1782 $609.00
2012-01-20 1801 $723.00
2012-01-20 1772 $807.00
2012-01-20 1787 $881.00
2012-01-20 1861 $989.00
2012-01-21 1940 $66.74
2012-01-21 1943 $120.60
2012-01-21 1973 $549.00
2012-01-21 1927 $573.00
2012-01-21 1924 $585.00
2012-01-21 1904 $693.00
2012-01-21 1877 $757.00
2012-01-21 1989 $797.00
2012-01-21 1986 $809.00
2012-01-21 1874 $855.00
2012-01-22 1976 $10.00
2012-01-22 2000 $133.80
2012-01-22 2038 $150.00
2012-01-22 1966 $169.00
2012-01-22 1983 $248.10
2012-01-22 2051 $499.00
2012-01-22 2035 $573.00
2012-01-22 1981 $633.00
2012-01-23 2156 $150.00
2012-01-23 2128 $159.40
2012-01-23 2152 $234.07
2012-01-23 2158 $585.00
2012-01-23 2127 $621.00
2012-01-23 2132 $681.00
2012-01-23 2168 $685.00
2012-01-24 2249 $75.00
2012-01-24 2245 $82.07
2012-01-24 2279 $100.00
2012-01-24 2217 $142.20
2012-01-24 2214 $148.80
2012-01-24 2285 $821.00
2012-01-24 2200 $855.00
2012-01-24 2244 $869.00
2012-01-24 2253 $905.00
2012-01-24 2274 $905.00
2012-01-25 2337 $150.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-01-25 2366 $150.00
2012-01-25 2348 $649.00
2012-01-25 2317 $659.00
2012-01-25 2288 $831.00
2012-01-25 2373 $879.00
2012-01-26 2436 $30.32
2012-01-26 2447 $119.40
2012-01-26 2612 $120.60
2012-01-26 2417 $161.00
2012-01-26 2430 $673.58
2012-01-26 2378 $733.00
2012-01-26 2458 $867.00
2012-01-26 4175 $893.00
2012-01-26 2371 $1,059.00
2012-01-27 2583 $34.83
2012-01-27 2560 $85.49
2012-01-27 2501 $90.83
2012-01-27 2511 $280.00
2012-01-27 2517 $280.00
2012-01-27 2526 $378.43
2012-01-27 2592 $423.69
2012-01-27 2521 $494.36
2012-01-27 2598 $510.95
2012-01-27 2547 $549.00
2012-01-27 2589 $559.00
2012-01-27 2542 $597.00
2012-01-27 2510 $845.00
2012-01-28 2649 $82.49
2012-01-28 2587 $280.00
2012-01-28 2608 $597.00
2012-01-28 2670 $597.00
2012-01-28 2631 $621.00
2012-01-28 2635 $845.00
2012-01-29 2721 $83.24
2012-01-29 2710 $87.46
2012-01-29 2737 $200.00
2012-01-29 2736 $597.00
2012-01-29 2681 $645.00
2012-01-29 2690 $759.00
2012-01-29 2692 $819.00
2012-01-30 2773 $83.33
2012-01-30 2808 $84.79
2012-01-30 2839 $87.32
2012-01-30 2829 $89.57
2012-01-30 2832 $91.39
2012-01-30 2881 $100.00
2012-01-30 2838 $133.00
2012-01-30 2854 $200.00
2012-01-30 2855 $280.00
2012-01-30 2822 $597.00
2012-01-30 2884 $599.00
2012-01-30 2997 $747.00
2012-01-30 2874 $831.00
2012-01-30 2781 $845.00
2012-01-31 2929 $119.40
2012-01-31 2915 $150.00
2012-01-31 2949 $150.00
2012-01-31 2931 $178.60
2012-01-31 2899 $250.00
2012-01-31 2903 $549.00
2012-01-31 2942 $597.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-01-31 2947 $633.00
2012-01-31 2888 $771.00
2012-01-31 2897 $953.00
2012-02-01 2969 $86.33
2012-02-01 3025 $126.60
2012-02-01 3035 $150.00
2012-02-01 3036 $150.00
2012-02-01 3064 $771.00
2012-02-02 3174 $70.00
2012-02-02 3149 $86.05
2012-02-02 3124 $150.00
2012-02-02 3133 $200.00
2012-02-02 3089 $280.00
2012-02-02 3091 $280.00
2012-02-02 3161 $537.00
2012-02-02 3104 $585.00
2012-02-02 3119 $609.00
2012-02-02 3120 $661.00
2012-02-02 3087 $693.00
2012-02-02 3108 $697.00
2012-02-02 3070 $723.00
2012-02-02 3130 $809.00
2012-02-02 3132 $857.00
2012-02-02 3191 $965.00
2012-02-03 3295 $88.72
2012-02-03 3258 $150.00
2012-02-03 3184 $150.36
2012-02-03 3212 $280.00
2012-02-03 3230 $559.00
2012-02-03 3240 $593.00
2012-02-03 3208 $597.00
2012-02-03 3226 $645.00
2012-02-03 3215 $673.00
2012-02-03 3172 $843.00
2012-02-04 3274 $52.19
2012-02-04 3335 $84.93
2012-02-04 3354 $88.72
2012-02-04 3383 $90.55
2012-02-04 3366 $159.40
2012-02-04 3370 $302.26
2012-02-04 3268 $733.00
2012-02-04 3398 $905.00
2012-02-05 3456 $280.00
2012-02-05 3361 $549.00
2012-02-05 3445 $633.00
2012-02-05 3471 $645.00
2012-02-05 3455 $733.00
2012-02-05 3425 $833.00
2012-02-06 3560 $85.91
2012-02-06 3563 $87.18
2012-02-06 3508 $88.86
2012-02-06 3504 $89.57
2012-02-06 3540 $95.05
2012-02-06 3530 $96.00
2012-02-06 3579 $100.00
2012-02-06 3537 $108.60
2012-02-06 3538 $120.60
2012-02-06 3555 $150.00
2012-02-06 3597 $585.00
2012-02-06 3539 $669.00
2012-02-06 3542 $771.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-02-07 3660 $100.00
2012-02-07 3575 $280.00
2012-02-07 3652 $597.00
2012-02-07 3654 $597.00
2012-02-07 3653 $621.00
2012-02-07 3683 $747.00
2012-02-07 3697 $807.00
2012-02-07 3587 $857.00
2012-02-08 3715 $69.13
2012-02-08 3744 $93.92
2012-02-08 3713 $108.20
2012-02-08 3748 $150.00
2012-02-08 3777 $200.00
2012-02-08 3764 $280.00
2012-02-08 3781 $302.21
2012-02-08 3769 $537.46
2012-02-08 3730 $585.00
2012-02-08 3696 $621.00
2012-02-08 3793 $783.00
2012-02-08 3735 $905.00
2012-02-09 3816 $100.00
2012-02-09 3822 $135.00
2012-02-09 3786 $186.05
2012-02-09 3832 $347.17
2012-02-09 3778 $609.00
2012-02-09 3824 $649.00
2012-02-09 3861 $807.00
2012-02-09 3887 $807.00
2012-02-09 3768 $829.00
2012-02-09 3795 $833.00
2012-02-10 3961 $56.67
2012-02-10 3939 $90.27
2012-02-10 3914 $100.00
2012-02-10 3908 $129.00
2012-02-10 3918 $129.00
2012-02-10 3963 $153.00
2012-02-10 3940 $165.80
2012-02-10 3975 $178.20
2012-02-10 3929 $561.00
2012-02-10 3949 $615.00
2012-02-10 3945 $747.00
2012-02-10 3894 $845.00
2012-02-10 3857 $905.00
2012-02-10 3907 $977.00
2012-02-10 3904 $987.00
2012-02-11 4008 $76.30
2012-02-11 4007 $96.03
2012-02-11 4063 $294.60
2012-02-11 4019 $535.00
2012-02-11 3964 $561.00
2012-02-11 3992 $709.00
2012-02-11 4023 $782.00
2012-02-11 3955 $783.00
2012-02-11 3996 $797.00
2012-02-11 4062 $941.00
2012-02-12 4137 $90.41
2012-02-12 4138 $99.69
2012-02-12 4139 $100.00
2012-02-12 4066 $109.80
2012-02-12 4093 $150.00
2012-02-12 4103 $280.00



15 of 73

Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-02-12 4112 $387.86
2012-02-12 4055 $549.00
2012-02-12 4074 $707.71
2012-02-12 4117 $833.00
2012-02-13 4171 $87.03
2012-02-13 4225 $186.86
2012-02-13 4238 $280.00
2012-02-13 4241 $549.00
2012-02-13 4252 $549.00
2012-02-13 4270 $585.00
2012-02-13 4220 $603.00
2012-02-13 4201 $627.00
2012-02-13 4168 $633.00
2012-02-13 4193 $693.00
2012-02-13 4229 $747.00
2012-02-13 4191 $759.00
2012-02-13 4224 $893.00
2012-02-13 4248 $917.00
2012-02-14 5688 $17.54
2012-02-14 4269 $50.78
2012-02-14 4304 $85.00
2012-02-14 4294 $109.80
2012-02-14 4295 $109.80
2012-02-14 4318 $156.20
2012-02-14 4249 $573.00
2012-02-14 4334 $585.00
2012-02-14 4333 $597.00
2012-02-14 4350 $819.00
2012-02-14 4282 $953.00
2012-02-15 4376 $8.05
2012-02-15 4427 $8.05
2012-02-15 4443 $112.13
2012-02-15 4359 $129.00
2012-02-15 4437 $167.40
2012-02-15 4417 $435.44
2012-02-15 4351 $561.00
2012-02-15 4387 $561.00
2012-02-15 4379 $563.26
2012-02-15 4352 $573.00
2012-02-15 4456 $573.00
2012-02-15 4382 $645.00
2012-02-15 4386 $747.00
2012-02-15 4416 $797.00
2012-02-15 4373 $833.00
2012-02-15 4396 $857.00
2012-02-15 4341 $869.00
2012-02-15 4302 $893.00
2012-02-16 4468 $9.86
2012-02-16 4482 $71.24
2012-02-16 4567 $83.30
2012-02-16 4538 $100.00
2012-02-16 4563 $110.00
2012-02-16 4512 $118.20
2012-02-16 4513 $118.20
2012-02-16 4499 $143.40
2012-02-16 4514 $150.00
2012-02-16 4484 $155.00
2012-02-16 4527 $819.00
2012-02-16 4503 $833.00
2012-02-16 4431 $881.00
2012-02-17 4615 $64.11
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-02-17 4585 $85.49
2012-02-17 4569 $86.61
2012-02-17 4597 $86.75
2012-02-17 4589 $100.00
2012-02-17 4543 $123.18
2012-02-17 4558 $151.80
2012-02-17 4532 $199.80
2012-02-17 4572 $537.00
2012-02-17 4601 $585.00
2012-02-17 4631 $585.00
2012-02-17 4540 $597.00
2012-02-18 4756 $75.46
2012-02-18 4657 $85.00
2012-02-18 4743 $105.17
2012-02-18 4721 $119.40
2012-02-18 4696 $143.40
2012-02-18 4714 $603.52
2012-02-18 4679 $633.00
2012-02-18 4668 $747.00
2012-02-18 4726 $821.00
2012-02-18 4717 $919.54
2012-02-18 4738 $929.00
2012-02-19 4787 $89.28
2012-02-19 4775 $479.07
2012-02-19 4741 $506.90
2012-02-19 4828 $549.00
2012-02-19 4762 $609.00
2012-02-19 4780 $621.00
2012-02-19 4807 $759.00
2012-02-19 4782 $771.00
2012-02-19 4812 $777.00
2012-02-19 4806 $809.00
2012-02-19 4839 $831.00
2012-02-19 4823 $857.00
2012-02-20 4903 $11.25
2012-02-20 4919 $79.82
2012-02-20 4897 $100.00
2012-02-20 4921 $114.60
2012-02-20 4890 $150.00
2012-02-20 4942 $150.00
2012-02-20 4876 $160.00
2012-02-20 4912 $549.00
2012-02-20 4920 $807.00
2012-02-20 4877 $821.00
2012-02-21 4965 $105.17
2012-02-21 4952 $112.20
2012-02-21 4944 $131.40
2012-02-21 4970 $145.34
2012-02-21 4983 $289.80
2012-02-21 4999 $537.00
2012-02-21 4980 $771.00
2012-02-22 5099 $20.00
2012-02-22 5145 $43.47
2012-02-22 5062 $67.28
2012-02-22 5144 $81.08
2012-02-22 5078 $86.19
2012-02-22 5073 $87.03
2012-02-22 5122 $87.46
2012-02-22 5174 $100.00
2012-02-22 5100 $100.25
2012-02-22 5150 $113.80
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-02-22 5113 $200.00
2012-02-22 5103 $448.36
2012-02-22 5037 $537.00
2012-02-22 5173 $561.00
2012-02-22 5080 $573.00
2012-02-22 5076 $585.00
2012-02-22 5047 $599.00
2012-02-22 5075 $611.00
2012-02-22 5109 $645.00
2012-02-22 5146 $723.00
2012-02-22 5097 $747.00
2012-02-22 5179 $747.00
2012-02-22 5055 $809.00
2012-02-22 5155 $809.00
2012-02-22 5177 $819.00
2012-02-22 5165 $821.00
2012-02-22 5088 $857.00
2012-02-22 5123 $893.00
2012-02-22 5178 $905.00
2012-02-23 5274 $90.09
2012-02-23 5239 $100.00
2012-02-23 5206 $125.00
2012-02-23 5257 $125.00
2012-02-23 5232 $129.00
2012-02-23 5233 $129.00
2012-02-23 5217 $145.80
2012-02-23 5226 $150.00
2012-02-23 5143 $280.00
2012-02-23 5213 $537.00
2012-02-23 5215 $597.00
2012-02-23 5211 $621.00
2012-02-23 5243 $705.00
2012-02-23 5276 $733.00
2012-02-24 5336 $77.43
2012-02-24 5362 $86.19
2012-02-24 5294 $86.61
2012-02-24 5318 $86.61
2012-02-24 5256 $88.86
2012-02-24 5355 $91.25
2012-02-24 5337 $91.96
2012-02-24 5300 $93.22
2012-02-24 5317 $94.49
2012-02-24 5341 $112.20
2012-02-24 5340 $129.00
2012-02-24 5296 $160.05
2012-02-24 5370 $200.00
2012-02-24 5374 $219.30
2012-02-24 5347 $259.00
2012-02-24 5348 $280.00
2012-02-24 5375 $298.55
2012-02-24 5330 $391.40
2012-02-24 5378 $418.43
2012-02-24 5324 $573.00
2012-02-24 5349 $744.00
2012-02-24 5273 $885.00
2012-02-25 5457 $76.87
2012-02-25 5411 $83.02
2012-02-25 5384 $85.00
2012-02-25 5391 $100.00
2012-02-25 5405 $361.80
2012-02-25 5387 $749.12
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-02-25 5352 $759.00
2012-02-25 5426 $809.00
2012-02-25 5366 $821.00
2012-02-26 5556 $10.00
2012-02-26 5459 $75.04
2012-02-26 5540 $84.50
2012-02-26 5546 $89.57
2012-02-26 5519 $90.27
2012-02-26 5514 $91.25
2012-02-26 5485 $100.00
2012-02-26 5513 $100.00
2012-02-26 5470 $150.00
2012-02-26 5529 $150.00
2012-02-26 5545 $150.00
2012-02-26 5576 $160.00
2012-02-26 5475 $467.64
2012-02-26 5461 $485.44
2012-02-26 5506 $509.80
2012-02-26 5483 $535.00
2012-02-26 5471 $573.00
2012-02-26 5434 $597.00
2012-02-26 5481 $597.00
2012-02-26 5466 $645.00
2012-02-26 5560 $669.00
2012-02-26 5511 $763.35
2012-02-26 5482 $771.00
2012-02-26 5528 $797.00
2012-02-26 5517 $809.00
2012-02-26 5440 $819.00
2012-02-26 5468 $819.00
2012-02-26 5448 $821.00
2012-02-26 5498 $855.00
2012-02-26 5577 $857.00
2012-02-26 5484 $869.00
2012-02-26 5490 $889.00
2012-02-26 5530 $893.00
2012-02-26 5567 $929.00
2012-02-26 5491 $941.00
2012-02-26 5544 $941.00
2012-02-26 5465 $953.00
2012-02-27 5642 $141.68
2012-02-27 5661 $148.20
2012-02-27 5628 $280.00
2012-02-27 5615 $400.00
2012-02-27 5602 $582.75
2012-02-27 5596 $797.00
2012-02-27 5611 $821.00
2012-02-27 5665 $821.00
2012-02-28 5656 $31.64
2012-02-28 5715 $44.18
2012-02-28 5678 $86.60
2012-02-28 5736 $86.75
2012-02-28 5743 $89.14
2012-02-28 5702 $90.55
2012-02-28 5724 $92.52
2012-02-28 5657 $100.00
2012-02-28 5703 $100.00
2012-02-28 5749 $131.40
2012-02-28 5726 $138.60
2012-02-28 5652 $150.00
2012-02-28 5741 $356.23
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-02-28 5735 $436.32
2012-02-28 5662 $498.46
2012-02-28 5686 $549.00
2012-02-28 5768 $549.00
2012-02-28 5694 $561.00
2012-02-28 5697 $561.00
2012-02-28 5775 $597.00
2012-02-28 5695 $621.00
2012-02-28 5765 $621.00
2012-02-28 5792 $645.00
2012-02-28 5671 $647.00
2012-02-28 5679 $697.00
2012-02-28 5785 $781.00
2012-02-28 5737 $821.00
2012-02-28 5799 $831.00
2012-02-28 5802 $833.00
2012-02-28 5713 $843.00
2012-02-28 5759 $953.00
2012-02-28 5700 $965.00
2012-02-29 5820 $150.00
2012-02-29 5838 $150.00
2012-02-29 5891 $150.00
2012-02-29 5837 $166.60
2012-02-29 5844 $335.79
2012-02-29 5854 $423.40
2012-02-29 5840 $448.18
2012-02-29 5821 $537.00
2012-02-29 5843 $537.00
2012-02-29 5796 $549.00
2012-02-29 5882 $549.00
2012-02-29 5892 $549.00
2012-02-29 5815 $559.00
2012-02-29 5778 $571.00
2012-02-29 5779 $573.00
2012-02-29 5898 $573.00
2012-02-29 5908 $609.00
2012-02-29 5883 $621.00
2012-02-29 5766 $631.00
2012-02-29 5907 $719.00
2012-02-29 5783 $771.00
2012-02-29 5782 $795.00
2012-02-29 5780 $807.00
2012-02-29 5847 $821.00
2012-02-29 5831 $831.00
2012-02-29 5812 $833.00
2012-02-29 5905 $833.00
2012-02-29 5928 $833.00
2012-02-29 5893 $845.00
2012-02-29 5919 $845.00
2012-02-29 5836 $869.00
2012-02-29 5901 $869.00
2012-02-29 5767 $937.00
2012-02-29 5842 $953.00
2012-02-29 5791 $977.00
2012-02-29 5890 $977.00
2012-03-01 5963 $74.76
2012-03-01 5958 $83.52
2012-03-01 5967 $91.96
2012-03-01 5925 $159.00
2012-03-01 5950 $523.00
2012-03-01 5951 $609.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-01 5952 $609.00
2012-03-01 5980 $609.00
2012-03-01 5940 $633.00
2012-03-01 5942 $658.81
2012-03-01 5986 $905.00
2012-03-01 5996 $953.00
2012-03-01 6013 $1,018.00
2012-03-02 6067 $39.55
2012-03-02 6029 $87.32
2012-03-02 6071 $93.64
2012-03-02 6111 $100.00
2012-03-02 6052 $113.61
2012-03-02 6057 $119.40
2012-03-02 6056 $129.40
2012-03-02 6048 $131.40
2012-03-02 6025 $140.00
2012-03-02 6018 $150.00
2012-03-02 6002 $185.60
2012-03-02 6047 $209.27
2012-03-02 6070 $211.35
2012-03-02 6093 $573.00
2012-03-02 6049 $573.25
2012-03-02 6069 $609.00
2012-03-02 5998 $745.00
2012-03-02 6040 $747.00
2012-03-02 6037 $759.00
2012-03-02 6026 $765.00
2012-03-02 6089 $783.00
2012-03-02 6059 $821.00
2012-03-02 5993 $903.00
2012-03-02 6033 $934.00
2012-03-03 6149 $74.19
2012-03-03 6097 $81.93
2012-03-03 6429 $98.14
2012-03-03 6123 $131.40
2012-03-03 6084 $174.60
2012-03-03 6122 $209.27
2012-03-03 6082 $210.47
2012-03-03 6128 $218.87
2012-03-03 6127 $523.00
2012-03-03 6181 $573.00
2012-03-03 6182 $573.00
2012-03-03 6163 $585.00
2012-03-03 6191 $615.64
2012-03-03 6159 $670.00
2012-03-03 6130 $685.00
2012-03-03 6142 $733.00
2012-03-03 6107 $743.00
2012-03-03 6175 $747.00
2012-03-03 6192 $747.00
2012-03-03 6088 $771.00
2012-03-03 6145 $809.00
2012-03-03 6172 $817.00
2012-03-03 6147 $821.00
2012-03-03 6170 $821.00
2012-03-03 6083 $905.00
2012-03-04 6209 $78.55
2012-03-04 6273 $82.68
2012-03-04 6234 $85.00
2012-03-04 6261 $89.57
2012-03-04 6244 $100.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-04 6271 $121.80
2012-03-04 6285 $133.80
2012-03-04 6177 $146.53
2012-03-04 6294 $150.00
2012-03-04 6295 $150.00
2012-03-04 6249 $159.00
2012-03-04 6200 $460.95
2012-03-04 6184 $549.00
2012-03-04 6251 $549.00
2012-03-04 6287 $585.00
2012-03-04 6298 $585.00
2012-03-04 6187 $611.00
2012-03-04 6190 $633.00
2012-03-04 6240 $645.00
2012-03-04 6201 $669.00
2012-03-04 6278 $697.00
2012-03-04 6205 $747.00
2012-03-04 6219 $747.00
2012-03-04 6297 $747.00
2012-03-04 6176 $771.00
2012-03-04 6185 $790.15
2012-03-04 6282 $793.00
2012-03-04 6296 $795.00
2012-03-04 6266 $801.18
2012-03-04 6216 $845.00
2012-03-04 6264 $845.00
2012-03-04 6290 $869.00
2012-03-04 6286 $917.00
2012-03-05 6318 $35.95
2012-03-05 6409 $43.61
2012-03-05 6320 $63.30
2012-03-05 6288 $65.00
2012-03-05 6417 $84.79
2012-03-05 6358 $85.00
2012-03-05 6365 $87.03
2012-03-05 6346 $110.51
2012-03-05 6333 $139.40
2012-03-05 6423 $215.60
2012-03-05 6405 $304.20
2012-03-05 6272 $408.49
2012-03-05 6415 $543.00
2012-03-05 6375 $561.00
2012-03-05 6372 $573.00
2012-03-05 6425 $615.00
2012-03-05 6406 $633.00
2012-03-05 6302 $635.00
2012-03-05 6410 $645.00
2012-03-05 6334 $649.00
2012-03-05 6368 $657.00
2012-03-05 6395 $657.00
2012-03-05 6396 $669.00
2012-03-05 6428 $717.00
2012-03-05 6304 $723.00
2012-03-05 6407 $737.07
2012-03-05 6305 $771.00
2012-03-05 6281 $783.00
2012-03-05 6404 $821.00
2012-03-05 6332 $905.00
2012-03-05 6393 $905.00
2012-03-05 6414 $917.00
2012-03-05 6359 $941.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-05 6413 $1,049.00
2012-03-05 6348 $1,356.00
2012-03-06 6485 $87.18
2012-03-06 6530 $87.46
2012-03-06 6498 $91.11
2012-03-06 6455 $123.00
2012-03-06 6524 $150.00
2012-03-06 6531 $150.00
2012-03-06 6475 $190.00
2012-03-06 6539 $537.00
2012-03-06 6468 $547.00
2012-03-06 6494 $549.00
2012-03-06 6472 $561.00
2012-03-06 6471 $597.00
2012-03-06 6480 $621.00
2012-03-06 6431 $627.00
2012-03-06 6516 $807.00
2012-03-06 6521 $809.00
2012-03-06 6493 $821.00
2012-03-06 6419 $869.00
2012-03-06 6504 $881.00
2012-03-06 6510 $881.00
2012-03-06 6536 $893.00
2012-03-06 6447 $915.00
2012-03-07 6589 $10.00
2012-03-07 6645 $76.02
2012-03-07 6633 $82.49
2012-03-07 6581 $85.91
2012-03-07 6615 $86.33
2012-03-07 6552 $87.46
2012-03-07 6591 $92.52
2012-03-07 6594 $94.06
2012-03-07 6551 $150.00
2012-03-07 6567 $150.00
2012-03-07 6559 $161.80
2012-03-07 6578 $225.00
2012-03-07 6624 $361.80
2012-03-07 6543 $549.00
2012-03-07 6544 $549.00
2012-03-07 6613 $549.00
2012-03-07 6580 $573.00
2012-03-07 6608 $573.00
2012-03-07 6759 $573.00
2012-03-07 6503 $669.00
2012-03-07 6586 $718.28
2012-03-07 6605 $733.00
2012-03-07 6535 $783.00
2012-03-07 6616 $783.00
2012-03-07 6628 $795.00
2012-03-07 6603 $797.00
2012-03-07 6644 $809.00
2012-03-07 6518 $819.00
2012-03-07 6618 $819.00
2012-03-07 6573 $825.00
2012-03-07 6622 $831.00
2012-03-07 6533 $833.00
2012-03-07 6555 $833.00
2012-03-07 6571 $845.00
2012-03-07 6632 $869.00
2012-03-07 6519 $881.00
2012-03-07 6596 $953.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-08 6676 $76.87
2012-03-08 6681 $85.35
2012-03-08 6732 $86.75
2012-03-08 6641 $93.08
2012-03-08 6701 $100.00
2012-03-08 6709 $100.00
2012-03-08 6735 $120.60
2012-03-08 6716 $133.03
2012-03-08 6674 $200.00
2012-03-08 6695 $200.00
2012-03-08 6668 $212.41
2012-03-08 6679 $227.56
2012-03-08 6650 $523.00
2012-03-08 6706 $548.55
2012-03-08 6636 $585.00
2012-03-08 6686 $585.00
2012-03-08 6710 $597.00
2012-03-08 6687 $621.00
2012-03-08 6700 $633.00
2012-03-08 7394 $661.00
2012-03-08 6723 $747.00
2012-03-08 6758 $747.00
2012-03-08 6675 $783.00
2012-03-08 6666 $795.00
2012-03-08 6720 $807.00
2012-03-08 6757 $809.00
2012-03-08 6683 $821.00
2012-03-08 6667 $869.00
2012-03-08 6661 $893.00
2012-03-09 6765 $82.96
2012-03-09 6751 $85.21
2012-03-09 6775 $85.49
2012-03-09 6778 $88.44
2012-03-09 6862 $89.28
2012-03-09 6846 $89.71
2012-03-09 6813 $91.39
2012-03-09 6807 $94.20
2012-03-09 6795 $145.80
2012-03-09 6822 $190.04
2012-03-09 6865 $483.64
2012-03-09 6801 $549.00
2012-03-09 6789 $573.00
2012-03-09 6843 $597.00
2012-03-09 6746 $681.00
2012-03-09 6856 $709.00
2012-03-09 6836 $717.55
2012-03-09 6773 $733.00
2012-03-09 6819 $733.00
2012-03-09 6817 $753.00
2012-03-09 6767 $783.00
2012-03-09 6794 $783.00
2012-03-09 6816 $809.00
2012-03-09 6770 $819.00
2012-03-09 6810 $819.00
2012-03-09 6803 $843.00
2012-03-09 6838 $869.00
2012-03-09 6834 $961.00
2012-03-09 6788 $965.00
2012-03-10 6920 $20.00
2012-03-10 6883 $48.00
2012-03-10 6930 $50.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-10 6941 $81.97
2012-03-10 6868 $83.52
2012-03-10 6850 $88.30
2012-03-10 6828 $124.20
2012-03-10 6947 $136.20
2012-03-10 6878 $150.00
2012-03-10 6897 $167.94
2012-03-10 6893 $200.00
2012-03-10 6841 $549.00
2012-03-10 6905 $561.00
2012-03-10 6872 $585.00
2012-03-10 6830 $597.00
2012-03-10 6910 $621.00
2012-03-10 6955 $771.00
2012-03-10 6879 $783.00
2012-03-10 6954 $821.00
2012-03-10 6919 $833.00
2012-03-10 6922 $833.00
2012-03-10 6877 $855.00
2012-03-10 6888 $869.00
2012-03-10 6859 $891.00
2012-03-10 6912 $893.00
2012-03-10 6938 $989.00
2012-03-11 6986 $53.70
2012-03-11 7052 $66.22
2012-03-11 7002 $71.80
2012-03-11 7064 $74.05
2012-03-11 7021 $75.88
2012-03-11 6999 $91.53
2012-03-11 7038 $124.20
2012-03-11 7031 $150.00
2012-03-11 7037 $492.77
2012-03-11 7058 $537.00
2012-03-11 6957 $561.00
2012-03-11 7066 $609.00
2012-03-11 6951 $621.53
2012-03-11 6979 $633.00
2012-03-11 6980 $633.00
2012-03-11 7005 $645.00
2012-03-11 6926 $747.00
2012-03-11 7011 $795.00
2012-03-11 7008 $809.00
2012-03-11 7040 $809.00
2012-03-11 7048 $821.00
2012-03-11 6969 $833.00
2012-03-11 6964 $867.00
2012-03-11 7025 $2,440.67
2012-03-12 7089 $82.68
2012-03-12 7062 $83.38
2012-03-12 7150 $117.00
2012-03-12 7120 $121.80
2012-03-12 7027 $139.00
2012-03-12 7047 $242.20
2012-03-12 7088 $280.00
2012-03-12 7122 $280.00
2012-03-12 7148 $537.00
2012-03-12 7112 $621.00
2012-03-12 7113 $645.00
2012-03-12 7143 $645.00
2012-03-12 7055 $657.00
2012-03-12 7046 $721.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-12 7078 $747.00
2012-03-12 7035 $759.00
2012-03-12 7075 $771.00
2012-03-12 7121 $833.00
2012-03-12 7081 $843.00
2012-03-12 7026 $845.00
2012-03-12 7254 $855.00
2012-03-12 7049 $869.00
2012-03-12 7057 $869.00
2012-03-12 7126 $941.00
2012-03-13 7221 $83.52
2012-03-13 7864 $84.08
2012-03-13 7197 $88.02
2012-03-13 7189 $89.57
2012-03-13 7133 $150.00
2012-03-13 7202 $150.00
2012-03-13 7251 $280.00
2012-03-13 7289 $280.00
2012-03-13 7136 $549.00
2012-03-13 7164 $549.00
2012-03-13 7160 $561.00
2012-03-13 7124 $609.00
2012-03-13 7203 $645.00
2012-03-13 7186 $669.00
2012-03-13 7225 $685.00
2012-03-13 7142 $711.00
2012-03-13 7171 $759.00
2012-03-13 7173 $809.00
2012-03-13 7188 $821.00
2012-03-13 7212 $855.00
2012-03-13 7206 $881.00
2012-03-13 7168 $893.00
2012-03-13 7180 $893.00
2012-03-13 7176 $965.00
2012-03-14 7393 $19.99
2012-03-14 7246 $60.00
2012-03-14 7378 $70.82
2012-03-14 7337 $79.40
2012-03-14 7349 $81.97
2012-03-14 7380 $83.66
2012-03-14 7322 $88.72
2012-03-14 7362 $88.86
2012-03-14 7358 $89.71
2012-03-14 7346 $91.11
2012-03-14 7310 $100.00
2012-03-14 7398 $123.04
2012-03-14 7297 $129.00
2012-03-14 7271 $200.00
2012-03-14 7259 $280.00
2012-03-14 7269 $413.46
2012-03-14 7338 $484.51
2012-03-14 7367 $511.00
2012-03-14 7279 $561.00
2012-03-14 7311 $585.00
2012-03-14 7245 $609.00
2012-03-14 7323 $609.00
2012-03-14 7389 $621.00
2012-03-14 7387 $639.00
2012-03-14 7258 $671.00
2012-03-14 7354 $747.00
2012-03-14 7353 $771.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-14 7286 $795.00
2012-03-14 7345 $797.00
2012-03-14 7318 $809.00
2012-03-14 7391 $809.00
2012-03-14 7339 $869.00
2012-03-14 7295 $941.00
2012-03-14 7316 $977.00
2012-03-14 7340 $1,018.00
2012-03-15 7426 $50.00
2012-03-15 7376 $69.13
2012-03-15 7456 $85.49
2012-03-15 7408 $88.86
2012-03-15 7364 $89.71
2012-03-15 7418 $90.83
2012-03-15 7421 $100.00
2012-03-15 7463 $103.77
2012-03-15 7433 $129.00
2012-03-15 7383 $178.20
2012-03-15 7443 $225.16
2012-03-15 7451 $487.00
2012-03-15 7490 $537.00
2012-03-15 7365 $573.00
2012-03-15 7414 $573.00
2012-03-15 7432 $573.00
2012-03-15 7410 $585.00
2012-03-15 7448 $585.00
2012-03-15 8525 $597.00
2012-03-15 7497 $685.00
2012-03-15 7420 $747.00
2012-03-15 7423 $757.00
2012-03-15 7403 $783.00
2012-03-15 7459 $797.00
2012-03-15 7477 $819.00
2012-03-15 7487 $905.00
2012-03-15 7413 $917.00
2012-03-16 7538 $71.66
2012-03-16 7464 $80.10
2012-03-16 7484 $88.72
2012-03-16 7524 $89.14
2012-03-16 7479 $92.94
2012-03-16 7502 $100.00
2012-03-16 7543 $100.00
2012-03-16 7507 $150.00
2012-03-16 7583 $150.00
2012-03-16 7585 $537.00
2012-03-16 7509 $561.00
2012-03-16 7533 $561.00
2012-03-16 7495 $585.00
2012-03-16 7540 $585.00
2012-03-16 7568 $697.00
2012-03-16 7516 $721.00
2012-03-16 7581 $771.00
2012-03-16 7511 $797.00
2012-03-16 7491 $833.00
2012-03-16 7531 $1,025.00
2012-03-17 7635 $69.84
2012-03-17 7623 $151.80
2012-03-17 7637 $185.40
2012-03-17 7634 $353.52
2012-03-17 7610 $531.40
2012-03-17 7596 $537.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-17 7567 $573.00
2012-03-17 7566 $585.00
2012-03-17 7621 $585.00
2012-03-17 7650 $633.00
2012-03-17 7611 $661.00
2012-03-17 7625 $669.00
2012-03-17 7655 $709.00
2012-03-17 7656 $709.00
2012-03-17 7629 $722.00
2012-03-17 7670 $733.00
2012-03-17 7612 $745.00
2012-03-17 7618 $759.00
2012-03-17 7607 $793.00
2012-03-17 7597 $821.00
2012-03-17 7662 $831.00
2012-03-17 7642 $913.00
2012-03-18 7697 $76.30
2012-03-18 7667 $85.00
2012-03-18 7685 $85.00
2012-03-18 7715 $85.00
2012-03-18 7686 $94.21
2012-03-18 7898 $428.43
2012-03-18 7692 $549.00
2012-03-18 7727 $573.00
2012-03-18 7699 $597.00
2012-03-18 7738 $597.00
2012-03-18 7669 $681.00
2012-03-18 7711 $733.00
2012-03-18 7659 $795.00
2012-03-18 7681 $795.00
2012-03-18 7687 $821.00
2012-03-18 7660 $855.00
2012-03-18 7640 $857.00
2012-03-18 7895 $857.00
2012-03-18 7706 $879.00
2012-03-18 7693 $881.00
2012-03-18 7723 $881.00
2012-03-18 7645 $917.00
2012-03-18 7672 $977.00
2012-03-19 7793 $81.97
2012-03-19 7802 $82.25
2012-03-19 7736 $89.10
2012-03-19 7838 $89.85
2012-03-19 7836 $100.00
2012-03-19 7827 $104.10
2012-03-19 7776 $127.40
2012-03-19 7810 $141.00
2012-03-19 7817 $149.51
2012-03-19 7830 $158.25
2012-03-19 7843 $202.60
2012-03-19 7821 $500.00
2012-03-19 7762 $548.55
2012-03-19 7809 $708.00
2012-03-19 7719 $709.00
2012-03-19 7851 $809.00
2012-03-19 7844 $833.00
2012-03-19 7861 $898.00
2012-03-19 7750 $905.00
2012-03-19 7774 $905.00
2012-03-19 7791 $932.00
2012-03-20 7909 $71.95
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-20 7953 $72.65
2012-03-20 7989 $85.00
2012-03-20 7855 $85.49
2012-03-20 7929 $88.86
2012-03-20 7996 $133.80
2012-03-20 7919 $150.00
2012-03-20 7853 $195.40
2012-03-20 7871 $280.00
2012-03-20 7965 $419.40
2012-03-20 7908 $428.06
2012-03-20 8061 $537.00
2012-03-20 7925 $549.00
2012-03-20 7879 $573.00
2012-03-20 7976 $573.00
2012-03-20 7912 $591.00
2012-03-20 7914 $591.00
2012-03-20 7934 $621.00
2012-03-20 7957 $621.00
2012-03-20 7947 $693.00
2012-03-20 7906 $771.00
2012-03-20 7889 $797.00
2012-03-20 7860 $819.00
2012-03-20 7891 $857.00
2012-03-21 7973 $83.94
2012-03-21 8012 $90.27
2012-03-21 7981 $91.53
2012-03-21 7984 $94.35
2012-03-21 7980 $549.00
2012-03-21 8093 $549.00
2012-03-21 8048 $573.00
2012-03-21 8010 $574.27
2012-03-21 8040 $621.00
2012-03-21 8014 $669.00
2012-03-21 7992 $747.00
2012-03-21 8098 $783.00
2012-03-21 8108 $896.00
2012-03-21 8085 $929.00
2012-03-22 8198 $29.24
2012-03-22 8140 $74.76
2012-03-22 8159 $75.18
2012-03-22 8114 $78.69
2012-03-22 8192 $82.25
2012-03-22 8133 $82.91
2012-03-22 8165 $84.46
2012-03-22 8149 $85.00
2012-03-22 8205 $85.00
2012-03-22 8185 $95.89
2012-03-22 8124 $144.20
2012-03-22 8102 $150.00
2012-03-22 8148 $161.80
2012-03-22 8127 $200.00
2012-03-22 8106 $280.00
2012-03-22 8080 $549.00
2012-03-22 8081 $549.00
2012-03-22 8193 $549.00
2012-03-22 8182 $573.00
2012-03-22 8101 $601.89
2012-03-22 8072 $622.67
2012-03-22 8155 $645.00
2012-03-22 8158 $645.00
2012-03-22 8130 $647.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-22 8121 $693.00
2012-03-22 8177 $705.00
2012-03-22 8088 $759.00
2012-03-22 8126 $793.00
2012-03-22 8143 $809.00
2012-03-22 8156 $833.00
2012-03-22 8168 $845.00
2012-03-22 8153 $857.00
2012-03-22 8071 $893.00
2012-03-22 8144 $917.00
2012-03-23 8217 $76.73
2012-03-23 8203 $84.64
2012-03-23 8226 $87.18
2012-03-23 8190 $89.94
2012-03-23 8258 $120.60
2012-03-23 8231 $139.30
2012-03-23 8211 $150.00
2012-03-23 8233 $150.00
2012-03-23 8268 $190.00
2012-03-23 8274 $208.58
2012-03-23 8309 $510.95
2012-03-23 8210 $537.00
2012-03-23 8213 $561.00
2012-03-23 8216 $561.00
2012-03-23 8304 $561.00
2012-03-23 8189 $585.00
2012-03-23 8275 $591.00
2012-03-23 8280 $673.00
2012-03-23 8250 $747.00
2012-03-23 8273 $797.00
2012-03-23 8262 $807.00
2012-03-23 8305 $807.00
2012-03-23 8225 $809.00
2012-03-23 8218 $821.00
2012-03-23 8278 $821.00
2012-03-23 8295 $821.00
2012-03-23 8314 $821.00
2012-03-23 8227 $831.00
2012-03-23 8222 $833.00
2012-03-23 8260 $845.00
2012-03-23 8209 $867.00
2012-03-23 8253 $941.00
2012-03-23 8242 $973.00
2012-03-23 8299 $977.00
2012-03-23 8263 $997.00
2012-03-23 8240 $1,001.00
2012-03-23 8196 $1,049.00
2012-03-24 8324 $69.98
2012-03-24 8336 $80.10
2012-03-24 8342 $86.89
2012-03-24 8395 $87.60
2012-03-24 8294 $88.16
2012-03-24 8349 $88.86
2012-03-24 8410 $91.11
2012-03-24 8339 $125.00
2012-03-24 8284 $150.00
2012-03-24 8374 $150.00
2012-03-24 8373 $163.80
2012-03-24 8384 $537.00
2012-03-24 8286 $561.00
2012-03-24 8417 $561.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-24 8422 $573.00
2012-03-24 8393 $585.00
2012-03-24 8381 $621.00
2012-03-24 8288 $633.00
2012-03-24 8330 $708.00
2012-03-24 8317 $717.00
2012-03-24 8311 $757.00
2012-03-24 8385 $783.00
2012-03-24 8302 $807.00
2012-03-24 8350 $831.00
2012-03-24 8322 $833.00
2012-03-24 8392 $877.00
2012-03-24 8307 $881.00
2012-03-24 8329 $881.00
2012-03-24 8353 $927.00
2012-03-25 8397 $69.13
2012-03-25 8448 $76.73
2012-03-25 8415 $86.75
2012-03-25 8505 $98.99
2012-03-25 8478 $103.06
2012-03-25 8470 $150.00
2012-03-25 8812 $150.00
2012-03-25 8388 $436.60
2012-03-25 8498 $470.52
2012-03-25 8444 $499.00
2012-03-25 8473 $537.00
2012-03-25 8416 $549.00
2012-03-25 8405 $561.00
2012-03-25 8445 $585.00
2012-03-25 8507 $609.00
2012-03-25 8431 $621.00
2012-03-25 8449 $633.00
2012-03-25 8452 $649.00
2012-03-25 8423 $669.00
2012-03-25 8454 $709.00
2012-03-25 8486 $737.00
2012-03-25 8493 $771.00
2012-03-25 8407 $783.00
2012-03-25 8412 $821.00
2012-03-25 8442 $831.00
2012-03-25 8403 $833.00
2012-03-25 8474 $833.00
2012-03-25 8376 $845.00
2012-03-25 8370 $857.00
2012-03-25 8481 $869.00
2012-03-25 8491 $886.00
2012-03-25 8441 $977.00
2012-03-26 8600 $20.00
2012-03-26 8629 $37.55
2012-03-26 8562 $81.97
2012-03-26 8536 $87.60
2012-03-26 8546 $89.71
2012-03-26 8543 $91.39
2012-03-26 8560 $91.96
2012-03-26 8555 $100.00
2012-03-26 8561 $100.00
2012-03-26 8615 $100.00
2012-03-26 8567 $109.80
2012-03-26 8568 $109.80
2012-03-26 8643 $119.23
2012-03-26 8593 $138.60
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-26 8585 $200.00
2012-03-26 8553 $280.00
2012-03-26 8603 $537.00
2012-03-26 8582 $543.00
2012-03-26 8590 $573.00
2012-03-26 8499 $585.00
2012-03-26 8627 $597.00
2012-03-26 8597 $602.46
2012-03-26 8487 $645.62
2012-03-26 8528 $833.00
2012-03-26 8596 $843.00
2012-03-27 8610 $72.65
2012-03-27 8702 $82.25
2012-03-27 8666 $90.13
2012-03-27 8710 $97.16
2012-03-27 8620 $104.64
2012-03-27 8680 $168.20
2012-03-27 8611 $200.00
2012-03-27 8650 $395.60
2012-03-27 8674 $514.73
2012-03-27 8675 $561.00
2012-03-27 8656 $573.00
2012-03-27 8687 $573.00
2012-03-27 8709 $573.00
2012-03-27 8632 $585.00
2012-03-27 8734 $585.00
2012-03-27 8647 $597.00
2012-03-27 8688 $669.00
2012-03-27 8681 $682.00
2012-03-27 8695 $783.00
2012-03-27 8682 $807.00
2012-03-27 8727 $845.00
2012-03-27 8663 $869.00
2012-03-27 8694 $949.00
2012-03-28 8849 $8.66
2012-03-28 8797 $76.02
2012-03-28 8806 $90.13
2012-03-28 8829 $125.00
2012-03-28 8746 $280.00
2012-03-28 8842 $280.00
2012-03-28 8721 $537.00
2012-03-28 8781 $537.00
2012-03-28 8837 $585.00
2012-03-28 8795 $597.00
2012-03-28 8753 $753.00
2012-03-28 8760 $795.00
2012-03-28 8816 $821.00
2012-03-28 8823 $821.00
2012-03-28 8815 $893.00
2012-03-29 8872 $82.68
2012-03-29 8868 $150.00
2012-03-29 8838 $227.70
2012-03-29 8856 $280.00
2012-03-29 8857 $380.65
2012-03-29 8907 $549.00
2012-03-29 8836 $585.00
2012-03-29 8859 $585.00
2012-03-29 8917 $597.00
2012-03-29 8896 $609.00
2012-03-29 8813 $621.00
2012-03-29 8904 $647.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-03-29 8911 $648.00
2012-03-29 8871 $705.00
2012-03-29 8820 $708.00
2012-03-29 8858 $771.00
2012-03-29 8861 $777.00
2012-03-29 8909 $821.00
2012-03-29 8885 $831.00
2012-03-29 8922 $855.00
2012-03-29 8925 $855.00
2012-03-29 8819 $869.00
2012-03-29 8930 $881.00
2012-03-29 9228 $917.00
2012-03-29 8876 $973.00
2012-03-30 9037 $28.90
2012-03-30 8973 $80.10
2012-03-30 9004 $148.20
2012-03-30 8964 $178.60
2012-03-30 8978 $244.60
2012-03-30 8971 $298.34
2012-03-30 9014 $561.00
2012-03-30 8983 $573.00
2012-03-30 8970 $587.00
2012-03-30 8969 $633.00
2012-03-30 8974 $645.00
2012-03-30 8947 $707.00
2012-03-30 8995 $708.00
2012-03-30 8980 $759.00
2012-03-30 9020 $771.00
2012-03-30 8998 $809.00
2012-03-30 8946 $821.00
2012-03-30 8965 $843.00
2012-03-30 8942 $845.00
2012-03-30 9010 $857.00
2012-03-30 8987 $982.00
2012-03-31 9048 $89.99
2012-03-31 9070 $95.89
2012-03-31 9059 $100.00
2012-03-31 9114 $100.00
2012-03-31 9069 $103.10
2012-03-31 9100 $104.03
2012-03-31 9054 $107.40
2012-03-31 9029 $150.00
2012-03-31 9075 $523.00
2012-03-31 9087 $573.00
2012-03-31 9008 $601.82
2012-03-31 9104 $621.00
2012-03-31 9096 $819.00
2012-03-31 9088 $845.00
2012-03-31 8997 $869.00
2012-04-01 9151 $77.29
2012-04-01 9138 $86.33
2012-04-01 9139 $96.45
2012-04-01 9193 $100.00
2012-04-01 9358 $107.40
2012-04-01 9176 $125.00
2012-04-01 9119 $150.00
2012-04-01 9178 $413.46
2012-04-01 9201 $573.00
2012-04-01 9150 $585.00
2012-04-01 9197 $597.00
2012-04-01 9209 $645.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-04-01 9147 $649.00
2012-04-01 9208 $747.00
2012-04-01 9157 $769.00
2012-04-01 9182 $771.00
2012-04-01 9223 $807.00
2012-04-01 9453 $809.00
2012-04-01 9160 $843.00
2012-04-01 9177 $869.00
2012-04-01 9165 $965.00
2012-04-02 9232 $75.46
2012-04-02 9214 $84.22
2012-04-02 9272 $100.00
2012-04-02 9313 $119.40
2012-04-02 9343 $120.60
2012-04-02 9292 $140.00
2012-04-02 9275 $150.00
2012-04-02 9287 $150.00
2012-04-02 9331 $150.00
2012-04-02 9872 $150.00
2012-04-02 9266 $178.20
2012-04-02 9246 $280.00
2012-04-02 9240 $537.00
2012-04-02 9300 $537.00
2012-04-02 9242 $549.00
2012-04-02 9252 $561.00
2012-04-02 9271 $573.00
2012-04-02 9229 $585.00
2012-04-02 9311 $585.00
2012-04-02 9344 $603.00
2012-04-02 9336 $631.00
2012-04-02 9285 $645.00
2012-04-02 9212 $657.00
2012-04-02 9286 $709.00
2012-04-02 9288 $733.00
2012-04-02 9337 $781.00
2012-04-02 9262 $783.00
2012-04-02 9265 $795.00
2012-04-02 9301 $809.00
2012-04-02 9293 $821.00
2012-04-02 10960 $872.00
2012-04-02 9195 $905.00
2012-04-02 9268 $905.00
2012-04-02 9243 $917.00
2012-04-02 9289 $917.00
2012-04-02 9291 $1,061.00
2012-04-03 9450 $82.68
2012-04-03 9460 $82.68
2012-04-03 9426 $131.40
2012-04-03 9425 $150.00
2012-04-03 9370 $176.20
2012-04-03 9396 $432.39
2012-04-03 9368 $537.00
2012-04-03 9318 $549.00
2012-04-03 9351 $549.00
2012-04-03 9406 $549.00
2012-04-03 9428 $549.00
2012-04-03 9385 $561.00
2012-04-03 9433 $561.00
2012-04-03 9946 $585.00
2012-04-03 9320 $621.00
2012-04-03 9326 $621.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-04-03 9391 $621.00
2012-04-03 9408 $669.00
2012-04-03 9361 $721.00
2012-04-03 9329 $783.00
2012-04-03 9334 $783.00
2012-04-03 9380 $783.00
2012-04-03 9390 $797.00
2012-04-03 9449 $807.00
2012-04-03 9439 $809.00
2012-04-03 9459 $819.00
2012-04-03 9371 $833.00
2012-04-03 9404 $857.00
2012-04-03 9947 $857.00
2012-04-03 9387 $869.00
2012-04-03 9448 $869.00
2012-04-03 9422 $953.00
2012-04-03 9467 $1,025.00
2012-04-03 9310 $1,073.00
2012-04-04 9458 $53.44
2012-04-04 9495 $69.41
2012-04-04 9488 $91.67
2012-04-04 9480 $100.00
2012-04-04 9535 $113.83
2012-04-04 9481 $159.40
2012-04-04 9516 $202.25
2012-04-04 9536 $549.00
2012-04-04 9526 $585.00
2012-04-04 9502 $597.00
2012-04-04 9543 $609.00
2012-04-04 9463 $635.00
2012-04-04 9553 $672.00
2012-04-04 9476 $684.00
2012-04-04 9492 $807.00
2012-04-04 9500 $833.00
2012-04-04 9524 $833.00
2012-04-04 9568 $833.00
2012-04-04 9537 $859.00
2012-04-04 9470 $895.00
2012-04-04 9499 $905.00
2012-04-05 9619 $18.53
2012-04-05 9665 $56.67
2012-04-05 9652 $60.00
2012-04-05 9636 $62.30
2012-04-05 9600 $100.00
2012-04-05 9607 $118.20
2012-04-05 9608 $121.80
2012-04-05 9609 $150.00
2012-04-05 9589 $200.00
2012-04-05 9586 $537.00
2012-04-05 9660 $549.00
2012-04-05 9547 $561.00
2012-04-05 9561 $597.00
2012-04-05 9570 $609.00
2012-04-05 9630 $721.00
2012-04-05 9606 $733.00
2012-04-05 9579 $771.00
2012-04-05 9641 $771.00
2012-04-05 9541 $795.00
2012-04-05 9661 $795.00
2012-04-05 9592 $797.00
2012-04-05 9562 $807.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-04-05 9627 $813.00
2012-04-05 9571 $819.00
2012-04-05 9525 $821.00
2012-04-05 9610 $881.00
2012-04-05 9580 $893.00
2012-04-05 9613 $910.00
2012-04-06 9644 $18.42
2012-04-06 9728 $63.00
2012-04-06 9769 $74.05
2012-04-06 9753 $86.89
2012-04-06 9777 $119.40
2012-04-06 9646 $124.59
2012-04-06 9668 $563.52
2012-04-06 9745 $573.00
2012-04-06 9737 $597.00
2012-04-06 9678 $599.00
2012-04-06 9731 $609.00
2012-04-06 9732 $609.00
2012-04-06 9719 $697.00
2012-04-06 9747 $697.00
2012-04-06 9694 $758.00
2012-04-06 9761 $771.00
2012-04-06 9770 $783.00
2012-04-06 9717 $797.00
2012-04-06 9729 $807.00
2012-04-06 9723 $845.00
2012-04-06 9751 $893.00
2012-04-06 9757 $893.00
2012-04-06 9698 $939.00
2012-04-07 9784 $46.14
2012-04-07 9797 $76.87
2012-04-07 9790 $88.16
2012-04-07 9778 $150.00
2012-04-07 9800 $150.00
2012-04-07 9785 $375.75
2012-04-07 9783 $453.85
2012-04-07 9782 $549.00
2012-04-07 9786 $549.00
2012-04-07 9764 $561.00
2012-04-07 9793 $597.00
2012-04-07 9828 $633.00
2012-04-07 9854 $771.00
2012-04-07 9802 $833.00
2012-04-07 9820 $833.00
2012-04-07 9860 $833.00
2012-04-07 9829 $857.00
2012-04-07 9772 $889.00
2012-04-07 9855 $917.00
2012-04-07 9763 $951.00
2012-04-07 9807 $1,015.00
2012-04-08 9922 $73.49
2012-04-08 9870 $85.00
2012-04-08 9883 $85.00
2012-04-08 9907 $85.00
2012-04-08 9874 $86.89
2012-04-08 9900 $89.57
2012-04-08 9897 $119.40
2012-04-08 9925 $150.00
2012-04-08 9859 $173.40
2012-04-08 9882 $537.00
2012-04-08 9903 $573.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-04-08 9943 $609.00
2012-04-08 9904 $821.00
2012-04-08 9890 $893.00
2012-04-08 9850 $917.00
2012-04-08 9912 $917.00
2012-04-08 9926 $941.00
2012-04-09 10042 $44.18
2012-04-09 10001 $81.08
2012-04-09 10018 $89.00
2012-04-09 10059 $89.99
2012-04-09 9940 $100.00
2012-04-09 9961 $100.00
2012-04-09 9967 $108.40
2012-04-09 9989 $129.00
2012-04-09 10033 $133.80
2012-04-09 9935 $150.00
2012-04-09 9980 $150.00
2012-04-09 9978 $216.47
2012-04-09 10044 $280.00
2012-04-09 9966 $511.00
2012-04-09 10029 $537.00
2012-04-09 10026 $597.00
2012-04-09 10037 $611.00
2012-04-09 9958 $621.00
2012-04-09 9993 $661.00
2012-04-09 10038 $723.00
2012-04-09 14641 $831.00
2012-04-09 9995 $869.00
2012-04-09 10039 $934.00
2012-04-10 10019 $25.00
2012-04-10 10088 $54.85
2012-04-10 10126 $81.51
2012-04-10 10122 $87.88
2012-04-10 10112 $91.11
2012-04-10 10020 $100.00
2012-04-10 10114 $100.00
2012-04-10 10121 $125.00
2012-04-10 10090 $150.00
2012-04-10 10104 $160.00
2012-04-10 10150 $496.02
2012-04-10 10069 $537.00
2012-04-10 10132 $561.00
2012-04-10 10147 $561.00
2012-04-10 10146 $597.00
2012-04-10 10259 $597.00
2012-04-10 10047 $635.00
2012-04-10 10134 $645.00
2012-04-10 10074 $717.00
2012-04-10 10101 $857.00
2012-04-10 10081 $881.00
2012-04-10 10053 $891.00
2012-04-10 10086 $903.00
2012-04-11 10205 $50.00
2012-04-11 10190 $69.98
2012-04-11 10196 $91.11
2012-04-11 10172 $100.00
2012-04-11 10162 $150.00
2012-04-11 10189 $150.00
2012-04-11 10221 $150.00
2012-04-11 10255 $150.00
2012-04-11 10186 $280.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-04-11 10210 $609.00
2012-04-11 10199 $645.00
2012-04-11 10239 $753.00
2012-04-11 10168 $925.00
2012-04-11 10128 $938.27
2012-04-11 10245 $953.00
2012-04-12 10317 $82.68
2012-04-12 10241 $85.21
2012-04-12 10337 $88.30
2012-04-12 10299 $90.41
2012-04-12 10246 $100.00
2012-04-12 10289 $100.00
2012-04-12 10336 $100.00
2012-04-12 10284 $126.60
2012-04-12 10217 $150.00
2012-04-12 10300 $173.80
2012-04-12 10242 $247.44
2012-04-12 10271 $280.00
2012-04-12 10329 $280.00
2012-04-12 10353 $280.00
2012-04-12 10219 $573.00
2012-04-12 10285 $585.00
2012-04-12 10357 $585.00
2012-04-12 10216 $633.00
2012-04-12 10323 $633.00
2012-04-12 10310 $721.00
2012-04-12 10301 $733.00
2012-04-12 10318 $845.00
2012-04-12 10311 $869.00
2012-04-12 10326 $881.00
2012-04-12 10292 $915.00
2012-04-13 10400 $20.00
2012-04-13 10435 $20.00
2012-04-13 10421 $50.00
2012-04-13 10417 $141.80
2012-04-13 10331 $150.00
2012-04-13 10360 $150.00
2012-04-13 10436 $199.67
2012-04-13 10354 $257.38
2012-04-13 10397 $280.00
2012-04-13 10418 $280.00
2012-04-13 10410 $537.00
2012-04-13 10414 $549.00
2012-04-13 10449 $597.00
2012-04-13 10440 $645.00
2012-04-13 10365 $783.00
2012-04-13 10371 $783.00
2012-04-13 10385 $821.00
2012-04-13 10366 $843.00
2012-04-13 10392 $845.00
2012-04-13 10433 $855.00
2012-04-13 10361 $857.00
2012-04-14 10494 $78.13
2012-04-14 10560 $79.68
2012-04-14 10481 $83.24
2012-04-14 10543 $98.28
2012-04-14 10437 $120.60
2012-04-14 10462 $125.00
2012-04-14 10488 $131.40
2012-04-14 10478 $144.20
2012-04-14 10532 $146.60
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2012-04-14 10514 $150.00
2012-04-14 10484 $280.00
2012-04-14 10489 $537.00
2012-04-14 10549 $549.00
2012-04-14 10510 $621.00
2012-04-14 10496 $637.00
2012-04-14 10513 $645.00
2012-04-14 10506 $669.00
2012-04-14 10542 $697.00
2012-04-14 10552 $771.00
2012-04-14 10558 $795.00
2012-04-14 10548 $797.00
2012-04-14 10468 $819.00
2012-04-14 10518 $821.00
2012-04-14 10501 $827.00
2012-04-14 10559 $843.00
2012-04-14 10470 $857.00
2012-04-14 10456 $869.00
2012-04-14 10479 $869.00
2012-04-14 10500 $891.00
2012-04-14 10515 $905.00
2012-04-15 10574 $13.97
2012-04-15 10551 $20.00
2012-04-15 10598 $83.24
2012-04-15 10580 $85.00
2012-04-15 10607 $90.00
2012-04-15 10619 $96.60
2012-04-15 10631 $126.60
2012-04-15 10588 $150.00
2012-04-15 10597 $150.00
2012-04-15 10582 $209.80
2012-04-15 10630 $363.46
2012-04-15 10544 $573.00
2012-04-15 10565 $573.00
2012-04-15 10566 $597.00
2012-04-15 10603 $597.00
2012-04-15 10611 $609.00
2012-04-15 10610 $669.00
2012-04-15 10600 $673.00
2012-04-15 10642 $741.00
2012-04-15 10596 $807.00
2012-04-15 10555 $821.00
2012-04-15 10522 $849.00
2012-04-15 10573 $855.00
2012-04-15 10605 $869.00
2012-04-16 10728 $72.88
2012-04-16 10746 $82.77
2012-04-16 10753 $83.38
2012-04-16 10711 $84.79
2012-04-16 10725 $86.05
2012-04-16 10701 $86.61
2012-04-16 10758 $100.00
2012-04-16 10730 $121.80
2012-04-16 10629 $125.00
2012-04-16 10658 $136.20
2012-04-16 10640 $150.00
2012-04-16 10647 $150.00
2012-04-16 10759 $150.00
2012-04-16 10700 $358.19
2012-04-16 10737 $546.32
2012-04-16 10669 $559.73
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-04-16 10680 $571.00
2012-04-16 10768 $585.00
2012-04-16 10644 $597.00
2012-04-16 10672 $597.00
2012-04-16 10736 $657.00
2012-04-16 10649 $709.00
2012-04-16 10652 $729.00
2012-04-16 10744 $783.00
2012-04-16 10697 $791.00
2012-04-16 10663 $809.00
2012-04-16 10686 $831.00
2012-04-16 10688 $831.00
2012-04-16 10752 $845.00
2012-04-16 10623 $869.00
2012-04-16 10657 $881.00
2012-04-17 10813 $82.25
2012-04-17 10819 $82.77
2012-04-17 10783 $84.64
2012-04-17 10774 $150.00
2012-04-17 10838 $150.00
2012-04-17 10828 $223.64
2012-04-17 10845 $280.00
2012-04-17 10781 $304.15
2012-04-17 10766 $373.40
2012-04-17 10748 $430.39
2012-04-17 10815 $461.96
2012-04-17 10859 $497.52
2012-04-17 10791 $537.00
2012-04-17 10808 $597.00
2012-04-17 10747 $621.00
2012-04-17 10796 $621.00
2012-04-17 10848 $635.00
2012-04-17 10764 $645.00
2012-04-17 10829 $745.00
2012-04-17 10882 $783.00
2012-04-17 10837 $821.00
2012-04-17 10802 $845.00
2012-04-17 10779 $953.00
2012-04-17 10793 $989.00
2012-04-18 10905 $50.00
2012-04-18 10896 $74.19
2012-04-18 10888 $75.18
2012-04-18 10854 $100.00
2012-04-18 10891 $150.00
2012-04-18 10903 $160.00
2012-04-18 10919 $280.00
2012-04-18 10901 $333.64
2012-04-18 10869 $537.00
2012-04-18 10953 $609.00
2012-04-18 10911 $613.00
2012-04-18 10912 $613.00
2012-04-18 10922 $657.00
2012-04-18 11072 $669.00
2012-04-18 10900 $721.00
2012-04-18 10930 $735.00
2012-04-18 10939 $745.00
2012-04-18 10862 $809.00
2012-04-18 10932 $831.00
2012-04-18 10872 $845.00
2012-04-18 10866 $857.00
2012-04-18 10933 $879.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-04-19 11020 $70.54
2012-04-19 10991 $76.87
2012-04-19 10996 $83.47
2012-04-19 11009 $87.03
2012-04-19 10955 $150.00
2012-04-19 11166 $150.00
2012-04-19 10978 $510.95
2012-04-19 10929 $549.00
2012-04-19 10937 $561.00
2012-04-19 10946 $561.00
2012-04-19 11069 $573.00
2012-04-19 11049 $585.00
2012-04-19 11063 $585.00
2012-04-19 10995 $609.00
2012-04-19 11025 $621.00
2012-04-19 11028 $621.00
2012-04-19 11014 $645.00
2012-04-19 11070 $747.00
2012-04-19 10965 $819.00
2012-04-19 11016 $845.00
2012-04-19 10990 $857.00
2012-04-19 11164 $881.00
2012-04-20 11098 $86.89
2012-04-20 11149 $118.95
2012-04-20 11124 $124.20
2012-04-20 11046 $169.00
2012-04-20 11136 $252.86
2012-04-20 11079 $280.00
2012-04-20 11095 $280.00
2012-04-20 11076 $383.64
2012-04-20 11135 $547.00
2012-04-20 11181 $549.00
2012-04-20 11161 $561.00
2012-04-20 11078 $597.00
2012-04-20 11057 $609.00
2012-04-20 11144 $615.00
2012-04-20 11142 $635.00
2012-04-20 11310 $697.00
2012-04-20 11127 $711.00
2012-04-20 11061 $731.00
2012-04-20 11042 $747.00
2012-04-20 11200 $807.00
2012-04-20 11110 $819.00
2012-04-20 11082 $857.00
2012-04-20 11147 $869.00
2012-04-20 11178 $869.00
2012-04-20 11088 $877.00
2012-04-20 11118 $886.00
2012-04-20 11138 $903.00
2012-04-21 11218 $85.00
2012-04-21 11253 $85.49
2012-04-21 11274 $86.89
2012-04-21 11217 $115.75
2012-04-21 11291 $125.00
2012-04-21 11223 $150.00
2012-04-21 11224 $150.00
2012-04-21 11227 $150.00
2012-04-21 11151 $151.80
2012-04-21 11207 $200.00
2012-04-21 11308 $200.00
2012-04-21 11209 $484.84
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2012-04-21 11284 $537.00
2012-04-21 11246 $541.00
2012-04-21 11174 $549.00
2012-04-21 11202 $549.00
2012-04-21 11205 $573.00
2012-04-21 11257 $573.00
2012-04-21 11290 $573.00
2012-04-21 11268 $597.00
2012-04-21 11248 $601.00
2012-04-21 11156 $611.00
2012-04-21 11285 $633.00
2012-04-21 11303 $633.00
2012-04-21 11170 $657.00
2012-04-21 11213 $681.00
2012-04-21 11176 $697.00
2012-04-21 11250 $747.00
2012-04-21 11252 $807.00
2012-04-21 11195 $809.00
2012-04-21 11203 $829.00
2012-04-21 11277 $843.00
2012-04-21 11266 $869.00
2012-04-21 11302 $879.00
2012-04-21 11185 $910.00
2012-04-21 11234 $961.00
2012-04-22 11375 $82.39
2012-04-22 11401 $86.89
2012-04-22 11271 $87.60
2012-04-22 11287 $100.00
2012-04-22 11338 $120.20
2012-04-22 11301 $121.80
2012-04-22 11312 $126.06
2012-04-22 11264 $150.00
2012-04-22 11320 $150.00
2012-04-22 11337 $150.60
2012-04-22 11289 $561.00
2012-04-22 11410 $561.00
2012-04-22 11275 $609.00
2012-04-22 11371 $609.00
2012-04-22 11317 $621.00
2012-04-22 11324 $621.00
2012-04-22 11360 $639.66
2012-04-22 11281 $669.00
2012-04-22 11363 $683.00
2012-04-22 11294 $686.28
2012-04-22 11349 $697.00
2012-04-22 11286 $723.00
2012-04-22 11280 $731.00
2012-04-22 11390 $759.00
2012-04-22 11400 $795.00
2012-04-22 11299 $831.00
2012-04-22 11351 $855.00
2012-04-22 11297 $893.00
2012-04-22 11353 $929.00
2012-04-22 11365 $953.00
2012-04-22 11342 $987.00
2012-04-23 11460 $69.84
2012-04-23 11444 $71.24
2012-04-23 11376 $82.82
2012-04-23 11427 $85.00
2012-04-23 11466 $85.00
2012-04-23 11423 $86.75
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2012-04-23 11409 $87.03
2012-04-23 11421 $90.27
2012-04-23 11426 $103.77
2012-04-23 11501 $180.00
2012-04-23 11456 $227.10
2012-04-23 11453 $280.00
2012-04-23 11389 $537.00
2012-04-23 11436 $549.00
2012-04-23 11483 $573.00
2012-04-23 11471 $585.00
2012-04-23 11385 $609.00
2012-04-23 11482 $633.00
2012-04-23 11480 $669.00
2012-04-23 11446 $697.00
2012-04-23 11465 $771.00
2012-04-23 11424 $781.00
2012-04-23 11429 $797.00
2012-04-23 11384 $807.00
2012-04-23 11442 $809.00
2012-04-23 11435 $819.00
2012-04-24 11520 $47.13
2012-04-24 11530 $70.12
2012-04-24 11553 $84.08
2012-04-24 11495 $89.71
2012-04-24 11507 $100.00
2012-04-24 11534 $100.00
2012-04-24 11576 $102.22
2012-04-24 11516 $150.00
2012-04-24 11535 $150.00
2012-04-24 11558 $150.00
2012-04-24 11593 $150.00
2012-04-24 11601 $150.00
2012-04-24 11537 $333.64
2012-04-24 11539 $411.17
2012-04-24 11583 $561.00
2012-04-24 11570 $658.00
2012-04-24 11513 $729.00
2012-04-24 11541 $733.00
2012-04-24 11508 $745.00
2012-04-24 11589 $747.00
2012-04-24 11496 $771.00
2012-04-24 11540 $781.00
2012-04-24 11490 $795.00
2012-04-24 11599 $795.00
2012-04-24 11549 $797.00
2012-04-24 11554 $855.00
2012-04-24 11584 $855.00
2012-04-24 11556 $893.00
2012-04-24 11526 $965.00
2012-04-25 11676 $38.83
2012-04-25 11649 $72.70
2012-04-25 11687 $82.11
2012-04-25 11672 $85.00
2012-04-25 11682 $92.24
2012-04-25 11689 $100.00
2012-04-25 11616 $125.00
2012-04-25 11636 $125.00
2012-04-25 11694 $129.00
2012-04-25 11581 $150.00
2012-04-25 11605 $150.00
2012-04-25 11641 $150.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-04-25 11647 $150.00
2012-04-25 11655 $150.00
2012-04-25 11681 $280.00
2012-04-25 11686 $422.69
2012-04-25 11625 $597.00
2012-04-25 11614 $607.00
2012-04-25 11608 $609.00
2012-04-25 11611 $609.00
2012-04-25 11591 $621.00
2012-04-25 11612 $621.00
2012-04-25 11675 $633.00
2012-04-25 11671 $657.00
2012-04-25 11658 $669.00
2012-04-25 11604 $757.00
2012-04-25 11701 $833.00
2012-04-25 11619 $857.00
2012-04-25 11620 $857.00
2012-04-25 11680 $893.00
2012-04-25 11580 $917.00
2012-04-25 11633 $929.00
2012-04-26 11698 $51.20
2012-04-26 11667 $69.55
2012-04-26 11750 $69.98
2012-04-26 11796 $82.68
2012-04-26 11716 $84.08
2012-04-26 11715 $87.18
2012-04-26 11751 $88.30
2012-04-26 11739 $93.92
2012-04-26 11699 $124.20
2012-04-26 11726 $127.88
2012-04-26 11790 $280.00
2012-04-26 11727 $480.20
2012-04-26 11748 $491.82
2012-04-26 11781 $537.00
2012-04-26 11780 $585.00
2012-04-26 11731 $609.00
2012-04-26 11768 $637.00
2012-04-26 11735 $645.00
2012-04-26 11800 $783.00
2012-04-26 11762 $807.00
2012-04-26 11795 $807.00
2012-04-26 11792 $821.00
2012-04-26 11791 $831.00
2012-04-26 11664 $833.00
2012-04-26 11700 $833.00
2012-04-26 11794 $841.00
2012-04-26 11679 $843.00
2012-04-26 11707 $855.00
2012-04-26 11742 $977.00
2012-04-27 11797 $67.22
2012-04-27 11809 $74.05
2012-04-27 11856 $81.97
2012-04-27 11822 $85.21
2012-04-27 11808 $88.86
2012-04-27 11872 $125.00
2012-04-27 11887 $125.40
2012-04-27 11833 $150.00
2012-04-27 11840 $150.00
2012-04-27 11859 $200.00
2012-04-27 11893 $280.00
2012-04-27 11788 $393.58
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-04-27 11919 $537.00
2012-04-27 11921 $567.00
2012-04-27 11812 $597.00
2012-04-27 11798 $609.00
2012-04-27 11922 $627.00
2012-04-27 11852 $633.00
2012-04-27 11874 $684.00
2012-04-27 11803 $771.00
2012-04-27 11877 $809.00
2012-04-27 11882 $819.00
2012-04-27 11817 $833.00
2012-04-27 11866 $837.00
2012-04-27 11820 $869.00
2012-04-27 11863 $869.00
2012-04-27 11826 $905.00
2012-04-27 11819 $949.00
2012-04-28 11985 $55.42
2012-04-28 11931 $78.98
2012-04-28 11969 $90.97
2012-04-28 11917 $117.40
2012-04-28 11993 $138.60
2012-04-28 11900 $150.00
2012-04-28 11908 $150.00
2012-04-28 11928 $150.00
2012-04-28 11955 $150.00
2012-04-28 11966 $150.00
2012-04-28 11884 $403.52
2012-04-28 11891 $549.00
2012-04-28 11907 $561.00
2012-04-28 11897 $585.00
2012-04-28 11879 $645.00
2012-04-28 11986 $699.00
2012-04-28 12010 $757.00
2012-04-28 11942 $759.00
2012-04-28 11943 $759.00
2012-04-28 11965 $759.00
2012-04-28 11977 $797.00
2012-04-28 11948 $809.00
2012-04-28 11906 $829.00
2012-04-28 12013 $833.00
2012-04-28 12007 $855.00
2012-04-28 11927 $857.00
2012-04-28 11941 $905.00
2012-04-29 12028 $45.55
2012-04-29 12102 $74.48
2012-04-29 12066 $82.68
2012-04-29 12060 $84.64
2012-04-29 12085 $89.00
2012-04-29 12122 $99.97
2012-04-29 12041 $144.20
2012-04-29 12063 $150.00
2012-04-29 12075 $150.00
2012-04-29 12120 $150.00
2012-04-29 11988 $280.00
2012-04-29 11996 $280.00
2012-04-29 12022 $505.58
2012-04-29 12130 $537.00
2012-04-29 12036 $549.00
2012-04-29 12059 $561.00
2012-04-29 12103 $561.00
2012-04-29 12037 $609.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-04-29 11980 $645.00
2012-04-29 11983 $645.00
2012-04-29 11995 $645.00
2012-04-29 12104 $705.00
2012-04-29 12054 $741.00
2012-04-29 12072 $771.00
2012-04-29 12042 $783.00
2012-04-29 12051 $797.00
2012-04-29 12046 $845.00
2012-04-29 12086 $869.00
2012-04-29 12016 $891.00
2012-04-29 12073 $941.00
2012-04-29 12027 $1,001.00
2012-04-29 12062 $1,498.00
2012-04-30 12196 $50.00
2012-04-30 12114 $69.13
2012-04-30 12244 $81.97
2012-04-30 12243 $91.11
2012-04-30 12176 $92.10
2012-04-30 12144 $97.30
2012-04-30 12242 $100.00
2012-04-30 12217 $103.10
2012-04-30 12153 $125.00
2012-04-30 12125 $150.00
2012-04-30 12138 $150.00
2012-04-30 12155 $150.00
2012-04-30 12173 $150.00
2012-04-30 12240 $280.00
2012-04-30 12096 $511.00
2012-04-30 12202 $537.00
2012-04-30 12216 $549.00
2012-04-30 12184 $561.00
2012-04-30 12205 $585.00
2012-04-30 12180 $603.00
2012-04-30 12126 $609.00
2012-04-30 12181 $621.00
2012-04-30 12197 $623.00
2012-04-30 12158 $633.00
2012-04-30 12201 $645.00
2012-04-30 12106 $657.00
2012-04-30 12206 $657.00
2012-04-30 12231 $661.00
2012-04-30 12174 $771.00
2012-04-30 12229 $783.00
2012-04-30 12145 $789.00
2012-04-30 12107 $843.00
2012-04-30 12142 $845.00
2012-04-30 12204 $845.00
2012-04-30 12210 $845.00
2012-04-30 12124 $879.00
2012-04-30 12200 $881.00
2012-04-30 12185 $893.00
2012-05-01 12250 $69.13
2012-05-01 12312 $69.70
2012-05-01 12222 $74.76
2012-05-01 12318 $83.90
2012-05-01 12260 $91.96
2012-05-01 12329 $102.20
2012-05-01 12253 $217.62
2012-05-01 12335 $280.00
2012-05-01 12256 $518.20
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-05-01 12224 $537.00
2012-05-01 12214 $549.00
2012-05-01 12284 $549.00
2012-05-01 12320 $549.00
2012-05-01 12295 $561.00
2012-05-01 12272 $635.00
2012-05-01 12294 $781.00
2012-05-01 12300 $809.00
2012-05-01 12219 $869.00
2012-05-01 12271 $925.00
2012-05-01 12334 $1,049.00
2012-05-01 12307 $1,153.00
2012-05-02 12401 $54.35
2012-05-02 12405 $74.19
2012-05-02 12396 $80.52
2012-05-02 12361 $85.00
2012-05-02 12350 $87.88
2012-05-02 12400 $93.92
2012-05-02 12324 $97.10
2012-05-02 12375 $118.50
2012-05-02 12298 $150.00
2012-05-02 12367 $200.00
2012-05-02 12362 $242.47
2012-05-02 12319 $280.00
2012-05-02 12439 $557.00
2012-05-02 12402 $597.00
2012-05-02 12410 $597.00
2012-05-02 12436 $609.00
2012-05-02 12440 $617.00
2012-05-02 12356 $671.00
2012-05-02 12399 $709.00
2012-05-02 12323 $723.00
2012-05-02 12308 $747.00
2012-05-02 12360 $759.00
2012-05-02 12337 $771.00
2012-05-02 12354 $771.00
2012-05-02 12341 $795.00
2012-05-02 12333 $821.00
2012-05-02 12434 $855.00
2012-05-02 12395 $881.00
2012-05-02 12430 $881.00
2012-05-03 12412 $74.48
2012-05-03 12427 $82.68
2012-05-03 12506 $86.19
2012-05-03 12496 $90.27
2012-05-03 12464 $90.41
2012-05-03 12470 $90.55
2012-05-03 12458 $100.00
2012-05-03 12488 $121.80
2012-05-03 12487 $125.00
2012-05-03 12494 $150.00
2012-05-03 12499 $150.00
2012-05-03 12551 $150.00
2012-05-03 12421 $280.00
2012-05-03 12438 $280.00
2012-05-03 12457 $343.58
2012-05-03 12484 $487.00
2012-05-03 12492 $597.00
2012-05-03 12483 $669.00
2012-05-03 12437 $777.00
2012-05-03 12408 $809.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-05-03 12508 $903.00
2012-05-03 12505 $905.00
2012-05-03 12489 $1,085.00
2012-05-03 12446 $1,179.00
2012-05-04 12582 $85.00
2012-05-04 12626 $85.00
2012-05-04 12598 $85.91
2012-05-04 12568 $87.18
2012-05-04 13655 $89.00
2012-05-04 12537 $100.00
2012-05-04 12617 $100.00
2012-05-04 12555 $150.00
2012-05-04 12567 $150.00
2012-05-04 12635 $150.00
2012-05-04 13654 $150.00
2012-05-04 12619 $187.46
2012-05-04 12575 $200.00
2012-05-04 12611 $200.00
2012-05-04 12543 $499.00
2012-05-04 12593 $561.00
2012-05-04 12588 $573.00
2012-05-04 12584 $597.00
2012-05-04 12653 $597.00
2012-05-04 12615 $609.00
2012-05-04 12586 $633.00
2012-05-04 12528 $669.00
2012-05-04 12614 $708.00
2012-05-04 12612 $782.00
2012-05-04 12657 $819.00
2012-05-04 12664 $821.00
2012-05-04 12608 $833.00
2012-05-04 12624 $833.00
2012-05-04 12604 $845.00
2012-05-04 12622 $845.00
2012-05-04 12648 $845.00
2012-05-04 12616 $891.00
2012-05-05 12764 $39.55
2012-05-05 12749 $73.77
2012-05-05 12725 $150.00
2012-05-05 12779 $150.00
2012-05-05 12785 $178.20
2012-05-05 12737 $200.00
2012-05-05 12715 $280.00
2012-05-05 12748 $280.00
2012-05-05 12713 $317.90
2012-05-05 12722 $537.00
2012-05-05 12763 $549.00
2012-05-05 12707 $585.00
2012-05-05 12773 $585.00
2012-05-05 12712 $609.00
2012-05-05 12643 $633.00
2012-05-05 12674 $645.00
2012-05-05 12775 $658.00
2012-05-05 12780 $669.00
2012-05-05 12727 $673.00
2012-05-05 12795 $705.00
2012-05-05 12667 $709.00
2012-05-05 12677 $721.00
2012-05-05 12660 $747.00
2012-05-05 12740 $759.00
2012-05-05 12683 $771.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-05-05 12649 $795.00
2012-05-05 12719 $795.00
2012-05-05 12799 $795.00
2012-05-05 12676 $797.00
2012-05-05 12732 $797.00
2012-05-05 12711 $807.00
2012-05-05 12668 $821.00
2012-05-05 12689 $843.00
2012-05-05 12655 $855.00
2012-05-05 12695 $857.00
2012-05-05 12738 $893.00
2012-05-05 12709 $917.00
2012-05-05 12716 $965.00
2012-05-06 12852 $30.00
2012-05-06 12759 $48.26
2012-05-06 12822 $85.77
2012-05-06 12803 $125.00
2012-05-06 12815 $150.00
2012-05-06 12771 $200.00
2012-05-06 12768 $549.00
2012-05-06 12880 $573.00
2012-05-06 12864 $609.00
2012-05-06 12793 $621.00
2012-05-06 12833 $795.00
2012-05-06 12872 $821.00
2012-05-06 12837 $857.00
2012-05-06 12830 $865.00
2012-05-06 12834 $881.00
2012-05-06 12829 $893.00
2012-05-06 12807 $1,013.00
2012-05-06 12761 $1,037.00
2012-05-07 12895 $85.21
2012-05-07 12939 $86.05
2012-05-07 12924 $91.82
2012-05-07 12960 $91.96
2012-05-07 12916 $100.00
2012-05-07 12930 $100.00
2012-05-07 12856 $150.00
2012-05-07 12860 $150.00
2012-05-07 12926 $150.00
2012-05-07 12987 $150.00
2012-05-07 12964 $151.40
2012-05-07 12890 $256.60
2012-05-07 12962 $455.00
2012-05-07 12917 $561.00
2012-05-07 12893 $562.92
2012-05-07 12994 $597.00
2012-05-07 12983 $621.00
2012-05-07 12972 $681.00
2012-05-07 12986 $685.00
2012-05-07 12969 $747.00
2012-05-07 12938 $757.00
2012-05-07 12944 $759.00
2012-05-07 12945 $771.00
2012-05-07 12995 $783.00
2012-05-07 12943 $807.00
2012-05-07 12925 $809.00
2012-05-07 12861 $831.00
2012-05-07 12942 $831.00
2012-05-07 12883 $833.00
2012-05-07 12949 $857.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-05-07 12963 $867.00
2012-05-07 12936 $869.00
2012-05-07 12923 $893.00
2012-05-08 13018 $10.00
2012-05-08 13019 $44.46
2012-05-08 13081 $83.94
2012-05-08 13023 $85.49
2012-05-08 13045 $94.20
2012-05-08 13070 $110.85
2012-05-08 13044 $121.80
2012-05-08 13000 $150.00
2012-05-08 13024 $150.00
2012-05-08 13036 $169.87
2012-05-08 13067 $280.00
2012-05-08 13094 $549.00
2012-05-08 13091 $597.00
2012-05-08 13077 $617.00
2012-05-08 13071 $645.00
2012-05-08 13055 $733.00
2012-05-08 13072 $747.00
2012-05-08 13058 $783.00
2012-05-08 13083 $795.00
2012-05-08 13079 $797.00
2012-05-08 13021 $807.00
2012-05-08 13026 $809.00
2012-05-08 12991 $821.00
2012-05-08 13014 $821.00
2012-05-08 13084 $821.00
2012-05-08 13109 $821.00
2012-05-08 13032 $833.00
2012-05-08 12998 $881.00
2012-05-08 13007 $893.00
2012-05-08 12976 $1,009.00
2012-05-08 13034 $1,025.00
2012-05-09 13155 $48.00
2012-05-09 13178 $83.10
2012-05-09 13205 $83.24
2012-05-09 13166 $94.21
2012-05-09 13140 $103.57
2012-05-09 13187 $121.80
2012-05-09 13144 $136.20
2012-05-09 13102 $150.00
2012-05-09 13139 $150.00
2012-05-09 13217 $150.00
2012-05-09 13127 $264.01
2012-05-09 13190 $387.86
2012-05-09 13215 $402.17
2012-05-09 13138 $403.52
2012-05-09 13130 $466.32
2012-05-09 13114 $561.00
2012-05-09 13206 $585.00
2012-05-09 13181 $621.00
2012-05-09 13119 $645.00
2012-05-09 13172 $647.00
2012-05-09 13175 $729.00
2012-05-09 13135 $771.00
2012-05-09 13193 $797.00
2012-05-09 13173 $831.00
2012-05-09 13168 $881.00
2012-05-09 13143 $893.00
2012-05-09 13200 $1,105.00
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-05-10 13257 $10.00
2012-05-10 13233 $39.55
2012-05-10 13251 $75.88
2012-05-10 13245 $82.68
2012-05-10 13313 $85.77
2012-05-10 13278 $88.58
2012-05-10 13335 $99.41
2012-05-10 13202 $150.00
2012-05-10 13235 $150.00
2012-05-10 13238 $150.00
2012-05-10 13255 $150.00
2012-05-10 13272 $150.00
2012-05-10 13249 $453.34
2012-05-10 13247 $537.00
2012-05-10 13286 $537.00
2012-05-10 13282 $549.00
2012-05-10 13201 $585.00
2012-05-10 13334 $597.00
2012-05-10 13305 $683.00
2012-05-10 13275 $696.00
2012-05-10 13295 $717.00
2012-05-10 13203 $737.00
2012-05-10 13267 $747.00
2012-05-10 13288 $747.00
2012-05-10 13269 $769.00
2012-05-10 13320 $783.00
2012-05-10 13329 $821.00
2012-05-10 13322 $905.00
2012-05-10 13311 $913.00
2012-05-11 13402 $75.04
2012-05-11 13363 $100.00
2012-05-11 13418 $104.61
2012-05-11 13324 $131.40
2012-05-11 13398 $150.00
2012-05-11 13400 $381.40
2012-05-11 13403 $561.00
2012-05-11 13365 $583.00
2012-05-11 13362 $747.00
2012-05-11 13325 $759.00
2012-05-11 13357 $813.00
2012-05-11 13312 $821.00
2012-05-11 13375 $821.00
2012-05-11 13306 $833.00
2012-05-11 13332 $857.00
2012-05-11 13348 $869.00
2012-05-11 13354 $973.00
2012-05-12 13449 $53.02
2012-05-12 13455 $74.62
2012-05-12 13535 $76.02
2012-05-12 13469 $76.87
2012-05-12 13451 $82.11
2012-05-12 13554 $119.40
2012-05-12 13493 $121.00
2012-05-12 13476 $200.00
2012-05-12 13446 $200.30
2012-05-12 13492 $248.60
2012-05-12 13512 $280.00
2012-05-12 13443 $530.61
2012-05-12 13528 $537.00
2012-05-12 13424 $561.00
2012-05-12 13530 $561.00
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2012-05-12 13412 $573.00
2012-05-12 13448 $573.00
2012-05-12 13532 $573.00
2012-05-12 13487 $597.00
2012-05-12 13525 $609.00
2012-05-12 13504 $633.00
2012-05-12 13466 $721.00
2012-05-12 13472 $741.00
2012-05-12 13511 $819.00
2012-05-12 13473 $821.00
2012-05-12 13430 $831.00
2012-05-12 13515 $833.00
2012-05-12 13475 $845.00
2012-05-12 13479 $845.00
2012-05-13 13522 $38.75
2012-05-13 13569 $69.13
2012-05-13 13578 $87.03
2012-05-13 13576 $87.18
2012-05-13 13600 $88.86
2012-05-13 13559 $91.25
2012-05-13 13555 $98.56
2012-05-13 13651 $98.85
2012-05-13 13623 $119.31
2012-05-13 13536 $150.00
2012-05-13 13608 $543.61
2012-05-13 13568 $585.00
2012-05-13 13584 $609.00
2012-05-13 13540 $621.00
2012-05-13 13571 $681.00
2012-05-13 13533 $705.00
2012-05-13 13587 $893.00
2012-05-13 13573 $1,023.00
2012-05-14 13718 $52.74
2012-05-14 13719 $82.68
2012-05-14 13664 $83.38
2012-05-14 13696 $86.75
2012-05-14 13704 $87.88
2012-05-14 13723 $88.30
2012-05-14 13643 $100.00
2012-05-14 13738 $100.00
2012-05-14 13706 $150.00
2012-05-14 13708 $150.00
2012-05-14 13625 $280.00
2012-05-14 13626 $609.00
2012-05-14 13713 $609.00
2012-05-14 13624 $633.00
2012-05-14 13715 $657.00
2012-05-14 13636 $699.00
2012-05-14 13647 $783.00
2012-05-14 13733 $795.00
2012-05-14 13693 $833.00
2012-05-14 13699 $869.00
2012-05-14 13741 $939.00
2012-05-15 13857 $72.79
2012-05-15 13779 $77.29
2012-05-15 13788 $85.00
2012-05-15 13768 $86.05
2012-05-15 13798 $92.24
2012-05-15 13740 $97.72
2012-05-15 13785 $100.00
2012-05-15 13836 $100.00
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2012-05-15 13763 $115.72
2012-05-15 13778 $144.20
2012-05-15 13793 $150.00
2012-05-15 13745 $160.00
2012-05-15 13827 $200.00
2012-05-15 13814 $213.98
2012-05-15 13811 $438.31
2012-05-15 13801 $537.00
2012-05-15 13822 $549.00
2012-05-15 13764 $621.00
2012-05-15 13746 $633.00
2012-05-15 13823 $721.00
2012-05-15 13769 $729.00
2012-05-15 13776 $733.00
2012-05-15 13830 $733.00
2012-05-15 13826 $819.00
2012-05-15 13832 $845.00
2012-05-15 13816 $881.00
2012-05-15 13831 $893.00
2012-05-15 13774 $927.00
2012-05-15 13771 $953.00
2012-05-16 13884 $53.38
2012-05-16 13874 $82.39
2012-05-16 13825 $89.57
2012-05-16 13930 $91.25
2012-05-16 13875 $96.74
2012-05-16 13933 $100.00
2012-05-16 13837 $150.00
2012-05-16 13880 $204.47
2012-05-16 13862 $280.00
2012-05-16 13939 $537.00
2012-05-16 13934 $549.00
2012-05-16 13819 $561.00
2012-05-16 13866 $573.00
2012-05-16 13873 $661.00
2012-05-16 13869 $697.00
2012-05-16 13903 $765.00
2012-05-16 13829 $769.00
2012-05-16 13843 $816.00
2012-05-16 13867 $821.00
2012-05-16 13891 $833.00
2012-05-17 13938 $92.10
2012-05-17 13928 $119.40
2012-05-17 14014 $150.00
2012-05-17 13954 $325.25
2012-05-17 14054 $373.40
2012-05-17 13966 $498.20
2012-05-17 13925 $561.00
2012-05-17 13914 $573.00
2012-05-17 13920 $633.00
2012-05-17 13964 $633.00
2012-05-17 13959 $645.00
2012-05-17 13983 $671.00
2012-05-17 13994 $697.00
2012-05-17 13985 $709.00
2012-05-17 13998 $733.00
2012-05-17 14044 $795.00
2012-05-17 13953 $855.00
2012-05-17 13942 $934.00
2012-05-17 13991 $975.00
2012-05-18 14090 $69.84
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2012-05-18 14160 $83.66
2012-05-18 14092 $90.13
2012-05-18 14080 $90.97
2012-05-18 14071 $94.91
2012-05-18 14049 $100.00
2012-05-18 14088 $100.00
2012-05-18 14120 $100.00
2012-05-18 14162 $100.00
2012-05-18 14104 $150.00
2012-05-18 14106 $150.00
2012-05-18 14115 $150.00
2012-05-18 14169 $280.00
2012-05-18 14101 $413.46
2012-05-18 14257 $523.00
2012-05-18 14045 $559.00
2012-05-18 14033 $573.00
2012-05-18 14025 $585.00
2012-05-18 14085 $609.00
2012-05-18 14024 $645.00
2012-05-18 14094 $709.00
2012-05-18 14075 $745.00
2012-05-18 14128 $759.00
2012-05-18 14112 $771.00
2012-05-18 14146 $771.00
2012-05-18 14084 $795.00
2012-05-18 14040 $821.00
2012-05-18 14139 $821.00
2012-05-18 14052 $831.00
2012-05-18 14154 $833.00
2012-05-18 14091 $869.00
2012-05-18 14259 $939.00
2012-05-18 14097 $951.00
2012-05-18 14110 $977.00
2012-05-19 14203 $25.00
2012-05-19 14247 $85.91
2012-05-19 14141 $90.97
2012-05-19 14217 $150.00
2012-05-19 14245 $150.00
2012-05-19 14248 $150.00
2012-05-19 14181 $474.80
2012-05-19 14192 $537.00
2012-05-19 14194 $549.00
2012-05-19 14200 $549.00
2012-05-19 14226 $573.00
2012-05-19 14188 $621.00
2012-05-19 14132 $645.00
2012-05-19 14237 $657.00
2012-05-19 14220 $721.00
2012-05-19 14202 $771.00
2012-05-19 14216 $821.00
2012-05-19 14222 $821.00
2012-05-19 14183 $845.00
2012-05-19 14163 $941.00
2012-05-20 14243 $85.35
2012-05-20 14284 $88.30
2012-05-20 14236 $100.95
2012-05-20 14314 $150.00
2012-05-20 14322 $150.00
2012-05-20 14356 $150.00
2012-05-20 14339 $499.00
2012-05-20 14350 $537.00
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2012-05-20 14317 $573.00
2012-05-20 14234 $597.00
2012-05-20 14316 $621.00
2012-05-20 14328 $669.00
2012-05-20 14329 $717.00
2012-05-20 14231 $733.00
2012-05-20 14286 $747.00
2012-05-20 14319 $783.00
2012-05-20 14360 $797.00
2012-05-20 14263 $809.00
2012-05-20 14311 $845.00
2012-05-20 14340 $879.00
2012-05-21 14384 $74.90
2012-05-21 14391 $131.80
2012-05-21 14370 $150.00
2012-05-21 17199 $253.46
2012-05-21 14387 $549.00
2012-05-21 14388 $549.00
2012-05-21 14450 $549.00
2012-05-21 14417 $559.00
2012-05-21 14423 $573.00
2012-05-21 14403 $585.00
2012-05-21 14447 $609.00
2012-05-21 14325 $645.00
2012-05-21 14409 $697.00
2012-05-21 14385 $747.00
2012-05-21 14397 $783.00
2012-05-21 14434 $795.00
2012-05-21 14400 $797.00
2012-05-21 14395 $833.00
2012-05-21 14380 $869.00
2012-05-21 14540 $905.00
2012-05-21 14449 $929.00
2012-05-21 14357 $997.00
2012-05-22 14460 $85.00
2012-05-22 14487 $100.00
2012-05-22 14481 $150.00
2012-05-22 14514 $549.00
2012-05-22 14534 $549.00
2012-05-22 14452 $573.00
2012-05-22 14493 $573.00
2012-05-22 14474 $585.00
2012-05-22 14500 $721.00
2012-05-22 14515 $744.00
2012-05-22 14494 $783.00
2012-05-22 14485 $869.00
2012-05-22 14435 $913.00
2012-05-22 14511 $1,191.00
2012-05-23 14554 $74.34
2012-05-23 14589 $75.04
2012-05-23 14578 $85.00
2012-05-23 14574 $87.46
2012-05-23 14599 $125.00
2012-05-23 14584 $200.00
2012-05-23 14571 $280.00
2012-05-23 14573 $408.19
2012-05-23 14587 $537.00
2012-05-23 14555 $549.00
2012-05-23 14564 $555.00
2012-05-23 14517 $573.00
2012-05-23 14544 $583.00
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2012-05-23 14577 $609.00
2012-05-23 14595 $621.00
2012-05-23 14579 $633.00
2012-05-23 14633 $645.00
2012-05-23 14639 $674.91
2012-05-23 14592 $709.00
2012-05-23 14634 $747.00
2012-05-23 14590 $759.00
2012-05-23 14638 $795.00
2012-05-23 14557 $809.00
2012-05-23 14528 $833.00
2012-05-23 14525 $843.00
2012-05-23 14572 $857.00
2012-05-24 14664 $20.00
2012-05-24 14699 $86.88
2012-05-24 14640 $91.11
2012-05-24 17309 $91.11
2012-05-24 14665 $92.10
2012-05-24 14670 $94.91
2012-05-24 14673 $119.40
2012-05-24 14708 $150.00
2012-05-24 14620 $280.00
2012-05-24 14627 $280.00
2012-05-24 14695 $549.00
2012-05-24 14689 $559.00
2012-05-24 14684 $561.00
2012-05-24 14621 $573.00
2012-05-24 14717 $573.00
2012-05-24 14706 $597.00
2012-05-24 14624 $609.00
2012-05-24 14710 $609.00
2012-05-24 14729 $633.00
2012-05-24 14697 $694.79
2012-05-24 14727 $757.00
2012-05-24 14680 $807.00
2012-05-24 14672 $809.00
2012-05-24 14726 $905.00
2012-05-24 14734 $929.00
2012-05-24 14742 $965.00
2012-05-25 14770 $55.69
2012-05-25 14825 $81.51
2012-05-25 14790 $91.39
2012-05-25 14823 $118.50
2012-05-25 14778 $124.20
2012-05-25 14747 $150.00
2012-05-25 14752 $150.00
2012-05-25 14817 $537.00
2012-05-25 14782 $549.00
2012-05-25 14826 $549.00
2012-05-25 14832 $549.00
2012-05-25 14745 $561.00
2012-05-25 14750 $573.00
2012-05-25 14757 $609.00
2012-05-25 14833 $609.00
2012-05-25 14720 $611.00
2012-05-25 14820 $633.00
2012-05-25 14713 $681.00
2012-05-25 14771 $683.00
2012-05-25 14715 $795.00
2012-05-25 14746 $819.00
2012-05-25 14787 $845.00
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2012-05-25 14766 $857.00
2012-05-25 14765 $905.00
2012-05-25 17398 $937.00
2012-05-25 14788 $949.00
2012-05-25 14810 $975.00
2012-05-26 14855 $10.00
2012-05-26 14846 $39.50
2012-05-26 14892 $53.70
2012-05-26 14819 $86.71
2012-05-26 14839 $100.00
2012-05-26 14932 $126.60
2012-05-26 14844 $150.00
2012-05-26 14849 $200.00
2012-05-26 14869 $280.00
2012-05-26 14899 $280.00
2012-05-26 14904 $358.49
2012-05-26 14873 $549.00
2012-05-26 14906 $549.00
2012-05-26 14929 $585.00
2012-05-26 14924 $596.87
2012-05-26 14858 $697.00
2012-05-26 14840 $783.00
2012-05-26 14878 $783.00
2012-05-26 14913 $797.00
2012-05-26 14911 $818.86
2012-05-26 14879 $819.00
2012-05-26 14930 $833.00
2012-05-26 14863 $857.00
2012-05-26 14861 $869.00
2012-05-26 14814 $929.00
2012-05-26 14902 $994.00
2012-05-26 14860 $1,085.00
2012-05-26 14847 $1,157.00
2012-05-27 14989 $86.05
2012-05-27 15025 $89.00
2012-05-27 15012 $110.37
2012-05-27 14956 $200.00
2012-05-27 14926 $309.80
2012-05-27 15001 $353.52
2012-05-27 14981 $537.00
2012-05-27 15019 $537.00
2012-05-27 14984 $549.00
2012-05-27 15037 $561.00
2012-05-27 14942 $573.00
2012-05-27 15023 $585.00
2012-05-27 15043 $585.00
2012-05-27 14997 $669.00
2012-05-27 14993 $697.00
2012-05-27 14973 $733.00
2012-05-27 14957 $771.00
2012-05-27 14959 $771.00
2012-05-27 14988 $771.00
2012-05-27 14998 $797.00
2012-05-27 15030 $797.00
2012-05-27 14983 $807.00
2012-05-27 14986 $807.00
2012-05-27 15022 $873.00
2012-05-27 14946 $874.00
2012-05-27 15018 $917.00
2012-05-28 15083 $20.00
2012-05-28 15102 $150.00
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2012-05-28 15063 $200.00
2012-05-28 15051 $280.00
2012-05-28 15114 $547.00
2012-05-28 15033 $549.00
2012-05-28 15108 $571.00
2012-05-28 15052 $585.00
2012-05-28 15093 $585.00
2012-05-28 15034 $597.00
2012-05-28 15078 $597.00
2012-05-28 15131 $597.00
2012-05-28 15080 $621.00
2012-05-28 15090 $658.00
2012-05-28 15072 $670.00
2012-05-28 15077 $769.00
2012-05-28 15087 $807.00
2012-05-28 15039 $821.00
2012-05-28 15065 $845.00
2012-05-28 15064 $857.00
2012-05-29 15194 $85.00
2012-05-29 15166 $124.20
2012-05-29 15174 $150.00
2012-05-29 15117 $153.80
2012-05-29 15155 $160.00
2012-05-29 15207 $200.00
2012-05-29 15165 $537.00
2012-05-29 15230 $537.00
2012-05-29 15209 $549.00
2012-05-29 15178 $561.00
2012-05-29 15246 $561.00
2012-05-29 15202 $573.00
2012-05-29 15157 $585.00
2012-05-29 15214 $733.00
2012-05-29 15153 $769.00
2012-05-29 15143 $797.00
2012-05-29 15254 $833.00
2012-05-29 15198 $845.00
2012-05-29 15175 $869.00
2012-05-29 15195 $881.00
2012-05-29 15204 $953.00
2012-05-30 15240 $77.04
2012-05-30 15344 $91.11
2012-05-30 15276 $93.92
2012-05-30 15291 $99.10
2012-05-30 15315 $125.00
2012-05-30 15248 $131.40
2012-05-30 15241 $150.00
2012-05-30 15268 $150.00
2012-05-30 15328 $172.20
2012-05-30 15300 $200.00
2012-05-30 15321 $561.00
2012-05-30 15369 $573.00
2012-05-30 15298 $609.00
2012-05-30 15308 $673.00
2012-05-30 15293 $747.00
2012-05-30 15251 $771.00
2012-05-30 15312 $771.00
2012-05-30 17931 $771.00
2012-05-30 15322 $783.00
2012-05-30 15290 $809.00
2012-05-30 18057 $833.00
2012-05-30 15323 $843.00
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2012-05-30 15313 $905.00
2012-05-30 15345 $915.00
2012-05-30 15238 $917.00
2012-05-30 15232 $1,009.00
2012-05-31 15454 $46.00
2012-05-31 15421 $83.66
2012-05-31 15341 $88.58
2012-05-31 15395 $96.74
2012-05-31 15391 $100.00
2012-05-31 15450 $125.00
2012-05-31 15399 $150.00
2012-05-31 15466 $150.00
2012-05-31 15385 $255.27
2012-05-31 15437 $261.35
2012-05-31 15426 $280.00
2012-05-31 15420 $537.00
2012-05-31 15387 $585.00
2012-05-31 15406 $609.00
2012-05-31 15409 $609.00
2012-05-31 15427 $658.19
2012-05-31 15460 $693.00
2012-05-31 15396 $709.00
2012-05-31 15380 $771.00
2012-05-31 15442 $783.00
2012-05-31 15408 $795.00
2012-05-31 15412 $807.00
2012-05-31 15335 $809.00
2012-05-31 15346 $845.00
2012-05-31 15413 $857.00
2012-05-31 15429 $929.00
2012-05-31 18056 $1,013.00
2012-06-01 15520 $82.25
2012-06-01 15488 $84.79
2012-06-01 15489 $107.40
2012-06-01 15501 $131.40
2012-06-01 15447 $150.00
2012-06-01 15494 $150.00
2012-06-01 15541 $150.00
2012-06-01 15550 $243.52
2012-06-01 15456 $503.75
2012-06-01 15535 $549.00
2012-06-01 15536 $549.00
2012-06-01 15458 $561.00
2012-06-01 15530 $645.00
2012-06-01 15491 $669.00
2012-06-01 15512 $705.00
2012-06-01 15546 $783.00
2012-06-01 15664 $807.00
2012-06-01 15449 $809.00
2012-06-01 15523 $845.00
2012-06-01 15462 $857.00
2012-06-02 15661 $43.47
2012-06-02 15578 $82.68
2012-06-02 16520 $83.90
2012-06-02 15584 $150.00
2012-06-02 15629 $150.00
2012-06-02 15591 $525.90
2012-06-02 15622 $669.00
2012-06-02 15587 $729.00
2012-06-02 15545 $747.00
2012-06-02 15620 $759.00
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2012-06-02 15614 $771.00
2012-06-02 15560 $795.00
2012-06-02 15579 $797.00
2012-06-02 15660 $809.00
2012-06-02 15600 $821.00
2012-06-02 15670 $831.00
2012-06-02 15562 $857.00
2012-06-02 15542 $927.00
2012-06-02 15606 $1,073.00
2012-06-03 15714 $86.89
2012-06-03 15687 $106.10
2012-06-03 15694 $150.00
2012-06-03 15695 $150.00
2012-06-03 15716 $150.00
2012-06-03 15726 $150.00
2012-06-03 15763 $150.00
2012-06-03 15677 $343.58
2012-06-03 15765 $393.05
2012-06-03 15685 $585.00
2012-06-03 15746 $585.00
2012-06-03 15712 $597.00
2012-06-03 15729 $597.00
2012-06-03 15690 $599.00
2012-06-03 15692 $599.00
2012-06-03 15740 $609.00
2012-06-03 15655 $633.00
2012-06-03 15696 $697.00
2012-06-03 15650 $789.00
2012-06-03 15705 $845.00
2012-06-03 15688 $898.00
2012-06-03 15718 $1,037.00
2012-06-04 15777 $84.08
2012-06-04 15819 $85.00
2012-06-04 15755 $142.20
2012-06-04 15803 $150.00
2012-06-04 15841 $280.00
2012-06-04 15791 $430.64
2012-06-04 15793 $537.00
2012-06-04 15744 $561.00
2012-06-04 15792 $561.00
2012-06-04 15865 $573.00
2012-06-04 15807 $585.00
2012-06-04 15827 $597.00
2012-06-04 15861 $609.00
2012-06-04 15728 $633.00
2012-06-04 15822 $633.00
2012-06-04 15742 $693.00
2012-06-04 15813 $771.00
2012-06-04 15778 $821.00
2012-06-04 15802 $821.00
2012-06-04 15773 $843.00
2012-06-04 15796 $843.00
2012-06-04 15821 $881.00
2012-06-04 15786 $893.00
2012-06-04 15745 $1,001.00
2012-06-04 15743 $1,085.00
2012-06-05 15938 $20.00
2012-06-05 15918 $56.53
2012-06-05 15902 $72.09
2012-06-05 15919 $90.69
2012-06-05 15942 $100.00
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2012-06-05 15885 $418.43
2012-06-05 15934 $537.00
2012-06-05 15829 $561.00
2012-06-05 15960 $561.00
2012-06-05 15932 $645.00
2012-06-05 15937 $645.00
2012-06-05 15883 $669.00
2012-06-05 15914 $709.00
2012-06-05 15897 $721.00
2012-06-05 15939 $809.00
2012-06-05 15875 $857.00
2012-06-05 15921 $857.00
2012-06-05 15837 $881.00
2012-06-06 16002 $72.79
2012-06-06 16003 $73.91
2012-06-06 16012 $88.16
2012-06-06 15982 $90.41
2012-06-06 16014 $107.40
2012-06-06 15940 $403.52
2012-06-06 16000 $549.00
2012-06-06 16044 $585.00
2012-06-06 15991 $669.00
2012-06-06 16022 $693.00
2012-06-06 16011 $705.00
2012-06-06 16018 $709.00
2012-06-06 15953 $807.00
2012-06-06 15969 $809.00
2012-06-06 15984 $809.00
2012-06-06 15992 $809.00
2012-06-06 16024 $809.00
2012-06-06 16033 $857.00
2012-06-06 15970 $869.00
2012-06-07 16114 $81.97
2012-06-07 16036 $82.96
2012-06-07 16125 $85.00
2012-06-07 16138 $85.00
2012-06-07 16082 $87.00
2012-06-07 16074 $150.00
2012-06-07 16087 $150.00
2012-06-07 16086 $200.00
2012-06-07 16134 $230.00
2012-06-07 16099 $549.00
2012-06-07 16110 $597.00
2012-06-07 16089 $603.00
2012-06-07 16127 $609.00
2012-06-07 16070 $661.00
2012-06-07 16141 $709.00
2012-06-07 16115 $795.00
2012-06-07 16030 $807.00
2012-06-07 16057 $819.00
2012-06-07 16062 $845.00
2012-06-07 16100 $869.00
2012-06-07 16094 $891.00
2012-06-07 16068 $917.00
2012-06-07 16122 $922.00
2012-06-07 16107 $927.00
2012-06-07 16088 $941.00
2012-06-08 16189 $78.13
2012-06-08 16217 $82.11
2012-06-08 16197 $86.89
2012-06-08 16198 $91.25
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Trip Date Run # Customer Due
2012-06-08 16158 $106.60
2012-06-08 16159 $106.60
2012-06-08 16154 $118.20
2012-06-08 16150 $138.49
2012-06-08 16165 $150.00
2012-06-08 16208 $150.00
2012-06-08 16157 $422.69
2012-06-08 16181 $573.00
2012-06-08 16148 $585.00
2012-06-08 16111 $597.00
2012-06-08 16185 $633.00
2012-06-08 16170 $747.00
2012-06-08 16130 $771.00
2012-06-08 16196 $781.00
2012-06-08 16167 $783.00
2012-06-08 16211 $831.00
2012-06-08 16171 $845.00
2012-06-08 16218 $869.00
2012-06-09 16201 $20.00
2012-06-09 16339 $73.77
2012-06-09 16232 $78.48
2012-06-09 16303 $78.83
2012-06-09 16253 $96.17
2012-06-09 16259 $100.00
2012-06-09 16265 $100.00
2012-06-09 16338 $100.00
2012-06-09 16322 $160.00
2012-06-09 16249 $537.00
2012-06-09 16330 $537.00
2012-06-09 16294 $561.00
2012-06-09 16268 $585.00
2012-06-09 16337 $585.00
2012-06-09 16292 $609.00
2012-06-09 16308 $615.00
2012-06-09 16340 $621.00
2012-06-09 16274 $657.00
2012-06-09 16260 $685.00
2012-06-09 16234 $695.00
2012-06-09 16341 $753.00
2012-06-09 16307 $775.00
2012-06-09 16284 $797.00
2012-06-09 16313 $845.00
2012-06-09 16319 $845.00
2012-06-09 16298 $891.00
2012-06-09 16305 $893.00
2012-06-09 16256 $939.00
2012-06-10 16401 $20.00
2012-06-10 16395 $96.74
2012-06-10 16359 $100.00
2012-06-10 16371 $100.00
2012-06-10 16332 $150.00
2012-06-10 16347 $150.00
2012-06-10 16364 $150.00
2012-06-10 16411 $150.00
2012-06-10 16331 $347.40
2012-06-10 16311 $573.00
2012-06-10 16383 $598.00
2012-06-10 16357 $621.00
2012-06-10 16381 $645.00
2012-06-10 16407 $669.00
2012-06-10 16377 $685.00
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2012-06-10 16358 $795.00
2012-06-10 16317 $799.00
2012-06-10 16423 $805.00
2012-06-10 16362 $809.00
2012-06-10 16370 $845.00
2012-06-10 16418 $857.00
2012-06-10 16433 $905.00
2012-06-10 16376 $929.00
2012-06-11 16447 $17.09
2012-06-11 16449 $96.60
2012-06-11 16472 $129.40
2012-06-11 16438 $150.00
2012-06-11 16468 $280.00
2012-06-11 16476 $487.00
2012-06-11 16533 $531.00
2012-06-11 16534 $531.00
2012-06-11 16416 $532.69
2012-06-11 16497 $537.00
2012-06-11 16479 $585.00
2012-06-11 16428 $597.00
2012-06-11 16425 $609.00
2012-06-11 16412 $633.00
2012-06-11 16475 $733.00
2012-06-11 16443 $757.00
2012-06-11 16471 $759.00
2012-06-11 16498 $759.00
2012-06-11 18991 $759.00
2012-06-11 16415 $809.00
2012-06-11 16555 $831.00
2012-06-11 16517 $881.00
2012-06-11 16518 $891.00
2012-06-11 16510 $958.00
2012-06-12 16629 $20.00
2012-06-12 16568 $82.39
2012-06-12 16562 $82.96
2012-06-12 16573 $84.36
2012-06-12 16574 $85.00
2012-06-12 16584 $87.60
2012-06-12 16647 $89.42
2012-06-12 16594 $93.22
2012-06-12 16606 $403.52
2012-06-12 16662 $549.00
2012-06-12 16550 $561.00
2012-06-12 16625 $573.00
2012-06-12 16595 $585.00
2012-06-12 16649 $683.00
2012-06-12 16596 $709.00
2012-06-12 16553 $783.00
2012-06-12 16561 $821.00
2012-06-12 16572 $831.00
2012-06-12 16624 $874.00
2012-06-13 16655 $76.73
2012-06-13 16749 $96.60
2012-06-13 16687 $132.76
2012-06-13 16652 $150.00
2012-06-13 16682 $178.60
2012-06-13 16723 $549.00
2012-06-13 16663 $561.00
2012-06-13 16762 $561.00
2012-06-13 16677 $573.00
2012-06-13 16679 $573.00
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2012-06-13 16694 $573.00
2012-06-13 16695 $597.00
2012-06-13 16751 $597.00
2012-06-13 16683 $621.00
2012-06-13 16690 $657.00
2012-06-13 16697 $669.00
2012-06-13 16759 $697.00
2012-06-13 16693 $732.00
2012-06-13 16727 $756.00
2012-06-13 16740 $805.00
2012-06-13 16722 $841.00
2012-06-13 16666 $869.00
2012-06-13 16719 $934.00
2012-06-13 16717 $953.00
2012-06-14 16811 $55.60
2012-06-14 16774 $57.43
2012-06-14 16815 $70.12
2012-06-14 16824 $83.10
2012-06-14 16789 $84.36
2012-06-14 16792 $87.74
2012-06-14 16822 $100.00
2012-06-14 16805 $150.00
2012-06-14 16813 $573.00
2012-06-14 16798 $585.00
2012-06-14 16853 $633.00
2012-06-14 16742 $783.00
2012-06-14 16850 $807.00
2012-06-14 16852 $833.00
2012-06-14 16865 $843.00
2012-06-14 16791 $869.00
2012-06-14 16750 $896.00
2012-06-14 16804 $941.00
2012-06-15 16977 $9.78
2012-06-15 16998 $70.26
2012-06-15 16949 $76.87
2012-06-15 16957 $83.61
2012-06-15 16930 $90.13
2012-06-15 16979 $120.29
2012-06-15 16920 $150.00
2012-06-15 16896 $537.00
2012-06-15 16940 $585.00
2012-06-15 16879 $597.00
2012-06-15 16984 $637.00
2012-06-15 16935 $721.00
2012-06-15 16855 $747.00
2012-06-15 16928 $747.00
2012-06-15 16962 $769.00
2012-06-15 16898 $783.00
2012-06-15 16975 $801.00
2012-06-15 16921 $845.00
2012-06-15 16960 $879.00
2012-06-15 16860 $951.00
2012-06-15 16939 $985.00
2012-06-15 16964 $989.00
2012-06-16 17037 $99.27
2012-06-16 17010 $150.00
2012-06-16 17031 $150.00
2012-06-16 17070 $150.00
2012-06-16 17065 $187.80
2012-06-16 17044 $242.47
2012-06-16 17086 $263.80
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2012-06-16 17114 $474.92
2012-06-16 17050 $537.00
2012-06-16 17003 $549.00
2012-06-16 17064 $597.00
2012-06-16 17095 $597.00
2012-06-16 17108 $633.00
2012-06-16 16972 $645.00
2012-06-16 17011 $693.00
2012-06-16 17035 $697.83
2012-06-16 17041 $721.00
2012-06-16 17025 $732.00
2012-06-16 17042 $745.00
2012-06-16 16981 $771.00
2012-06-16 17093 $797.00
2012-06-16 17058 $807.00
2012-06-16 16974 $843.00
2012-06-16 17106 $941.00
2012-06-16 17061 $973.00
2012-06-16 17078 $977.00
2012-06-17 17119 $83.24
2012-06-17 17193 $85.00
2012-06-17 17144 $86.89
2012-06-17 17185 $200.00
2012-06-17 17152 $518.58
2012-06-17 17076 $537.00
2012-06-17 17135 $537.00
2012-06-17 17158 $537.00
2012-06-17 17072 $561.00
2012-06-17 17173 $597.00
2012-06-17 17133 $633.00
2012-06-17 17195 $657.00
2012-06-17 17171 $783.00
2012-06-17 19511 $783.00
2012-06-17 17142 $809.00
2012-06-17 17138 $843.00
2012-06-17 17077 $869.00
2012-06-17 17125 $965.00
2012-06-18 17230 $52.75
2012-06-18 17238 $90.97
2012-06-18 17268 $125.00
2012-06-18 17232 $150.00
2012-06-18 17267 $150.00
2012-06-18 17254 $197.74
2012-06-18 17303 $535.00
2012-06-18 17283 $585.00
2012-06-18 17231 $591.24
2012-06-18 17289 $609.00
2012-06-18 17298 $657.00
2012-06-18 17224 $709.00
2012-06-18 17270 $733.00
2012-06-18 17172 $757.00
2012-06-18 17292 $765.00
2012-06-18 17260 $781.00
2012-06-18 17246 $805.00
2012-06-18 17302 $809.00
2012-06-18 17228 $819.00
2012-06-18 17176 $831.00
2012-06-18 17242 $833.00
2012-06-18 17203 $867.00
2012-06-18 17216 $941.00
2012-06-19 17276 $71.38
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2012-06-19 17340 $71.52
2012-06-19 17343 $87.46
2012-06-19 17351 $87.74
2012-06-19 17325 $89.00
2012-06-19 17352 $91.96
2012-06-19 17370 $150.00
2012-06-19 17326 $345.89
2012-06-19 17315 $430.64
2012-06-19 17328 $549.00
2012-06-19 17363 $561.00
2012-06-19 17379 $573.00
2012-06-19 17394 $585.00
2012-06-19 17347 $597.00
2012-06-19 17286 $621.00
2012-06-19 17342 $747.00
2012-06-19 17356 $747.00
2012-06-19 17376 $807.00
2012-06-19 17338 $819.00
2012-06-19 17354 $833.00
2012-06-19 17311 $845.00
2012-06-19 17387 $855.00
2012-06-20 17415 $82.49
2012-06-20 17474 $86.33
2012-06-20 17373 $89.00
2012-06-20 17418 $97.30
2012-06-20 17412 $112.34
2012-06-20 17458 $126.60
2012-06-20 17431 $150.00
2012-06-20 17479 $150.00
2012-06-20 17453 $280.00
2012-06-20 17428 $304.70
2012-06-20 17385 $561.00
2012-06-20 17407 $621.00
2012-06-20 17439 $705.00
2012-06-20 17456 $721.00
2012-06-20 17374 $733.00
2012-06-20 17401 $747.00
2012-06-20 17411 $795.00
2012-06-20 17473 $795.00
2012-06-20 17499 $833.00
2012-06-20 17432 $843.00
2012-06-20 17414 $845.00
2012-06-20 17490 $965.00
2012-06-20 17451 $970.00
2012-06-21 17494 $82.68
2012-06-21 17527 $83.24
2012-06-21 17483 $85.00
2012-06-21 17560 $88.44
2012-06-21 17523 $150.00
2012-06-21 17538 $150.00
2012-06-21 17576 $150.00
2012-06-21 17596 $150.00
2012-06-21 17606 $150.00
2012-06-21 17539 $165.80
2012-06-21 17528 $280.00
2012-06-21 17551 $280.00
2012-06-21 17607 $280.00
2012-06-21 17597 $549.00
2012-06-21 17600 $609.00
2012-06-21 17481 $621.00
2012-06-21 17579 $681.00
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2012-06-21 17517 $747.00
2012-06-21 17476 $759.00
2012-06-21 17540 $759.00
2012-06-21 17581 $792.00
2012-06-21 17470 $841.00
2012-06-21 17543 $869.00
2012-06-21 17514 $913.00
2012-06-21 17534 $917.00
2012-06-21 17489 $939.00
2012-06-21 17573 $973.00
2012-06-22 17693 $70.82
2012-06-22 17616 $85.00
2012-06-22 17678 $85.63
2012-06-22 17585 $150.00
2012-06-22 17620 $150.00
2012-06-22 18043 $150.00
2012-06-22 17655 $200.00
2012-06-22 17681 $499.00
2012-06-22 17708 $537.00
2012-06-22 17603 $561.00
2012-06-22 18041 $597.00
2012-06-22 17588 $633.00
2012-06-22 17648 $645.00
2012-06-22 17662 $681.00
2012-06-22 17580 $708.00
2012-06-22 17682 $753.00
2012-06-22 17602 $807.00
2012-06-22 17643 $819.00
2012-06-22 17634 $857.00
2012-06-22 20136 $857.00
2012-06-22 17637 $867.00
2012-06-22 17669 $881.00
2012-06-22 17716 $978.00
2012-06-22 17665 $1,053.00
2012-06-23 17774 $20.00
2012-06-23 17699 $82.91
2012-06-23 17700 $150.00
2012-06-23 17711 $150.00
2012-06-23 17826 $150.00
2012-06-23 17825 $282.53
2012-06-23 17735 $537.00
2012-06-23 17748 $549.00
2012-06-23 17794 $561.00
2012-06-23 17695 $573.00
2012-06-23 17792 $573.00
2012-06-23 17688 $603.00
2012-06-23 17834 $621.00
2012-06-23 17738 $645.00
2012-06-23 17739 $645.00
2012-06-23 17741 $645.00
2012-06-23 17734 $649.00
2012-06-23 17742 $747.00
2012-06-23 17737 $771.00
2012-06-23 17714 $783.00
2012-06-23 17782 $807.00
2012-06-23 17726 $831.00
2012-06-23 17765 $831.00
2012-06-23 17762 $915.00
2012-06-23 17784 $1,009.00
2012-06-24 17870 $85.35
2012-06-24 17851 $87.46
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2012-06-24 17864 $110.85
2012-06-24 17807 $150.00
2012-06-24 17855 $150.00
2012-06-24 17846 $517.83
2012-06-24 17805 $537.00
2012-06-24 17839 $561.00
2012-06-24 17847 $597.00
2012-06-24 17886 $639.00
2012-06-24 17883 $705.00
2012-06-24 17917 $747.00
2012-06-24 17830 $771.00
2012-06-24 17918 $797.00
2012-06-24 17875 $819.00
2012-06-24 17845 $917.00
2012-06-25 18018 $73.35
2012-06-25 18039 $76.87
2012-06-25 17936 $82.11
2012-06-25 17955 $83.80
2012-06-25 18000 $84.79
2012-06-25 18003 $85.00
2012-06-25 18004 $86.61
2012-06-25 17988 $88.02
2012-06-25 18023 $121.22
2012-06-25 17968 $150.00
2012-06-25 18036 $173.00
2012-06-25 17953 $280.00
2012-06-25 17981 $283.14
2012-06-25 17914 $521.80
2012-06-25 17975 $597.00
2012-06-25 18030 $669.00
2012-06-25 17903 $745.00
2012-06-25 18012 $769.00
2012-06-25 18053 $797.00
2012-06-25 18019 $809.00
2012-06-25 17938 $821.00
2012-06-25 17993 $821.00
2012-06-25 17951 $833.00
2012-06-25 17928 $854.00
2012-06-25 17913 $857.00
2012-06-25 17973 $869.00
2012-06-25 18052 $881.00
2012-06-25 17925 $905.00
2012-06-25 17935 $929.00
2012-06-26 18088 $87.03
2012-06-26 18126 $89.28
2012-06-26 18141 $97.30
2012-06-26 18166 $101.94
2012-06-26 18065 $187.80
2012-06-26 18128 $233.27
2012-06-26 18111 $537.00
2012-06-26 18119 $537.00
2012-06-26 18029 $549.00
2012-06-26 18164 $549.00
2012-06-26 18148 $561.00
2012-06-26 18074 $585.00
2012-06-26 18069 $609.00
2012-06-26 18120 $621.00
2012-06-26 18173 $759.00
2012-06-26 18115 $771.00
2012-06-26 18172 $783.00
2012-06-26 18154 $809.00
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2012-06-26 18137 $855.00
2012-06-26 18157 $869.00
2012-06-26 18135 $879.00
2012-06-26 18099 $929.00
2012-06-26 18127 $965.00
2012-06-27 18170 $87.32
2012-06-27 18185 $89.42
2012-06-27 18207 $92.25
2012-06-27 18168 $108.12
2012-06-27 18214 $139.00
2012-06-27 18178 $143.40
2012-06-27 18163 $150.00
2012-06-27 18252 $150.00
2012-06-27 18215 $291.55
2012-06-27 18224 $537.00
2012-06-27 18216 $561.00
2012-06-27 18161 $573.00
2012-06-27 18244 $585.00
2012-06-27 18199 $681.00
2012-06-27 18256 $735.00
2012-06-27 18186 $747.00
2012-06-27 18231 $771.00
2012-06-27 18212 $797.00
2012-06-27 18257 $809.00
2012-06-27 18223 $821.00
2012-06-27 18151 $833.00
2012-06-27 18274 $965.00
2012-06-28 18471 $20.00
2012-06-28 18298 $85.49
2012-06-28 18342 $124.20
2012-06-28 18290 $150.00
2012-06-28 18293 $150.90
2012-06-28 18282 $549.00
2012-06-28 18267 $611.00
2012-06-28 18320 $633.00
2012-06-28 18467 $635.00
2012-06-28 18472 $646.00
2012-06-28 18304 $669.00
2012-06-28 18258 $693.00
2012-06-28 18318 $733.00
2012-06-28 18350 $735.00
2012-06-28 18300 $759.00
2012-06-28 18271 $769.00
2012-06-28 18314 $771.00
2012-06-28 20862 $771.00
2012-06-28 18299 $805.00
2012-06-28 18302 $807.00
2012-06-28 18306 $821.00
2012-06-28 18288 $833.00
2012-06-28 18317 $843.00
2012-06-28 18322 $893.00
2012-06-28 18336 $893.00
2012-06-29 18446 $549.00
2012-06-29 18478 $747.00
2012-06-29 18391 $755.00
2012-06-29 18428 $759.00
2012-06-29 18386 $769.00
2012-06-29 18459 $795.00
2012-06-29 18477 $807.00
2012-06-29 18453 $831.00
2012-06-29 18413 $833.00
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2012-06-29 18427 $857.00
2012-06-29 18384 $869.00
2012-06-29 18438 $869.00
2012-06-29 18392 $905.00
2012-06-30 18537 $69.41
2012-06-30 18521 $88.86
2012-06-30 18557 $137.40
2012-06-30 18509 $150.00
2012-06-30 18590 $585.00
2012-06-30 18534 $599.00
2012-06-30 18476 $645.00
2012-06-30 18531 $681.00
2012-06-30 18558 $747.00
2012-06-30 18529 $759.00
2012-06-30 18553 $759.00
2012-06-30 18560 $759.00
2012-06-30 18523 $771.00
2012-06-30 18449 $795.00
2012-06-30 18487 $807.00
2012-06-30 18461 $809.00
2012-06-30 18533 $843.00
2012-06-30 18542 $845.00
2012-06-30 18530 $855.00
2012-06-30 18506 $857.00
2012-06-30 18488 $879.00
2012-06-30 18535 $891.00
2012-06-30 18463 $965.00
2012-07-01 18652 $82.82
2012-07-01 18602 $100.00
2012-07-01 18588 $150.00
2012-07-01 18637 $537.00
2012-07-01 18638 $549.00
2012-07-01 18657 $549.00
2012-07-01 18572 $561.00
2012-07-01 18564 $599.00
2012-07-01 18606 $645.00
2012-07-01 18614 $745.00
2012-07-01 18616 $745.00
2012-07-01 18601 $771.00
2012-07-01 18620 $783.00
2012-07-01 18632 $793.00
2012-07-01 18643 $795.00
2012-07-01 18598 $833.00
2012-07-01 18660 $845.00
2012-07-01 18658 $867.00
2012-07-01 18647 $881.00
2012-07-01 18633 $929.00
2012-07-01 18654 $951.00
2012-07-01 18639 $953.00
2012-07-01 18640 $977.00
2012-07-02 21089 $75.04
2012-07-02 18693 $76.44
2012-07-02 18685 $91.91
2012-07-02 18683 $150.00
2012-07-02 18722 $237.50
2012-07-02 18688 $549.00
2012-07-02 18694 $585.00
2012-07-02 18776 $597.00
2012-07-02 18772 $633.00
2012-07-02 18713 $697.00
2012-07-02 18779 $759.00
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2012-07-02 18656 $783.00
2012-07-02 18761 $829.00
2012-07-02 18770 $833.00
2012-07-02 18712 $845.00
2012-07-02 18780 $845.00
2012-07-02 18648 $869.00
2012-07-03 18812 $266.58
2012-07-03 18806 $508.73
2012-07-03 18838 $549.00
2012-07-03 18759 $561.00
2012-07-03 18851 $573.00
2012-07-03 18849 $597.00
2012-07-03 18750 $621.00
2012-07-03 18832 $645.00
2012-07-03 18793 $661.00
2012-07-03 18768 $669.00
2012-07-04 18898 $150.00
2012-07-04 18930 $150.00
2012-07-04 18871 $300.60
2012-07-04 18936 $407.00
2012-07-04 18896 $492.83
2012-07-04 18978 $537.00
2012-07-04 18835 $561.00
2012-07-04 18976 $561.00
2012-07-04 18893 $597.00
2012-07-04 18837 $609.00
2012-07-04 18880 $621.00
2012-07-04 18886 $681.00
2012-07-04 19001 $685.00
2012-07-04 18917 $697.00
2012-07-04 18899 $708.00
2012-07-04 18840 $747.00
2012-07-04 18916 $747.00
2012-07-04 18911 $757.00
2012-07-04 18882 $759.00
2012-07-04 18909 $781.00
2012-07-04 18881 $783.00
2012-07-04 18863 $819.00
2012-07-04 18900 $869.00
2012-07-04 18889 $989.00
2012-07-05 19105 $90.13
2012-07-05 19033 $92.66
2012-07-05 19112 $102.64
2012-07-05 19013 $125.00
2012-07-05 19027 $346.90
2012-07-05 19044 $549.00
2012-07-05 19040 $597.00
2012-07-05 19073 $597.00
2012-07-05 18996 $681.00
2012-07-05 18944 $733.00
2012-07-05 19022 $741.00
2012-07-05 19108 $759.00
2012-07-05 19081 $783.00
2012-07-05 18971 $833.00
2012-07-05 19087 $869.00
2012-07-05 19048 $893.00
2012-07-05 18974 $920.00
2012-07-05 19017 $951.00
2012-07-05 18962 $1,179.00
2012-07-06 19176 $20.00
2012-07-06 19160 $82.82
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2012-07-06 19141 $86.05
2012-07-06 19125 $87.46
2012-07-06 19082 $128.31
2012-07-06 19075 $549.00
2012-07-06 19140 $585.00
2012-07-06 19195 $585.00
2012-07-06 19138 $597.00
2012-07-06 19210 $609.00
2012-07-06 19157 $633.00
2012-07-06 19161 $681.00
2012-07-06 19130 $747.00
2012-07-06 19085 $809.00
2012-07-06 19136 $881.00
2012-07-06 19119 $963.00
2012-07-07 19239 $74.19
2012-07-07 19242 $86.61
2012-07-07 19321 $89.99
2012-07-07 19337 $126.60
2012-07-07 19266 $150.00
2012-07-07 19306 $150.00
2012-07-07 19339 $150.00
2012-07-07 19341 $150.00
2012-07-07 19281 $537.00
2012-07-07 19184 $549.00
2012-07-07 19257 $549.00
2012-07-07 19267 $573.00
2012-07-07 19323 $627.00
2012-07-07 19191 $759.00
2012-07-07 19252 $809.00
2012-07-07 19255 $824.00
2012-07-07 19314 $857.00
2012-07-07 19294 $869.00
2012-07-08 19289 $150.00
2012-07-08 19336 $150.00
2012-07-08 19350 $150.00
2012-07-08 19288 $313.46
2012-07-08 19378 $645.00
2012-07-08 19324 $733.00
2012-07-08 19373 $759.00
2012-07-08 19383 $759.00
2012-07-08 19386 $807.00
2012-07-08 19316 $843.00
2012-07-08 19397 $845.00
2012-07-08 19402 $855.00
2012-07-08 19401 $857.00
2012-07-08 19385 $867.00
2012-07-08 19305 $869.00
2012-07-08 19318 $893.00
2012-07-08 19296 $915.00
2012-07-09 19466 $78.27
2012-07-09 19421 $150.00
2012-07-09 19420 $200.00
2012-07-09 19453 $518.33
2012-07-09 19439 $537.00
2012-07-09 19424 $549.00
2012-07-09 19461 $573.00
2012-07-09 19484 $585.00
2012-07-09 19449 $609.00
2012-07-09 19444 $633.00
2012-07-09 19492 $672.00
2012-07-09 19462 $717.00
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2012-07-09 19478 $745.00
2012-07-09 19465 $757.00
2012-07-09 19432 $843.00
2012-07-09 19426 $845.00
2012-07-09 19451 $855.00
2012-07-09 19482 $879.00
2012-07-09 19476 $913.00
2012-07-09 19406 $953.00
2012-07-10 19521 $549.00
2012-07-10 19620 $549.00
2012-07-10 19531 $561.00
2012-07-10 19506 $573.00
2012-07-10 19557 $623.00
2012-07-10 19527 $633.00
2012-07-10 19488 $733.00
2012-07-10 19607 $783.00
2012-07-10 19591 $833.00
2012-07-10 19553 $857.00
2012-07-10 19611 $869.00
2012-07-10 19491 $905.00
2012-07-10 19605 $905.00
2012-07-10 19580 $917.00
2012-07-10 19500 $941.00
2012-07-10 19584 $1,005.00
2012-07-11 19662 $85.49
2012-07-11 19586 $549.00
2012-07-11 19585 $843.00
2012-07-11 19698 $881.00
2012-07-11 19608 $941.00
2012-07-12 19805 $69.39
2012-07-12 19749 $150.00
2012-07-12 19791 $150.00
2012-07-12 19711 $429.07
2012-07-12 19746 $477.19
2012-07-12 19777 $683.00
2012-07-12 19786 $833.00
2012-07-12 19793 $1,490.00
2012-07-13 19913 $150.00
2012-07-13 19856 $486.81
2012-07-13 19886 $549.00
2012-07-13 19889 $549.00
2012-07-13 19816 $645.00
2012-07-14 19907 $150.00
2012-07-14 19908 $869.00
2012-07-14 19941 $869.00
2012-07-15 19989 $150.00
2012-07-15 20110 $729.00
2012-07-16 20176 $150.00
2012-07-17 20295 $585.00
2012-07-17 20293 $857.00
2012-07-17 20302 $893.00
2012-07-18 20344 $150.00
2012-07-18 20386 $809.00
2012-07-18 20365 $845.00
2012-07-18 20420 $881.00
2012-07-18 20370 $927.00
2012-07-19 20492 $759.00
2012-07-19 20431 $941.00
2012-07-20 20547 $150.00
2012-07-20 20569 $150.00
2012-07-20 20582 $150.00
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2012-07-20 20605 $150.00
2012-07-21 20656 $881.00
2012-07-22 20809 $975.00
2012-07-24 21028 $583.00
2012-07-24 21004 $809.00
2012-07-25 21135 $747.00
2012-07-26 21303 $77.60
2012-07-26 21197 $585.00
2012-07-26 21219 $585.00
2012-07-26 21306 $585.00
2012-07-26 21242 $857.00
2012-07-27 21319 $561.00
2012-07-28 21481 $549.00
2012-07-28 21436 $717.00
2012-08-01 21801 $549.00
2012-08-03 22028 $573.00
2012-08-03 22095 $573.00
2012-08-05 22203 $561.00
2012-08-05 22299 $857.00
2012-08-09 22748 $573.00
2012-08-09 22762 $597.00
2012-08-11 22927 $809.00
2012-08-11 22901 $898.00
2012-08-12 23021 $721.00
2012-08-12 22952 $855.00
2012-08-17 23589 $561.00
2012-08-17 23604 $733.00
2012-08-17 23601 $759.00
2012-08-18 23692 $100.00
2012-08-23 24088 $977.00
2012-08-25 24347 $537.00
2012-08-25 24345 $549.00
2012-08-25 24395 $729.00
2012-08-26 24404 $597.00
2012-08-26 24469 $597.00
2012-08-28 24699 $721.00
2012-08-29 24825 $573.00
2012-08-31 25034 $709.00
2012-09-01 25229 $759.00
2012-09-02 25285 $857.00
2012-09-17 26782 $809.00
2012-09-21 27127 $721.00
2012-09-21 27325 $874.00
2012-10-12 29299 $637.00
2012-10-16 29640 $633.00
# of Transports 4435 Total amount for write-off $2,142,106.92



   

AI-4053     County Administrator's Report      9. 4.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Distributions to the Escambia County School District Pursuant to Section
212.20(6)(d)6a, Fla. Stat.

From: George Touart, Interim County Administrator
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Distributions to the Escambia County School District - George
Touart, Interim County Administrator

That the Board authorize the Chairman to send a letter to the Florida Department of Revenue
informing them that the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners is aware that
proceeds available to Counties, pursuant to Section 212.20(6)(d)6a, Florida Statutes, are being
directed to the Escambia County School District. 

BACKGROUND:
Based on Chapter 57-105, Laws of Florida, and previous decisions of Escambia County
Leadership, these funds have long been provided to the Escambia County School District.  At
this time, the Board of County Commissioners acknowledges the presence of these funds and
expresses its position that these funds continue to be provided to the Escambia County School
District.  The Board of County Commissioners does not intend to take action or otherwise
request that these funds be directed to the Board of County Commissioners.  It is the Board's
hope that these funds continue to be used by the School District for teachers' salaries and that
the Chairman's letter will memorialize this arrangement for the future.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The money is considered County Revenues; however, for at least 10 years the funds have been
remitted to the District School Board.  This recommendation will allow these County funds to
continue to be sent to the School District.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A



N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
backup for distributions to the escambia county school district

























   

AI-4059     County Administrator's Report      9. 5.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Escambia/Pensacola 2014-2016 State Housing Initiatives Partnership Local
Housing Assistance Plan, Resolution and Interlocal Agreement

From: Keith Wilkins, Department Director
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Escambia/Pensacola 2014-2016 State Housing Initiatives
Partnership Local Housing Assistance Plan - Keith Wilkins, Community & Environment
Department Director

That the Board take the following action regarding the Escambia/Pensacola 2014-2016 State
Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Local Housing Assistance Plan:

A. Adopt the Resolution approving the Escambia/Pensacola 2014-2016 SHIP Local Housing
Assistance Plan, including SHIP financed affordable housing strategies, specified eligibility and
beneficiary definitions, average and maximum SHIP award limitations, fiscal and administrative
provisions, description of affordable housing incentives, annual program service delivery goals,
and required SHIP certifications.  Projected SHIP funding (estimated program income only) for
each year of the three-year Plan period is: 2014 $100,000; 2015 $100,000; and 2016 $100,000; 

B. Approve the SHIP Program Escambia/Pensacola Interlocal Agreement with the City of
Pensacola providing for joint implementation and administration of the Escambia/Pensacola
SHIP Program and the Escambia/Pensacola Local Housing Assistance Plan;  

C. Authorize staff to revise the SHIP budgetary allocations within the approved Plan or between
the approved strategies to accurately reflect actual funding distributions provided by Florida
Housing Finance Corporation (FHFC); and 

D. Authorize the Chairman and/or the Interim County Administrator, as appropriate, to execute
all documents required to submit, receive, and implement the SHIP Plan and all related
activities.

[Funding:  Fund 120, SHIP.  Funds will be budgeted in Fiscal Year 2014]

BACKGROUND:
The Sadowski Affordable Housing Act, as approved by the Legislature in 1992, was designed to



The Sadowski Affordable Housing Act, as approved by the Legislature in 1992, was designed to
provide a continuous funding source for the construction, rehabilitation, or preservation of
affordable housing in Florida. The funds have been made available to each of the 67 counties
and most municipalities in the State through the Florida Housing Finance Corporation (FHFC). 
With the approval of the Board and City Council, the County and City of Pensacola have jointly
received and successfully administered three year Plans for the periods 1993-1995, 1996-1998,
1999-2001, 2002-2004, 2005-2007, 2008-2010 and 2011-2013 (see  Exhibit I for previous
Board approval of the 2011-2013 Plan). In cooperation with numerous local banks and mortgage
companies; local private and non-profit builders and developers; Pensacola Habitat for
Humanity, Inc.; Community Enterprise Investments, Inc.; AMR at Pensacola, Inc.; Circle, Inc.;
Loaves and Fishes Soup Kitchen, Inc.; Rural Development; the EscaRosa Homeless Coalition;
and local neighborhood organizations, the SHIP financed activities have assisted over 4,400
local families in attaining or maintaining affordable housing in the community. The SHIP
Program has been an invaluable tool in enhancing the delivery of affordable housing services.
These figures do not include units produced through the Hurricane Housing Recovery Program
(HHRP) allocation. Unfortunately, the State Legislature failed to fully fund the SHIP program for
the last three years, but the current session holds promise for renewed funding for SHIP
beginning in State Fiscal Year 2014. 

In order to continue to receive SHIP funding for the upcoming three year period (June 1,
2013-June 30, 2016), prior to May 2, 2013, the participating jurisdictions must approve by
Resolution and submit a locally approved 2014-2016 Local Housing Assistance Plan, and
related supporting documents based on the requirements stipulated in Chapter 420 F.S., and
FHFC Administrative Rule 67 37. The recommended Escambia/Pensacola Plan has been
prepared through the joint efforts of the Pensacola Housing Department and Neighborhood
Enterprise Foundation, Inc. (NEFI) in accordance with governing regulations and Florida
Housing Finance Corporation (FHFC) directives. The Housing Assistance Plan and related
certifications provide details concerning the utilization of these funds for the 2014-2016 period,
their integration with other affordable housing financing resources, funding distributions and
limitations thereto, and public input requirements associated with development and
implementation of the planned activities. 

The three year Plan includes projected SHIP Program income of $300,000. The Plan budget line
items ONLY reflect anticipated SHIP Program Income, however the Plan has been fashioned in
a manner that will allow revision based upon actual funding levels approved by the Legislature
and distributed by FHFC. It should be clearly stated that the funding for the SHIP Program is
totally uncertain at this early juncture in the 2013 Florida legislative session. All funds must be
used to support affordable homeownership and rental rehabilitation or development activities,
with a minimum of 75% of the funds targeting homeownership. At least 30% of the funds must
benefit very low income families (at or below 50% of area median income), with an additional
30% benefitting low income families (at or below 80% of area median income). The activities are
generally available to assist low and moderate income families throughout the County, including
the City of Pensacola and the Town of Century. A complete copy the Local Housing Assistance
Plan is attached as  Exhibit II. Utilization of SHIP funds for the 2014-2016 Plan is summarized
as follows:

2014-2016 LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PLAN STRATEGIES
PLANNED ACTIVITY (Projected)                    2013/2014      2014/2015      2015/2016
 
SHIP LOCAL 25% MATCH FOR ESCAMBIA
CONSORTIUM HUD HOME PROGRAM:    



Replacement Housing: Substantial                    $ 0                   $ 0                     $ 0 
Rehabilitation/Reconstruction
(owner occupied units)  

SHIP LOCAL (NON HOME MATCH) 
PROJECT ACTIVITIES:

Purchase Assistance (Down Payment/              $ 60,000          $ 60,000           $ 60,000 
Closing Cost Assistance )

Housing Repair Assistance                                $ 35,000          $ 35,000           $ 35,000

New Construction (Ownership Housing             $ 0                  $ 0                     $ 0 

Production)Rental/Special Needs Housing         $ 0                  $ 0                     $ 0 
   
"Optional" Assistance:
Disaster/Mitigation Emergency Housing             $ 0                  $ 0                     $ 0 
Repair (invoked only in a declared disaster) 

Program Administration/Operation                     $   5,000       $   5,000           $   5,000
(County/NEFIand City Housing Office
program management)

ANNUALIZED PROGRAM TOTALS                  $100,000       $100,000            $100,000
                                                                     

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
SHIP funds are deposited and tracked through the Local Housing Assistance Trust Fund. The
fund is established in the County's fiscal system as FUND 120/SHIP. Upon approval of this Plan
by the FHFC, the 2014 SHIP funds will be budgeted in County FY 2014 in Fund 120 and
revenue will be received monthly through distributions by FHFC. Projected SHIP funding from
program income for each year of the three year Plan period is $100,000, subject to revision
based on actual legislative appropriations. No County general fund revenue is required for this
program.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The SHIP Program Resolution, the Escambia/Pensacola SHIP Program Interlocal Agreement
and the SHIP Certifications have been reviewed and approved by Kristin Hual, Assistant County
Attorney.

PERSONNEL:
There will be no impact upon County personnel or positions as a result of the Board's approval
of the SHIP Plan. Preparation of the Plan and implementation of the individual SHIP funded
activities is administered by existing NEFI staff, City of Pensacola staff and/or staff of the SHIP
participating agencies.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The SHIP Plan requires formal approval by the Board and City Council prior to submission to



The SHIP Plan requires formal approval by the Board and City Council prior to submission to
FHFC.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
With Board approval of the Plan on April 2, 2013, and subsequent approval by the Pensacola
City Council on April 11, 2013, the document will be executed by all parties and forwarded to
FHFC prior to the May 2, 2013 deadline. The SHIP Program is jointly managed by NEFI and the
Pensacola Housing Office. Through agreements with lenders and local agencies, the f
affordable housing activities cited herein will be implemented with NEFI and the City performing
fiscal and regulatory oversight, client documentation, monitoring, and reporting functions. Many
Plan details are subject to the budgetary allocations to be approved in the 2013 Florida
Legislative session. Completion of the SHIP Plan process has necessitated extensive
coordination with many sectors of the local community, such as: public and private affordable
housing interests; County Departments and Divisions with respect to SHIP project activities; non
profit public service agencies; agencies of the State of Florida, including FHFC; local public
housing authorities; organizations providing services to the homeless; County and City of
Pensacola administrative and program staff; interested citizens; and low/moderate income
families.

Attachments
Exhibit I
Exhibit II 
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PUBLIC FORUM WORK SESSION AND REGULAR BCC MEETING MINUTES – Continued 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT – Continued 

 I. TECHNICAL/PUBLIC SERVICE CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 

 1-9. Approval of Various Consent Agenda Items – Continued 

 6. Approving the Special Event Permit Application for a limited waiver of the noise 
restrictions imposed by the Escambia County Noise Abatement Ordinance, in 
conjunction with outdoor activities being held by the Relay for Life, sponsored by the 
American Cancer Society, at the Tate High School Stadium, located at 1771 Tate Road, 
Cantonment, Florida, from 6:00 p.m., Friday, April 30, 2010, to 12:00 p.m. (noon), 
Saturday, May 1, 2010. 

 7. Approving the updated Escambia County Hurricane Evacuation Zones, as delineated on 
the map, as a result of the State of Florida’s effort to update the 1999 Northwest Florida 
Hurricane Evacuation Study. 

 8. Authorizing the scheduling (and advertising) of a Public Hearing for April 22, 2010, at 
5:31 p.m., for consideration of (adopting an Ordinance) amending Article I, Chapter 10, 
Sections 10-3 and 10-16, of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances; this amendment 
to the Cruelty to Animals provision of the proposed Ordinance provides for definition and 
restrictions on tethering animals. 

 9. Taking the following action regarding the Escambia/Pensacola 2011-2013 State Housing 
Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Local Housing Assistance Plan: 

  A. Adopting a Resolution (R2010-59) adopting the Escambia/Pensacola 2011-2013 
SHIP Local Housing Assistance Plan, including SHIP-financed, affordable housing 
strategies, specified eligibility and beneficiary definitions, average and maximum 
SHIP award limitations, fiscal and administrative provisions, description of affordable 
housing incentives, annual program service delivery goals, and required SHIP 
certifications;

  B. Approving the SHIP Program Interlocal Agreement with the City of Pensacola 
providing for joint implementation and administration of the Escambia/Pensacola 
SHIP Program and the Escambia/Pensacola Local Housing Assistance Plan; and 

  C. Authorizing the Chairman and/or Interim County Administrator, as appropriate, to 
execute all documents required to submit, receive, and implement the SHIP Local 
Housing Assistance Plan and all related activities. 

Randy
Text Box

Randy
Text Box
     EXHIBIT I 
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I. PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
  
 A. Name of the participating local government and Interlocal if Applicable: 
     
  Escambia County and City of Pensacola   
   
  Interlocal : Yes  XXX   No_______ 
  Name of participating local government(s) in the Interlocal Agreement; 
  Escambia County and City of Pensacola     
  A copy of the Interlocal Agreement is attached as Exhibit H.  
  
 B. Purpose of the program: 
  Creation of the Plan is for the purpose of meeting the housing needs of the very   
  low, low and moderate income households, to expand production of and preserve  
  affordable housing, to further the housing element of the local government   
  comprehensive plan specific to affordable housing.   
  
 C. Fiscal years covered by the Plan:  
  
  2013/2014 
  2014/2015    
              2015/2016 
 
 D. Governance: 
  The SHIP Program is established in accordance with Section 420.907-9079,   
  Florida Statutes and Chapter 67-37 Florida Administrative Code.   

The SHIP Program does further the housing element of the local government 
Comprehensive Plan.  Cities and Counties must be in compliance with these  
applicable statutes and rules. 

  
 E. Local Housing Partnership  
  SHIP Program encourages building active partnerships between government,   
  lenders, builders and developers, real estate professionals, advocates for low-  
  income persons and community groups. 
  

F. Leveraging: 
The Plans are intended to increase the availability of affordable residential units by 
combining local resources and cost saving measures into a local housing  partnership and 
using public and private funds to reduce the cost of housing.   SHIP funds may be leveraged 
with or used to supplement other Florida Housing Finance Corporation programs and to 
provide local match to obtain federal housing grants or programs. 

 
 G. Public Input:  
  Public input was solicited through face to face meetings with housing providers, social   
                          service providers and local lenders and neighborhood associations. Public input was  
                          solicited through the local newspaper in the advertising of the Local Housing Assistance  
                          Plan and the Notice of Funding Availability. 
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 H. Advertising and Outreach   
  The county or eligible municipality or its administrative representative shall advertise  
  the notice of funding availability in a newspaper of general circulation and periodicals  
  serving ethnic and diverse neighborhoods, at least 30 days before the beginning of the  
  application period. If no funding is available due to a waiting list, no notice of funding  
  availability is required. 
 
 I. Discrimination:   
  In accordance with the provisions of ss.760.20-760.37, it is unlawful to discriminate on  
  the basis of race, creed, religion, color, age, sex, marital status, familial status, national  
  origin, or handicap in the award application process for eligible housing. 
   
 J. Support Services and Counseling:  
  Support services are available from various sources.  Available support services   
  may include but are not limited to: 
  Homeownership Counseling (Pre and Post), Credit Counseling, Tenant    
  Counseling (as applicable) 
 
 K. Purchase Price Limits:  
   The sales price or value of new or existing eligible housing may not exceed 90% of 

the average area purchase price in the statistical area in which the eligible housing is located.  
Such average area purchase price may be that calculated for any 12-month period beginning 
not earlier than the fourth calendar year prior to the year in which the award occurs.  The 
sales price of new and existing units, which can be lower but may not exceed 90% of the 
median area purchase price established by the U.S. Treasury Department or as described 
above.  

  The methodology used is: 
  _____ Independent Study (copy attached) 
  _XX_ U.S. Treasury Department 
  _____  Local HFA Numbers 

The purchase price limit for new and existing homes is shown on the Housing Delivery 
Goals Charts 

  
 L. Income Limits, Rent Limits and Affordability: 

The Income and Rent Limits used in the SHIP Program are updated annually from 
the Department of Housing and Urban Development and distributed by Florida Housing 
Finance Corporation.  Affordable means that monthly rents or mortgage payments including 
taxes and insurance do not exceed 30 percent of that amount which represents the percentage 
of the median annual gross income for the households as indicated in Sections 420.9071  
F.S.  However it is not the intent to limit an individual household’s ability to devote more 
than 30% of its income for housing, and housing for which a household devotes more than 
30% of its income shall be deemed Affordable if the first institutional mortgage lender is 
satisfied that the household can afford mortgage payments in excess of the 30% benchmark 
and in the case of rental housing does not exceed those rental limits adjusted for bedroom 
size. 

  
 M. Welfare Transition Program:  

Should an eligible sponsor be used, the city/county has developed a qualification system and 
selection    criteria   for  Awards  to    eligible  sponsors,  which   includes  a  description that  
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demonstrates how eligible sponsors that employ personnel from the Welfare Transition 
Program will be given preference in the selection process.   

  
 N. Monitoring and First Right of Refusal:   
  In the case of rental housing, the staff or entity that has administrative authority 
  for implementing the local housing assistance plan assisting rental developments 

shall annually monitor and determine tenant eligibility or, to the extent another   
 governmental entity provides the same monitoring and determination, a    
 municipality, county or local housing financing authority may rely on such    
 monitoring and determination of tenant eligibility.  However, any loan or 

  grant in the original amount of $3,000 or less shall not be subject to these   
  annual monitoring and determination of tenant eligibility requirements.  Tenant   
  eligibility will be monitored at least annually for 15 years or the term of     
                     assistance which ever is longer unless as specified above. 
 
  Eligible sponsors that offer rental housing for sale before 15 years or that have   
  remaining mortgages funded under this program must give a first right of refusal to  
  eligible nonprofit organizations for purchase at the current  market value for   
  continued occupancy by eligible persons. 
  

O. Administrative Budget:   
A detailed listing including line-item budget of proposed Administrative   

 Expenditures is attached as Exhibit A.  These are presented on an    
 annual basis for each State fiscal year submitted.   
 

Escambia County and the City of Pensacola find that the moneys deposited in the local 
housing assistance trust fund shall be used to administer and implement the local housing 
assistance plan.  
Section 420.9075 Florida Statute and Chapter 67-37, Florida Administrative Code, 
states:   
“A county or an eligible municipality may not exceed the 5 percent limitation on 
administrative costs, unless its governing body finds, by resolution, that 5 percent of the local 
housing distribution plus 5 percent of program income is insufficient to adequately pay the 
necessary costs of administering the local housing assistance plan.”   
Section 420.9075 Florida Statute and Chapter 67-37, Florida Administrative Code, 
further states:     
 “The cost of administering the program may not exceed 10 percent of the local housing 
distribution plus 5% of program income deposited into the trust fund, except that small 
counties, as defined in s. 120.52(17), and eligible municipalities receiving a local housing 
distribution of up to $350,000 may use up to 10 percent of program income for 
administrative costs.” 

  The applicable local jurisdiction has adopted the above findings in the attached resolution, 
  Exhibit E.   
 

P. PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION:   
Administration of the local housing assistance plan is the responsibility of Escambia County 
and the City of Pensacola.   Should a third party entity or consultant contract for all or part of 
the administrative or other functions of the program, provide in detail the duties, qualification 
and selection criteria.   



SHIP LHAP Template 2013 
67-37.005(1), F.A.C. 

Effective Date:  11/09 

 
 

- 6 -

  
Q. Essential Service Personnel:  Counties and eligible municipalities are required to include a 

definition of Essential Services Personnel as noted in Rule Chapter 67-37.002(8) F.A.C., Chapter 
67-37.005(10), F.A.C. and Section 420.9075(3), F.S.   
 
Implementation of the 2014-2016 SHIP Local Housing Assistance Plan is anticipated to 
impact “essential service personnel” as defined in the governing regulations.  For 
purposes of this Plan, Escambia County and the City of Pensacola have determined that 
“essential service personnel” shall include persons in need of affordable housing who 
meet all of the following requirements: 
 
(1) are permanently employed by a company or organization located within Escambia 

County, the City of Pensacola or the Town of Century, all lying within Escambia 
County, Florida; in one of the following categories: 

 
 Local or State Law Enforcement, Fire, Rescue, and Emergency Services,  

             Public Safety and Emergency Management  
 Teachers, Educators, and School District personnel in the public, private    

             and university systems 
 Health Care Professionals and support personnel 
 Tourism Industry professionals and employees   
 Judicial/Court System management and support personnel 
 Service Industry personnel (including child care, hospitality, and food 

             service)  
 
(2) have maximum annual income at or below 120% of the Pensacola MSA median 

income as defined in the SHIP Rule 67-37. 
 

R. Section 420.9075(3)(d), F.S.:  Requires counties and eligible municipalities to describe 
initiatives in their local housing assistance plans that encourage or require innovative 
design, green building principles, storm resistant construction or other elements that 
reduce long term costs relating to maintenance, utilities or insurance.  Provide a brief 
description as required: 
 
Brief Description:  The County and City shall, through implementation of the various SHIP 
housing strategies, encourage and support green, storm resistant, and low maintenance 
construction, including energy efficient features that are economically sound with respect to the 
goals and beneficiaries of each strategy. 
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Section II.   LHAP HOUSING STRATEGIES:   
 

                 A.  STRATEGY 1.  Purchase Assistance  
 
  a.   Summary of the Strategy:  

Brief Description: 
SHIP funds will be made available to support down payment and closing costs 
for the purchase of an existing or newly constructed affordable housing unit on a 
one-time basis to income eligible homebuyers including very low, low and 
moderate income families.  Assistance shall be tailored to the individual 
affordability and financing needs of the participating homebuyer to enable the 
purchase of an existing or newly constructed home which does not exceed the 
maximum total cost as identified below.  Permanent first mortgage financing 
(exceeding the SHIP Purchase Assistance) will be provided through financial 
institutions, the single family bond program and/or private developers/contractors 
without local guarantee, thereby leveraging a significant volume of private sector 
financing. However, this strategy is primarily focused upon assisting families 
with incomes below 80% of area median income.  

 
  b.   Fiscal Years Covered:  2013/2014, 2014/2015, 2015/2016 
 
  c.   Income Categories to be served: 

                                          No families shall be assisted with incomes exceeding 120% of median income.   
 
  d.   Maximum award: 

The maximum award level for this strategy is stipulated in the HDGC. 

   e.    Terms, Recapture and Default:  

Deferred Payment Loan (DPL) at 0% interest secured by mortgage and note. 
The term is currently set at five (5) years and the loan is forgiven in annual 
increments over the term of the mortgage assuming compliance with all 
requirements.  The sale, rental, refinancing or transfer of ownership during the 
mortgage term shall be a default whereupon the SHIP investment shall be repaid 
(repayment in full required for defaults within one year of purchase, and 
repayment of the undepreciated portion is required for default after the initial 
year).   

 
   f.    Recipient Selection Criteria: 

      Assistance provided on a first qualified /first served basis following annual 
advertisement of the availability of SHIP resources.  

 
   g.    Sponsor Selection Criteria:  

Not applicable to this strategy. 

   h.    Additional Information:  NONE 
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B.  STRATEGY 2.  Replacement Housing (Substantial Rehabilitation/  
                                Reconstruction) 

                                  
 a.    Summary of the Strategy:    

            Brief Description:  
The City of Pensacola and Escambia County formed a local Consortium for 
purposes of receiving Federal, State, and/or other funds that support the local 
mission of enhancing housing affordability.  Such resources often require a cash 
match or local leverage to receive the funds. Examples of such programs 
include, but are not limited to: HOME, Florida Housing Finance Corporation 
(FHFC) Programs, U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD), Rural Development/USDA, Federal Home Loan Bank, and other 
Federal, State and local affordable housing initiatives. The local cash matching 
is unavailable except through the resources provided by the SHIP Program.  
These very limited funds will be committed at the time of award of the various 
non-SHIP funding allocations to the County or City. The local cash leveraging 
and matching requirements are estimated for each Program Year in the HDGC, 
however, funds expended for leveraging or matching will ultimately reflect the 
actual amount required to effectively participate in the various programs and 
initiatives.  
 

  b.    Fiscal Years Covered:     2013/2014, 2014/2015, 2015/2016 
  
  c.    Income Categories to be served:   

All homes assisted through this activity must be occupied by Low and Very 
Low Income families (i.e., with incomes below 80% of the median income).  

 
  d.     Maximum award:  
                                The maximum award levels for this strategy are stipulated in the HDGC. 

  e.     Terms, Recapture and Default: 
Substantial Rehabilitation/Reconstruction: Deferred Payment Grant  (forgivable 
after five years); Deferred Payment  Loan  at 0% interest  due and payable upon 
sale, transfer or rental of the subject unit; or Low Interest Loan at 5% interest 
with a maximum 30 year repayment period, or a combination thereof based 
upon level of family  income (maximum household income cannot exceed 80% 
of median).  A written description of the current CDBG and HOME Program 
sliding scale that is utilized by Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation, Inc. 
(NEFI)/Escambia County and Pensacola Housing to determine the level and 
type of assistance to be provided to eligible clients is by contacting Escambia 
County via wrwilker@myescambia.com or the City of Pensacola via 
MWhitaker@cityofpensacola.com   Loans secured by mortgage and note.  The 
sale, rental, refinancing or transfer of ownership during the mortgage term shall 
be a default whereupon the SHIP investment shall be repaid. Full repayment is 
required if the default occurs within one of purchase).   
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                         f.    Recipient Selection Criteria:   

                                          Assistance provided on a first qualified/first served basis following 
advertisement of   the availability of SHIP resources. When an extensive waiting 
list exists for the strategy, applicants are added to the list in first come/first 
served order.   

 
 g.    Sponsor Selection Criteria:    

This strategy will be implemented directly by Escambia County and City of 
Pensacola Housing staff and/or committed directly to eligible homeowners 
participating in this or similar programs.   

           
            h. Additional Information: Green, storm resistant, and low maintenance 

construction, including energy efficient features will be included in the design of 
these homes and may include the following: high density insulation, exterior  

                  thermal barriers; windows that exceed “Energy Star” requirements; water 
conserving toilets and faucets and Energy Star appliances. 

 
C.   STRATEGY 3.   Housing Repair    

  a.   Summary of the Strategy:     
Brief Description: 
SHIP funds will be used to provide moderate rehabilitation or emergency repair   
assistance grants for very low and low income owner occupied homes to address 
roofing, electrical, plumbing, sanitary disposal, life/safety conditions, structural 
code deficiencies, code citations, energy efficiency and other related repairs.    

 
        b.  Fiscal Years Covered:   2013/2014, 2014/2015, 2015/2016 
 
    c.   Income Categories to be served: 

All of the homes repaired through this activity will be owned by families   with 
incomes below 80% of the median income.  Priority may be given to families 
with incomes below 50% of the median income and/or cases which involve 
local government code enforcement citations. 

 
    d.   Maximum award: 

The maximum award level for this strategy is stipulated in the HDGC. 
 
    e.   Terms, Recapture and Default:    

Deferred Payment Loan at 0% Homeowner.  Secured by officially recorded 
lien that is fully forgivable at the end of 5 years. In the event of default, the 
loan is forgivable at the rate of 20% per year over the 5 year lien period, with  
the unforgiven balance to be repaid by the homeowner upon default.  Default is 
defined as the sale, rental or transfer of ownership of the property during the 
five year period.  
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        f.   Recipient Selection Criteria: 

Assistance provided on a first qualified/first served basis  following  annual  
advertisement of the availability of  SHIP resources.  

 
    g.   Sponsor Selection Criteria:  

Unless implemented directly by City or County/NEFI staff, selection will be 
based upon responses to an advertised request for proposal. Selection criteria 
will include: 
 

a) past experience of agency in managing emergency or moderate housing 
repair assistance activities;  

b) projected SHIP cost per housing unit;  
c) commitment of non-SHIP funds as leverage for SHIP dollars 
d) unit production goals for housing repair in relation to SHIP funds 
        requested  
e)  commitment to use green building technologies, energy efficiency 

measures, and/or use of recycled building materials or components in the 
repair or preservation of housing units; 

f) commitment to limit assistance to very low income families; and  
 g)  documentation of the agency's employment or planned employment of  

personnel from the Welfare Transition Program shall result in a priority 
for award of SHIP funds assuming the agency demonstrates capacity to 
implement the subject activity.   

 
Proposals meeting the RFP requirements will be evaluated by the County and 
City Housing staff, or a committee comprised of County and City 
representatives, to determine the agency or organization that will implement 
the strategy. Final selection and contract approval will be provided by the 
County Commission and City Council.  The RFP may solicit participation for 
the full three year HAP period.   

 
    h.  Additional Information:  Depending on the type and extent of repair, the 

City and County will encourage the use of green, storm resistant, and low 
maintenance construction, including energy efficient features in the 
completion of repairs to homes assisted through this strategy. 

 
  D.  STRATEGY 4. New Construction   

 
        a.    Summary of the Strategy:   

Brief Description: 
SHIP funds will be made available to area non-profit housing agencies, 
non-profit housing developers and/or for-profit developers to partially 
underwrite the costs of constructing affordable homes for families that cannot 
otherwise qualify for a mortgage through normal lending channels. These  
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funds will enhance affordability and enable the non-profit housing sector to 
increase the number of affordable housing units produced for SHIP eligible 
homebuyers within the local area. The focus of this strategy is upon unit 
production primarily targeting very low income families.   All or a portion of 
the SHIP funds invested into the unit will be converted to principal mortgage 
reduction assistance upon sale of the home to a SHIP eligible buyer (amount 
based on individual buyer financing needs).  

 
      b.    Fiscal Years Covered:  2013/2014, 2014/2015, 2015/2016 
 
         c.   Income Categories to be served: 

A minimum of 50% of the families purchasing homes through this activity 
must have incomes below 50% of the median income. All remaining families 
must have incomes that do not exceed 80% of median income. 

 
       d.   Maximum award: 
                                  The maximum award level for this strategy is stipulated in the HDGC. 
 
         e.   Terms, Recapture and Default:    

Deferred Payment Loan at 0% interest secured by mortgage and note due and 
payable upon default. Typical SHIP mortgage term is 5 years. For non-profit 
sponsored housing programs assisted through this Strategy that require sweat 
equity or other demonstrated commitment by the homebuyer prior to receiving 
ownership, it is allowable for the buyer to enter a short-term lease-purchase 
option upon initial occupancy of the SHIP assisted housing unit, however, in 
all instances, the conversion to permanent homeownership status shall occur 
within the applicable SHIP expenditure deadlines. The lease-purchase 
agreement shall stipulate compliance requirements of the prospective 
homebuyer during the maximum two year lease period. Compliance shall be 
monitored by the recipient agency an/or the County/NEFI.  Upon successful 
completion of the lease period, the homebuyer shall receive title to the property 
upon recording of a first (primary lender) mortgage and soft second (SHIP) 
mortgage.   Repayment shall be required upon sale, transfer or rental of the 
housing unit, however, due to the fact that this activity targets very low income  
families, a provision is included which gives the homeowner the option to 
release  the  unit  back  to the  Sponsor agency  so that  it  can  be  subsequently  
resold to another SHIP eligible family (documented) in lieu of repayment 
(whereupon the mortgage is reassigned). 

 
      f.    Recipient Selection Criteria: 

Assistance provided on a first qualified/first served basis following annual 
advertisement of the availability of SHIP resources. A waiting list exists for 
this strategy from prior year activities, and new applicants will be added to the 
existing list. 
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      g.    Sponsor Selection Criteria:  

Selection will be based upon responses to an advertised request for proposal. 
Selection criteria will include:  
a) non-profit agency's  locally  based expertise in affordable single family 

housing construction and marketing;  
b) amount of non-SHIP funds or value of in-kind services committed as 

SHIP leverage;  
c) unit production goals in relation to SHIP funding request;  
d) documented use of green building technologies, energy efficiency 

measures, and/or use of recycles building materials or components in 
the production or preservation of housing units;  

e) SHIP repayment terms requested (i.e., loan guarantee, deferred loan, or 
grant);  

f) percentage of units targeted to very low income families; and  
g) documentation of the agency's employment or planned employment of 

personnel from the Welfare Transition Program shall result in a 
priority  for award of SHIP funds assuming the agency demonstrates 
capacity to implement the subject SHIP activity.  

 
Proposals meeting the RFP requirements will be evaluated by the County and 
City Housing staff, or a committee comprised of County and City 
representatives, to determine the agency or organization that will implement 
the strategy. Final selection and contract approval will be provided by the 
County Commission and City Council.  The RFP may solicit participation for 
the full three year HAP period.   

 
h. Additional Information:  This strategy shall encourage green, storm 

resistant, and low maintenance construction, including energy efficient 
features.    

 
          E.  STRATEGY 5.   Rental Preservation/Development   

 
        a.   Summary of the Strategy:     
              Brief Description:  

SHIP funds expended through this strategy will be primarily expended to 
support the preservation or development of affordable workforce rental 
housing or special needs housing (as defined in FAC 67-37.002 (21)). for 
eligible persons through new construction, acquisition of property or existing 
rental units, and/or rehabilitation/redevelopment of existing substandard rental 
units. Special needs groups shall generally include, but not be solely limited to: 
homeless persons, mentally or physically disabled persons, veterans, children 
aging out of foster care, the elderly, or victims of domestic violence. These 
rental development project(s) will be undertaken with a local Community 
Housing Development Organization (CHDO) or a 501(c)(3) non-profit  
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affordable housing sponsor selected through an open proposal submission 
process; OR with a non-profit or private for profit developer in  conjunction 
with the annual FHFC Universal Cycles, annual HUD Section 202/Section 811 
cycles, Rural Development/ USDA (RD) rental development cycles, or other 
publicly announced funding cycles as offered by FHFC, HUD, RD or other 
Federal/State agencies for the preservation or development of rental housing. 

  
               b.    Fiscal Years Covered:   2013/2014, 2014/2015, 2015/2016 
 
    c.    Income Categories to be served:   

At least 80% of the rental units preserved or developed through this strategy 
must be occupied by Low income families (below 80% of median income) and 
at least 10% of the families must be Very Low income (below 50% of median  
income).  Not more than 20% of the aggregate units preserved or produced may 
be occupied by families with incomes between 80% and 120% of median 
income.  

 
     d.    Maximum award:  
                                  The maximum award levels for this strategy are stipulated in the HDGC. 

     e.    Terms, Recapture and Default: 
Rental Preservation and/or Development: A Deferred Payment Loan at 0% 

with a 20 year term, forgivable in annual increments over the full term of the 
mortgage assuming compliance with all SHIP and HOME or other 
requirements (as applicable) by the Sponsor Agency, will be the typical 
form of assistance.  On a case-by-case basis, if underwriting confirms that 
the Sponsor has adequate repayment capacity, the County and City reserve 
the option of providing a below market interest rate loan to the Sponsor.  
The loan shall be secured by mortgage and note. Maximum term is 25 years, 
unless a longer term is specifically required by HUD, FHFC, RD or other 
primary lender as a condition for project financing. As defined in the    
applicable mortgage and note, full recapture of SHIP funds invested is 
required upon default, unless a forgiveness provision (depreciating balance) 
is incorporated into the mortgage and note in which case the undepreciated 
portion shall be due and payable upon default.   

Special Needs Housing: Direct Grant to provider agency to provide special 
needs housing.  Mortgage term is not applicable to this Strategy.  Units will 
be Deed Restricted for a defined affordability term of not less than fifteen 
(15) years.    

 
Compliance monitoring shall be performed annually by NEFI, as agent for 
Escambia County, and/or Pensacola Housing for a minimum of 15 years 
through monitoring Section 8 rental/lease documents or by direct review of 
Sponsor agency documentation to establish compliance with Program 
affordability requirements with respect to tenant occupancy, income levels,  
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and rent rates.   For FHFC financed projects that also receive SHIP local 
support, occupancy, rent and housing quality compliance documentation 
secured by FHFC or its contract monitor shall be deemed acceptable in 
meeting this requirement.  The sale of properties assisted with SHIP/HOME 
funds shall require approval of the Board of County Commissioners and/or 
Pensacola City  Council, and shall be acceptable (without  repayment) only if 
the subsequent owner(s) agree to meet any remaining rental, occupancy and 
affordability obligations established in the development agreement, mortgage  
and note.  

 
                             f.   Recipient Selection Criteria:   

                                          Assistance provided on a first qualified/first served basis following 
advertisement of the availability of SHIP resources. When an extensive 
waiting list exists for the strategy, applicants are added to the list in first 
come/first served order.   

 
    g.   Sponsor Selection Criteria:    

CHDO sponsored “set-aside” rental project(s) will be undertaken in 
partnership with an eligible, locally designated CHDO.  Selection will be 
based upon response(s) to a request for proposal issued to all eligible CHDO's 
(for HOME CHDO set-aside activities).  CHDO project selection criteria shall 
include the following, as applicable:  
a) agency must be a locally designated CHDO (HOME set-aside funds) and        
        a 501(c)(3) non-profit; 
b) agency's previous rental development experience (agency staff);  
c) conformity with Escambia Consortium Consolidated Plan goal(s)  
        for mixed income rental housing;  
d) total (aggregate) cost per unit-all funding sources;   
e) subsidy level per unit and SHIP cost  per unit;  
f) ratio of private funds to public funds;  
g) ratio of other funds to SHIP funds;  
h) compliance with preservation or new construction preference; 
i) rental development bedroom size mix (3 bedrooms preferred); 
j) percentage of units targeted to families below 30% of median; 
k)  commitment to use green building technologies, energy efficiency  

               measures, and/or use of recycled building materials or components in the  
       construction, repair or preservation of housing units 
l)  proposed development  site located in a designated Community  
       Redevelopment Area (CRA) or Enterprise Zone (EZ);   
m) target date for Project commitment and completion;  
n) form of assistance requested (i.e., loan vs. grant);  
o) documentation of the agency's employment or planned employment of  
        individuals through the Welfare Transition Program shall result in a  
        priority for award of SHIP funds assuming the agency demonstrates  
        capacity to implement the subject SHIP activity. 
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Non-CHDO “set-aside” (non-profit and/or for profit) projects will be 
accepted continually, and will be evaluated at the time of submission to 
maximize the potential for integration of resources (FHFC, HUD, RD, etc.).   
 
As applicable, proposals from CHDO's, non-profit sponsors or for-profit 
sponsors will be evaluated by the County and City Housing staff, or a 
committee comprised of County and City representatives, to determine the 
agency or organization that will implement the strategy. Final selection and  
contract approval will be provided by the County Commission and City 
Council.   

 
h. Additional Information: This strategy shall encourage green, storm resistant,  
      and low maintenance construction, including energy efficient features       
        

            F.  STRATEGY 6.  Disaster/Mitigation Assistance 
 
       a.  Summary of the Strategy:    

Brief Description: 
SHIP funds may be used in all areas of Escambia County and the City of 
Pensacola to provide emergency repairs to homes owned by SHIP very low, 
low and moderate income families in the aftermath of a "natural disaster as 
declared by presidential or state issued Executive Order(s)" to address 
emergency housing repair needs. Generally, such needs shall include, such 
items as: purchase of emergency supplies for eligible homeowners to 
weatherproof damaged homes; interim repairs to avoid further damage to the 
homes of eligible families;  tree and debris removal required to make 
individual housing units inhabitable by the eligible family; and post-disaster 
assistance with non-insured repairs to homes owned by very low income 
families. This optional strategy will be implemented only in the event 
Executive Order(s) are issued confirming that a "presidentially or state 
declared natural disaster" has directly impacted the Escambia County area. 

 
        b. Fiscal Years Covered:   2013/2014, 2014/2015, 2015/2016 
 
        c. Income Categories to be served: 

All of the homes repaired through this activity will be owned by families with 
incomes below 120% of the median income. 

 
       d. Maximum award: 

The maximum award level for this strategy is stipulated in the HDGC. 
 
       e. Terms, Recapture and Default:    

Direct Grant to Homeowner. Mortgage term is not applicable to this Strategy. 
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       f. Recipient Selection Criteria: 
Assistance provided on a first qualified/first served basis following the 
declaration of the natural disaster.   The strategy will be advertised annually 
along with notice of all SHIP resources; however, the strategy will be 
implemented only in the event of a natural disaster.  In the event the strategy  
is not implemented during a given SHIP Program Year, any funding reserved 
for the Strategy will be reallocated to one or more of the approved SHIP 
strategies by SHIP budget transfer notification to the Florida Housing 
Finance Corporation. 

 
        g. Sponsor Selection Criteria:  

Not applicable to this strategy. 
 
        h. Additional Information:   NONE 
 
III. LHAP INCENTIVE STRATEGIES 

In addition to Strategy A and Strategy B, include all adopted incentives with the policies and 
procedures used daily for implementation as provided in Section 420.9076, F.S.: 

  
A. Name of the Strategy:  Expedited Permitting   
   1.        Provide a description of the procedures used to implement this strategy: 

Escambia County: The County is continually reassessing the permitting function to improve 
permit processing efficiency and reduce the time required for issuing residential permits.  This 
process incorporates specific actions that will enhance expedited processing for documented 
affordable housing developments/projects within the County. The Development Services Bureau 
will take actions necessary to expedite and/or avoid delay of affordable housing developments 
which incorporate financing via Federal, State or designated local affordable housing programs 
or initiatives. Such developments will be given review priority in accordance with provisions of 
the Housing Element of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan. The current permitting  
review process for single family homes or duplexes in established/platted, properly zoned  
 
subdivisions shall be generally retained as this process provides a permit turnaround time of less 
than 4 days.  Affordable housing permit applications will be given priority in the event the 
permit approval time should reach a level in excess of 7 days in the future. 
City of Pensacola: Expedited processing of permits includes development orders and 
development permits including building permits, zoning permits, subdivision approval, 
rezoning, certification, special exception or variance approvals. The City land use, building, and 
planning functions have been examined at the staff level to identify areas for improving the 
permitting procedures and process.  The City's process is already centralized with an average 
process of three days for a building permit. The present system provides excellent expedited 
central "one-stop" process for affordable housing projects located within the City.  The City will 
provide for priority processing of affordable housing permit applications in the event a backlog 
is experienced which increases the routine permit approval period to 7 days. Generally 
affordable housing development applications are processed first. 

 
 B. Name of the Strategy:  Ongoing Review Process   
                1.     Provide a description of the procedures used to implement this strategy: 

Escambia County: The County Comprehensive Plan Housing Element stipulates the County's 
commitment to review all policies, rules, procedures, regulations, ordinances, and similar 
provisions to ensure that potential impacts upon housing affordability are identified prior to  
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adoption, and that the adopting entity is advised of the potential impacts upon housing 
affordability for consideration during the review and adoption process The Affordable Housing 
Impact Review Policy is officially approved by the County.  Reviews are completed as required 
based upon ordinances and policies that are presented for consideration by the Board of County 
Commissioners.  Such review and commentary are administratively handled through the 
Escambia County Community & Environment Department and the Development Services 
Bureau, which incorporates input as needed by local housing and community development 
professionals.  
City of Pensacola: The City of Pensacola has developed and adopted an Affordable Housing 
Impact Review Policy providing procedures for review of local policies, procedures, ordinances,  
regulations and plan provisions that significantly impact upon the cost of housing prior to their 
adoption.  The Land Development Code will be reviewed and revised in a manner that will 
make affordable housing development more viable.  These periodic reviews will examine 
eliminating excessive requirements that limit affordable housing development.  Such review and 
commentary are administratively handled through the City's Planning Services  and Office of 
Sustainability with input as needed by local housing and community development professionals.  

 
C. Adopted Incentive Strategies for Escambia County and City of Pensacola  

A complete copy of both Escambia County and the City of Pensacola’s Affordable Housing 
Incentive Plans and updated to said Plan are on record with Florida Housing Finance Corporation.  
Copies of the Escambia and Pensacola plans and reports are available electronically upon request 
submitted to either:  wrwilker@myescambia.com  or   mwhitaker@cityof pensacola,com  

 
 
 
IV. EXHIBITS: 
 
 A. Administrative Budget for each fiscal year covered in the Plan.  Exhibit A. 
  
 B. Timeline for Encumbrance and Expenditure: Chapter 67-37.005, F.A.C.  
  A separate timeline for each fiscal year covered in this plan is attached as Exhibit B. 
  Program funds will be encumbered by June 30 one year following the end of the   
  applicable state fiscal year.  Program funds will be fully expended within 24   
  months of the end of the applicable State fiscal year. 
 
 C. Housing Delivery Goals Chart (HDGC) For Each Fiscal Year 
  Covered in the Plan: 
  Completed HDGC for each fiscal year is attached as Exhibit C. 
 
 D. Certification Page:  
  Signed Certification is attached as Exhibit D. 
 
 E. Adopting Resolution:  
  Original signed, dated, witnessed or attested adopting resolution is attached as 
  Exhibit E. 
  
 F. Program Information Sheet:   
  Completed program information sheet is attached as Exhibit F.  
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 G. Ordinance:   
  If changed from the original ordinance, a copy is attached as 
  Exhibit G.    (Note: there were no changes to the existing ordinances)  
 
 H. Interlocal Agreement:  
  A copy of the Interlocal Agreement if applicable is attached as Exhibit H. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET FOR EACH FISCAL YEAR 
Exhibit ALHAP 2013

Exhibit A
67-37.005(1), F.A.C.

Effective Date:  11/09
Escambia/Pensacola 

Estimated Allocation for Calculating: 100,000.00$                 

Fiscal Year:   2013/2014

Program Management:
A. City of Pensacola (Staffing/Administration)  1,500.00$                    
B. Escambia County/NEFI (Staffing/Administration)  2,700.00$                    

  

 

 

Fiscal Management:
A. Escambia County Indirect Cost                    
(Fiscal Management)  500.00$                        

Program Support costs: 

Property research/title work, recording and miscellaneous costs  300.00$                       
   

Total (2013/2014) 5,000.00$                     5.00%

Estimated Allocation for Calculating: 100,000.00$                 

Fiscal Year:   2014/2015
Program Management:

A. City of Pensacola (Staffing/Administration)  1,500.00$                    
B. Escambia County/NEFI (Staffing/Administration)  2,700.00$                    

  

 

 

Fiscal Management:
A. Escambia County Indirect Cost                 (Fiscal 
Management)  500.00$                        

Program Support costs: 

Property research/title work, recording and miscellaneous costs  300.00$                       
   

Total (2014/2015) 5,000.00$                         5.00%

Estimated Allocation for Calculating: 100,000.00$                 

Fiscal Year:   2015/2016
Program Management:

A. City of Pensacola (Staffing/Administration)  1,500.00$                    

B. Escambia County/NEFI (Staffing/Administration)  2,700.00$                    

  

 

 
 

Fiscal Management:
A. Escambia County Indirect Cost                      (Fiscal 
Management)  500.00$                        

Program Support costs: 

Property research/title work, recording and miscellaneous costs  300.00$                       
   

Total (2015/2016) 5,000.00$                         5.00%

The aggregate SHIP administrative cost                                             
shall not exceed (10%) of the total SHIP allocation, plus applicable 
program income.  These costs are required to comply with the array 
of SHIP Program administrative, oversight, liaison/coordination, and 
monitoring requirements 

The aggregate SHIP administrative cost                                             
shall not exceed (10%) of the total SHIP allocation, plus applicable 
program income.  These costs are required to comply with the array 
of SHIP Program administrative, oversight, liaison/coordination, and 
monitoring requirements 

The aggregate SHIP administrative cost                                             
shall not exceed (10%) of the total SHIP allocation, plus applicable 
program income.  These costs are required to comply with the array 
of SHIP Program administrative, oversight, liaison/coordination, and 
monitoring requirements 

Randy
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FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION Please check applicable box

HOUSING DELIVERY GOALS CHART New Plan: XX
STRATEGIES FOR THE LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PLAN FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR:   2013/2014 Amendment:

Fiscal Yr. Closeout:
Name of Local Government: Estimated Funds: $100,000.00

A B C D E F

Strategy # HOME OWNERSHIP VLI Max. SHIP LI Max. SHIP MI Max. SHIP New Construction Rehab/Repair Without Construction Total Total Total

From Plan 
Text 

STRATEGIES (strategy title must be same 
as the title used in plan text.

Units Award Units Award Units Award SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars Percentage Units

$0.00 0.00% 0
1 Purchase Assistance 0 $7,500 4 $7,500 4 $7,500 $7,500.00 $45,000.00 $7,500.00 $60,000.00 60.00% 8
2 Replacement Housing 0 $15,000 0 $15,000 $0.00 0.00% 0
3 Housing Repair 5 $7,500 0 $7,500  $30,000.00 $30,000.00 30.00% 5
4 New Construction 0 $20,000 0 $20,000 $0.00 0.00% 0
6 Disaster/Mitigation Assistance 0 $7,500 0 $7,500 $7,500 $0.00 0.00% 0

$0.00 0.00% 0
 $0.00 0.00% 0

Subtotal 1 (Home Ownership) 5 4 4 $7,500.00 $75,000.00 $7,500.00 $90,000.00 90.00% 13

RENTAL VLI Max. SHIP LI Max. SHIP MI Max. SHIP New Construction Rehab/Repair Without Construction Total Total Total
STRATEGIES Units Award Units Award Units Award SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars Percentage Units

$0.00 0.00% 0
5 Rental Preservation/Development 0 $80,000 0 $45,000 $0.00 0.00% 0
 $0.00 0.00% 0

$0.00 0.00% 0

$0.00 0.00% 0

Subtotal 2 (Non-Home Ownership) 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 0
Administration Fees $5,000.00 5.00%
Admin. From Program Income 0.00%
Home Ownership Counseling 0.00%

GRAND TOTAL
Add Subtotals 1 & 2,  plus all Admin. & HO Counseling 5 4 4 $7,500.00 $75,000.00 $7,500.00 $95,000.00 95.00% 13

       Percentage Construction/Rehab Calculate Constr./Rehab Percent. by adding Grand Total Columns A&B, then divide by  Annual Allocation Amt.                         83%
       Maximum Allowable
       Purchase Price: New Existing

Allocation Breakdown Amount % Projected Program Income: $100,000.00 Max Amount Program Income For Admin: $5,000.00

Very-Low Income $37,500.00 37.5% Projected Recaptured Funds:

Low Income $27,500.00 27.5% Distribution:

Moderate Income $30,000.00 30.0% Total Available Funds: $100,000.00

TOTAL $95,000.00 95.0% 28-Feb-13

Escambia/Pensacola

Randy
Text Box
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FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION Please check applicable box

HOUSING DELIVERY GOALS CHART New Plan: XX
STRATEGIES FOR THE LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PLAN FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR:   2014/2015 Amendment:

Fiscal Yr. Closeout:
Name of Local Government: Estimated Funds: $100,000.00

A B C D E F

Strategy # HOME OWNERSHIP VLI Max. SHIP LI Max. SHIP MI Max. SHIP New Construction Rehab/Repair Without Construction Total Total Total

From Plan 
Text 

STRATEGIES (strategy title must be same 
as the title used in plan text.

Units Award Units Award Units Award SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars Percentage Units

$0.00 0.00% 0
1 Purchase Assistance 0 $7,500 4 $7,500 4 $7,500 $7,500.00 $45,000.00 $7,500.00 $60,000.00 60.00% 8
2 Replacement Housing 0 $15,000 0 $15,000 $0.00 0.00% 0
3 Housing Repair 5 $7,500 0 $7,500  $30,000.00 $30,000.00 30.00% 5
4 New Construction 0 $20,000 0 $20,000 $0.00 0.00% 0
6 Disaster/Mitigation Assistance 0 $7,500 0 $7,500 $7,500 $0.00 0.00% 0

$0.00 0.00% 0
 $0.00 0.00% 0

Subtotal 1 (Home Ownership) 5 4 4 $7,500.00 $75,000.00 $7,500.00 $90,000.00 90.00% 13

RENTAL VLI Max. SHIP LI Max. SHIP MI Max. SHIP New Construction Rehab/Repair Without Construction Total Total Total
STRATEGIES Units Award Units Award Units Award SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars Percentage Units

$0.00 0.00% 0
5 Rental Preservation/Development 0 $80,000 0 $45,000 $0.00 0.00% 0
 $0.00 0.00% 0

$0.00 0.00% 0

$0.00 0.00% 0

Subtotal 2 (Non-Home Ownership) 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 0
Administration Fees $5,000.00 5.00%
Admin. From Program Income 0.00%
Home Ownership Counseling 0.00%

GRAND TOTAL
Add Subtotals 1 & 2,  plus all Admin. & HO Counseling 5 4 4 $7,500.00 $75,000.00 $7,500.00 $95,000.00 95.00% 13

       Percentage Construction/Rehab Calculate Constr./Rehab Percent. by adding Grand Total Columns A&B, then divide by  Annual Allocation Amt.                         83%
       Maximum Allowable
       Purchase Price: New Existing

Allocation Breakdown Amount % Projected Program Income: $100,000.00 Max Amount Program Income For Admin: $5,000.00

Very-Low Income $37,500.00 37.5% Projected Recaptured Funds:

Low Income $27,500.00 27.5% Distribution:

Moderate Income $30,000.00 30.0% Total Available Funds: $100,000.00

TOTAL $95,000.00 95.0% 28-Feb-13

Escambia/Pensacola

Randy
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FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION Please check applicable box

HOUSING DELIVERY GOALS CHART New Plan: XX
STRATEGIES FOR THE LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PLAN FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR:   2015/2016 Amendment:

Fiscal Yr. Closeout:
Name of Local Government: Estimated Funds: $100,000.00

A B C D E F

Strategy # HOME OWNERSHIP VLI Max. SHIP LI Max. SHIP MI Max. SHIP New Construction Rehab/Repair Without Construction Total Total Total

From Plan 
Text 

STRATEGIES (strategy title must be same 
as the title used in plan text.

Units Award Units Award Units Award SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars Percentage Units

$0.00 0.00% 0
1 Purchase Assistance 0 $7,500 4 $7,500 4 $7,500 $7,500.00 $45,000.00 $7,500.00 $60,000.00 60.00% 8
2 Replacement Housing 0 $15,000 0 $15,000 $0.00 0.00% 0
3 Housing Repair 5 $7,500 0 $7,500  $30,000.00 $30,000.00 30.00% 5
4 New Construction 0 $20,000 0 $20,000 $0.00 0.00% 0
6 Disaster/Mitigation Assistance 0 $7,500 0 $7,500 $7,500 $0.00 0.00% 0

$0.00 0.00% 0
 $0.00 0.00% 0

Subtotal 1 (Home Ownership) 5 4 4 $7,500.00 $75,000.00 $7,500.00 $90,000.00 90.00% 13

RENTAL VLI Max. SHIP LI Max. SHIP MI Max. SHIP New Construction Rehab/Repair Without Construction Total Total Total
STRATEGIES Units Award Units Award Units Award SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars SHIP Dollars Percentage Units

$0.00 0.00% 0
5 Rental Preservation/Development 0 $80,000 0 $45,000 $0.00 0.00% 0
 $0.00 0.00% 0

$0.00 0.00% 0

$0.00 0.00% 0

Subtotal 2 (Non-Home Ownership) 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% 0
Administration Fees $5,000.00 5.00%
Admin. From Program Income 0.00%
Home Ownership Counseling 0.00%

GRAND TOTAL
Add Subtotals 1 & 2,  plus all Admin. & HO Counseling 5 4 4 $7,500.00 $75,000.00 $7,500.00 $95,000.00 95.00% 13

       Percentage Construction/Rehab Calculate Constr./Rehab Percent. by adding Grand Total Columns A&B, then divide by  Annual Allocation Amt.                         83%
       Maximum Allowable
       Purchase Price: New Existing

Allocation Breakdown Amount % Projected Program Income: $100,000.00 Max Amount Program Income For Admin: $5,000.00

Very-Low Income $37,500.00 37.5% Projected Recaptured Funds:

Low Income $27,500.00 27.5% Distribution:

Moderate Income $30,000.00 30.0% Total Available Funds: $100,000.00

TOTAL $95,000.00 95.0% 28-Feb-13

Escambia/Pensacola

Randy
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LHAP Exhibit D 2013 
67-37.005(1), F.A.C. 

 
. 
 

 1

CERTIFICATION TO 
FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 

 
Name of Local Government:   Escambia County, Florida  
 
(1) The local government will advertise the availability of SHIP funds, if available, pursuant  
            to Florida Statutes. 
 
(2) All SHIP funds will be expended in a manner which will insure that there will be no 

discrimination on the basis of race, creed, religion, color, age, sex, familial or marital 
  status, handicap, or national origin. 
 
(3) A process for selection of recipients for funds has been developed.    
 
(4) The eligible municipality or county has developed a qualification system for applications for 

assistance. 
 
(5) Recipients of funds will be required to contractually commit to program guidelines. 
 
(6) The Florida Housing Finance Corporation will be notified promptly if, at any time, the local 
 government (or interlocal entity) will be unable to comply with the provisions in the plan. 
 
(7) The Local Housing Assistance Plan shall provide for the expenditure of SHIP funds within 

24 months following the end of the State fiscal year in which they are received.  
 
(8) The plan conforms to the Local Government Comprehensive Plan, or that an amendment to 

the Local Government Comprehensive Plan will be initiated at the next available 
opportunity to insure conformance with the Local Housing Assistance Plan. 

 
(9) Amendments and Technical Revisions to the approved Local Housing Assistance Plan shall 

be provided to the Corporation within 21 days after adoption. 
 
(10) The trust fund shall be established with a qualified depository for all SHIP funds as well 
  as moneys generated from activities as program income. 

 
(11) Amounts on deposit in the local housing assistance trust fund shall be invested as permitted 

by law. 
 
(12) The local housing assistance trust fund shall be separately stated as a special revenue fund in 

the local governments audited financial statements, copies of the audits will be forwarded to 
the Corporation by June 30 of each calendar year. 

13) An interlocal entity shall have its local housing assistance trust fund separately audited  
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CERTIFICATION TO 
FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 

 
Name of Local Government:   City of Pensacola, Florida  
 
(1) The local government will advertise the availability of SHIP funds, if available, pursuant  
            to Florida Statutes. 
 
(2) All SHIP funds will be expended in a manner which will insure that there will be no 

discrimination on the basis of race, creed, religion, color, age, sex, familial or marital 
  status, handicap, or national origin. 
 
(3) A process for selection of recipients for funds has been developed.    
 
(4) The eligible municipality or county has developed a qualification system for applications for 

assistance. 
 
(5) Recipients of funds will be required to contractually commit to program guidelines. 
 
(6) The Florida Housing Finance Corporation will be notified promptly if, at any time, the local 
 government (or interlocal entity) will be unable to comply with the provisions in the plan. 
 
(7) The Local Housing Assistance Plan shall provide for the expenditure of SHIP funds within 

24 months following the end of the State fiscal year in which they are received.  
 
(8) The plan conforms to the Local Government Comprehensive Plan, or that an amendment to 

the Local Government Comprehensive Plan will be initiated at the next available 
opportunity to insure conformance with the Local Housing Assistance Plan. 

 
(9) Amendments and Technical Revisions to the approved Local Housing Assistance Plan shall 

be provided to the Corporation within 21 days after adoption. 
 
(10) The trust fund shall be established with a qualified depository for all SHIP funds as well 
  as moneys generated from activities as program income. 

 
(11) Amounts on deposit in the local housing assistance trust fund shall be invested as permitted 

by law. 
 
(12) The local housing assistance trust fund shall be separately stated as a special revenue fund in 

the local governments audited financial statements, copies of the audits will be forwarded to 
the Corporation by June 30 of each calendar year. 

13) An interlocal entity shall have its local housing assistance trust fund separately audited  
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for each state fiscal year, and the audit forwarded to the Corporation by June 30. 
 
(14) SHIP funds will not be pledged for debt service on bonds or as rent subsidies.  
 
(15) Developers receiving assistance from both SHIP and the Low Income Housing Tax 
  Credit  (LIHTC) Program shall comply with the income, affordability and other LIHTC 

requirements. Similarly, any units receiving assistance from other federal programs shall 
comply with all Federal and SHIP program requirements. 

 
(16) Loans shall be provided for periods not exceeding 30 years, except for deferred payment  

loans or loans that extend beyond 30 years which continue to service eligible persons. 
 
(17) Rental units constructed or rehabilitated with SHIP funds shall be monitored annually for 15 

years for compliance with tenant income requirements and affordability requirements or as 
required in Section 420.9075 (3)(e) 

 
(18) The Plan meets the requirements of Section 420-907-9079 FS, and Rule Chapter 67-37 

FAC, and how each of those requirements shall be met. 
 
(19) The provisions of Chapter 83-220, Laws of Florida have not been implemented.                    

  (except for Miami Dade County) 
 
 

                                            CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  
 
 

ATTEST:                               
 
                                                                                By:  _________________________________ 
__________________________            Ashton J. Hayward, III, Mayor 
Ericka L. Burnett, City Clerk 
 
  
 (  SEAL  ) 

 



  
 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER R2013-_______  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA 
COUNTY, FLORIDA APPROVING THE LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PLAN AS 
REQUIRED BY THE STATE HOUSING INITIATIVES PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 
ACT, SUBSECTIONS 420.907-420.9079, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND RULE 
CHAPTER 67-37, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE; AUTHORIZING AND 
DIRECTING THE CHAIRMAN AND/OR COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE 
ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND CERTIFICATIONS NEEDED BY THE STATE; 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF THE LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PLAN 
FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
* * * * * * * * * 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida enacted the William E. Sadowski Affordable Housing Act, 
Chapter 92-317 of Florida Sessions Laws, allocating a portion of documentary stamp taxes on 
deeds  to local governments for the development and maintenance of affordable housing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Act, ss. 420.907-420.9079, 

Florida Statutes (1992), and Rule Chapter 67-37, Florida Administrative Code, requires local 
governments to develop a one- to three-year Local Housing Assistance Plan outlining how funds 
will be used; and 

 
WHEREAS, the SHIP Act requires local governments to establish the maximum SHIP 

funds allowable for each strategy; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SHIP Act further requires local governments to establish an average area 

purchase price for new and existing housing benefiting from awards made pursuant to the Act;  
the methodology and purchase prices used are defined in the attached Local Housing Assistance 
Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, as required by section 420.9025, F. S., it is found that 5 percent of the local housing 
distribution plus 5 percent of program income is insufficient to adequately pay the necessary costs 
of administering the local housing assistance plan. The cost of administering the program may not 
exceed 10 percent of the local housing distribution plus 5% of program income deposited into the 
trust fund, except that small counties, as defined in s. 120.52(17), and eligible municipalities 
receiving a local housing distribution of up to $350,000 may use up to10 percent of program 
income for administrative costs; and 

 
WHEREAS, Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation, Inc, an operating division of the 

Escambia County Community & Environment Department, and City of Pensacola Housing have 
jointly prepared a three-year Local Housing Assistance Plan for submission to the Florida Housing 
Finance Corporation; and 
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RESOLUTION  
NO:__________                                                         TO BE PROVIDED BY  

                                                      CITY 
A RESOLUTION  

TO BE ENTITLED 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA, 
APROVING THE LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PLAN AS REQUIRED BY THE 
STATE HOUSING INITIATIVES PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM ACT, SUBSECTIONS 
420.907-420.9079, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND RULE CHAPTER 67-37, FLORIDA 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE; AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR AND/OR 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS AND 
CERTIFICATIONS NEEDED BY THE STATE; AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF 
THE LOCAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PLAN FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE 
FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 

     * * * * * * * * 
WHEREAS, the State of Florida enacted the William E. Sadowski Affordable 

Housing Act, Chapter 92-317 of Florida Sessions Laws, allocating a portion of 
documentary stamp taxes on deeds  to local governments for the development and 
maintenance of affordable housing; and  

 
WHEREAS, the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP) Act, ss. 420.907-

420.9079, Florida Statutes (1992), and Rule Chapter 67-37, Florida Administrative Code, 
requires local governments to develop a one- to three-year Local Housing Assistance 
Plan outlining how funds will be used; and  

 
WHEREAS, the SHIP Act requires local governments to establish the maximum 

SHIP funds allowable for each strategy; and    
 
WHEREAS, the SHIP Act further requires local governments to establish an 

average area purchase price for new and existing housing benefiting from awards made 
pursuant to the Act; The methodology and purchase prices used are defined in the 
attached Local housing Assistance Plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, as required by section 420.9025, F. S., it is found that 5 percent of the local 
housing distribution plus 5 percent of program income is insufficient to adequately pay 
the necessary costs of administering the local housing assistance plan. The cost of 
administering the program may not exceed 10 percent of the local housing distribution 
plus 5% of program income deposited into the trust fund, except that small counties, as 
defined in s. 120.52(17), and eligible municipalities receiving a local housing distribution 
of up to $350,000 may use up to 10 percent of program income for administrative costs. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Pensacola Housing Office and Neighborhood Enterprise 

Foundation, Inc, an operating division of the Escambia County Community & 
Environment Department, have jointly prepared a three-year Local Housing Assistance 
Plan for submission to the Florida Housing Finance Corporation; and  
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WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the public for 

the City of Pensacola to submit the Local Housing Assistance Plan for review and 
approval so as to qualify for said documentary stamp tax funds;      
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PENSACOLA, FLORIDA that: 
 
Section 1: The City Council of the City of Pensacola, Florida the hereby approves the 

Escambia/ Pensacola Local Housing Assistance Plan, as attached and 
incorporated hereto for submission to the Florida Housing Finance 
Corporation as required by ss. 420.907-420-9079, Florida Statutes, for 
fiscal years: 2013/2014, 2014/2015 and 2015/2016. 

 
Section 2: The Mayor of the City of Pensacola and/or the City Administrator (or his 

designee) are hereby designated and authorized to execute any 
documents and certifications required by the Florida Housing Finance 
Corporation as related to the Local Housing Assistance Plan, and to do all 
things necessary and proper to carry out the term and conditions of said 
program. 

 
Section 3:     In  the  event  of a "presidentially, state  or  locally  declared  natural  

disaster",   up  to  25%  of the available Escambia/Pensacola SHIP 
Program funds may be immediately utilized to meet  emergency  housing 
repair  and recovery needs of SHIP eligible families.  In the event of such 
an occurrence, the County shall notify the Florida Housing Finance 
Corporation (FHFC) of such action by written letter, facsimile or e-mail 
within 15 days of the date of the disaster declaration. 

 
Section 4: This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS _______ DAY OF _____________________, 2013. 

   
  
                                                                        CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA, a 
                                                                  municipal corporation chartered in the  
                                                                  State of Florida 
ATTEST:                               
 
                                                                         By: _____________________________ 
__________________________                            Ashton M. Hayward, III, Mayor  
Ericka L. Burnett, City Clerk 
  
 (  SEAL  ) 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND  
 EXECUTION: 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
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STATE HOUSING INITIATIVES PARTNERSHIP (SHIP) PROGRAM 
 PROGRAM INFORMATION SHEET  

 

The following information must be furnished to the Corporation before any funds can be disbursed. 

Local Government Escambia County  

Chief Elected Official Gene M. Valentino, Chairman  

   Address 221 Palafox Place, Suite 400, Pensacola, Florida 32502 

SHIP Administrator Randy Wilkerson 

   Address P. O. Box 18178, Pensacola, Florida 32523 

   Telephone (850) 458-0466 

   EMAIL wrwilker@myescambia.com or randy_wilkerson@co.escambia.fl.us 

   Alternate SHIP Contact Denise Manna 

   Telephone (850) 458-0466 

   EMAIL Denise#nefi.gccoxmail.com  

Interlocal Agreement (list other local  

 governments in interlocal) 

Yes.   City of Pensacola, Florida  

Local Government Employer Federal ID # 59-6000-598 

Disbursement (list bank account 

 information if changed from previous) 

No Change from previous electronic funds form completed by 

Escambia County.  

Other Information  

Please attach this form as Exhibit F and submit along with your completed LHAP. 
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STATE HOUSING INITIATIVES PARTNERSHIP (SHIP) PROGRAM 
 PROGRAM INFORMATION SHEET  

 

The following information must be furnished to the Corporation before any funds can be disbursed. 

Local Government City of Pensacola 

Chief Elected Official Ashton J. Hayward, III, Mayor  

   Address P. O. Box 12910, Pensacola, Florida 32521 

SHIP Administrator Jimmie McFall 

   Address P. O. Box 12910, Pensacola, Florida 32521 

   Telephone (850) 858-0318 

   EMAIL JMcfall@cityofpensacola.com 

   Alternate SHIP Contact Marcie Whitaker  

   Telephone (850)  858-0323 

   EMAIL MWhitaker@cityofpensacola.com 

Interlocal Agreement (list other local  

 governments in interlocal) 

Yes.   Escambia County, Florida  

Local Government Employer Federal ID # N/A (See Escambia County for applicable Federal ID) 

Disbursement (list bank account 

 information if changed from previous) 

NOT APPLICABLE.  All disbursements are made to the Housing 

Trust Fund maintained by Escambia County. 

Other Information  

Please attach this form as Exhibit F and submit along with your completed LHAP. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                              Exhibit G 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED: 
 
The Escambia County and City of Pensacola Ordinances are on file with Florida 
Housing Finance Corporation and there have been no changes to the ordinances.  
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ESCAMBIA/PENSACOLA INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
STATE HOUSING INITIATIVES PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 

 
          THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT made and entered into this __     _ day of             
_______, 2013, by and between ESCAMBIA COUNTY, a political subdivision of 
the State of Florida, acting by and through its Board of County Commissioners (the 
“County"), and the CITY OF PENSACOLA, a municipal corporation created and 
existing under the laws of the State of Florida, acting by and through its City Council 
(the "City”): 
                                                                
                                          W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
  WHEREAS, the County and City have legal authority to perform general 

government services within their respective jurisdiction; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the County and City are authorized by Florida Statutes Chapter 

163.01 et seq., to enter into Interlocal Agreements and thereby cooperatively utilize 
their powers and resources in the most efficient manner possible; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the William E. Sadowski Affordable Housing Act (Chapter 92-317, 

Laws of Florida, incorporated herein by reference) created Section 420.9072, et seq.  
Florida Statutes, the "State Housing Initiatives Partnership Program" ("SHIP"), which 
authorizes moneys in the Local Government Housing Trust Fund (the "Fund") to be 
distributed to approved counties and eligible municipalities within the County 
pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Escambia County is an approved County and the City of Pensacola 

is an eligible municipality within the County; and 
 

       WHEREAS, the County and City desire to jointly utilize SHIP allocations 
pursuant to this Interlocal Agreement; and  
 
       WHEREAS, the County and the City have determined that SHIP Program funds 
can be more effectively and efficiently utilized and managed through an Interlocal 
Agreement. 

 
THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants and 

agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

  1.   The County and the City do hereby agree that the SHIP Program funds 
which are to be distributed to the County as provided in 420.9073, Florida Statutes,  
shall be allocated jointly to the County and City for purposes identified in the mutually 
approved Escambia/Pensacola Local Housing Assistance Plan (LHAP). The 
implementation of various SHIP financed affordable housing activities shall be 
undertaken cooperatively by the County, acting through its agent, Neighborhood 
Enterprise Foundation, Inc., and the City, through its Housing Office.  
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2.   Unless earlier terminated pursuant to other provisions of this Interlocal 
Agreement, the term of this Agreement shall run concurrent with the distribution of 
SHIP Program funds which are allocated jointly to the County and the City, and shall 
minimally continue for the duration of the 2014-2016 Housing Assistance Plan. 

 
  3.   The County and the City direct the Florida  Housing Finance Corporation (the  

"Corporation") to distribute  and allocate the SHIP Program  funds in accordance with 
this  Interlocal Agreement and authorize the Corporation to rely on the County’s and 
City’s stated intent and their authority to execute this interlocal  agreement.  
 
        4.  The SHIP Program funds so distributed will be deposited in a single  
depository trust fund account created and managed by Escambia County, which  
shall be administered by the Finance Division of the Office of the Clerk of the Circuit 
Court.   This account shall be known as the Escambia-Pensacola Local Government 
Housing Trust Fund (hereinafter referred to as "Local Fund"), to which SHIP funds  
are distributed by the State of Florida/Florida Housing Finance Corporation.  The 
Corporation will be notified of any change in the Local Fund status and the parties  
agree to have such Local Fund audited annually as required by Chapter 420, Florida 
Statutes and  Rule 67-37, Florida Administrative Code.  Since all distributions from 
the Local Fund shall be processed by Escambia County, parties hereto agree that the 
Comprehensive Single Entity Audit of the accounts and records of the County with 
respect to SHIP revenues and expenditures shall constitute the audit for the Interlocal 
Entity as described in the SHIP Regulations.   The parties hereto agree that the Local 
Fund may be allocated a pro-rata charge by the County based upon the cost of the 
independent audit.   
 

5. Provided this Interlocal Agreement remains effective between the County 
and the City, both parties agree that they will not do anything to jeopardize the 
other party's right to receive its allocation from the Local Fund.  
 

6. The parties to this Agreement have both adopted an Affordable Housing 
Incentive Plan and mutually understand that the relevant law requires the 
continuing monitoring and implementation of said Plan for the purpose of 
enhancing and providing affordable housing.  Both parties agree to cooperate in 
ensuring that the requirements and spirit of applicable law are satisfied. 
 

7.  Neither party shall use any revenues distributed and allocated for 
purposes other than those authorized by 420.9072(7), Florida Statutes, or as 
stipulated in Florida Housing Finance Corporation Administrative Rule 67-37. 

 
8.  If at any time during the term of this Interlocal Agreement, the County or 

the City which are the parties to this Interlocal Agreement believe that the intent of 
the parties as set forth herein is not being accomplished, or that the terms of the 
Interlocal Agreement are not fair, such entity may, upon the giving of ninety days 
written notice, renegotiate the terms and provisions of this Interlocal Agreement to 
be effective on the first day of the next fiscal year.  If the parties are unable to so 
renegotiate  the  terms  and  provisions  of this  Interlocal  Agreement  prior to  the  
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                                                                 CITY OF PENSACOLA, 
                                                              a municipal corporation chartered in the  
                                                                 State of Florida 
 
 
 
ATTEST:                                                  By:  _____________________________    
                                                                        Ashton J. Hayward, III, Mayor 
 
__________________________          
Ericka L. Burnett, City Clerk 
  
 (  SEAL  ) 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:                           LEGAL IN FORM AND VALID   
                                                                              AS DRAWN: 
 
 
___________________________________       __________________________ 
Marcie Whitaker, Pensacola Housing                   City Attorney  
 



   

AI-3901     County Administrator's Report      9. 6.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Acceptance of a Public Right-of-Way Easement on Ashland Avenue
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Department Director
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Acceptance of a Public Right-of-Way Easement on Ashland
Avenue - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning acceptance of a 20-foot-wide Public
Right-of-Way Easement on Ashland Avenue from SHEMORTAL, LLC, for the Ashland Avenue
Bridge Replacement project:

A. Accept the donation of a 20-foot-wide Public Right-of-Way Easement on Ashland Avenue
from SHEMORTAL, LLC, for the Ashland Avenue Bridge Replacement Project; 

B. Authorize the payment of documentary stamps as the drainage easement is being donated
for governmental use, which is for stormwater drainage and infrastructure as the County benefits
from the acceptance of this Public Right-of-Way Easement, which enhances the safety and
well-being of the citizens of Escambia County;

C. Authorize the payment of incidental expenditures associated with the recording of documents;
and

D. Authorize staff to prepare, and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to accept the Public
Right-of-Way Easement as of the day of delivery of the Public Right-of-Way Easement to the
Chairman or Vice Chairman, and authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to acknowledge the
Board's acceptance at that time.

[Funding: Funds for incidental expenses associated with recording of documents are available
in an Engineering Escrow Account accessed by the Escambia County Clerk's Office]

The County has a project in design to make road, bridge, and drainage improvements in the
Ashland Avenue/Detroit Boulevard area.  Due to limited right-of-way within this area, it was
determined that additional property would be required to facilitate the project.  SHEMORTAL,
LLC, owner of the property located on Ashland Avenue, at the Southwest corner of the Ashland
Avenue and Detroit Boulevard intersection, has agreed to donate property for a Public
Right-of-Way Easement (20 feet x 625 feet = 12,500 square feet, or approximately 0.29 acres)
to facilitate the road, bridge, and drainage improvements Project.  Board approval is required for
the Board's acceptance of the donated property.



the Board's acceptance of the donated property.

BACKGROUND:
The County has a project in design to make road, bridge and drainage improvements in the
Ashland Avenue/Detroit Boulevard area. Due to limited right-of-way within this area, it was
determined that additional property would be required to facilitate the project. SHEMORTAL,
LLC., owner of the property located on Ashland Avenue, at the Southwest corner of the Ashland
Avenue and Detroit Boulevard intersection, has agreed to donate property for a Public
Right-of-Way Easement (20' x 625' = 12,500 square feet, or approximately 0.29 acres) to
facilitate the road, bridge and drainage improvements project. Board approval is required for the
Board's acceptance of the donated property.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds for incidental expenses associated with the recording of documents are available in an
Engineering Escrow Account accessed by Escambia County Clerk's Office.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Public Right-of-Way Easement was approved as to form and legal sufficiency by Stephen
West, Assistant County Attorney, on January 22, 2013.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
These actions are consistent with the provisions of Section 46-139, Escambia County Code of
Ordinances.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon board approval, staff will proceed in compliance with Section 46-139 of the County Code
of Ordinances.

Attachments
ROW Easement
Parcel Info
Aerial Map
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Source: Escambia County Property Appraiser     Restore Full Page Version

General Information
Reference: 131S311100001001
Account: 090560080
Owners: SHEMORTAL LLC 
Mail: 8608 EIGHT MILE CREEK RD 

PENSACOLA, FL 32526
Situs: DETROIT BLVD 32534

Use Code: VACANT RESIDENTIAL  
Taxing 
Authority: COUNTY MSTU 

Tax Inquiry: Open Tax Inquiry Window
Tax Inquiry link courtesy of Janet Holley, 
Escambia County Tax Collector

2012 Certified Roll Assessment
Improvements: $0
Land: $108,300

Total: $108,300

Save Our Homes: $0
 

Disclaimer

Amendment 1 Calculations

Sales Data

Sale Date Book Page Value Type

Official 
Records 

(New 
Window)

03/03/2010 6568 173 $100 QC View Instr
08/2005 5703 1153 $280,000 WD View Instr
12/1997 4205 470 $59,000 WD View Instr
10/1997 4188 1957 $100 QC View Instr
03/1989 2685 108 $100 WD View Instr

Official Records Inquiry courtesy of Ernie Lee Magaha, 
Escambia County Clerk of the Court

2012 Certified Roll Exemptions
None

Legal Description
LT 1 S/D PLAT DB 104 P 400 OR 
6568 P 173

Extra Features
None

Parcel 
Information

Restore Map Get Map Image    Launch Interactive Map

 
Section Map 
Id: 
13-1S-31-1 
 
Approx. 
Acreage: 
9.4800 
 

Zoned:   
R-6

Page 1 of 2escpaDetail DETROIT BLVD 32534

9/12/2012http://www.escpa.org/cama/Detail_a.aspx?s=13-1S-31-1100-001-001



ESCAMBIA COUNTY PUBLIC 
WORKS  DEPARTMENT   
LWG   07/15/12   DISTRICT  3 

2009 AERIAL PHOTOS 

SHEMORTAL, LLC PROPERTY / PARCEL 13-1S-31-1100-001-001 

PORTION OF SHEMORTAL PROPERTY COUNTY IS REQUESTING 

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY FOR ASHLAND AVE. BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 



   

AI-4048     County Administrator's Report      9. 7.             
BCC Regular Meeting Budget & Finance Consent             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Establishment of One SOSA-Biller Position for EMS Billing
From: Mike Weaver, Department Director
Organization: Public Safety
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Establishment of One Full-Time Senior Office Support
Assistant-Biller Position for the Emergency Medical Services Billing Office – Michael D. Weaver,
Public Safety Department Director

That the Board approve the establishment of one, full-time, Senior Office Support
Assistant-Biller position for the Emergency Medical Services Billing Office, with no negative
impact to the Emergency Medical Service Fund (408) for the Fiscal Year 2013 Personnel
Services Budget.

[Funding Source: Fund 408, Emergency Medical Service Fund]

BACKGROUND:
As late as FY2007/08, EMS Billing was authorized three Medical Records Technician (MRT)
positions.  Through attrition, one of those positions was never back filled due to the call load at
that time.  Recently, the Public Safety Department received approval to convert (reclassify) one
Senior Office Support Assistant (SOSA)-Biller position to an MRT position.  This was an urgent
need to enable EMS Billing to maintain an adequate coding through-put to keep pace with the
approximate 150 coding calls per business day. 

The reclassification of the SOSA-Biller to MRT solved the most immediate problem, but resulted
in the reduction of the nunber of SOSA-Biller positions necessary to process the coded calls
which is vital to meet the additional duties resulting from the increase in transport volume by
approximately 2,000 calls annually since 2006.  Establishment of this position will bring the
Billing Office to the staffing level approved in FY08, and one that can maintain the workflow
necessary for maximum revenue collection, additional tasks related to no-fault MVA regulations
and timely processing of refunds (to avoid false claim penalties).

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Based on a start date of April 27, 2013, the estimated personnel cost through September 30,
2013, will be $14,402, which is available in Fund 408.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A



N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Any new personnel positions or increases in personnel costs in a fund must be approved by the
Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



   

AI-4064     County Administrator's Report      9. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Discussion             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Further Update on BCC Permanent County Administrator Search
From: Thomas Turner, Department Director
Organization: Human Resources
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Discussion Concerning the Board of County Commissioners' Search for a Permanent County
Administrator - Thomas G. "Tom" Turner, Human Resources Department Director

BACKGROUND:
N/A

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



   

AI-4104     County Attorney's Report      9. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Action             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Interlocal Agreement Between Escambia County and the City of Pensacola for
Distribution of the Additional Four-Cent LOFT

From: Alison Rogers, County Attorney
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning an Interlocal Agreement Between Escambia County and the City
of Pensacola for Distribution of the Additional Four-Cent Local Option Fuel Tax (LOFT) -
Alison Rogers, County Attorney

That the Board approve an Interlocal Agreement for distribution of the additional four-cent (4¢)
local option fuel proceeds.  Escambia County imposed an additional four-cent Local Option Fuel
Tax (LOFT) on every gallon of motor fuel, excluding diesel fuel, sold in the County for
transportation purposes and initiatives by enactment of Ordinance 2012-14.  The Interlocal
Agreement establishes that Escambia County will receive one hundred percent (100%) of the
proceeds collected pursuant to imposition of the additional four-cent Local Option Fuel Tax
(LOFT).  The tax is imposed effective January1, 2014.

BACKGROUND:
The County will use the additional revenue generated from the levy of the four-cent local option
fuel tax for transportation purposes in Escambia County.  This additional levy is intended to
facilitate a dedicated funding source to provide public transportation in the county.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
There are no negative budgetary impacts.  This will increase transportation related revenues.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
This Interlocal Agreement was approved by County Attorney Alison P. Rogers.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Sections 206.41 (1)(e) and 336.025, Fla. Stat. (2012), permits governmental units to levy an
additional one to five cents upon every gallon of motor fuel excluding diesel fuel countywide. 
This tax shall be levied by an Ordinance, and a majority plus one vote of the Board or by voter
approval by a countywide referendum. 



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The attached Interlocal Agreement was voted on at the City of Pensacola's Council meeting on
Thursday, March 28th. 

Attachments
Interlocal Agreement
Escambia County Ordinance 2012-41
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INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR 
DISTRIBUTION OF THE ADDITIONAL 

FOUR (4) CENT LOCAL OPTION FUEL PROCEEDS 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ___ of ____________, 2013, by and 
between Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, (herein after the 
“County”), and the City of Pensacola, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, (herein 
after the “City”). 
 
 WHEREAS, section 206.41 (1)(e), Florida Statutes, authorizes a local option tax on 
motor fuel, excluding diesel fuel, which tax shall be levied and used as provided in Section 
336.025, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, section 336.025 (1)(b), Florida Statutes, allows the County, by ordinance to 
enact up to five (5) cents per gallon in local option fuel tax; and 
 
 WHEREAS, section 336.025 (1)(b), Florida Statutes, requires that the tax shall be 
levied by ordinance adopted by a majority plus one vote of the membership of the governing 
body of the County or by referendum; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 19, 2012 the Escambia County Board of County 
Commissioners enacted, by a four to one vote, an ordinance to impose a four (4) cent local 
option fuel tax, effective January 1, 2014; and  
 
 WHEREAS, section 336.025 (1)(b)(2), Florida Statutes, provides for an interlocal 
agreement between the County and one or more municipalities therein to provide for a 
distribution formula for dividing the entire proceeds of the tax prior to the levy of the tax; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to section 336.025(1)(b)(2), Florida Statutes, the municipality 
representing the majority of residents in the incorporated areas may agree to a distribution 
formula for the entire proceeds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Pensacola represents the majority of residents in the 
incorporated areas of Escambia County; and  
 
 WHEREAS, section 336.025 (7)(a), Florida Statutes, provides that transportation 
expenditures may include “public transportation operations and maintenance”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has agreed to assume fiscal responsibility for funding mass 
transit if the City agrees to waive the municipalities’ share of the additional four (4) cent local 
option fuel tax; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City participates in mass transit via its appointee to the Mass Transit 
Advisory Committee and the County shall supply the City with an annual report regarding mass 
transit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County shall have exclusive authority over the management and 
control of the mass transit system. 
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 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms and conditions, promises, 
covenants and payments hereinafter set forth, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, County and City agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1 

1.1 This agreement is entered into pursuant to section 336.025, Florida Statutes (2012) for 
the purpose of determining the distribution among the county government and eligible 
municipalities of the proceeds of the additional four (4) cent Local Option Fuel Tax 
which the County intends to levy under the authority of section 336.025, Florida 
Statutes, beginning January 1, 2014, and every year thereafter. The City represents a 
majority of the population of the incorporated area

PURPOSE 
 

,

 

 within the County.  The recitals are 
hereby incorporated in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 2 

2.1 Beginning January 1, 2014, the proceeds of the aforesaid tax shall be distributed as 
follows: 

DISTRIBUTION OF TAX PROCEEDS 
 

 
    Escambia County         100.0% 
    City of Pensacola  0.0% 
    Town of Century  0.0% 

 
2.2 It is the intent of the City to waive its rights to receive any proceeds of the aforesaid tax 

so long as the County retains fiscal responsibility for the local funding for the provision 
of public bus service in the County. 

 
ARTICLE 3 

3.1 The term of this agreement shall be concurrent with the levy of the tax: January 1, 2014 
until rescinded. 

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
3.2 A public hearing shall be held every five (5) years to review the terms of the agreement. 

These public hearings to review the terms of the agreement must be held prior to 
October 1, 2018 and every fifth year thereafter through the expiration of the tax. 

 
ARTICLE 4 

RIGHTS OF HOLDERS OF OUTSTANDING BONDS 
 

4.1 It is the interest of the parties to this agreement that under no circumstances shall the 
Interlocal Agreement materially or adversely affect the rights of holders of outstanding 
bonds which are backed by taxes authorized by section 336.025, Florida Statutes 
(2012), nor shall the amounts distributed to the County Government and each 
municipality be reduced below the amount necessary for the payment of principal and  
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interest and reserves for principal and interest as required under the covenants of a 
bond resolution outstanding on the date of the establishment of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 5 

NOTICES AND EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

5.1 On or before October 1, 2013, the County shall provide to the State of Florida 
Department of Revenue certified copies of this Interlocal Agreement and any ordinance 
which the County adopts imposing the aforesaid tax. 

 
5.2 This Agreement shall become effective when filed in the Office of the Clerk of the Circuit 

Court for Escambia County. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the City have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their authorized representatives on the day and year first written above. 
 

COUNTY: 
 
      ESCAMBIA COUNTY, Florida, a political subdivision 

of the State of Florida acting by and through its 
authorized Board of County Commissioners. 
 
 

ATTEST:  Pam Childers   By: _________________________________ 
       Clerk of the Circuit Court  Gene M. Valentino, Chairman 
 
____________________________ Date: _______________________________ 
 Deputy Clerk 
      Approved as to form and legal sufficiency 

BCC Approved: _______________ By: _________________________________ 
       Alison P. Rogers, County Attorney 
 (Seal) 
 
      CITY: 
       
      City of Pensacola, a municipal corporation 
 
 
      By: _________________________________ 
       Ashton J. Hayward, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     Date: _______________________________ 
 
 
By: ___________________________ 
 City Clerk 



Escambia County
Clerk's, Original

i\^{Htilo:303#Lftl
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2012- 41

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING

ARTICLE V, SECTION 90-207, ET. SEQ., AND ADOPTING A FOUR (4)
CENT LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX ON MOTOR FUEL; PROVIDING FOR

LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR IMPOSITION; PROVIDING
FOR USE OF FUNDS; PROVIDING FOR DISTRIBUTION AMONG THE
COUNTY GOVERNMENT AND ELIGIBLE MUNICIPALITIES BY

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN

EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, to provide public transportation services to the residents of

Escambia County, Florida, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners has

established, and maintains and operates, Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT); and

WHEREAS, the Board finds that ECAT provides a critical and essential service

>, by acting as the sole conduit for many Escambia County residents to commute between
CO

•o home and work, to conduct business and make purchases, and to complete other daily

% activities which further the economic development and growth ofEscambia County; and
>

• WHEREAS, the Board further finds that operating ECAT alleviates traffic

a congestion and reduces stress and deterioration to existing roadways and traffic

.S: facilities; and
• •

<D

« WHEREAS, for these reasons, the Board concludes that the continued operation

of ECAT is necessary to reaching its goal of providing a safe, efficient, and financially

feasible mass transit transportation system; and

WHEREAS, the Board presently funds ECAT through its general revenue fund

and through other revenues collected from ECAT riders; and

WHEREAS, such funds are insufficient to maintain ECAT at its current level of

service or to enhance and expand ECAT services; and
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WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 336.025(1 )(b), Florida Statutes (2012), the

Board has the authority to levy a four (4) cent local option fuel tax to act as a dedicated

funding service for ECAT; and

WHEREAS, for the aforementioned reasons, the Board finds that levying this

local option fuel tax would allowthe Board to continue operating ECAT and therefore

significantly advances the public health, safety, and welfare of the residents of

Escambia County.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA:

SECTION 1. RECITALS.

The aforementioned recitals are hereby incorporated into this ordinance as a

statement of the legislative intent of the Board of County Commissioners in enacting this

ordinance.

SECTION 2. LEVY OF FOUR-CENT LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX.

Chapter 90, Article V, Section 90-207 ofthe Escambia County Code of

Ordinances is hereby created as follows:

Section 90-207. Additional Four-Cent Local Option Fuel Tax.

(a) Legislative findings. The Escambia County Board of County

Commissioners hereby finds as follows in support ofthis adopting this section:

(1) The Board of County Commissioners finds that it has authority to

adopt and levy a four (4) cent local option fuel tax pursuant to Section 336.025(1 )(b),
Florida Statutes, and that any such local option fuel tax is in addition to any other fuel

taxes levied by the County under federal, state, or local law.

(2) The Board of County Commissioners further finds that using

moneys received pursuant to this section as a public transportation funding source is

necessary to meet the requirements of the capital improvements element and the mass

transit element of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan.
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(3) The Board of County Commissioners further finds that using

moneys received pursuant to this section as a public transportation funding source is

necessary to meet immediate local transportation problems and for other transportation-

related expenditures.

(b) Imposition of local option fuel tax. There is hereby imposed a $0.04 local

option fuel tax upon every gallon of motor fuel sold in Escambia County and taxed

under the provisions of part I of chapter 206, Florida Statutes (2012).

(c) Use of funds. All moneys received pursuant to this section shall be used

solely to fund, provide, and operate public transportation and mass transit systems and

services in Escambia County.

(d) Distribution pursuant to interlocal agreement. Proceeds of the tax hereby

imposed shall be divided and distributed by the state department of revenue, in

accordance with the terms of any applicable interlocal agreement entered into between

Escambia County and one or more of the municipalities located within Escambia County

and the City of Pensacola, the municipality representing a majority of the population of

the incorporated area within Escambia County. The distribution formula in the interlocal

agreement shall provide for distribution ofthe entire proceeds of the local option fuel tax

among the county government and all eligible municipalities within Escambia County.

(e) Duration. The tax hereby imposed is effective from January 1, 2014 and

is for an indefinite duration unless rescinded as provided for by Florida law.

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY.

It is declared the intent of the Board of County Commissioners that ifany

subsection, clause, sentence, provision or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid

or unconstitutional by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or

unconstitutionality shall not be so construed as to render invalid or unconstitutional the

remaining provisions of this Ordinance.
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SECTION 4. INCLUSION IN THE CODE.

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of

this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Escambia County Code; and

that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered and the word

"ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other appropriate word or

phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall become effective upon its filing with the Department of

State.

DONE AND ENACTED THIS i9thDAY OF November , 2012.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

ATTEST: ERNIE LEE MAGAHA BY
Clerk to the Circuit Court Wilson B. Robertson, Chairman

@@£ity Clerk

Enacted: November 19, 2012

-4^ Filed with Department of State:

Effective* November 26, 2012

This document approved as to form
and legal sufficje/icy<-/

Commissioner Wilson B. Robertson, Chairman, District One

Commissioner Gene M. Valentino, Vice-Chairman, District Two

Commissioner Marie Young, District Three

Commissioner Grover C. Robinson, IV, District Four

Commissioner Kevin W. White, District Five

•*
November 26, 2012

JL Yes

x Yes

x Yes

_L Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

X No



   

AI-4105     County Attorney's Report      9. 1.             
BCC Regular Meeting Discussion             
Meeting Date: 04/02/2013  

Issue: Proposed Interlocal Agreement Between Escambia County and the City of
Pensacola Relating to the West Florida Public Library System

From: Alison Rogers, County Attorney
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Discussion of the Proposed Interlocal Agreement Between
Escambia County and the City of Pensacola Relating to the West Florida Public Library System

That the Board discuss the proposed Interlocal Agreement between Escambia County and the
City of Pensacola relating to the West Florida Public Library System.

BACKGROUND:
N/A

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Interlocal Agreement



 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA 

 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN ESCAMBIA COUNTY AND 
THE CITY OF PENSACOLA RELATING TO THE WEST FLORIDA 
PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEM  

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made this         day of    , 2013, by and 

between the County of Escambia, a political subdivision of the State of Florida with an 
administrative address of P.O. Box 1591, Pensacola, Florida, 32597-1591, its 
successors and assigns (hereinafter, the “County”), acting through its Board of County 
Commissioners, and the City of Pensacola, a Florida municipal corporation created and 
existing under the laws of the State of Florida, with administrative offices at 222 West 
Main Street, Pensacola, Florida 32502 (hereinafter referred to as the ”City”). 
 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, the Parties, as local governmental units of the State of Florida, have 
legal authority to perform general government services within their respective 
jurisdictions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties are authorized by §§163.01, Florida Statutes, et seq., to 
enter into Interlocal Agreements and thereby cooperatively utilize their governmental 
powers and available resources in the most efficient manner possible; and 
 

WHEREAS, the West Florida Regional Library System provides library services 
to residents throughout the unincorporated areas of Escambia County and the corporate 
limits of the Town of Century and the City of Pensacola; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the County and City previously entered into an Interlocal Agreement, 
dated June 21, 2001, designating the City as the administrator of the Library System 
and establishing a joint funding mechanism whereby each contributed funds on a per 
capita basis pursuant to a specified funding formula; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County previously enacted an Ordinance creating a Municipal 
Services Taxing Unit (MSTU) for the purpose of funding library services within the 
unincorporated areas of Escambia County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has authorized the inclusion of the corporate limits of the 
City of Pensacola as part of the geographical area of the MSTU for the purpose of  
funding library services within the corporate limits of the City of Pensacola; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to increasing budgetary constraints, the Parties recognize the 

most viable means to provide continued funding for the West Florida Library System is 
through a countywide MSTU assessment imposed for the purpose of funding library 
services; and 



 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties recognize the most efficient and effective manner to 

provide continued operation of the West Florida Library System is to transfer all 
administrative and operational functions to the County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County is willing and able to administer and fund the West 
Florida Library System subject to the terms and conditions herein set forth. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein 
and of the mutual benefits to flow each unto the other, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. Recitals

 

.   The recitals contained in the Preamble of this Agreement are 
declared to be true and correct and are incorporated into this Agreement. 

Section 2. 
 

Purpose of Agreement. 

Pursuant to §§163.01, Florida Statutes, et seq., this Agreement establishes the 
conditions, extent, and mechanism whereby the County will provide library services, 
within Escambia County and the corporate limits of the Town of Century and the City of 
Pensacola.   
 
Section 3. 
 

Term of Agreement. 

This Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2013, and remain in full force 
and effect until terminated as provided herein. 
 
Section 4. 
 

Responsibilities of the Parties. 

4.1 Funding

  

.  Effective October 1, 2013, all funding for the Library System 
shall be allocated by the County on an annual basis in an amount equal to that which is 
collected from the countywide MSTU assessment for library services.  The County shall 
reserve the right to retain up to 5% of said funding as reimbursement for administrative 
costs incurred as a result of the Agreement. 

 Within one hundred and twenty days (120) days after the effective date of 
this Agreement, the City shall transfer to County all remaining funds reserved in the 
West Florida Library Fund and applicable grant funding from the State Aid to Libraries 
Grant Program. Said transfer of funding shall not be less than the total value of the 
accrued leave liability for employees of the library system as of September 30, 2013. 
 

4.2 Operational Expenses.  Effective October 1, 2013, the County shall be 
responsible for payment of all Operational Expenses and such other services provided 
pursuant to this agreement as approved in the Annual Budget adopted by the Escambia 
County Board of County Commissioners.  For the purpose of this agreement, “Operational 
Expenses” shall include all employee wages and forms of compensation for library 



 

personnel; applicable insurance costs; utilities; rents and leases; office supplies; and any 
other charges, costs or expenses incident to the operation of the library system. 

 
4.3 Assets

 

.  The use of all Library System physical assets shall be granted to 
the County at no cost or expense to County, including, but not limited to, any real 
property, structures and appurtenances, and tangible personal property on Library 
System premises.   

4.4 Asset Use

 

.  Any buildings or other personal property acquired by County 
as part of the Library System physical assets shall be used exclusively in perpetuity for 
the Library System.  If, for any reason, any building or property utilized as part of the 
Library System is no longer utilized by the County as a public library facility or in the 
event this agreement is terminated pursuant to this agreement then such building or 
property shall be returned to the original owner.   

4.5 Personnel

 

.  Upon the effective date of this Agreement, all current Library 
System employees without any prior unsatisfactory performance evaluations or record 
of disciplinary action shall be transferred to the County at the same rate of 
compensation.  All Library System employees hired after the effective date of this 
Agreement shall be County employees. As County employees, all Library System 
personnel shall be eligible for Escambia County employee benefits. The County shall 
not be responsible for providing employee benefits in excess of any benefits currently 
provided to eligible County employees.  All part time Library System personnel shall be 
eligible for Escambia County part time employee benefits.  

4.6 Director

 

.  The County shall employ a Director with demonstrated 
experience in library operations who shall be known as the Director of the West Florida 
Library System.  The Director shall be an employee of the County and be responsible 
for the administration and supervision of all branch libraries and personnel.  The 
Director shall carry out policy as established by the West Florida Public Library Board of 
Governance under the direction of the County Administrator. 

4.7 Library System Branches

 

.  The following facilities shall comprise the 
Library System: 

 City owned facilities
Downtown Library located at 200 West Gregory Street 

-  

 Tryon Branch located at 1200 Langley Avenue 
 
Third party owned facilities
Westside Branch located at 1580 West Cervantes Street 

- 

 West Florida Genealogy Library located at 5740 North 9th Avenue 
 
County owned facilities
Southwest Branch located at 12248 Gulf Beach Highway 

- 

 Century Branch located at 7991 North Century Boulevard 



 

 Molino Branch located at 6450 Highway 95-A North    
 
 Additional branches, including, but not limited to, the Legion Field 

Neighborhood Resource Center, may be included as part of the Library System upon 
mutual agreement of the Parties and by written amendment to this Agreement.  
 
 4.8 Information Technology

 

. Upon the effective date of this Agreement, the 
County shall be responsible for information distribution technologies for all Library 
System facilities, including, but not limited to, support and management of computer 
hardware, software, electronics, semiconductors, internet, telecom equipment, and 
other network components. 

 4.9 Capital Improvements

 

. The County shall not be responsible for capital 
improvements for City owned Library System facilities.  

For the purpose of this Agreement, “Capital Improvements” shall mean all 
equipment, machinery, appurtenances, improvements, alterations, systems, including 
but not limited to, plumbing, electrical, wiring and conduits, heating and air conditioning 
systems, and items of identical or similar nature and character, having a purchase price 
of greater than five thousand dollars ($5,000.00), and a life expectancy of greater than 
five (5) years.  

 
4.10 Facilities Maintenance

 

. Except as otherwise noted herein, the County 
shall be responsible for general maintenance for all Library System facilities, including, 
but not limited to, custodial maintenance, equipment maintenance, digital direct control 
monitoring and life safety services inspection, pest control, chemical treatment, waste 
disposal, and grounds keeping. 

For the purpose of this Agreement, “General Maintenance” shall mean the 
repair and replacement of parts, servicing, adjustment and rehabilitation of parts and 
components associated with the routine upkeep and cleaning of Library System facilities 
which is reasonably necessary to maintain a high level of service and which is 
aesthetically pleasing and consistent with prudent industrial practice, product 
specifications and design, manufacturer’s recommendations, and promotion activities. 
The provision of general maintenance shall not include any capital improvements. 

 
The City shall be responsible for providing grounds keeping at the Tryon 

Branch located at 1200 Langley Avenue for which County shall reimburse the City for 
related costs on a monthly basis in an amount not to exceed XX.XX.  [TBD] 

 
4.11 Insurance

 
. 

County shall be responsible for maintaining liability insurance coverage for 
all Library System facilities.  The County is a qualified self insurer pursuant to Florida 
Statutes for general liability and has established a self insurance fund in lieu of 
purchasing liability insurance.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under 



 

County’s self insurance fund as it relates to liability incurred in connection with, or 
arising out of, any negligence due to an occurrence caused by County, its officials, 
employees, authorized agents, and authorized representatives with regard to the 
performance of this agreement.  Said self insurance fund shall provide liability coverage, 
to the extent permitted by law, for claims arising out of such negligence up to the limits 
of sovereign immunity as provided for by Florida Statutes applicable to the County.   

 
For all City owned Library branch facilities, the City shall procure and 

maintain, at its own cost and expense, property insurance with extended coverage for 
the full replacement value of all buildings, permanent improvements and fixtures.  
  
Section 5. The West Florida Public Library Board of Governance

 
.   

The West Florida Public Library Board of Governance (hereinafter “Board of 
Governance”) shall establish policy of the West Florida Public Library System and make 
recommendations to the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners regarding 
the annual budget. 
 
Section 6. 
 

Termination. 

This Agreement may be terminated by any party at any time and for any reason 
upon ninety (90) days written notice to the other party; provided, however, that 
termination shall not affect the reimbursement of any costs then owing to the County by 
the City, or which subsequently are owed to the County by the City as a result of 
enforcement actions concluded following the effective date of termination. 

 
Section 7. 
 

Liability. 

(a) The parties hereto, their respective elected officials, officers, and 
employees shall not be deemed to assume any liability for the acts, 
omissions, or negligence of the other party.  The City of Pensacola, as a 
local governmental body of the State of Florida as defined in Section 
768.28, Florida Statutes, agrees to be fully responsible for its negligent 
acts or omissions or tortuous acts which result in claims or suits against 
the County and agrees to be fully liable for any damages proximately 
caused by said acts or omissions.  Escambia County, as a subdivision of 
the State of Florida as defined in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, agrees 
to be fully responsible for its negligent acts or omissions or tortuous acts 
which results in claims or acts against the City and agrees to be fully liable 
for any damages caused by said acts or omissions. Nothing herein is 
intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity by the City or the 
County and nothing herein shall be construed as consent by the City or 
the County to be sued by third parties in any matter arising out of this 
Agreement. 

 



 

(b) Each party is responsible for maintaining, in a form acceptable to the 
parties, all necessary records of personnel and equipment used under this 
Agreement for a period of five (5) years and each party’s records shall be 
subject to audit after reasonable notice. 

 
Section 8. 
 

Records. 

The parties acknowledge that this Agreement and any related financial records, 
audits, reports, plans, correspondence, and other documents may be subject to 
disclosure to members of the public pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, as 
amended.  In the event a party fails to abide by the provision of Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes, the other party may, without prejudice to any right or remedy and after giving 
that party, seven (7) days written notice, during which period the party fails to allow 
access to such documents, terminate this Agreement. 
 
Section 9. 
 

Assignment. 

The Agreement, or any interest herein, shall not be assigned, transferred, or 
otherwise encumbered, under any circumstances, by the Parties, without the prior 
written consent of the other party. 
 
Section 10. 
 

Headings. 

Headings and subtitles used throughout this Agreement are for the purpose of 
convenience only, and no heading or subtitle shall modify or be used to interpret the text 
of any section. 
 
Section 11. 
 

Survival. 

All other provisions, which by their inherent character, sense, and context are 
intended to survive termination of this Agreement, shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 
 
Section 12. 

 
Interpretation. 

(a)  For the purpose of this Agreement, the singular includes the plural and the 
plural shall include the singular.  References to statutes or regulations 
shall include all statutory or regulatory provisions consolidating, amending, 
or replacing the statutes or regulations referred to.  Words not otherwise 
defined that have well-known technical or industry meanings, are used in 
accordance with such recognized meanings. 

 
(b) References to persons include their respective permitted successors and 

assigns and, in the case of governmental persons, persons succeeding to 
their respective functions and capacities. This Agreement shall not be 
more strictly construed against either party hereto by reason of the fact 



 

that one party may have drafted or prepared any or all of the terms and 
provision hereof. 

 
Section 13. 
 

Severability. 

The invalidity or non-enforceability of any portion or provision of this Agreement 
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other portion or provision.  Any invalid 
or unenforceable portion or provision shall be deemed severed from this Agreement and 
the balance hereof shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain 
such invalid or unenforceable portion or provision. 
 
Section 14. Further Documents.
 

   

The parties shall execute and deliver all documents and perform further actions 
that may be reasonably necessary to effectuate the provision of this Agreement. 
 
Section 15. 
 

Notices. 

All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing, and 
shall be sent by first class United States mail, unless some other form of notice is 
established by the County Administrator, to the respective parties as follows: 

 
County      
County Administrator    City Administrator 

City 

Escambia County     City of Pensacola 
Post Office Box 1591    Post Office Box 12910 
Pensacola, Florida 32591    Pensacola, FL  32521 
 

Section 16. 
 

Prior Agreements Superseded. 

This documents incorporates and includes all prior negotiations, correspondence, 
conversations, agreements, or understandings applicable to the matters contained 
herein, and the parties agree that there are no commitments, agreements, or 
understandings concerning the subject matter to of this Agreement, that are not 
contained in this document.  Accordingly, no deviations from the terms and conditions 
hereof shall be predicated upon any prior representations or agreements, whether oral 
or written. 

 
It is further agreed that no modification, amendment, or alteration in the terms 

and conditions contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written 
document executed with the same formality and of equal dignity herewith. 

 
Section 17. 
 

Governing Law. 

 The Agreement shall be interpreted under and its performance governed by the 
laws of the State of Florida.  The parties agree that any action relating to this Agreement 



 

shall be instituted and prosecuted in the courts of Escambia County, Florida, and 
therefore, each party to this Agreement hereby waives the right to any change of venue. 
 
Section 18. 
 

No Waiver. 

 The failure of either party to enforce at any time or for any period of time any one 
or more of the provisions of the Agreement shall not be construed to be and shall not be 
a waiver of any such provision or provisions or of its right thereafter to enforce each and 
every such provision. 
 
Section 19. 
 

Effective Date. 

 This Agreement, after being properly executed by all parties named herein, shall 
become effective upon its filing with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Escambia County, 
Florida.  Escambia County shall be responsible for filing this document upon receipt of 
the executed Agreement from the City of Pensacola. 
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have made and executed this 
Agreement on the respective dates under each signature: Escambia County, Florida 
through its Board of County Commissioners, signing by and through its duly authorized 
Chairman and the City of Pensacola, signing by and through its authorized Mayor. 
 

COUNTY: 
 
Escambia County, Florida Board of County 
Commissioners, a political subdivision of the 
State of Florida acting through its duly 
authorized Board of County Commissioners 
signing by and through its Chairman. 

 
 

By:         
Gene M. Valentino, Chairman 
 

      Date: ________________________________ 
 
ATTEST: Pam Childers 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court  
 
By:        

Deputy Clerk 
 
(Seal) 

THE CITY OF PENSACOLA, 
ATTEST:     A FLORIDA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 
         



 

By: ___________________________ By: ______________________________ 
 City Clerk Ashton J. Hayward III, Mayor 
   
(Seal) 
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